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Letter of Invitation for Bids

Pristina, Kosovo
11.03.2021 
Re: Supply, Installation, Maintenance of relevant equipment and services for the introduction of consumption-based heat metering and thermostatic heating valves in Termokos and ID number of procurement: BD / QPBS / 2021/003
Dear Madam/Sir:
The United States of America, acting through the Millennium Challenge Corporation (“MCC”) and the Government of Kosovo (the “Government”) have entered into a Millennium Challenge Threshold for Millennium Challenge Account assistance to help facilitate poverty reduction through economic growth in Kosovo (the “Threshold”) in the amount of approximately 49 Million USD (“MCC Funding”). The Government, acting through Millennium Foundation Kosovo (“MCA Entity” or the “Purchaser”), intends to apply a portion of the MCC Funding to eligible payments under a contract for which this Invitation for Bids (“IFB”) is issued. Any payments made by the MCA Entity under the proposed contract will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the Compact and related documents, including restrictions on the use and distribution of MCC Funding. No party other than the Government and the MCA Entity shall derive any rights from the Compact or have any claim to the proceeds of MCC Funding. The Compact and its related documents can be found on the MCC website (www.mcc.gov) and on the website of the MCA Entity at www.millenniumkosovo.org.
Description of the Compact program: District heating service in Pristina is provided by Termokos, which is an enterprise owned by the Municipality of Pristina. Termokos provides service for approximately 14,500 apartments in Pristina through distribution of piped hot water heat from a central plant. This district heating system has recently been revitalized and could be a cost-effective alternative for many households, utilizing cogeneration from the Kosovo B power plant. However, heating energy from district heating in Pristina could be consumed more efficiently, which is not currently the case. One reason why district heating is presently not as cost-effective, is that individual households cannot control the hot water flow in their own system and its use is billed based on surface area (m²) rather than on actual consumption. As a result, households will often use the “open-window” technique to regulate temperature.
Therefore, the program aims to help test the cost-effectiveness of charging households for the actual energy they use and allow for energy savings to allow for expansion of the district heating network and service in Pristina. Additionally, it will test the responsiveness of households to direct price signals and aims to save households money by making them more aware of how much energy they’re using and giving them more control over that energy use.


This IFB follows the General Procurement Notice that appeared in dgMarket during the year 2020 and lastly on 03 February 2021, UNDB Online on 03 February 2021, the MCA Entity’s website www.millenniumkosovo.org on 03 February 2021, and local newspapers Koha ditore on 04 February 2021 and Epoka e Re on 04 February 2021.
[bookmark: _gjdgxs]The Purchaser now invites eligible entities (“Bidders”) to submit sealed Bids (containing separate sealed envelopes for the Technical Offers and the Financial Offers) for the provision of: supply, installation and maintenance of control- and metering equipment for all the existing clients of District Heating Company Termokos in Prishtina; billing and networking solution in conjunction with above-mentioned equipment; any necessary capacity building of Termokos employees. The Contract contains different modification and adaption works on the internal building heating system. Depending on the internal heating system configuration (dual pipe system and vertical/ horizontal system) of each building the parts (as stated in Section V – Schedule of Requirement) of the system could be affected and need an update and/ or must be refitted with new equipment. More details on these goods and related services are provided in the Schedule of Requirements in the bidding document associated with this IFB (the “Bidding Document”).
This IFB is open to all eligible Bidders who wish to respond. Subject to restrictions noted in the Bidding Document, eligible entities may associate with other Bidders to enhance their capacity to successfully carry out the assignment.
The supplier is expected to execute the contract in its entirety in 12 months from the contract signing date. 
A Supplier will be selected using Quality and Price Based Selection (“QPBS”) procedures which modify the Competitive Selection procedures as described in this Bidding Document, in accordance with the “MCC Program Procurement Guidelines,” which are provided on the MCC website (www.mcc.gov/ppg). The selection process, as described, will include a review and verification of qualifications and past performance, including a reference check, prior to the contract award.
This Bidding Document includes the following sections:
PART 1 – BIDDING AND SELECTION PROCEDURES
Section I	Instructions to Bidders (“ITB”)
This section provides information to help prospective Bidders prepare their Bids; it also provides information on the submission, opening, and evaluation of Bids and on the award of Contracts.
Section II	Bid Data Sheet (“BDS”)
This section sets out the particular requirements for the specific procurement and supplements the information included in Section I. Instructions to Bidders. 
Section III	Qualification and Evaluation Criteria
This section describes the required qualifications of the Bidder to perform the Contract, and the process to determine the highest combined technical and financial scored Bid.
Section IV	Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms
This section contains the Bid Submission Form, Price Schedules for Goods, Bid Security, the Manufacturer’s Authorization (if required) and other forms which are to be completed by the Bidders and submitted as part of their Bids.
PART 2 – SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS
Section V	Schedule of Requirements
This section includes the detailed list of Goods and Related Services, the Delivery and Completion Schedules, the Technical Specifications and the Drawings that describe the Goods and Related Services to be procured.
PART 3 – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS
Section VI	Contract Notices and Agreement 
This section contains the notices to be sent to the Supplier and the agreement to be entered into between MCA Entity and the Supplier. 
Section VII	General Conditions of Contract (“GCC”)
This section contains the General Conditions of Contract clauses.
Section VIII	Special Conditions of Contract (“SCC”) and Annex to Contract
This section contains the form of those clauses of the Contract that supplement the GCC and that are to be completed by the MCA Entity for each procurement of Goods and Related Services. This section also includes an Annex to the Contract (Annex A: Additional Provisions) that contains provisions that are a part of the Government’s and the MCA Entity’s obligations under the Compact and related documents which, under the terms of the Compact and related documents, are required to be transferred onto any Supplier, Subcontractor or Associate who partakes in any MCC-funded procurement.
Section IX	Contract Annexes
This Section contains annexes and forms that will be completed after award of Contract to the successful Bidder.
Annex 1 – Price for Goods and Related Services
Annex 2 – Part 2 – Supply Requirements
Annex 3 - SR1 – List of Goods and Delivery Schedule and SR2 – List of Related Services and Completion Schedule
Annex H – Environmental and Social Management Plan



Please note that a Pre-Bid Conference will be held as described in the Bid Data Sheet (“BDS”), Section II of the Bidding Document.
Bidders interested in submitting a Bid should register their interest by sending an e-mail, giving full contact details of the Bidder, to the following point of contact. This will ensure that the Bidders receive updates regarding this IFB.
Mr Arton Citaku
MFK - Millennium Foundation Kosovo 
Address: The Governmental Building, Migjeni str 21, floor 9, 10000 Prishtina, Kosovo. 
Tel: Email: procurement@millenniumkosovo.org
Bids must be delivered in the manner specified in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB) 24, no later than 22 April 2021; 14:00 pm (Kosovo Time). The outer envelopes/cartons will be opened thereafter in a public Bid opening at the address and time specified in the ITB 28.
Submissions from Bidders will be evaluated by a qualified Technical Evaluation Panel. The evaluation will be undertaken in two distinct steps (in either sequence): the first step includes a technical assessment of the Bidders’ ability and past references to carry out the assignment, and the second step includes evaluation of the Bidders’ Financial Offer with the proposed prices, all in accordance with Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria.

Late Bids will not be accepted under any circumstances and will be returned unopened at the written request and cost of the Bidder. All Bids must be accompanied by a bid security (as required) in the manner and amount specified in the BDS.
Please note that only electronic Bids “shall” be accepted.

Yours sincerely,

Arton Citaku

For Millennium Foundation Kosovo

The Governmental Building, 
Migjeni str 21, floor 9, 10000 Prishtina, Kosovo 

procurement@millenniumkosovo.org 
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PART 1:
BIDDING AND SELECTION PROCEDURE

	[bookmark: _Toc63256560][bookmark: _Toc63348094]Section I. Instructions to Bidders

	A. [bookmark: _Toc63256561][bookmark: _Toc63348095]General

	In Part 1 (Bidding and Selection Procedures) of this Bidding Document, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings stated below. These definitions shall not apply to any words or expressions in the sections that make up Part 3 (Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms) of this Bidding Document, in which such words and expressions shall have the meanings stated in GCC Sub-Clauses 1.1 and 1.2 unless otherwise specified.

	
	(a) “Addendum” or “Addenda” means a modification to this Bidding Document issued by the MCA Entity.
(b)  “Associate” means any entity that forms the Bidder or Supplier. A Subcontractor is not an Associate.
(c) “Association” or “association” or “Joint Venture” or “joint venture” means an association of entities that forms the Bidder or Supplier, with or without a legal status distinct from that of its members.
(d) “BDS” means the Bid Data Sheet in Section II of this Bidding Document used to reflect specific requirements and/or conditions.
(e) “Bid” means a bid for the provision of the Goods and Related Services submitted by a Bidder in response to this Bidding Document.
(f) “Bid Security” means the security a Bidder may be required to furnish as part of its Bid in accordance with ITB 22.
(g) “Bidder” means any eligible entity or person, including any associate of such eligible entity or person that submits a Bid.
(h) “Bidding Document” means this document, including any subsequent amendments, prepared by the Purchaser for the selection of the Supplier.
(i) “Compact” means the Millennium Challenge Compact identified in the BDS.
(j) “confirmation” means confirmation in writing.
(k) “Contract” means the contract proposed to be entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, including all attachments, annexes, and all documents incorporated by reference therein, a form of which is included in Part 3 of this Bidding Document.
(l) “days” refers to calendar days.
(m) “Final Destination” means the place(s) where the Goods are to be delivered, and/or installed, as prescribed in ITB Clause 15.6.
(n) “Financial Offer” means the financial information provided as part of the Bidder’s Bid in accordance with ITB 12.3.
(o) “GCC” means the General Conditions of Contract.
(p) “Goods” means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract.
(q) “Government” means the Government identified in the BDS.
(r) “IFC Performance Standards” means the International Finance Corporation’s Performance Standards on Environmental and Social Sustainability. 
(s)  “Instructions to Bidders” or “ITB” means Section I of this Bidding Document, including any amendments, which provides Bidders with all information needed to prepare their Bids.
(t) “in writing” means communicated in written form (e.g., by mail, e-mail or facsimile) delivered with proof of receipt.
(u) “Letter of Financial Offer” means the completed form with the heading “Letter of Financial Offer” included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms, which are part of the Bidder’s Bid. 
(v) “Letter of Technical Offer” means the completed form with the heading “Letter of Technical Offer” included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms, which are part of the Bidder’s Bid. 
(w) “MCC’s AFC Policy” has the meaning provided in ITB Clause 3.
(x) “Millennium Challenge Corporation” or “MCC” means a United States Government corporation, acting on behalf of the United States Government.
(y) “MCC Funding” means the funding MCC has made available to the Government pursuant to the terms of the Compact.
(z) “MCC Program Procurement Guidelines” or “MCC PPG” means the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines and its amendments posted from time to time on the MCC website at www.mcc.gov/ppg.
(aa) “Pre-Bid Conference” means the pre-bid conference specified in BDS ITB 8.2, if any.
(ab) “Purchaser” or “MCA Entity” means the accountable entity identified in the BDS, and the party with which the Supplier signs the Contract for the supply of Goods and Related Services.
(ac) “Related Services” means the services incidental to the supply of the Goods such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other similar obligations of the Supplier under the Contract.
(ad) “SCC” means the Special Conditions of Contract.
(ae) “Schedule of Requirements” means the documents included in Part 2 of this Bidding Document that explain the technical specifications and other requirements related to the Goods and Related Services.
(af) “Subcontractor” means any entity to whom a Bidder intends to subcontract any part of the Goods and Related Services.
(ag) “Supplier” means the entity that provides the Goods and Related Services to the Purchaser under the Contract.
(ah) “Taxes” has the meaning given to the term in the Compact.
(ai)  “Technical Evaluation Panel” or “TEP” is the body responsible for examining and evaluating the Technical and Financial Offers.
(aj) “Technical Offer” means the technical information provided as part of the Bidder’s Bid in accordance with ITB 12.2.
(ak) “Trafficking in Persons” or “TIP” has the meaning given to the term in the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines.

	1. [bookmark: _Toc201578160][bookmark: _Toc201578441][bookmark: _Toc202352922][bookmark: _Toc202353133][bookmark: _Toc202353330][bookmark: _Toc433790843][bookmark: _Toc451499827][bookmark: _Toc451500380][bookmark: _Toc63254536][bookmark: _Toc63256562][bookmark: _Toc63348096]Scope of Bid
	1.1 [bookmark: _tyjcwt]The Purchaser has issued an Invitation for Bids for the procurement of Goods and Related Services as specified in Section V. Schedule of Requirements. The winner will be determined by the selection method specified in the BDS, according to Quality and Price Based Selection principles set out in the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines and in accordance with Section II. Instructions to Bidders – Bid Data Sheet and Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria. The name and identification number of the Contract, and number and description of the lot(s), are specified in the BDS.
1.2 Throughout this IFB except where the context requires otherwise, words indicating the singular also include the plural, words indicating the plural also include the singular, and the feminine means the masculine and vice versa.
1.3 Bidders are encouraged to attend a Pre-Bid Conference if one is specified in the BDS. Attending any Pre-Bid Conference is strongly advised, but not mandatory. Attending any Pre-Bid Conference and/or a site visit shall not be taken into account for the purpose of evaluation of Bids.
1.4 The Purchaser is not bound to accept any Bid, and reserves the right to cancel the procurement at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to any Bidder.

	2. [bookmark: _Toc63256563][bookmark: _Toc63348097]Source of Funds
	2.1 The United States of America, acting through MCC and the Government have entered into the Compact. The Government, acting through the MCA Entity, intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of MCC Funding to eligible payments under the Contract. Any payments made under the Contract with MCC Funding will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the Compact and related documents, including restrictions on the use and distribution of MCC Funding. No party other than the Government and the MCA Entity shall derive any rights from the Compact or have any claim to the proceeds of MCC Funding. The Compact and related documents can be found on the MCC website (www.mcc.gov) or the website of the MCA Entity.

	3. [bookmark: _Toc63256564][bookmark: _Toc63348098]Corruption and Fraud 
	3.1 [bookmark: _4d34og8]MCC requires that all beneficiaries of MCC Funding, including the MCA Entity and any applicants, Bidders, Suppliers, contractors, Subcontractors, consultants, and sub-consultants under any MCC-funded contracts, observe the highest standards of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. MCC’s Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations (“MCC’s AFC Policy”) is applicable to all procurements and contracts involving MCC Funding and can be found on the MCC website. MCC’s AFC Policy requires that companies and entities receiving MCC funds acknowledge notice of MCC’s AFC Policy and certify to the MCA Entity that they have acceptable commitments and procedures in place to address the potential for fraudulent and corrupt practices. 
(a) For the purposes of these provisions, the terms set forth below are defined as follows, and sometimes referred to collectively in this document as “Fraud and Corruption”:
(i)“coercion” means impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of any party, to improperly influence  the actions of a party in connection with the implementation of any contract supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding, including such actions taken in connection with a procurement process or the execution of a contract;
(ii)“collusion” means a tacit or explicit agreement between two or more parties to engage in coercion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or a prohibited practice, including any such agreement designed to fix, stabilize, or manipulate prices or to otherwise deprive the MCA  Entity of the benefits of free and open competition;
(iii)“corruption” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of a public official, MCA Entity staff, MCC staff, consultants, or employees of other entities engaged in work supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding, including such work involving taking or reviewing selection decisions, otherwise advancing the selection process or contract execution, or the making of any payment to any third party in connection with or in furtherance of a contract.;
(iv)“fraud” means any act or omission, including any misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads or attempts to mislead a party in order to obtain a financial or other benefit in connection with the implementation of any contract supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding, including any act or omission designed to influence (or attempt to influence) improperly a selection process or the execution of a contract, or to avoid (or attempt to avoid) an obligation;
[bookmark: _2s8eyo1](v)“obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption” means any act taken in connection with the implementation of any contract supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding: (a) that results in the deliberate destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence or making false statement(s) to investigators or any official in order to impede an investigation into allegations of coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, or a prohibited practice; or (b) that threatens, harasses, or intimidates any party to prevent him or her from either disclosing his or her knowledge of matters relevant to an investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or (c) that is intended to impede the conduct of an inspection and/or the exercise of audit rights of MCC and/or the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) responsible for MCC provided under a Compact, Threshold Program agreement, or related agreements.  
[bookmark: _17dp8vu](vi)“prohibited practice” means any action that violates Section E (Compliance with Anti-Corruption Legislation), Section F (Compliance with Anti-Money Laundering Legislation), and Section G (Compliance with Terrorist Financing Legislation and Other Restrictions) of the Annex of Additional Provisions that will be made a part of MCC-funded contracts.
(b) [bookmark: _3rdcrjn]The MCA Entity will reject a Bid (and MCC will deny approval of a proposed Contract award) if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption,  or prohibited practices in competing for the Contract.
(c) [bookmark: _26in1rg]MCC and the MCA Entity have the right to sanction a Bidder, including declaring the Bidder ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded an MCC-funded contract if at any time either MCC or the MCA Entity determines that the Supplier has, directly or through an agent, engaged in coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or prohibited practices in competing for, or in executing, such a contract.
(d) MCC and the MCA Entity have the right to require that a provision be included in the Contract requiring the selected Supplier to permit the MCA Entity, MCC, or any designee of MCC, to inspect the Supplier’s or any Subcontractor’s accounts, records and other documents relating to the preparation and submission of the Bid or performance of the Contract and to have such accounts, records and other documents audited by auditors appointed by MCC or by the MCA Entity with the approval of MCC.
(e) In addition, MCC has the right to cancel any portion of the MCC Funding allocated to the Contract if it determines at any time that any representative of a beneficiary of MCC Funding engaged in coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or prohibited practices during the selection process or the execution of any MCC-funded Contract, without the MCA Entity having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to MCC to remedy the situation.

	4. [bookmark: _Toc63256565][bookmark: _Toc63348099]Environmental and Social Requirements
	

	[bookmark: _35nkun2]Trafficking in Persons
	4.1 MCC has a zero-tolerance policy with regard to Trafficking in Persons. Trafficking in Persons (“TIP”) is the crime of using force, fraud, and/or coercion to exploit another person. Trafficking in Persons can take the form of domestic servitude, peonage, forced labor, sexual servitude, bonded labor, and the use of child soldiers. This practice deprives people of their human rights and freedoms, increases global health risks, fuels growing networks of organized crime, and can sustain levels of poverty and impede development. MCC is committed to ensuring appropriate steps are taken to prevent, mitigate, and monitor TIP risks in the projects it funds.
4.2 The Additional Provisions (Annex A of the Contract) sets out certain prohibitions, Bidder requirements, remedies and other provisions that will be made a binding part of any Contract that may be entered into.
4.3 Additional information on MCC’s requirements aimed at combating trafficking in persons can be found in the MCC Counter-Trafficking in Persons Policy (“C-TIP”) that can be found on MCC’s website (https://www.mcc.gov/resources/doc/policy-counter-trafficking-in-persons-policy). All contracts funded by MCC are required to comply with the Policy’s Counter-TIP Minimum Compliance Requirements. Contracts for projects categorized by MCC as high-risk for TIP are required to implement a TIP Risk Management Plan (which is to be developed by the MCA Entity and implemented by the corresponding Supplier).

	MCC Environmental Guidelines and IFC Performance Standards
	4.4 The Bidder shall ensure that its activities, including any activities carried out by Sub-contractors, under the Contract comply with MCC’s Environmental Guidelines (as such term is defined in the Compact or related agreement, which are available at http://www.mcc.gov), and are not ‘likely to cause a significant environmental, health, or safety hazard’ as defined in such Environmental Guidelines. The Bidder is also required to comply with IFC Performance Standards for the purposes of the Contract. Additional information on the IFC Performance Standards can be found here:
http://www.ifc.org/wps/wcm/connect/topics_ext_content/ifc_external_corporate_site/sustainability-at-ifc/policies-standards/performance-standards

	5. [bookmark: _Toc63256566][bookmark: _Toc63348100]Bidders’ Qualification and Eligibility
	5.1 The qualification and eligibility criteria set out in this Bidding Document will apply to the Bidder, including all parties constituting the Bidder, for any part of the Contract, including Related Services.
5.2 Bidders must satisfy the eligibility criteria set forth in this Bidding Document and as contained in the MCC PPG governing MCC-funded procurements under the Compact. 

	[bookmark: _44sinio]Joint Venture or Association; Subcontractors
	5.3 In the case where a Bidder is or proposes to be a Joint Venture or Association, (a) all members of the Joint Venture or Association must satisfy the legal, financial, litigation and other requirements set out in this Bidding Document; (b) all members will be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract; and (b) the Joint Venture or Association will nominate a representative who will have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the Joint Venture or Association.
5.4 Subject to the restrictions set forth in this Bidding Document, any Bidder may propose to sub-contract a part of the Contract in accordance with its terms and provided that the names and details of the sub-contract are clearly stated in the Bid submitted by the Bidder.
5.5 Qualification requirements for the Bidder in addition to those set out in these Instructions to Bidders are specified in Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria.
5.6 Bidders must also satisfy the eligibility criteria contained in the MCC PPG governing MCC-funded procurements under the Compact. In the case where a Bidder intends to join with an associate or sub-contract part of the Contract, then such associate or Subcontractor shall also be subject to the eligibility criteria set forth in this Bidding Document and the MCC PPG.
5.7 Bidders shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.

	[bookmark: _2jxsxqh]Conflict of Interest
	5.8 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. All Bidders found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified, unless the conflict of interest has been mitigated and the mitigation is approved by MCC. The Purchaser requires that Bidders and the Supplier hold the Purchaser’s interests paramount at all times, strictly avoid conflicts of interest, including conflicts with other assignments or their own corporate interests, and act without any consideration for future work. Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, a Bidder or Supplier, including all parties constituting the Bidder or Supplier, and any subcontractors for any part of the Contract, including related services, and their respective personnel and affiliates, may be considered to have a conflict of interest and disqualified or terminated if they:
(a) have at least one controlling partner in common with one or more other parties in the process contemplated by this Bidding Document, or
(b) have the same legal representative as another Bidder for purposes of this Bid; or
(c) have a relationship, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence over the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding the selection process for this procurement; or
(d) participate in more than one Bid in this process; participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which the party is involved; however, this provision does not limit the inclusion of the same Subcontractor in more than one Bid; or
(e) are, or have been associated in the past, with a person or entity, or any of their affiliates, which has been engaged to provide consulting services for the preparation of the specifications, requirements, or other documents to be used for the procurement and provision of the Goods and Related Services under the Contract; or
(f) are themselves, or have a business or family relationship with, (i) a member of the MCA Entity’s board of directors or staff, (ii) the project’s Implementing Entity’s staff, or (iii) the Procurement Agent, Fiscal Agent, or Auditor (as defined in the Compact or related agreements) hired by the MCA Entity in connection with the Compact, any of whom is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (A) the preparation of this Bidding Document, (B) the selection process for this procurement, or (C) supervision of the Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to MCC; or
(g) any of their affiliates have been or, at present, are engaged by the MCA Entity in the capacity of the Implementing Entity, Procurement Agent, Fiscal Agent, or Auditor under the Compact.
5.9 A Bidder that has been engaged by the Purchaser to provide goods, works or non-consulting services for a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services related to those goods, works or services. Conversely, a Bidder hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods, works or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to such consulting services for such preparation or implementation.
5.10 Bidders and the Supplier have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of the Purchaser, or that may reasonably be perceived as having this effect. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Bidder or the termination of the Contract.

	[bookmark: _z337ya]Government-Owned Entities
	5.11 [bookmark: _3j2qqm3]Government-Owned Enterprises (“GOEs”) are not eligible to compete for MCC-funded contracts. GOEs (a) may not be party to any MCC-funded contract for works or goods and related services procured through an open solicitation process, limited bidding, or direct contracting, and (b) may not be pre-qualified for any MCC-funded contract anticipated to be procured through these means. This prohibition does not apply to Government-owned Force Account units or Government-owned educational institutions and research centers, any statistical, mapping or other technical entities not formed primarily for a commercial or business purpose, or where a waiver is granted by MCC in accordance with the MCC PPG. All Bidders must certify their status as requested in the Bid Submission Form BSF1.1.

	[bookmark: _1y810tw]Ineligibility and Debarment
	5.12 [bookmark: _4i7ojhp]A Bidder or Supplier, all parties constituting the Bidder or Supplier, and any Subcontractors for any part of the Contract, including related services, and their respective personnel and affiliates, will not be any person or entity under (a) a declaration of ineligibility for engaging in coercive, collusive, corrupt, fraudulent, obstructive or prohibited practices as contemplated by ITB Clause 3.1 above, or (b) that has been declared ineligible for participation in a procurement in accordance with the procedures set out in Part 10 of MCC’s Program Procurement Guidelines (Eligibility Verification Procedures) that can be found on MCC’s website at www.mcc.gov/ppg. This would also remove from eligibility for participation in this procurement any entity that is organized in, or has its principal place of business or a significant portion of its operations in, any country that is subject to sanctions or restrictions by law or policy of the United States.

	
	5.13 A Bidder or Supplier, all parties constituting the Bidder or Supplier, and any Subcontractors for any part of the Contract, including related services, and their respective personnel and affiliates not otherwise made ineligible for a reason described in this ITB Clause 5 will nonetheless be excluded if:
(a) as a matter of law or official regulation, the Government prohibits commercial relations with the country of the Bidder or Supplier (including any Associates, Subcontractors and any respective affiliates); or
(b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Government prohibits any import of goods from the country of the Bidder or Supplier (including any Associates, Subcontractors and any respective affiliates) or any payments to entities in such country; or
(c) such Bidder or Supplier, any parties constituting the Bidder or Supplier, any Subcontractor, Associate, or respective personnel or affiliates are otherwise deemed ineligible by MCC pursuant to any policy or guidance that may, from time to time, be in effect as posted on MCC’s website (www.mcc.gov).

	[bookmark: _2xcytpi]Evidence of Continued Eligibility
	5.14 Bidders and the Supplier shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility in a manner satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.

	[bookmark: _1ci93xb]Commissions and Gratuities
	5.15 A Bidder or Supplier will furnish information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid relating to this procurement or its Bid and during performance of the Contract if the Bidder is awarded the Contract, as requested in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms.

	6. [bookmark: _Toc63256567][bookmark: _Toc63348101]Eligible Goods and Related Services
	6.1 [bookmark: _2bn6wsx]The Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract may have their origin in any country subject to the same restrictions specified for Bidders and the Supplier in ITB Clause 5 above. At the Purchaser’s request, Bidders will be required to provide evidence of the origin of Goods and Related Services.
6.2 For purposes of ITB Clause 6.1, “origin” means the place where the Goods are mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed. Goods are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial or major assembling of components, a commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics, purposes or utility from its underlying components. With respect to Related Services, “origin” means the place from which the Related Services are supplied.

	B. [bookmark: _Toc63256568][bookmark: _Toc63348102]Contents of Bidding Document

	7. [bookmark: _Toc63256569][bookmark: _Toc63348103]Sections of Bidding Document
	7.1 This Bidding Document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the sections indicated below and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB Clause 9.
Part 1 – Bidding and Selection Procedures
· [bookmark: _1pxezwc]Section I. Instructions to Bidders
· [bookmark: _49x2ik5]Bid Data Sheet
· [bookmark: _2p2csry]Qualification and Evaluation Criteria
· [bookmark: _147n2zr]Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms
Part 2 – Supply Requirements
· [bookmark: _3o7alnk]Section V. Schedule of Requirements
Part 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms
· [bookmark: _23ckvvd]Section VI. Contract Notices and Agreement 
· [bookmark: _ihv636]Section VII. General Conditions of Contract
· [bookmark: _32hioqz]Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract 
· [bookmark: _1hmsyys]Section IX. Contract Annexes
7.2 The Letter of Invitation for Bids issued by the Purchaser is not part of the Bidding Document.
7.3 The Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of this Bidding Document and its Addenda if they were not obtained directly from the source stated by the MCA Entity in the Invitation for Bids.
7.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and Schedule of Requirements in this Bidding Document. Failure to furnish all information or documentation required by this Bidding Document may result in the rejection of the Bid.

	8. [bookmark: _Toc63256570][bookmark: _Toc63348104]Clarification of Bidding Document
	8.1 A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of this Bidding Document shall contact the MCA Entity in writing, by email or fax at the MCA Entity’s address indicated in the BDS. The MCA Entity will respond to any request for clarification, provided that such a request is received no later than the number of days indicated in the BDS prior to the deadline for submission of Bids. The MCA Entity shall send written copies of the responses, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source, to Bidders who have registered or obtained the Bidding Document directly from the MCA Entity by the date specified in the BDS. The MCA Entity will also post a copy of the responses and inquiry descriptions to the MCA Entity’s website indicated in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of this Bidding Document, the MCA Entity shall amend this Bidding Document following the procedure under ITB Clause 9.
8.2 The Bidder’s designated representative is invited to attend a Pre-Bid Conference, if provided for in the BDS. The purpose of the conference will be to clarify the issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage. Attending any Pre-Bid Conference is strongly advised, but not mandatory. Attending any Pre-Bid Conference and/or a site visit shall not be taken into account in the evaluation of Bids.
8.3 Minutes of the Pre-Bid Conference, including the text of the questions raised, without identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared after the conference, will be posted on the MCA Entity’s website as indicated in BDS ITB 8.1 and shall be transmitted in writing to all Bidders who have registered or obtained the Bidding Document directly from the MCA Entity. Any modification to this Bidding Document that may become necessary as a result of the Pre-Bid Conference shall be made by the MCA Entity exclusively through the issue of an Addendum and not through the minutes of the Pre-Bid Conference.

	9. [bookmark: _Toc63256571][bookmark: _Toc63348105]Amendment of Bidding Document
	9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, the MCA Entity may amend this Bidding Document by issuing Addenda.
9.2 All Addenda issued shall be part of this Bidding Document, posted on the MCA Entity’s website, and shall be communicated in writing to all Bidders that have registered or obtained the Bidding Document directly from the MCA Entity.
9.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an Addendum into account in preparing their Bids, the MCA Entity may extend the deadline for the submission of Bids at its sole discretion.

	C. [bookmark: _Toc63256572][bookmark: _Toc63348106]Preparation of Bids

	10. [bookmark: _Toc63256573][bookmark: _Toc63348107]Cost of Bidding
	10.1 [bookmark: _1v1yuxt]Except as otherwise specified in the BDS, the Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid and Contract finalization, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

	11. [bookmark: _Toc63256574][bookmark: _Toc63348108]Language of Bid
	11.1 [bookmark: _2u6wntf]The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language specified in the BDS, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

	12. [bookmark: _Toc63256575][bookmark: _Toc63348109]Documents Comprising the Bid
	12.1 [bookmark: _3tbugp1]The Bid shall comprise of a single outer envelope, containing two inner sealed envelopes with the Technical Offer and Financial Offer.
12.2 The Technical Offer shall include the Bidder’s proposal for the delivery of the Goods and Related Services as stipulated in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidder’s Technical Offer to meet the Purchaser’s requirements and the completion time. The Technical Offer shall not include any financial information other than the required information in Form BSF5. A Technical Offer containing financial information that is specifically required to be submitted with the Financial Offer shall be treated as non-responsive and shall be rejected. The Technical Offer shall comprise the documents specified in the BDS:.
12.3 The Financial Offer shall include the information as stipulated in the Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidder’s Financial Offer to meet the Purchaser’s requirements and the completion time. The Financial Offer shall comprise the documents specified in the BDS. 


	13. [bookmark: _Toc63256576][bookmark: _Toc63348110]Letters of Technical and Financial Offers and Price Schedules
	13.1 The Letter of Technical Offer, the Letter of Financial Offer Form and all other forms and schedules specified in the BDS ITB 12.1 shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms. These forms must be completed without any alterations to its text, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

	14. [bookmark: _Toc63256577][bookmark: _Toc63348111]Alternative Bids
	14.1 [bookmark: _37m2jsg]Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, alternative Bids shall not be considered.

	15. [bookmark: _Toc63256578][bookmark: _Toc63348112]Bid Prices and Discounts
	15.1 The prices and discounts quoted by a Bidder in the Letter of Financial Offer and in the Price Schedules for Goods shall conform to the requirements specified below. Discounts are permitted only when bidding for multiple lots and will be considered in the evaluation process as specified in Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria.
15.2 The Bidder shall list and price all lots and items separately in the Price Schedules for Goods. Items against which no price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Purchaser, and shall be deemed covered by the prices of other items in the Price Schedules for Goods. Lots or items not listed in the Price Schedules for Goods shall be assumed not to be included in the Bid, and provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the corresponding adjustment, as appropriate, shall be applied in accordance with ITB Clause 31.7.
15.3 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Financial Offer, in accordance with ITB Clause 13.1, shall be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.
15.4 The Bidder shall quote any unconditional discounts and indicate the method for their application in the Letter of Financial Offer, in accordance with ITB Clause 13.1.
15.5 The terms EXW, CIF, CIP, and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in Incoterms edition specified in the BDS published by The International Chamber of Commerce.
15.6 Prices shall be quoted as specified in each Price Schedule for Goods included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms and shall be entered in the manner specified in the BDS.
15.7 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during a Bidder’s performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified in the BDS. A Bid submitted with “adjustable prices” shall be treated as non-responsive and shall be rejected. However, if in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a Bid submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero for the evaluation purpose.
15.8 If so indicated in the BDS ITB 1.1, Bids shall be invited for individual contracts (lots) or for any combination of contracts (packages). Unless otherwise indicated in the BDS, prices quoted shall correspond to 100% of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer any price reduction (discount) for the award of more than one contract (lot) shall specify the applicable price reduction in accordance with ITB Clause 15.4 provided the Bids for all lots are submitted and opened at the same time.
15.9 Clause 15 of the General Conditions of Contract (Section VI) sets forth the tax provisions of the Contract. Bidders should review this clause carefully in preparing their Bid.

	16. [bookmark: _Toc63256579][bookmark: _Toc63348113]Currencies of Bid
	16.1 The currency(ies) of the Bid shall be as specified in the BDS.

	17. [bookmark: _Toc63256580][bookmark: _Toc63348114]Documents Establishing the Eligibility of the Bidder
	17.1 To establish their eligibility in accordance with ITB Clause 5, Bidders shall complete the Bid Submission Form (BSF1) and the Government-Owned Enterprise Certification Form (BSF1.1), included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms.

	18. [bookmark: _Toc63256581][bookmark: _Toc63348115]Documents Establishing the Eligibility of the Goods and Related Services
	18.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with ITB Clause 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule for Goods Forms (BSF8, BSF9), included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms.
18.2 If so indicated in the BDS, a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the Manufacturer’s Authorization using the form included in Section IV. Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser’s Country. Alternatively, if so indicated in the BDS, the Bidder must be an Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) and manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply.
18.3 If so indicated in the BDS, in case of a Bidder not doing business within the Purchaser’s Country, the Bidder shall be (if awarded the Contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier’s maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications; and this Agent shall meet the qualification criteria related to the post-delivery period specified in Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, if any.

	19. [bookmark: _Toc63256582][bookmark: _Toc63348116]Documents Establishing the Conformity of the Goods and Related Services
	19.1 To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Document, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications, including all requirements and standards specified in Section V. Schedule of Requirements.
19.2 The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, including all requirements and standards, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Schedule of Requirements.
19.3 A Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period specified in the BDS, following commencement of the use of the Goods by the Purchaser. Unless specified otherwise in the BDS and Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria, these prices shall not be included in the bid evaluation.
19.4 Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. A Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to Purchaser’s satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Schedule of Requirements.

	20. [bookmark: _Toc63256583][bookmark: _Toc63348117]Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Bidder
	20.1 The documentary evidence of the Bidder’s qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted shall establish, to the Purchaser’s satisfaction, the criteria specified in Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria.

	21. [bookmark: _Toc63256584][bookmark: _Toc63348118]Period of Validity of Bids
	21.1 [bookmark: _2zbgiuw]Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the BDS after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Purchaser. A Bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
21.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Bid validity period, the Purchaser may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the Bidder’s responses shall be made in writing. If required, the Bid Security shall also be extended for a period of twenty-eight (28) days beyond the deadline of the extended bid validity period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid.

	22. [bookmark: _Toc63256585][bookmark: _Toc63348119]Bid Security
	22.1 [bookmark: _3ygebqi]If so required in the BDS, the Bidder shall furnish, as part of its Technical Offer, a Bid Security in original form. The submissions without a Bid Security shall not be considered, if the Bid Security is required in the BDS. 
22.2 The Bid Security shall be in the amount and currencies specified in the BDS and shall:
(a) at the Bidder’s option, be in the form of either an unconditional bank guarantee substantially in the format of Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee) (BSF6) included in Section IV. Bid Forms, or another type of security specified in the BDS;
(b) be issued by a reputable institution selected by the Bidder and located in any eligible country (as determined in accordance with ITB Clause 5); if the institution issuing the bank guarantee is located outside Purchaser’s country, it shall have a correspondent financial institution located within Purchaser’s country to make it enforceable;
(c) be payable promptly upon written demand by the Purchaser in case the conditions listed in ITB Clause 22.2 are invoked;
(d) be submitted in its original form; copies will not be accepted;
(e) remain valid for a period of twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original validity period of Bids, or beyond any period of extension subsequently requested under ITB Clause 21.2.
22.3 Any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security (if required) in accordance with ITB Clause 22, shall be rejected by the Purchaser as nonresponsive. The Bid Security may be forfeited:
(a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Bid Submission Form, except as provided in ITB Clause 21.2; 
(b) if a Bidder does not accept the correction of its Bid Price pursuant to ITB Clause 32; or
(c) if the successful Bidder fails within the specified time to:
(i) furnish the required Performance Security in accordance with GCC Clause 16 as described in ITB Clause 42; or
(ii) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB Clause 41.
22.4 The Bid Security of a Joint Venture or Association must be in the name of the association that submits the Bid. If the association has not been legally constituted at the time of bidding, the Bid Security shall be in the names of all future partners, or in the name of the designated representative (partner in charge or lead member) as named in the letter of intent or similar document in connection with the formation of the Joint Venture or Association.

	23. [bookmark: _Toc63256586][bookmark: _Toc63348120]Format and Signing of Bid
	23.1 [bookmark: _sqyw64]If submitting by hard copy, a Bidder shall prepare ONE (1) original set of the documents comprising the Bid pursuant to ITB Clause 12 and clearly mark it “ORIGINAL.” The original shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be attached to the Bid. The person or persons signing the Bid shall initial all pages of the Bid where entries and amendments have been made.
23.2 In addition, the Bidder shall prepare copies of the Bid (photocopies of the signed original are acceptable), in the number specified in the BDS and clearly mark them “COPY.” In the event of discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
23.3 The Bid shall contain no alterations or additions, except those made to comply with the instructions issued by the Purchaser, or as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialed by the person or persons signing the Bid.
23.4 The Bidder shall furnish information as described in the Bid Submission Form (BSF1) Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents relating to this Bidding Document or its Bid or to Contract execution if the Bidder is awarded the Contract.

	D. [bookmark: _Toc63256587][bookmark: _Toc63348121]Submission and Opening of Bids

	24. [bookmark: _Toc63256588][bookmark: _Toc63348122]Bid Submission
	24.1 [bookmark: _4bvk7pj]Bidders may submit their Bids electronically, by mail or by hand. Bidders submitting bids electronically, if so permitted in BDS, shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures specified in the BDS.
24.2 Bidders who submit their Bids by mail or by hand are reminded that distance and customs formalities may require longer than expected delivery times.
24.3 The authorized representative of the Bidder signing the “ORIGINALS” of the Technical and of the Financial Offer shall provide within the Technical Offer an authorization in the form of a written letter of authorization demonstrating that the person signing has been duly authorized to sign the “ORIGINALS” on behalf of the Bidder.  The signed Technical Offers and the signed Financial Offers shall be clearly marked “ORIGINAL”.
24.4 Copies of the Technical Offer and the Financial Offer shall be clearly marked “COPY.” It is preferred that all copies required should be made by photocopying the “ORIGINAL” as appropriate. However, the Bidder should note that if copies are made by any other means and discrepancies are found between the original and any of the copies of the relevant documents, then the “ORIGINAL” shall govern.
24.5 The “ORIGINAL” and each “COPY” of the Technical Offer shall be placed in a sealed envelope/parcel clearly marked “TECHNICAL OFFER.” Similarly, the “ORIGINAL” and each “COPY” of the Financial Offer shall be placed in a separate sealed envelope/parcel clearly marked “FINANCIAL OFFER.”
24.6 Each envelope/parcel shall bear the name and address of the MCA Entity as stated in the BDS, the name and address of the Bidder (in case they have to be returned unopened, and the Name of the Bid as stated in the BDS).
24.7 [bookmark: _2r0uhxc]In addition, the envelope/parcel containing the original and copies of the Financial Offer shall be marked with a warning “Do Not Open With the Technical Offer.”  If the Financial Offer is not submitted in a separate sealed envelope/parcel duly marked as indicated above, this will constitute grounds for declaring the Offer non-responsive.
24.8 The two envelopes/parcels containing the Technical Offer and the Financial Offer shall then be placed into one outer envelope or carton (as appropriate) and securely sealed to prevent premature opening. This outer envelope/carton shall bear the submission address, name and address of the Bidder, name of the assignment reference number, and be clearly marked “Do Not Open, Except In Presence of the Official Appointed, Before [state submission time and date]” as indicated in the BDS. 
24.9 The MCA Entity shall not be responsible for misplacement, losing or premature opening if the outer envelope/carton is not sealed and/or marked as stipulated. This circumstance may be cause for Bid rejection.

	25. [bookmark: _Toc63256589][bookmark: _Toc63348123]Deadline for Submission of Bids
	25.1 [bookmark: _3q5sasy]Bids must be received by the Purchaser at the address specified in the BDS and no later than the date and time specified in the BDS.
25.2 The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with ITB Clause 9, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and the Bidders previously subject to the original deadline shall then be subject to the deadline as extended.

	26. [bookmark: _Toc63256590][bookmark: _Toc63348124]Late Bids
	26.1 The Purchaser shall not consider any Bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB Clause 25. Any Bid received by the Purchaser after the deadline for submission of Bids shall be declared late, rejected and returned unopened at the request and cost of the Bidder. 

	27. [bookmark: _Toc63256591][bookmark: _Toc63348125]Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bid
	27.1 [bookmark: _34g0dwd]A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid prior to the deadline for the submission of Bids by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization of the person signing in accordance with ITB Clause 23.1, (except that no copies of the withdrawal notice are required). The corresponding substitution or modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
(a) submitted in accordance with ITB Clauses 24 and 25 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked “WITHDRAWAL,” “SUBSTITUTION,” or “MODIFICATION,” and
(b) received by the Purchaser prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB Clause 25.

	
	27.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with this ITB Clause shall be returned unopened to the Bidders, at the request and cost of the Bidders.

	
	27.3 No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Financial Offer or any extension thereof.

	28. [bookmark: _Toc63256592][bookmark: _Toc63348126]Bid Opening
	28.1 The Purchaser shall open the outer envelopes/cartons of the Bids in a public bid opening that will include Bidders’ representatives as well as anyone who chooses to attend at the time and in the place specified in the BDS. Any specific opening procedures required if electronic Bidding is permitted in accordance with the BDS, shall be as specified in the BDS.

	
	28.2 Firstly, the outer envelopes/cartons marked “WITHDRAWAL” shall be opened and read out, while Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to ITB Clause 27 shall not be opened. No Bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Bid opening. Next, the outer envelopes/cartons marked “SUBSTITUTION” shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at Bid opening. Outer envelopes/cartons marked “MODIFICATION” shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening. Only submissions that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further.

	
	28.3 All other outer envelopes/cartons shall be opened one at a time, and the official shall read aloud: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification. No Bid shall be rejected at Bid opening except for late Bids, pursuant to ITB Clause 26.
28.4 After the opening of the outer envelopes/cartons, the Technical Offers and Financial Offers should be sorted as appropriate. The Technical Offers will be opened as specified in the BDS. In the cases when Technical Offers are not opened publicly, the envelopes with the Technical Offers shall remain sealed until the Technical Evaluation Panel is ready to convene. The MCA Entity shall ensure that the Financial Offers remain sealed and securely stored until after the evaluation of the Technical Offers has been completed. 

	
	28.5 The Purchaser shall prepare minutes of the Bid opening, which shall include, at a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders who submitted Bids on time, and posted on the MCA Entity’s website, if so exists.

	E. [bookmark: _Toc63256593][bookmark: _Toc63348127]Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

	29. [bookmark: _Toc63256594][bookmark: _Toc63348128]Confidentiality
	29.1 From the time Bids are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, Bidders may not contact the Purchaser on any matter related to its Technical Offer or Financial Offer. Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and comparison of Bids and recommendations for the award of the Contract shall not be disclosed to the Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until the intention to award to the successful Bidder has been announced pursuant to ITB Clause 39. The undue use by any Bidder of confidential information related to the process may result in the rejection of its Bid or may invalidate the entire procurement process.
29.2 Any attempt or effort by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the evaluation of Bids or Contract award decisions may subject the Bidder to the provisions of the Government’s, the Purchaser’s, and MCC’s anti-fraud and corruption policies and the application of other sanctions and remedies to the extent applicable.
29.3 Notwithstanding the above, from the time of Bid opening to the time of Contract award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the bidding process, it may do so in writing at the address specified in the BDS.

	30. [bookmark: _Toc63256595][bookmark: _Toc63348129]Clarification of Bids
	30.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of Bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser’s request for clarification and the Bidder’s response shall be in writing. No change in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by Purchaser in the evaluation of the Bids in accordance with ITB Clause 32.

	31. [bookmark: _Toc63256596][bookmark: _Toc63348130]Evaluation of Technical Offers
	31.1 The Technical Evaluation Panel shall evaluate the Technical Offers on the basis of their responsiveness to the Purchaser’s Requirements, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified in Section III.  Each responsive Offer will be given a technical score (St).  A Bid shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the Bidding Document, and particularly the Purchaser’s Requirements or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the BDS.
31.2 As part of the evaluation of the Technical Offers, the Technical Evaluation Panel will also conduct a review of the qualifications requirements to determine if the Bidder satisfies the qualification requirements as described in ITB 5, 6, 17, 18, 19, 20 and Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria. The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder’s qualifications submitted by the Bidder, the Bidder’s record of past performance, a review of references, and any other source at the Purchaser’s discretion. An affirmative determination of qualification shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder, and failing to meet the required qualifications shall be considered as a non-responsive Technical Offer. Bidders shall provide such evidence of their continued qualification to deliver the Goods and Related Services (including any changes in their litigation history) in a manner satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request at any time prior to the award of contract.

	[bookmark: _1x0gk37]Nonconformities















Notifications of Technical Offer evaluation results to Bidders
	31.3 If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Document, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

31.4 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.

31.5 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.

31.6 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price.
[bookmark: _4h042r0]
31.7 Following completion of the evaluation of Technical Offers, and after receiving a “no objection” from MCC (if applicable), the Purchaser shall inform those Bidders whose Technical Offers achieved the minimum qualifying mark, advising them of the following:
(i) that their Technical Offer met the minimum qualifying mark;
(ii) the name of each Bidder whose Technical Offer met or exceeded the minimum qualifying mark and the total technical score assigned to each; and
(iii) the date, time, and location for the opening of the Financial Offers, inviting them to the opening but indicating that their attendance is not mandatory.
31.8 The Purchaser shall also advise those Bidders whose Technical Offers did not meet the minimum qualifying mark, advising them of the following:
(i) that their Technical Offer did not meet the minimum qualifying mark;
(ii) the total technical score assigned to their own Technical Offer;
(iii) the name of each Bidder whose Technical Offer met or exceeded the minimum qualifying mark and the total technical score assigned to each;
(iv) the date, time, and location for the opening of the Financial Offers, inviting them to the opening but indicating that their attendance is not mandatory; and
(v) that their Financial Offer will be returned unopened, at the cost and expense of the Consultant, after the Purchaser has completed the selection process. 
31.9 The Purchaser shall also advise those Bidders whose Technical Offers were not evaluated or were rejected, advising them of the following:
(i) the grounds on which their Technical Offer was not evaluated or was rejected;
(ii) the name of each Bidder whose Technical Offer met or exceeded the minimum qualifying mark and the total technical score assigned to each;
(iii) the date, time, and location for the opening of the Financial Offers, inviting them to the opening but indicating that their attendance is not mandatory; and
(iv) that their Financial Offer will be returned unopened (if such offer was submitted as a hard-copy), at the cost and expense of the Bidder, after the Purchaser has completed the selection process.

	32. [bookmark: _Toc63256597][bookmark: _Toc63348131]Opening and Evaluation of Financial Offers: Arithmetical Errors
	32.1 Financial Offers shall be opened publicly in the presence of those Bidders’ representatives who choose to attend at the date, time and location stated in the notice issued pursuant to ITB 31.3. If so specified in the BDS, Financial Offers will be opened electronically. All Financial Offers will first be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened or password protected if electronically submitted. Only the Financial Offers of those Bidders who met the minimum qualifying mark and are also responsive to the required qualifications, following the Technical Evaluation stage will be opened. The Technical Score (St) and only the Total Bid Price, as stated in the Letter of Financial Offer shall be read out aloud and recorded. A copy of the record shall subsequently be sent to those Bidders whose Financial Offers were opened and to MCC.
32.2 The Technical Evaluation Panel will correct as part of the Price Review any computational errors, and in cases of a discrepancy between a partial amount and the total amount, or between words and figures the former will prevail. In addition to the above corrections, activities and items described in the Technical Offer but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items. In cases where an activity or line item is quantified differently in the Financial Offer from the Technical Offer, no corrections will be applied to the Financial Offer in this respect. If Bidders are not required to submit Financial Offers in a single currency, prices shall be converted to a single currency for evaluation purposes using the selling rates of exchange, source and date indicated in the BDS.
32.3 During the price review as per ITB 32.2, the Purchaser shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
(a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected; 
(b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and 
(c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
32.4 If a Bidder does not accept the correction of errors, its Bid shall be rejected and the Bid Security may be forfeited in accordance with ITB Clause 22.2(b).
32.5 The lowest evaluated Financial Offer (Fm) will be given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores (Sf) of the other Financial Offers will be computed as indicated in the BDS. Bids will be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores, calculated with the formula: S = St x T% + Sf x P%, using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Offer; P = the weight given to the Financial Offer; T + P = 1) indicated in Section III.
32.6 The Bidder achieving the highest combined technical and financial score, and also successfully meeting the qualifications requirements, will be recommended for Contract award.

	33. [bookmark: _Toc63256598][bookmark: _Toc63348132]Price reasonableness
	33.1 The Purchaser shall make a determination of price reasonableness as required in the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines. If the price reasonableness analysis suggests that a Bid is significantly unbalanced or front loaded, the Purchaser may require the Bidder to produce a detailed price analysis for any or all items of the Price Schedules that demonstrates the internal consistency of prices with the implementation methods and schedule proposed.
33.2 After the evaluation of the information and detailed price analysis presented by the Bidder, the Purchaser may as appropriate:
(a) accept the Bid; or
(b) require that the total amount of the Performance Security be increased at the expenses of the Bidder to a level not exceeding the percentage specified in the BDS; or
(c) reject the Bid.
33.3 A negative determination of price reasonableness (either unreasonably high or unreasonably low) may be a reason for rejection of the Bid at the discretion of the Purchaser. The Bidder shall not be permitted to revise its Technical Offer or Financial Offer after this determination

	34. [bookmark: _Toc63256599][bookmark: _Toc63348133]No margin of preference
	34.1 [bookmark: _2afmg28]In accordance with the MCC PPG, a margin of preference for domestic Bidders or any other nationality shall not be used.

	35. [bookmark: _Toc63256600][bookmark: _Toc63348134]Past Performance and Reference Check
	35.1 In accordance with the MCC PPG, the Bidder’s performance on earlier contracts will be considered a factor in the Purchaser’s qualification of the Bidder. The Purchaser reserves the right to check the performance references provided by the Bidder or to use any other source at the Purchaser’s discretion. If the Bidder (including any of its associates or joint venture/association members) is or has been a party to an MCC-funded contract (either with MCC directly or with any Millennium Challenge Account Entity, anywhere in the world), whether as a lead contractor, affiliate, associate, subsidiary, subcontractor, or in any other role, the Bidder must identify the contract in its list of references submitted with its Bid using Bidding Form BSF7: References of Past Contracts. Failure to include any such contracts may be used to form a negative determination by the Purchaser on the Bidder’s record of performance in prior contracts. However, the failure to list any contracts because the Bidder (including any of its associates or joint venture/association members) has not been a party to any such contract will not be grounds for a negative determination by the Purchaser on the Bidder’s record of performance in prior contracts. That is, prior performance in connection with an MCC-funded contract is not required. The Purchaser will check the references, including the Bidder’s past performance reports filed in MCC’s Contractor Past Performance Reporting System (“CPPRS”). A negative determination by the Purchaser on the Bidder’s record of performance in prior contracts may be a reason for disqualification of the Bidder at the discretion of the Purchaser.

	36. [bookmark: _Toc63256601][bookmark: _Toc63348135]Purchaser’s Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids
	36.1 [bookmark: _1opuj5n]The Purchaser reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all Bids submitted and specifically Bid Securities shall be promptly returned to the Bidders at the Bidder’s request but at the Purchaser’s expense. If all Bids are rejected, the Purchaser shall review the causes justifying the rejection and consider making revisions to the conditions of Contract, specifications, scope of the Contract, or a combination of these, before inviting new Bids. The Purchaser reserves the right to cancel the procurement if this is no longer in the interest of the Purchaser. Rejection of all Bids and canceling the procurement requires prior approval by MCC.

	F. [bookmark: _Toc63256602][bookmark: _Toc63348136]Award of Contract

	37. [bookmark: _Toc63256603][bookmark: _Toc63348137]Award Criteria
	37.1 Subject to ITB Clause 1.2 and 36.1, the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to have the highest combined technical and financial score, including that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

	38. [bookmark: _Toc63256604][bookmark: _Toc63348138]Purchaser’s Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award
	38.1 [bookmark: _3mzq4wv]At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section V. Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages indicated in the BDS, and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the Bid and the Bidding Document.

	39. [bookmark: _Toc63256605][bookmark: _Toc63348139]Notice of Intent to Award
	39.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of Bid validity, the Purchaser shall send the Notice of Intent to Award (“NOITA”) to the successful Bidder. NOITA shall include a statement that the Purchaser shall issue a formal Notification of Award and draft Contract Agreement after expiration of the period for filing a Bid challenge and the resolution of any Bid challenges that are submitted. Delivery of the NOITA shall not constitute the formation of a contract between the Purchaser and the successful Bidder and no legal or equitable rights will be created through the delivery of the Notice of Intent to Award.
39.2 At the same time it issues the NOITA the Purchaser shall also notify, in writing, all other Bidders of the results of the bidding and information that a NOITA has been issued. The Purchaser shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after receiving notification of the bidding results, makes a written request for a debriefing as provided in the MCC PPG, or submits a formal Bid challenge.

	40. [bookmark: _Toc63256606][bookmark: _Toc63348140]Bid Challenges[footnoteRef:1] [1:  For solicitation documents issued prior to the adoption (in accordance with PPG Part 5) of a Bid Challenge System, the existing text of this clause is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the full text of the Interim Bid Challenge System approved by MCC] 

	40.1 Bidders may challenge the results of a procurement only according to the rules established in the Bid Challenge System developed by the Purchaser and approved by MCC. The rules and provisions of the Bid Challenge System are as published on the Purchaser’s website indicated in the BDS.

	41. [bookmark: _Toc63256607][bookmark: _Toc63348141]Signing of Contract
	41.1 Upon expiration of the period for timely filing and the resolution of any Bid challenges that are submitted, the Purchaser shall send the Notification of Award to the successful Bidder.
41.2 The Notification of Award (or “Letter of Acceptance”) shall include the Contract Forms for the review and signature of the successful Bidder. 
41.3 Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Notification of Award, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return the Contract to the Purchaser.

	42. [bookmark: _Toc63256608][bookmark: _Toc63348142]Performance Security
	42.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Notification of Award from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder shall furnish a Performance Security in accordance with GCC Clause 16, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Part 3. Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms. The Bidder shall also furnish the Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form and Supplier Self-Certification Form.
42.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the Performance Security or to sign the Contract in accordance with ITB Sub-Clauses 41 and 42 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the next Bidder, whose offer provides the best value for money, is determined by the purchaser to be substantially responsive and qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily or call for new Bids or annul the bidding process.

	43. [bookmark: _Toc63256609][bookmark: _Toc63348143]Publication of Award and Return of Bid Securities
	43.1 Upon receipt of the signed Contract Agreement and a valid Performance Security, the Purchaser shall return the Bid Securities of unsuccessful Bidders and shall publish in UNDB Online, in dgMarket, and on the Purchaser’s website and other places as MCC may specify and in accordance with MCC’s Program Procurement Guidelines, the results identifying the Bid and the following information:
(a) the name of the winning Bidder;
(b) the price of the winning Bid and the price of the Contract award if different; and
(c) the duration and the summary scope of the Contract awarded.

	44. [bookmark: _Toc63256610][bookmark: _Toc63348144]Compact Conditionalities
	44.1 Bidders are advised to examine and consider carefully the provisions that are set forth in Annex A to the Contract as these are a part of the Government’s and the Purchaser’s obligations under the Compact and related documents which, under the terms of the Compact and related documents, are required to be transferred onto any Bidder, Supplier or Subcontractor who partakes in procurement or subsequent contracts in which MCC Funding is involved.
44.2 The provisions set forth in Annex A to the Contract apply during the bidding procedures as well as throughout the performance of the Contract.

	45. [bookmark: _Toc63256611][bookmark: _Toc63348145]Inconsistencies with MCC Program Procurement Guidelines
	45.1 The procurement that is the subject of this Bidding Document is being conducted in accordance with and is subject in all respects to MCC’s Program Procurement Guidelines.  In the event of any conflict between any section or provision of this Bidding Document (including any Addenda that may be issued to this Bidding Document) and the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines, the terms and requirements of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines shall prevail, unless MCC has granted a waiver of the guidelines.
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	[bookmark: _Toc63256612][bookmark: _Toc63348146]Section II. Bid Data Sheet

	A. [bookmark: _Toc63256613][bookmark: _Toc63348147]General

	ITB Definitions
	(j) “Compact” means the Millennium Challenge Compact between the United States of America, acting through the Millennium Challenge Corporation, and the Government, entered into on 12 September 2019, as may be amended from time to time.
(r) “Government” means the government of Kosovo.
(aa) “Purchaser” or “MCA Entity” means Millennium Foundation Kosovo.

	[bookmark: 4du1wux]ITB 1.1
	The name and identification of the proposed Contract is:
Supply, Installation, Maintenance of relevant equipment and services for the introduction of consumption-based heat metering and thermostatic heating valves in District Heating system in Prishtina and identification number 2021/003
The number and description of the lot(s) is:
N/A

	A. Contents of Bidding Document

	[bookmark: 184mhaj]ITB 8.1
	Clarifications may be requested by using this File Request Link not later than 20 days before the deadline for submission of Bids, so that responses can be issued to all Bidders not later than 7 days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids.
The address for requesting clarifications is:

Please submit your clarifications using this File Request Link:
Click here to submit Clarification’s request (Dropbox Upload):

https://www.dropbox.com/request/A8M0tgerTD8uRUg3Sz6k

All responses to clarifications requests shall be uploaded in the website www.millenniumkosovo.org in the same site when you get access to the BD Documents, the link is provided below.

A complete set of Bidding Document (BD) documents including any clarifications, notices and/or addendums may be obtained by interested eligible bidders through the following website (Eventual clarifications or any changes to the BD document shall be published at the latest 7 days before the submission deadline on the link provided below):
https://millenniumkosovo.org/procurment/procurement-of-supply-installation-maintenance-of-relevant-equipment-and-services-for-the-introduction-of-consumption-based-heat-metering-and-thermostatic-heating-valves-in-district-heating-system-i
You are strongly advised to fill in the form below to get further updates on this procurement the form can be found in the link provided below: 
https://millenniumkosovo.org/procurment/procurement-of-supply-installation-maintenance-of-relevant-equipment-and-services-for-the-introduction-of-consumption-based-heat-metering-and-thermostatic-heating-valves-in-district-heating-system-i

	[bookmark: 3s49zyc]ITB 8.2 
	A Pre-Bid Conference will be held at 14:00 (Kosovo Time) on 23 March 2021 via ONLY through online Zoom Meeting.
Attendance is strongly advised for all prospective bidders or their representatives but is not mandatory.
Zoom Meeting Link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83157535797 

	ITB 10.1
	The Purchaser shall not refund the costs associated with the preparation and submission of the bid

	[bookmark: 279ka65]ITB 11.1
	The Bid shall be submitted in English. 

	B. [bookmark: _Toc63256614][bookmark: _Toc63348148]Preparation of Bids

	[bookmark: 36ei31r]
	

	ITB 12.2
	Documents comprising the Technical Offer are the following:
a. Letter of Technical Offer
b. Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)
c. Scanned copy of postal/courier receipt as evidence that the Bid Security has been dispatched to the Purchaser
d. Description of Goods
e. BSF1.1 - Government-Owned Enterprise Certification Form
f. BSF1 - Bidder Information Form
g. BSF2 - Party to Joint Venture/Association Information Form
h. BSF3 - Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Forms
i. BSF4	Manufacturer’s Authorization
j. FIN-1: Financial Situation
k. FIN-2: Average Annual Turnover
l. FIN-3: Financial Resources
m. FIN-4: Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress
n. Form CON–1 Historical Contract Non-Performance
o. BSF5 – Past References of MCC-Funded Contracts
p. Form EXP-1: General Experience
q. Form EXP-2 A: Similar Experience
r. Form EXP-2 B: Similar Experience
s. Form EXP-3: Specific Experience in Key Activities
t. BSF6	Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form
u. Sworn Statement 1: Installed Units
v. Sworn Statement 2: Gender and Social Inclusion
w. Methodological Approach (Section III. Technical Evaluation Criteria)
x. Statement 5: Performance of the equipment
y. Sworn Statement 3: Facility for Spare Parts

	ITB 12.3
	Documents comprising the Financial Offer are the following:
a. Letter of Financial Offer;
b. Price Schedule for Goods;
c. Price and Completion Schedule for Related Services

	[bookmark: 1ljsd9k]ITB 14.1
	Alternative bids shall not be considered.

	ITB 15.5
	The Incoterms edition is “Incoterms 2020”

	[bookmark: 45jfvxd]ITB 15.6
	Prices shall be quoted in the following manner:
(d) The all-inclusive price of Goods quoted on a DDP basis, including transportation, insurance and all services required to deliver the Goods to their Final Destination specified below;
(e) The price for each item comprising the Related Services as specified in the Schedule of Requirements (other than transportation, insurance and other services required to deliver the Goods to their Final Destination).
The Final Destination of Goods and Related Services is:
Pristina, Kosovo

	[bookmark: 2koq656]ITB 15.7
	The prices quoted by a Bidder shall be fixed for the duration of the Contract.

	[bookmark: zu0gcz]ITB 15.8
	Not Applicable

	ITB 16.1
	The currency of the Bid shall be as follows: EUR.

	ITB 18.2
	Manufacturer’s authorization is: required
The Bidder: is not required to be the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM).
If a Bidder is not an OEM, it is mandatory that the Bidder is an authorized distributor of the manufacturer. 

	ITB 18.3
	In case of not doing business in the Purchaser’s Country, the Bidder shall be represented by an Agent in the Country.

	[bookmark: 3jtnz0s]ITB 19.3
	The list of spare parts, special tools, etc., shall cover a period of 5 years from the date of acceptance of the Goods by the Purchaser.

	ITB 21.1
	Bids shall remain valid for 120 days after the deadline of the submission of Bids.

	[bookmark: 1yyy98l]ITB 22.1
	Bid Security is required to be submitted with a Bid.
In addition, the Bidder shall upload a scanned copy of its postal/courier receipt as evidence that the original of the duly completed and signed Bid Security has been dispatched to the Purchaser. The uploaded postal/courier receipt shall clearly show the time, date of dispatch and the correct Purchaser’s address details.

	ITB 22.2 (a)
	The Bid Security shall be in the amount of EUR 85.000.
The Bidder shall submit The Bid Security using the form included in Section IV.

	[bookmark: 4iylrwe]ITB 23.1
	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of and bind the Bidder shall consist of: Name of the authorized person, Position, Address, Telephone number and Email address.

	[bookmark: 2y3w247]ITB 23.2
	Electronically only (One electronic copy).

	C. [bookmark: _Toc63256615][bookmark: _Toc63348149]Submission and Opening of Bids

	[bookmark: 3x8tuzt]ITB 24.1
	Bids may be submitted electronically. 
A Bid submitted electronically shall follow the procedures as outlined in Annex 1 to this Section II. Bid Data Sheet.

	ITB 24.6
	Please submit your bid using this File Request Link: 
Click here to submit bid (Dropbox file request link)
https://www.dropbox.com/request/fMpYznuZl8E8guv0kaSj

	ITB 25.1
	The deadline for submission of Bids is as follows:
22 April 2021 (14:00 Kosovo time)

	ITB 28.1
	For Bids submitted electronically in accordance with ITB Clause 24.1(b), the Bid opening procedures shall be as described in Annex 1 to this Section II. Bid Data Sheet.

	ITB 28.4
	Technical Offers will be opened publicly (electronic)
Technical offers opening will be held by web conference using Zoom (www.zoom.us) on 22 April 2021 at 14.30 p.m. (Kosovo time). 
Zoom Meeting Link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83913870800 
The Minutes of Opening of Technical offers shall be promptly sent to all bidders who submitted offers.

	D. [bookmark: _2ce457m][bookmark: _Toc63256616][bookmark: _Toc63348150]Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

	ITB 29.3
	All correspondence must be addressed to the Purchaser at procurement@millenniumkosovo.org.

	ITB 31.1
	The minimum technical score (St) required to pass is: 70

	ITB 32.1
	Not applicable

	ITB 32.2
	The currency that shall be used for Bid evaluation and comparison is: EUR.

	ITB 32.5
	The lowest evaluated Financial Offer (Fm) is given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100.
The formula for determining the financial scores (Sf) of all other Offers is calculated as following:
Sf = 100 x Fm/ F, in which “Sf” is the financial score, “Fm” is the lowest price, and “F” the price of the Offer under consideration.
The weights given to the Technical (T) and Financial (P) Offers are:
T = 70, and
P = 30
Bids will be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores according to the formula provided in ITB 32.5: S = St x T% + Sf x P%

	ITB 33.2
	The total amount of the Performance Security may be increased to a level not exceeding 10 % of the Contract Price.

	E. [bookmark: _Toc63256617][bookmark: _Toc63348151]Award of Contract

	[bookmark: 3bj1y38]ITB 38.1
	The Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantities of each item.
The estimated quantities specified are only indicative quantities and do not compel the Purchaser to buy any of them. The Purchaser may at its own discretion purchase fewer or more quantities than those estimated quantities per item.

	[bookmark: 1qoc8b1]ITB 40.1
	The Purchaser’s Bid Challenge System is provided on the MCA Entity’s website www.millenniumkosovo.org 


Section II Bid Data Sheet


[bookmark: _Toc63256618][bookmark: _Toc63348152]Annex 1 to Section II. Bid Data Sheet
[bookmark: _Toc63256619][bookmark: _Toc63348153]Procedure for Electronic Submission of Bids


1 Each Bidder will be provided a File Request Link (via email), an electronic link to upload its submission when it requests the Bidding Document. The Bidder shall use this, and only this, link to submit its Bid, where Bid = Technical Offer + Financial Offer.
2 The Bid shall be submitted via the File Request Link only. Bids submitted by email shall not be accepted. Also, the Bid shall be submitted by the bid submission deadline. A Bidder who submits only the Technical Offer or only the Financial Offer shall have its Bid rejected. Similarly, a Bidder who submits only its Technical Offer by hard copy and only the Financial Offer electronically – or vice versa – shall have its Bid rejected.
3 The File Request Link shall automatically expire on the submission deadline, specified in the relevant ITB. No extension shall be provided after the expiry. 
4 All submitted documents are required to be in pdf or Microsoft Word or Excel formats as appropriate. No compressed files or folders are accepted, thus documents submitted in any archived and/or compressed format (compressed by WinZip - including any application of the zip family-, WinRAR, 7z, 7zX, or any other similar formats) shall not be accepted.
5 The Technical Offer and Financial Offer shall be submitted in separate pdf(s)/Microsoft Word files/folders, and separately password-protected (Technical Offer at the discretion of the Bidder; Financial Offer mandatory, as noted below).
6 Bidders should use the filename framework for the Bids as follows:
a. Technical Offer filename: [Bidder Name] - TechnicalOffer - IFB# [insert IFB number]
b. Financial Offer filename: [Bidder Name] - FinancialOffer - IFB# [insert IFB number]
7 Technical Offers are not required to be password-protected, but may be protected at the Bidder’s discretion. Bidders who choose to password-protect their Technical Offer can do so to protect against inadvertent untimely opening of its Offer, but at their own responsibility for providing the correct password prior to the Technical Offer opening via email to the address listed below. If they fail to provide the correct password that opens the files so its relevant contents can be announced by the end of the formal Opening of Technical Offers shall have their Bid rejected. 
8 Bidders who attain the minimum technical score required to pass shall be asked to provide the password for their Financial Offer at a later date. 
9 “If a Bidder submits a Technical Offer with password protection, the password for the Technical Offer should be sent no earlier than 21.04.2021 and no later than 13:45 local time on 22.04.2021 to the following email address: procurement@millenniumkosovo.org
10 Financial Offers are REQUIRED TO BE password-protected so that file(s) cannot be opened without the password. The passwords for the Financial Offer shall NOT be submitted with the Bid, but will be sent only by those Bidders who are requested by the MCA-Entity after the conclusion of the technical evaluation.
a. Bid shall be rejected if the Financial Offer is not password-protected;
b. If a Bidder does not provide a password when requested or provides an incorrect password when requested or fails to provide the correct password by the end of the formal Opening of the Financial Offers, its Bid shall be rejected.
11 The password to open the Financial Offer shall be sent to the MCA-Entity at a time and date (and to an email address) provided to the bidders that pass the technical score at a later date, after Technical Offers will have been evaluated. Bidders who send their passwords before being formally requested to do by the MCA-Entity may have their Bid rejected.
12 Instructions on how to password-protect pdfs in Adobe Acrobat can be accessed from: https://helpx.adobe.com/acrobat/using/securing-pdfs-passwords.html. If a Bidder only has Adobe Reader, it is advised that a free program like PDFMate be downloaded and installed. Instructions on how to password-protect pdfs in PDFMate can be found at
http://www.pdfmate.com/feature-encrypt.html.
13 Instructions on how to password-protect a Microsoft Word (or Excel) document can be found at: https://support.office.com/en-us/article/add-or-remove-protection-in-your-document-workbook-or-presentation-05084cc3-300d-4c1a-8416-38d3e37d6826.
14 Each uploaded document (either as part, or whole, of the Technical Offer or Financial Offer) shall not exceed 10GB each.
15 Bidders are informed that the capability of their internet bandwidth will determine the speed in which their Bids are uploaded via the File Request Link. Bidders are therefore advised to commence the process of uploading their Bids via the File Request Link in good time before the bid submission deadline. As noted above, this link will expire at the bid closing time, and cannot be reopened under any circumstances.



	[bookmark: _Toc63256620][bookmark: _Toc63348154]Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria

	In addition to the evaluation and qualification listed in Section II, this Section contains all the criteria that the Purchaser shall use to review the Technical and Financial Offers, and select the winning Bid. No other factors, methods or criteria shall be used in the evaluation of Bids. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms.  This review shall be based on the information provided by the Bidder in the forms plus the Bidder’s record of past performance, other references and any other sources at the Purchaser discretion to confirm and verify the Bidder’s qualifications and representations in its Bid.



[bookmark: _2pta16n]TECHNICAL OFFER

1 Administrative Completeness Review
This review is conducted to determine that the Technical Offer is complete, all required documents are included and all forms are included and are completed. The Bidder may be requested to submit additional information or documentation within a reasonable period of time and/or to correct nonmaterial nonconformities in the Bid related to Technical Offer documentation requirements.  Determinations made during this review include: 
· Determine if the Letter of Technical Offer is included and signed as per the requirements of ITB 23 and ITB 24;
· Determine eligibility of Bidder;
· Determine if the bid and bid security are valid as per the provisions of the bidding document;
· Determine if all other required forms are included and completed.
2 Legal Status
[bookmark: _14ykbeg]Each entity forming the Bidder shall attach to Form BSF-1 a copy of its letter of incorporation, or other such document, indicating its legal status. In the event the Bidder is an association of entities, the Bidder shall include any other document showing that it intends to associate, or it has associated with, the other entity or entities that are jointly submitting a Bid. Each member of the association that forms the Bidder must provide the information required in Form BSF-1.
3 Financial Criteria
4 The Bidder shall provide evidence showing that it has the sufficient financial capacity needed for this Contract, as required in Form FIN-1. Each member of the association that forms the Bidder must provide the information required in Form FIN-1.
5 [bookmark: _3oy7u29]Litigation Criteria
[bookmark: _243i4a2]The Bidder shall provide accurate information on any current or past litigation or arbitration resulting from contracts completed, terminated, or under execution by the Bidder over the last five (5) years, as indicated in Form CON-1.  A consistent history of awards against the Bidder or existence of high value dispute, which may threaten the financial standing of the Bidder, may lead to the rejection of the Bid. Each member of the association that forms the Bidder must provide the information required in Form CON-1.
6 Qualifications Review
This process will be conducted to determine if the Bidder continues to satisfy the qualification requirements. The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder’s qualifications submitted by the Bidder as requested in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms, plus the Bidder’s record of past performance and a review of references and any other source at the Purchaser’s discretion. All qualification requirements shall be considered on a pass/fail basis. An affirmative determination of qualification shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to a Bidder.
In this section, it is mandatory for the Bidder to note if the prime bidder or any of its subsidiary are under sanctions or debarment or suspension from the World Bank or United Nations or from the U.S. Government. Failure to mention this will be a reason for rejection of the Bid. 
7 References and Past Performance Review.
In accordance with ITB 35, the Bidder’s performance on earlier contracts will be considered in determining if the Bidder is qualified for award of the Contract.   The Purchaser reserves the right to check the performance references provided by the Bidder or to use any other source at the Purchaser’s discretion. If the Bidder (including any of its associates or joint venture/association members) is or has been a party to an MCC-funded contract (either with MCC directly or with any MCA Entity, anywhere in the world), whether as a lead contractor, affiliate, associate, subsidiary, subcontractor, or in any other role, the Bidder must identify the contract in its lists of references submitted with its Bid using Bidding Form BSF5: References of Past Contracts. Failure to include any such contracts may be used to form a negative determination by the Purchaser on the Bidder’s record of performance in prior contracts. However, the failure to list any contracts because the Bidder (including any of its associates or joint venture/association members) has not been a party to any such contract will not be grounds for a negative determination by the Purchaser on the Bidder’s record of performance in prior contracts. That is, prior performance in connection with a MCC-funded contract is not required. The Purchaser will check the references, including the Bidder’s past performance reports filed in MCC’s Contractor Past Performance Reporting System.


8 Technical Evaluation Criteria

	Criteria, sub-criteria
	Points 50

	Organizational Capability and Experience of the Bidder 

(The MCA Entity reserves the right to contact the Form BSF5 references as well as other sources to check references and past performance)

	The evidence of organizational capability and relevant experience in the supply of Goods and Related Services of a similar nature, will be scored as follows:

	
	

	1.1 Experience in supplying Goods and Related Services of a similar nature (The similarity shall be based on the size, complexity, methods/technology or is given for project which comprise: in-house heating installations, electronic metering for heat, gas, electricity or water);
 Higher points for regional and/or in-country experience. Max 5 references to be provided using the Form EXP-2A.
	Maximum 30 points, 
- 4 points per reference
- 5 points for each reference in region (in South East Europe (Albania, Bosnia & Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Montenegro, Kosovo, North Macedonia, Serbia, Rumania, Slovenia, Greece, Turkey) 
- 6 points for in country reference

	1.2 Installed Base (the number of units of the system or product that are currently in use) in Supplier’s country/region: number of customers where similar Goods have been installed and serviced. Documentation required: Sworn Statement 1 - Installed Units.
	
	1 Point for:
	Linear Interpolation
	5 Points for:

	heat meters
	<1.000 
	
	>30.000

	heat cost allocators
	<40.000
	
	>150.000

	thermostatic radiator control valves
	< 20.000
	
	>100.000



	See the table for pointing.
Max 15 Points.


	1.3 Bidders shall employ a reasonable number of women within their company. In case of Joint Venture, criteria apply to all members (an average will be determined). 
The status presented shall be not later that 1 (one) month before the submission deadline. Documentation required: Sworn Statement 2 - Gender and Social Inclusion.

	Max Points: 5.
> 10% women employed- 5 points
5% - 10% women employed – 3 points
1% - 5% total – 1 point
<1% - 0 points

	Total Points for this criterion 1
	50

	2. Approach for Performance, Support and Maintenance                Max Points: 50

	2.1 Methodological approach including:
[bookmark: _Hlk63244916]a) Technological solutions for the metering systems required under technical specifications of the Supply Requirements document (chapter 7) related to data communication, software, SCADA Integration. 
b) Reading/billing platform (user friendliness, transparency, alarm reporting, signal to Termokos for improper usage, building and flat consumption analysis for end users, daily data reading.
c) System Compatibility with wider smart city solutions and/or other public utilities. 
Documentation required: Methodological Approach
	Max Points: 20.
0-10


0-5


0-5

	2.2.1 Performance of the equipment (thermostatic header)
[bookmark: _Hlk63245023]a) Thermostat with liquid filling-0;
Thermostat with gas filling – 3;
Thermostat with normal sensor – 0;
Electronic thermostat with Bluetooth/WLAN – 3
b) Additional features: 
· Lifetime 20 years and over – 3;
· Easier installation of thermostatic header without usage of additional tools– 3;
· Reaction time less than 10 minutes – 3;
· Possibility to lock minimal and maximal temperatures – 3;

2.2.2 Performance of the equipment (heat cost allocators) 
· Parallel communication (AMR & walk by) 
at the same time – 2

2.2.3 Billing software
- Possibility for system configuration from distance - 5 
[bookmark: _Hlk63244965]Documentation required: Statement 4 – Performance of the equipment
	Max Points: 25.



	
2.3 Spare Parts and After Sales Service Facilities in Purchaser’s Country: Higher points for Bidder currently maintaining such facility, lower points if Bidder proposes to set up such facility, lowest points if such facility does not exist and the Bidder does not intend to set up. 

Bidder currently maintaining such facility – 5
Bidder proposes to set up such facility – 2
Facility does not exist, and the Bidder does not intend to set up - 0
Documentation required: Sworn Statement 3 - Facility Spare Parts.

	Max Points: 5.


	Total Points for this criterion 2
	50

	Total Points (criterion 1 + 2)
	100 

	The minimum technical score St required to pass is
All of the above will be checked through references and technical documents provided to support the Bidder’s claims.
	70

	
	


[bookmark: _j8sehv]

FINANCIAL OFFER
9 Administrative Completeness Review 
This review is conducted to determine that the Financial Offer is complete, all required documents are included and all forms are included and are completed. The Bidder may be requested to submit additional information or documentation within a reasonable period of time and/or to correct nonmaterial nonconformities in the Bid related to Financial Offer documentation requirements.  Determinations made during this review include: 
· Determine if the Letter of Financial Offer Bid Price is included and signed as per the requirements of ITB 23 and ITB 24;
· Determine if the Bid Security in the correct format is enclosed; and
· Determine if all other required forms are included and completed.
10 Review of the Prices in the Financial Offer
This review is conducted to determine the Evaluated Financial Offer Price of each Bid. The “Evaluated Bid Price” shall be the Bid price adjusted for correction of arithmetical errors, omissions, clarifications, etc., in accordance with ITB 32.3.
After the above adjustments and corrections are made, the Purchaser will convert the Evaluated Bid Price to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32.2.
11 Work, services, facilities, etc., to be provided by the Purchaser
Where bids include the undertaking of work or the provision of services or facilities by the Purchaser in excess of the provisions called for in the Bidding Document, the Purchaser shall assess the costs of such additional work, services and/or facilities during the duration of the contract. Such costs shall be added to the Financial Offer price for evaluation.
12 Price Reasonableness Determination
Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria

Price Review also includes a determination of price reasonableness as required in ITB 33.
Qualification - Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Bidder

The Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding information sheets included in Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms, to establish that the Bidder meets the requirements established below.

	[bookmark: _338fx5o]
[bookmark: _1idq7dh][bookmark: _Toc63256621][bookmark: _Toc63348155]Eligibility


	Sub-Factor
	Requirement
	Bidder
	Documentation Required

	
	
	Single Entity
	Joint Venture or Association
	

	
	
	
	All members combined
	Each Member
	At least one member
	

	Nationality
	Nationality in accordance with ITB 5.13.
	Must meet requirement
	Existing or intended Joint Venture or other association must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	BSF1 – Bidder Information Form

	Conflict of Interest
	No conflicts of interests as described in ITB 5.8.
	Must meet requirement
	Existing or intended Joint Venture or other association must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	Letter of Technical Offer and Letter of Financial Offer

	Ineligibility
	Not having been declared ineligible based on any of the criteria set forth in ITB 5.12.
	Must meet requirement
	Existing or intended Joint Venture or other association must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement 
	N/A
	Letter of Technical Offer and Letter of Financial Offer

	Government Owned Enterprise
	Compliance with conditions ITB 5.11
	Must meet requirement
	Existing or intended Joint Venture or other association must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	BSF1.1





	[bookmark: _Toc63256622][bookmark: _Toc63348156]Historical Contract Non-Performance

	Sub-Factor
	Requirement
	Bidder
	Documentation Required

	
	
	Single Entity
	Joint Venture or Association
	

	
	
	
	All members combined
	Each member
	At least one member
	

	[bookmark: _4fsjm0b]
[bookmark: _2uxtw84]History of non-performing contracts
	Non-performance of a contract (including contracts terminated for cause) did not occur within the last five (5) years prior to the deadline for Bid submission, determined using all information on fully settled proceedings, litigation, arbitrations, actions, claims, investigations or disputes. A fully settled proceeding, litigation, arbitration, action, claim, investigation or dispute is one that has been resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution mechanism under the respective contract, and where all appeal instances available to the Bidder have been exhausted.
	Must meet requirement by itself, including as member of past or existing Joint Venture or other association (not mandatory if in the past was as a member of a Joint Venture or other association with less than 20% role in the contract).
	N/A
	Must meet requirement by itself or as member of past or existing Joint Venture, or other association (not mandatory if in the past was as a member of a Joint Venture or other association with less than 20% role in the contract).
	N/A
	Form CON –1

	Failure to Sign a Contract
	Failure to sign a contract after receiving a notice of award has not occurred in the past five years. Any deviation should be explained in the enclosed Contract Non-Performance form.
	Must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	Form CON-1

	Pending Litigation
	All pending proceedings, litigation, arbitrations, actions, claims, investigations or disputes, in total, shall not represent more than ten percent (10%) of the Bidder’s net worth.
	Must meet requirement by itself, including as member of past or existing Joint Venture or other association (not mandatory if in the past was as a member of a Joint Venture or other association with less than 20% role in the contract).
	N/A
	Must meet requirement by itself or as member of past or existing Joint Venture, or other association (not mandatory if in the past was as a member of a Joint Venture or other association with less than 20% role in the contract).
	N/A
	Form CON-1




	[bookmark: _Toc63256623][bookmark: _Toc63348157]Financial Situation[footnoteRef:2] [2:  The financial information provided by a Bidder shall be reviewed in its entirety to allow a truly informed judgment about the capacity of the Bidder to undertake the contract and will not be limited strictly to substantiate the financial ratios indicated here.] 



	Sub-Factor
	Requirement
	Bidder
	Documentation Required

	
	
	Single Entity
	Joint Venture or Association
	

	
	
	
	All members combined
	Each member
	At least one member
	

	Historical Financial Performance[footnoteRef:3] [3:  Unless exempted by MCC, this requirement is met by the submission of one of the following: 1) audited financial statements for the last three (3) years, supported by audit letters, 2) certified financial statements for the last three (3) years, supported by tax returns or 3) a copy of the Contractor’s Dun & Bradstreet Business Information Report (“BIR”). The Dun & Bradstreet report must either be notarized, or accompanied by the following statement by the Bidder: “I certify that the attached BIR has been issued by Dun & Bradstreet within thirty (30) days of the date of this certification, that report has not been altered in any way since its issuance, and that it is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.” The statement must be signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder. If the Bid is submitted by a joint venture or other association, all parties in the joint venture/association are required to submit their financial statements or Dun & Bradstreet BIR.  The reports should be submitted in order of the partner’s significance in the partnership, greatest to least. Failure to submit one of the three documents as evidence of financial capacity may result in the rejection of the Bid.] 

	Submission of audited financial statements, including balance sheets, income statements and cash flow statements, or, if not required by the law of the Bidder’s country, other financial statements acceptable to the Purchaser, for the last three (3) years to demonstrate the current soundness of the Bidder’s financial position and its prospective long term profitability and to demonstrate:
1. Average coefficient of Current ratio (Current Assets / Current Liabilities) ≥ 0.9

2. Average coefficient of Debt ratio (Total Debt / Total Assets) ≤ 0.8
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	Form FIN-1 with attachments

	Annual Average Turnover
	[bookmark: _1nia2ey]Minimum average annual turnover of 5,000,000 EUR, calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in progress or completed, within the last three (3) years. Values to determine annual turnover are to be demonstrated in the audited financial statements (income statements) of the last three (3) years and are to be considered to be indicative.
	Must meet requirement














	Must meet requirement













	Must meet 
five percent (5%) of the requirement










	Must meet 
Fifty percent (50%) of the requirement









	Form FIN-2

	Financial Resources
	[bookmark: _2mn7vak]The Bidder must demonstrate access to, or availability of, financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any contractual advance payments to meet:
[bookmark: _11si5id](i) the following cash-flow requirement: 1.000.000 EUR, 
	Must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	Must meet 
five percent (5%) of the requirement
	Must meet 
fifty percent (50%) of the requirement
	Forms FIN-3 & Form FIN-4





	[bookmark: _Toc63256624][bookmark: _Toc63348158]Experience


	Sub-Factor
	Requirement
	Bidder
	Documentation Required

	
	
	Single Entity
	Joint Venture or Association
	

	
	
	
	All members combined
	Each member
	At least one member
	

	General Experience
	Experience under contracts in role of contractor, subcontractor, or management contractor for at least the last three (3) years prior to the Bid submission deadline.
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	Form EXP-1

	Similar Experience
	Participation as contractor, management contractor, or subcontractor in at least 3 contracts within the last 10 years, at least one with a total value of at least 2 Mio EUR that have been successfully and substantially completed and that are similar to the proposed Good and Related Services. 
The similarity is given for project which comprise: in-house heating installations, electronic metering (for heat, gas, electricity or water), metering/billing software implementation
	Must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement 
	N/A
	Must meet requirement 
	Form EXP-2B

	Specific Experience in Key Activities
	For the above or other contracts executed during the period stipulated in Similar Experience section above, a minimum experience in the following key activities:

Installation of at least 1000 thermostatic radiator temperature control valves 
Supply or installation of at least 4000 heat cost allocators
Supply or installation of at least 1000 heat meters
Implementation of at least one project with the reading and billing software.

The above criteria can be fulfilled either combined or with separate project references.
	Must meet requirement
	Must meet requirement
	N/A
	at least one member must cover the minimum requirement under sub criteria No. 4 completely.
	Form EXP-3




	[bookmark: _Toc63256625][bookmark: _Toc63348159]Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms

	Letter of Technical Offer
Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)
Description of Goods
BSF1.1 - Government-Owned Enterprise Certification Form
BSF1 - Bidder Information Form
BSF2 - Party to Joint Venture/Association Information Form
BSF3 - Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Forms
BSF4	Manufacturer’s Authorization
FIN-1: Financial Situation
FIN-2: Average Annual Construction Turnover
FIN-3: Financial Resources
FIN-4: Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress
Form CON–1 Historical Contract Non-Performance
BSF5 - References of MCC-Funded Contracts
Form EXP-1: General Experience
Form EXP-2 A: Similar Experience
Form EXP-2 B: Similar Experience
Form EXP-3: Specific Experience in Key Activities
BSF6	Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form
Sworn Statement 1: Installed Units
Sworn Statement 2: Gender and Social Inclusion
Sworn Statement 3: Facility for Spare Parts
Methodological Approach
Statement 4: Performance of the equipment
Letter of Financial Offer
Price Schedule for Goods 
Price and Completion Schedule for Related Services



Section IV. Technical and Financial Offer Bid Forms

[bookmark: _Toc63256626][bookmark: _Toc63348160]Letter of Technical Offer

Request for Bid No.: _________________________________________

Name of Contract: ____________________________________________

 [Location, Date]
To:	Mr. or Ms. 
Procurement Director [insert full legal name of the MCA Entity]
Address:
Email: 
Dear Sirs,
Re: [insert title of Bid] 
Bidding Document Ref: [insert reference as shown on cover page]
We, the undersigned, offer to provide the Technical Offer for the above-mentioned Bid as in accordance with your Bidding Document [insert title] dated [insert date].
We are hereby submitting our Technical Offer in a separate and clearly marked inner envelope/inner parcel. Our Financial Offer is submitted in a separate and clearly marked inner envelope/inner parcel.  Both the Technical Offer and the Financial Offer are submitted at the same time within an outer envelope / outer parcel.
We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Technical Offer are true and accept that any misinterpretation contained in it may lead to our disqualification.
We comply with the requirements of ITB 5 of the Bidding Document, as applicable.
Any subcontractors and suppliers do or will comply with the requirements of ITB 5 of the Bidding Document, as applicable.
We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one Bid in this bidding process.
Our Technical Offer is binding upon us.
We understand you are not bound to accept any Technical Offer that you may receive.
We acknowledge that our digital/digitized signature is valid and legally binding.


Yours sincerely,
	[Authorized signatory]
	

	[Name and title of signatory]
	

	[Name of Bidder]
	

	[Address of Bidder]
	



[bookmark: _2eclud0]Annexes:
1. [bookmark: _thw4kt]Power of Attorney demonstrating that the person signing has been duly authorized to sign the Technical Offer on behalf of the Bidder;
2. [bookmark: _3dhjn8m]Letter(s) of Incorporation (or other documents indicating legal status); and
3. Joint Venture/Association Agreements (if applicable, but without showing any Financial Offer information).
[bookmark: _Toc63256627][bookmark: _Toc63348161]Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

[The bank, as requested by the Bidder, shall fill in the form in accordance with the instructions indicated]
Bank: [Bank’s Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office]
Beneficiary: [Name and Address of Purchaser]
Date: [insert date]
Bid Reference No.: ___________________________
Bid Guarantee No.: ___________________________

We have been informed that [insert name of Bidder] (hereinafter “the Bidder”) has submitted its bid dated [insert day, month, year] for the supply of [insert name of Goods] (hereinafter called “the Bid”) under the Bid Reference No. stated above.
Furthermore, we understand that, according to your conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid guarantee.
At the request of the Bidder, we [insert name of Bank] hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures] ([insert amount in words]) upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Bidder is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Bid conditions, because the Bidder:
(a) has withdrawn its Bid during the period of Bid validity [insert dates of Bid validity], specified by the Bidder in the Bid Submission Form, except as provided in the Instructions to Bidders, Clause 22.2; or
(b) If the Bidder, having been notified that it has submitted the Bid that provides the best value does not accept the correction of errors in its Bid by the Purchaser, pursuant to ITB Clause 32; or
(c) If the Bidder, having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Purchaser, fails within the specified time to:
(i) furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with GCC Clause 16 and as described in ITB Clause 42, or
(ii) execute the Contract, in accordance with ITB Clause 41.
This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Bidder is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the Contract signed by the Bidder and the performance security issued to you upon the instruction of the Bidder; or (b) if the Bidder is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of your notification that the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required performance security; or (ii) twenty-eight (28) days after the expiration of the Bidder’s Bid validity period.
Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office on or before that date.
[Issuing Bank to delete whichever is not applicable] We confirm that [we are a financial institution legally authorized to provide this guarantee in the Purchaser’s country] [OR] [we are a financial institution located outside the Purchaser’s country but have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser’s country that will ensure the enforceability of this guarantee. The name of our correspondent bank and contact information is as follows: [insert name, address, phone number, and email address].]

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except as may otherwise be stated above.

	Signed:
	

	
In the capacity of:
	

	[Print Name]
	

	duly authorized to sign the Bid Security for and on behalf of 
[Insert name, address of financial institution]
	

	Dated on 
[Insert Date]
	



[bookmark: 2rrrqc1][bookmark: 16x20ju][bookmark: 3qwpj7n][bookmark: 4cmhg48][bookmark: 261ztfg][bookmark: l7a3n9][bookmark: _Toc63256628][bookmark: _Toc63348162]Description of Goods

	To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Document, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Technical Offer the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications, including all requirements and standards specified in Section V. Schedule of Requirements.
The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, including all requirements and standards, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Schedule of Requirements.
The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods following commencement of the use of the Goods by the Purchaser. Unless specified otherwise in the BDS and Section III. Qualification and Evaluation Criteria, these prices shall not be included in the bid evaluation.
Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. A Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to Purchaser’s satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Schedule of Requirements.



[bookmark: _Toc63256629][bookmark: _Toc63348163]BSF 1.1 - Government-Owned Enterprise Certification Form

Government-Owned Enterprises are not eligible to compete for MCC-funded contracts for goods or works. Accordingly, GOEs (i) may not be party to any MCC-funded contract for goods or works procured through an open solicitation process, limited bidding, direct contracting, or sole source selection; and (ii) may not be pre-qualified or shortlisted for any MCC-funded contract anticipated to be procured through these means.

This prohibition does not apply to Government-owned Force Account units or Government-owned educational institutions and research centers, or any statistical, mapping or other technical entities not formed primarily for a commercial or business purpose, or where a waiver is granted by MCC in accordance with Part 7 of MCC’s Program Procurement Guidelines. The full policy is available for your review on the Compact Procurement Guidelines page at the MCC Website (www.mcc.gov/ppg). As part of the eligibility verification for this procurement, please fill in the form below to indicate the status of your entity. The Certification Form shall be furnished with the Bid REGARDLESS OF THE STATUS OF YOUR ENTITY.

For purposes of this form, the term “Government” means one or more governments, including any agency, instrumentality, subdivision or other unit of government at any level of jurisdiction (national or subnational).

⬥⬥⬥⬥⬥
CERTIFICATION 
Full Legal Name of Bidder:
__________________________________________________________________
Full Legal Name of Bidder in Language and Script of Country of Formation (if different from above):
________________________________________________
Address of Principal Place of Business or Chief Executive Office of Bidder:
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

Full Name of Three (3) Highest Ranking Officials of Bidder (for any Bidder that is an entity):
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
Full Legal Name(s) of Parent Entity or Entities of Bidder (if applicable; if Bidder has no parent, please so state):
__________________________________________________________________
Full Legal Name(s) of Parent Entity or Entities of Bidder in Language and Script of Country of Formation (if applicable and if different from above):
________________________________________________
Address(es) of Principal Place of Business or Chief Executive Office of Parent Entity or Entities of Bidder (if applicable):
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
1) Does a Government own a majority or controlling interest (whether by value or voting interest) of your shares or other ownership interest (whether directly or indirectly and whether through fiduciaries, agents or other means)?
Yes □   No □

2) If your answer to question 1 was yes, are you a Government-owned:
a. Force Account unit 							Yes □   No □
b. Educational institution						Yes □   No □
c. Research center							Yes □   No □
d. Statistical entity							Yes □   No □
e. Mapping entity							Yes □   No □
f. Other technical entities not formed primarily for a commercial or business purpose								Yes □   No □

3) Regardless of how you answered question 1, please answer the following:
a. Do you receive any subsidy or payment (including any form of subsidized credit) or any other form of assistance (financial or otherwise) from a Government?										Yes □   No □
If yes, describe: ____________________________________________________
b. Has a Government granted to you any special or exclusive legal or economic rights or benefits that may alter the competitiveness of your goods, works or services or otherwise influence your business decisions?		Yes □   No □
If yes, describe: ___________________________________________________
c. Does a Government have the ability to direct or decide any of the following with respect to you:
i. any reorganization, merger, or dissolution of you or the formation or acquisition of any subsidiary or other affiliate by you	Yes □   No □
ii. any sale, lease, mortgage, pledge, or other transfer of any of your principal assets, whether tangible or intangible and whether or not in the ordinary course of business  						Yes □   No □
iii. the closing, relocation, or substantial alteration of the production, operational, or other material activities of your business	Yes □   No □
iv. your execution, termination, or non-fulfillment of material contracts									Yes □   No □
v. the appointment or dismissal of your managers, directors, officers or senior personnel or otherwise participate in the management or control of your business							Yes □   No □

4) Have you ever been Government-owned or controlled?			Yes □   No □

5) If your answer to question 4 was yes, please answer the following questions
a. How long were you Government-owned?  _________________
b. When were you privatized?  ________________________
c. Do you receive any subsidy or payment (including any form of subsidized credit) or any other form of assistance (financial or otherwise) from a Government?										Yes □   No □
If yes, describe: __________________________________________________
d. Even though not majority or controlling, does a Government continue to hold any ownership interest or decision making authority in you or your affairs?
Yes □   No □
If yes, describe: __________________________________________________
e. Do you send any funds to a Government other than taxes and fees in the ordinary course of your business in percentages and amounts equivalent to other non-Government-owned enterprises in your country that are engaged in the same sector or industry? 							Yes □   No □

If yes, describe: __________________________________________________


Participants are advised that: 

1. Prior to announcing the winning bidder or any list of pre-qualified bidders for this procurement, the MCA Entity will verify the eligibility of such bidder(s) with MCC. MCC will maintain a database (internally, through subscription services, or both) of known GOEs and each winning or pre-qualified bidder subject to this provision will be compared against the database and subject to such further due diligence as MCC may determine necessary under the circumstances.

2. Any misrepresentation by any entity submitting a bid for this procurement may be deemed a “fraudulent practice” for purposes of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines and any other applicable MCC policy or guidance, including MCC’s Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations.

3. Any entity that is determined by MCC to have organized itself, subcontracted any part of its MCC-funded contract, or otherwise associated itself with any other entity for the purpose of, or with the actual or potential effect of, avoiding or otherwise subverting the GOE provisions of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines may be deemed to be a GOE for all purposes of those Guidelines.

4. Any credible accusation that any entity submitting a bid for this procurement is a GOE ineligible to submit a bid in accordance with the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines will be subject to review in a bid challenge in accordance with those Guidelines and the MCA Entity’s Bid Challenge System.

I hereby certify that the information provided above is true and correct in all material respects and understand that any material misstatement, misrepresentation or failure to provide the information requested in this certification may be deemed a “fraudulent practice” for purposes of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines and other applicable MCC policy or guidance, including MCC’s Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations.




Authorized Signature:  ___________________________   Date:  _________________
Printed Name of Signatory: ____________________________________
[bookmark: _Toc63256630][bookmark: _Toc63348164]BSF 1 - Bidder Information Form
Re: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Bid Ref: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

	1.	Constitution or Bidder’s legal status

	
	Place of registration
	

	
	Principal place of business
	

	2.	Legal name of each party of the joint venture/association (if applicable)

	
	[insert legal name of each party in joint venture/association and complete Form BSF5: Party to Joint Venture/Association Information Form below for each joint venture/association party]

	3. 	Attached are copies of:

	· Articles of incorporation or registration of the Bidder named in 1 above; demonstrating the Bidder’s eligibility in accordance with ITB Clause 5;
· Letter of intent to form joint venture/association or joint venture/association agreement, if applicable, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 5.3;
· Proper authority of the signatory of the Bidder in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 23.1;
· Government-Owned Enterprise Certification Form [BSF 1.1]

“Tick” the boxes and attach documents to the Bid.



This information shall not be incorporated into the Contract. The Bidder is to adapt and extend this form as necessary. Pertinent sections of attached documents should be translated into English.
[bookmark: _Toc63256631][bookmark: _Toc63348165]
BSF 2 - Party to Joint Venture/Association Information Form
Re: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Bid Ref: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

	1. 	Constitution or joint venture/association member’s legal status

	Place of registration
	

	Principal place of business
	

	2. 	Attached are copies of original documents of:

	· Articles of incorporation or registration of the entity named in 1 above; demonstrating the entity’s eligibility in accordance with ITB Clause 5;
· Letter of intent to form joint venture/association or joint venture/association agreement, if applicable, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 5.3;
· Proper authority of the signatory of the entity named in 1 above in the same manner as contemplated for Bidders in ITB Sub-Clause 23.1;
· Government-Owned Enterprise Certification Form [BSF 1.1]

“Tick” the boxes and attach documents to the Bid.



The information listed above shall be provided for each member of a joint venture/association.

Attach the agreement among all members of the joint venture/association (and which is legally binding on all members), which shows that:
1. all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
2. one of the members shall be nominated as being in charge, authorized to incur liabilities and receive instructions for and on behalf of all members of the joint venture/association; and
3. the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the member in charge.
[bookmark: _Toc63256632][bookmark: _Toc63348166]
BSF 3 - Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Forms
Re: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Bid Ref: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

We, the undersigned, declare that: 
(a) The attached health and safety (“H&S”) data sheets, licenses, permits or other documents as required by Section V. Schedule of Requirements (SR 6) are current and valid; and, 
(b) the attached environmental and social permits, licenses or other documents as required by Section V. Schedule of Requirements (SR 6) are current and valid.

	Signed:
	

	
In the capacity of:
	

	[Print Name]
	

	duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of 
[Insert name, address of financial institution]
	

	Dated on 
[Insert Date]
	



[bookmark: _Toc63256633][bookmark: _Toc63348167]
BSF 4 - Manufacturer’s Authorization
Re: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Bid Ref: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
[This letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the manufacturer of the Goods and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on such manufacturer. A Bidder shall include this letter of authorization in its Bid, if so indicated in the BDS].

WHEREAS
We, [insert name of manufacturer] are reputable manufacturers of [insert type of goods manufactured] having factories at [insert location(s) of factories].
THEREFORE, we do hereby 
(a) Authorize [insert name of Bidder] to submit a Bid in response to the Invitation for Bids indicated above. The purpose of such Bid is to provide the following Goods: [insert description of Goods] manufactured by us, and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract for the supply of such Goods.
AND
(al) Extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 29 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered in the Bid.

	Signed:
	

	
In the capacity of:
	

	[Print Name]
	

	duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of 
[Insert name, address of financial institution]
	

	Dated on 
[Insert Date]
	





[bookmark: _Toc63256634][bookmark: _Toc63348168]FIN-1: Financial Situation

Each Bidder or member of a JV/Association making up a Bidder must fill in this form.


	Financial Data for Previous 3 Years [EUR Equivalent]

	Year 1: 
	Year 2:
	Year 3:



Information from Balance Sheet

	Total Assets
	
	
	

	Total Liabilities
	
	
	

	Net Worth
	
	
	

	Current Assets
	
	
	

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	



Information from Income Statement

	Total Revenues 
	
	
	


	Profits Before Taxes
	
	
	

	Profits After Taxes
	
	
	



	· Attached are copies of financial statements (balance sheets including all related notes and income statements) for the last 3 years, as indicated above, complying with the following conditions.
· All such documents reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or member of a JV or other association, and not sister or parent companies.
· Historic financial statements must be audited by a certified accountant.
· Historic financial statements must be complete, including all notes to the financial statements.
· Historic financial statements must correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited (no statements for partial periods shall be requested or accepted).



Financial Ratios

	Current Ratio 
	
	
	
	
	

	Debt Ration
	
	
	
	
	


*Bidders to fill this table. The Employer will verify during the review process.
[bookmark: _4hr1b5p]
[bookmark: _Toc63256635][bookmark: _Toc63348169]FIN-2: Average Annual Turnover

Each Bidder or member of a JV/Association making up a Bidder must fill in this form.

	Annual Turnover Data for the Last 3 Years

	Year
	Amount
Currency
	Exchange 
Rate
	EUR €
Equivalent

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Average Annual Construction Turnover
	



The information supplied should be the annual turnover of the Bidder or each member of a JV/Association making up a Bidder in terms of the amounts billed to clients for each year for work in progress or completed, converted to EUR at the rate of exchange at the end of the period reported. 


[bookmark: _Toc63256636][bookmark: _Toc63348170]FIN-3: Financial Resources

Each Bidder or member of a JV/Association making up a Bidder must fill in this form, specifying proposed sources of financing, such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, net of current commitments, available to meet the total construction cash flow demands of the subject Contract or contracts as indicated in Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements.

	No.
	Source of Financing
	Amount (€ EUR equivalent)

	1
	

	

	2
	

	

	3
	

	

	4
	

	






[bookmark: _Toc63256637][bookmark: _Toc63348171]FIN-4: Current Contract Commitments  

Each Bidder and each member of a JV/Association making up a Bidder should provide information on their current commitments on all contracts that have been awarded, or for which a letter of intent or acceptance has been received, or for contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to be issued.


	Name of Contract
	Employer, contact address/tel/fax
	Value of outstanding work (current EUR equivalent)
	Estimated completion date
	Average monthly invoicing over last six months
(EUR/month)

	

	
	
	
	

	

	
	
	
	

	

	
	
	
	





[bookmark: _Toc63256638][bookmark: _Toc63348172]
Form CON–1 Historical Contract Non-Performance
The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a joint venture or other association that is a party to the Bidder.
Bidder’s Legal Name: [insert full name]
Date: [insert day, month, year]
Bidder’s Party’s Legal Name: [insert full name]
Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages



	Non-Performing Contracts in accordance with Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements

	◻	Contract non-performance did not occur during the five years prior to the deadline for Bid submission in accordance with Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements), Sub-Factor 2.2.1.
    OR

◻	Contract(s) not performed during the five years prior to the deadline for Bid submission in accordance with Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements), Sub-Factor 2.2.1.

	Year
	Non performed portion of contract
	Contract Identification

	Total Contract Amount (current value, EUR € equivalent)

	[insert year]
	[insert amount and percentage]
	Contract identification: [indicate complete contract name, number, and any other identification]
Name of institution: [insert full name]
Address of institution: [insert street/city/country]
Reason(s) for non-performance: [indicate main reason(s)]
	[insert amount]





	Failure to Sign a Contract, in accordance with Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements

	No failure to sign a contract in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.2.2 of Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements
OR

· Failure to sign a contract in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.2.2 of Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements

	Failure to Sign Contract

In the event of failure to sign a contract, clarify/explain your situation according to Sub-Factor 2.2.2 of Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements





	Pending Litigation

	Year
	Claim as Percentage of Total Assets
	Contract Identification
	Total Contract Amount (current value, EUR € equivalent)

	[insert year]
	[insert percentage]
	Contract identification: [indicate complete contract name, number, and any other identification]
Name of institution: [insert full name]
Address of institution: [insert street/city/country]
Matter in dispute: [indicate main issues in dispute]
	[insert amount]






	Current and Past Proceedings, Litigation, Arbitration, Actions, Claims, Investigations and Disputes in accordance with Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements
(each member of a JV/association making up a Bidder must complete this table) 

	Provide information on current or past proceedings, litigation, arbitration, actions, claims, investigations or disputes over the last five (5) years as shown in the form below in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.2.3 of Section III, Bid Review, Evaluation Criteria and Bidder Qualification Requirements. 

The Bidder, or a related company or entity, is currently, or within the past five (5) years has been, involved in any proceeding, litigation, arbitration, action, claim, investigation or dispute the process or outcome of which the Employer could reasonably interpret may impact or have the potential to impact the financial condition of the Bidder in a manner that may adversely affect the Bidder’s ability to satisfy any of its obligations under the Contract:

	◻ No   OR   ◻  Yes

If Yes, Describe:

	Year:
	Matter in Dispute:
	Value of Award (Actual or Potential) Against Consultant in EUR € Equivalent:











[bookmark: _Toc63256639][bookmark: _Toc63348173]
BSF 5 - References of MCC-Funded Contracts

Each Bidder or member of a Joint Venture/Association making up a Bidder must fill in this form and include information about relevant past contracts, and any and all MCC-funded contracts (either with MCC directly or with any Millennium Challenge Account Entity, anywhere in the world) to which the Bidder or member of a Joint Venture/Association making up a Bidder is or has been a party whether as a Supplier, affiliate, associate, subsidiary, Subcontractor, or in any other role.


	Contracts with MCC

	Contract Name and Number
	Role in Contract
	Total Contract Amount
	Purchaser Name and Address

	



	
	
	

	



	
	
	

	Contracts with MCA-Entities

	Contract Name and Number
	Role in Contract
	Total Contract Amount
	Purchaser Name and Address

	



	
	
	

	



	
	
	





[bookmark: _Toc63256640][bookmark: _Toc63348174]Form EXP-1: General Experience
Each Bidder or member of a JV/Association making up a Bidder must fill in this form.
	General Construction Experience

	Starting
Month
Year
	Ending
Month
Year
	Years
	Contract Identification and Name
Name and Address of Employer
Brief Description of the Works Executed by the Bidder/Member of a JV/Association making up the Bidder
	Role of Bidder/Member of a JV/Association making up the Bidder

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	





[bookmark: _Toc63256641][bookmark: _Toc63348175]Form EXP-2 A: Similar Experience
Fill in one (1) form per contract.
	Contract of Similar Size and Nature

	Contract  No . . . . . . of . . . . . .
	Contract Identification
	

	Award Date
	
	Completion Date
	

	Role in Contract
	· Contractor
	· Management Contractor
	· Subcontractor

	Total Contract Amount
	EUR €

	If member of a JV or other association, or a subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount
	Percent of Total
	Amount

	Employer’s Name
Address
Telephone/Fax Number
E-mail
	

	Description of the similarity with the Works requirements

	
	





[bookmark: _Toc63256642][bookmark: _Toc63348176]Form EXP-2 B: Similar Experience
Fill in one (1) form per contract.
	Contract of Similar Size and Nature

	Contract  No . . . . . . of . . . . . .
	Contract Identification
	

	Award Date
	
	Completion Date
	

	Role in Contract
	· Contractor
	· Management Contractor
	· Subcontractor

	Total Contract Amount
	EUR €

	If member of a JV or other association, or a subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount
	Percent of Total
	Amount

	Employer’s Name
Address
Telephone/Fax Number
E-mail
	

	Description of the similarity with the Works requirements

	
	






[bookmark: _Toc63256643][bookmark: _Toc63348177]Form EXP-3: Specific Experience in Key Activities
Fill in one (1) form per contract.
	Contract with Specific Key Activities

	Contract  No . . . . . . of . . . . . .
	Contract Identification
	

	Award Date
	
	Completion Date
	

	Role in Contract
	· Contractor
	· Management Contractor
	· Subcontractor

	Total Contract Amount
	EUR €

	If member of a JV or other association, or a subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount
	Percent of Total
	Amount

	Employer’s Name
Address
Telephone Number 
Fax Number
E-mail
	

	Description of the key activities in accordance with the Specific Experience
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[bookmark: _Toc63256644][bookmark: _Toc63348178]BSF 6 - Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form

As part of their Bid, each Bidder shall complete and submit the Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form as per Section IX. Contract Annexes. Detailed instructions on how to complete this Form are also provided in the same Section.


[bookmark: _Toc63256645][bookmark: _Toc63348179]Sworn Statement 1: Installed Units


Request for Bid No.: _________________________________________

Name of Contract: ____________________________________________

 [Location, Date]
To:	Mr. or Ms. 
Procurement Director [insert full legal name of the MCA Entity]
Address:
Email: 

Dear Madam/ Sir, 

We, [Name of the Bidder] declare that the information provided below is real and if requested by the Purchaser, the necessary evidence will be provided. 

	
	Heat meters
	Heat cost allocators
	Thermostatic radiator control valves

	Installed unit
	
	
	





Sincerely, 

Name of the Bidder
Name of the signatory person
[Signature]





[bookmark: _Toc63256646][bookmark: _Toc63348180]Sworn Statement 2: Gender and Social Inclusion

Request for Bid No.: _________________________________________

Name of Contract: ____________________________________________

 [Location, Date]
To:	Mr. or Ms. 
Procurement Director [insert full legal name of the MCA Entity]
Address:
Email: 

Dear Madam/ Sir, 

We, [Name of the Bidder] declare that the information provided below is real and if requested by the Purchaser, the necessary evidence will be provided. 

	
	Total number of Employees
	Number Women Employees
	Percentage [Total number of Employees/ Number of Women Employees]

	[Date]
	
	
	





Sincerely, 

Name of the Bidder
Name of the signatory person
[Signature]


[bookmark: _Toc63256647][bookmark: _Toc63348181]Sworn Statement 3: Facility Spare Parts

Request for Bid No.: _________________________________________

Name of Contract: ____________________________________________

 [Location, Date]
To:	Mr. or Ms. 
Procurement Director [insert full legal name of the MCA Entity]
Address:
Email: 





Dear Madam/ Sir, 

We, [Name of the Bidder] declare that [have/ intendeds to set up/ does not intend to set up] a spare part and after sales service facility in Kosovo. 






Sincerely, 

Name of the Bidder
Name of the signatory person
[Signature]


[bookmark: _Toc63256648][bookmark: _Toc63348182]Methodological Approach


The Bidder shall provide a Methodological Approach for:

a) Technological solutions for the metering systems required under technical specifications of the Supply Requirements document (chapter 7) related to data communication, software, SCADA Integration. 
b) Reading/billing platform (user friendliness, transparency, alarm reporting, signal to Termokos for improper usage, building and flat consumption analysis for end users, daily data reading.
c) System Compatibility with wider smart city solutions and/or other public utilities. 
Documentation required: Methodological Approach






[bookmark: _Toc63256649][bookmark: _Toc63348183]Statement 4: Performance of the equipment
[This Statement will become integral part of the Contract]

Request for Bid No.: _________________________________________

Name of Contract: ____________________________________________

 [Location, Date]
To:	Mr. or Ms. 
Procurement Director [insert full legal name of the MCA Entity]
Address:
Email: 



Dear Madam/ Sir, 

We, [Name of the Bidder] declare that we will provide the following equipment during the implementation of the project:

[Maximum two to tick]
 Thermostat with liquid filling
 Thermostat with gas filling
 Thermostat with normal sensor
 Electronic thermostat with Bluetooth/WLAN

 Add information for other criteria….
 
Sincerely, 

Name of the Bidder
Name of the signatory person
[Signature]


[bookmark: _Toc63256650][bookmark: _Toc63348184]Letter of Financial Offer
Invitation for Bid No.: _________________________________________

Name of Contract: ____________________________________________

Lot #: ______________________________________________________


To: 		The Purchaser/Procurement Agent
Address:


Ladies and Gentlemen:

We, the undersigned, declare and certify that:

1. We have examined and we have no reservations to the Bidding Document, including addenda thereto issued in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.
2. In accordance with the Conditions of Contract, Purchaser’s Requirements and Price Schedules for the provisions of the above-named Goods and Related Services, we offer to deliver such Goods and Related Services and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract, Purchaser’s Requirement’s and Price Schedules for the sum of [insert amount in numbers and words].
3. In case we are awarded another lot in addition to this lot, we will provide a discount of [insert amount of discount in numbers and words] to be applied as follows: [describe the methodology for applying the discount.]
4. We acknowledge notice of the MCC Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations (“MCC AFC Policy”). We have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf has engaged in any corrupt or fraudulent practices described in ITB 3. As part of this, we certify that:
(a) The prices in this offer have been arrived at independently, without, for the purpose of restricting competition, any consultation, communication, or agreement with any other offeror or competitor relating to—
(i) Those prices;
(ii) The intention to submit an offer; or
(iii) The methods or factors used to calculate the prices offered.
(b) The prices in this offer have not been and will not be knowingly disclosed by us, directly or indirectly, to any other offeror or competitor before bid opening (in the case of a sealed bid solicitation) or contract award (in the case of a negotiated solicitation) unless otherwise required by law; and
(c) No attempt has been made or will be made by us to induce any other concern to submit or not to submit an offer for the purpose of restricting competition.
5. We undertake, if our Bid is accepted, to obtain a Performance Security in accordance with GCC Clause 16 and as described in ITB Clause 42 for the due performance of the Contract.
6. Our Bid shall be valid for a period of [insert number] days from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Document, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period.
7. Unless and until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof in the form of a signed Letter of Acceptance delivered by you to us, shall constitute a binding contract between us.
8. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you may receive.
9. We comply with the requirements of ITB 5 of the Bidding Document, as applicable.
10. Any subcontractors and suppliers do or will comply with the requirements of ITB 5 of the Bidding Document, as applicable.
11. We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one Bid in this bidding process.
12. We have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf has engaged in any corrupt or fraudulent practices described in ITB 3.
13. Commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Bid, and to Contract execution if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below:

	Name and address of agent
	
	Amount and currency
	
	Purpose of commission or gratuity

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
(if none, state “none”)



14. We have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in bribery.
15. We are not engaged in, facilitating, or allowing any of the prohibited activities described in Part 15 of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines (Combatting Trafficking in Persons) and will not engage in, facilitate, or allow any such prohibited activities for the duration of the Contract. Further, we hereby provide our assurance that the prohibited activities described in Part 15 of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines will not be tolerated on the part of our employees, or any subcontractor or supplier, or their respective employees.  Finally, we acknowledge that engaging in such activities is cause for suspension or termination of employment or of the Contract.
16. We understand and accept without condition that, in accordance with ITB 40 any challenge or protest to the process or results of this procurement may be brought only through the Purchaser’s Bid Challenge System (“BCS”).


Dated this 	 day of 	 20 	

Signature 	 In the capacity of 	
Duly authorized to sign Bids for and on behalf of 	

[In block letters or typed]

Address: 	

Witness: 	
Address: 	
Occupation:
Price Schedule for Goods and Related Services 


The Bidder shall submit in electronic format only (readable MS Excel) completed Price Schedule for Goods and Related Services – see Annex 1 to Bidding Documents. 











PART 2:

SUPPLY REQUIREMENTS
	[bookmark: _Toc63256651][bookmark: _Toc63348185]Section V. Schedule of Requirements

	
SR 1 - List of Goods and Delivery Schedule
SR 2 - List of Related Services and Completion Schedule
SR 3 - Technical Specifications
SR 4 - Drawings
SR 5 - Inspections and Tests
SR 6 - Environmental, Health and Safety Procedures



Section V. Schedule of Requirements

[bookmark: _Toc63256652][bookmark: _Toc63348186]SR 1 - List of Goods and Delivery Schedule

[bookmark: _Hlk63340706]The Bidder shall submit in electronic format only (readable MS Excel) completed SR1 List of Goods and Delivery Schedule – see Annex 3 to Bidding Documents.




[bookmark: _Toc63256653][bookmark: _Toc63348187]
SR 2 - List of Related Services and Completion Schedule
The Bidder shall submit in electronic format only (readable MS Excel) completed SR2 List of Related Services and Completion Schedule – see Annex 3 to Bidding Documents.



[bookmark: _Toc63256654][bookmark: _Toc63348188]SR 3 - Technical Specifications

Please see Annex 2 attached to Bidding Documents. 




[bookmark: _Toc63256655][bookmark: _Toc63348189]
SR 4 - Drawings

Please see Annex 3 attached to Bidding Documents (see extract below):





[bookmark: _Toc63256656][bookmark: _Toc63348190][image: ]
SR 5 - Inspections and Tests
Please see Annex 2 attached to Bidding Documents.


[bookmark: _Toc63256657][bookmark: _Toc63348191]

SR 6 - Environmental, Health and Safety Procedures

Please see Annex 2 and Annex H attached to Bidding Documents.




PART 3:
CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS












	[bookmark: _Toc63256658][bookmark: _Toc63348192]Section VI. Contract Notices and Agreement



This Section contains the Notice of Intent to Award, the Notification of Award and the Agreement.



	[bookmark: _Toc63348193]Notice of Intent to Award 



[The Notice of Intent to Award shall be filled in and sent to the successful Bidder in accordance with ITB Clause 41.]


[date]

THIS IS NOT A NOTICE OF AWARD OR LETTER OF ACCEPTANCE.
THE PURCHASER INTENDS NO CONTRACT TO BE FORMED 
WITH THIS NOTICE.

To: [insert name and address of the Supplier]

Re: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Bid Ref: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

As provided in the Bidding Document (ITB Clause 41) in connection with [insert name of the Contract and identification number, as given in the Bidding Document], this notice is to inform you that we have selected you as the successful Bidder in the procurement associated with such Bidding Document and, following the expiration of the period for filing a bid challenge and the resolution of any bid challenges that are submitted in accordance with our bid challenge system as more fully described in the Bidding Document, we anticipate issuing to you a formal Notification of Award and Contract Agreement.

While we are providing you with this Notice of Intent to Award, it does NOT constitute the formation of a contract between you and us. You shall not acquire any legal or equitable rights and we do not extend and shall not accept any legal or equitable rights or obligations until and unless such time as you receive from us an executed Letter of Acceptance/Notification of Award, together with a form of Contract Agreement, and the requirements set forth in such Letter of Acceptance/Notification of Award have been fulfilled in a manner acceptable to us. We reserve the right to cancel this Notice of Intent to Award at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability.

Thank you for participating in the bidding process. For information about this notice, please contact the undersigned.


	Signed:

	
In the capacity of:

	[Print Name]




	[bookmark: _Toc63348194]Notification of Award 



[The Notification of Award shall be the basis for formation of the Contract as described in ITB Clause 43. This form of Notification of Award shall be filled in and sent to the successful Bidder only after evaluation of Bids has been completed, subject to any review by the MCC as required.]


[date]

To: [insert name and address of the Supplier]

Re: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Bid Ref: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

This is to notify you that your Bid dated [insert date] for execution of the above-mentioned Bid Reference for the accepted contract price of [insert amount in words and numbers] [insert name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by the Purchaser.

You are hereby instructed to (a) proceed with supply of the said Goods and Related Services in accordance with the Contract, (b) sign and return the attached Contract, (c) complete and return the Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form  (c) Supplier Self-Certification Form and (d) forward the Performance Security pursuant to GCC Clause 16 within 28 days after receipt of this Notification of Award.


	Signed:

	
In the capacity of:

	[Print Name]




Attachment: Contract


	[bookmark: _Toc63348195]Contract Agreement

	This CONTRACT AGREEMENT (this “Contract”) is made as of the [day] of [month], [year], between [full legal name of the MCA Entity] (the “Purchaser”), on the one part, and [full legal name of Supplier] (the “Supplier”), on the other part.
[Note: If the Supplier consists of more than one entity, the following should be used]
This CONTRACT AGREEMENT (this “Contract”) made as of the [day] of [month], [year], between [full legal name of the MCA Entity] (the “Purchaser”), on the one part, and [full legal name of lead Supplier] (the “Supplier”) in [joint venture / association] with [list names of each joint venture/association entity], on the other part, each of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for all of the Supplier’s obligations under this Contract and is deemed to be included in any reference to the term “Supplier.”
RECITALS
WHEREAS,
(am) The Millennium Challenge Corporation (“MCC”) and the Government of [Country] (the “Government”) have entered into a Millennium Challenge Threshold for Millennium Challenge Account assistance to help facilitate poverty reduction through economic growth in [Country] on [insert date] (the “Threshold”) in the amount of approximately [insert amount] (“MCC Funding”). The Government, acting through the Purchaser, intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of MCC Funding to eligible payments under this Contract. Payments made under this Contract will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the Threshold and related documents, including restrictions on the use, and conditions to disbursement, of MCC Funding. No party other than the Government and the Purchaser shall derive any rights from the Threshold or have any claim to the proceeds of MCC Funding; and
(an) The Purchaser invited bids for the provision of certain goods and related services identified in this Contract and has accepted a bid by the Supplier for the supply of those goods and related services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.
NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:
(ao) In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as set forth in this Contract, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Related Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of this Contract.
(ap) Subject to the terms of this Contract, the Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Related Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price (as defined below) or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of this Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Contract.
IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed in accordance with the laws of [country] on the day, month and year first indicated above.

	For [full legal name of the Purchaser]:
	For [full legal name of the Supplier]:

	
Signature
	
Signature

	
Name
	
Name

	
Witnessed By
	
Witnessed By



[Note: If the Supplier consists of more than one entity, all these entities should appear as signatories, e.g., in the following manner:]

For and on behalf of each of the Members of the Supplier

[Name of Member]

	
[Authorized Representative]

[Name of Member]

	
[Authorized Representative]






	[bookmark: _Toc63348196]Section VII. General Conditions of Contract

	1. [bookmark: _Toc63348197]Definitions
	1.1 [bookmark: _2lfnejv]Capitalized terms used in this Contract and not otherwise defined have the meanings given such terms in the Threshold or related document. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:
(a) “Acceptance” means the acceptance by the Purchaser of the Goods and Related Services (or any portion of the Goods where the Contract provides for acceptance of the Goods in parts), in accordance with GCC Clause 46.
(b) “Applicable Law” has the meaning given the term in the SCC.
(c) [bookmark: _10kxoro]“Associate” means any entity that is a member of the Association that forms the Supplier. A Subcontractor is not an Associate.
(d) “Association” or “association” or “Joint Venture” or “joint venture” means an association of entities that forms the Supplier, with or without a legal status distinct from that of its members.
(e) “Bid” means the bid for the provision of the Goods and the Related Services submitted by the Supplier and accepted by the Purchaser and that forms an integral part of this Contract.
(f) “Bidding Document” has the meaning given the term in the SCC.
(g) “Threshold” has the meaning given the term in the recital clauses to the Contract Agreement.
(h) “Completion” means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.
(i) “Contract” means this agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, to provide the Goods and Related Services and consists of the documents listed in GCC Sub-Clause 2.7, as the same may be amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms of this agreement.
(j) “Contract Price” means the price to be paid for the provision of the Goods and Related Services, in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 13.1.
(k) “day” means a calendar day.
(l) “Delivery” means the transfer of ownership of the Goods from the Supplier to the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.
(m) “EHS” has the meaning given the term in GCC Sub-Clause 20.1
(n) “Eligible Countries” has the meaning given such term in GCC Sub-Clause 7.1.
(o) [bookmark: _3kkl7fh]“Final Destination” has the meaning given the term in the SCC.
(p) "Force Majeure" has the meaning given the term in GCC Clause 33.1. 
(q) “GCC” means these General Conditions of Contract.
(r) “Goods” means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under this Contract.
(s) “Government” has the meaning given the term in the recital clauses to the Contract Agreement.
(t) “IFC Performance Standards” means the International Finance Corporation’s Performance Standards on Environmental and Social Sustainability.
(u) “MCA Country” has the meaning given the term in the SCC.
(v) “MCC” has the meaning given the term in the recital clauses to this Contract.
(w) “MCC Funding” has the meaning given the term in the recital clauses to this Contract.
(x) “MCC Program Procurement Guidelines” means the Millennium Challenge Corporation Program Procurement Guidelines posted on the MCC Website, as may be amended from time to time.
(y) “Notification of Award” means the notice sent from the Purchaser to the Supplier notifying the Supplier that it was the successful bidder and that its Bid had been accepted and that forms an integral part of this Contract.
(z) “Party” means the Purchaser or the Supplier, as the case may be, and “Parties” means both of them.
(aa) ‘Primary Suppliers’ means any person or legal entity who provides goods or materials essential for the contract
(ab) “Purchaser” has the meaning given the term in the in the SCC.
(ac) “Related Services” means the services incidental to the supply of the Goods, such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other similar obligations of the Supplier under this Contract.
(ad) “SCC” means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented.
(ae) “Schedule of Requirements” means the Schedule of Requirements (including the technical requirements) set forth in Section V of the Bidding Document.
(af) “Subcontractor” means any person or entity to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier in accordance with the terms of this Contract.
(ag) “Supplier” has the meaning given the term in the initial paragraph to this Contract.
(ah) “Tax” and “Taxes” have the meanings given the terms in the Threshold or related agreement.
(ai) “Trafficking in Persons” has the meaning given in GCC Clause 35.

	2. [bookmark: _Toc63348198]Interpretation and General Matters
	2.1 Unless otherwise indicated, throughout this Contract:
(a) “confirmation” means confirmation in writing;
(b) “in writing” means communicated in written form (e.g., by mail, e-mail, or facsimile) delivered with proof of receipt;
(c) except where the context requires otherwise, words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular; 
(d) the feminine means the masculine and vice versa; and
(e) the headings are for reference only and shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of this Contract

	Incoterms
	2.2 Unless inconsistent with any provision of this Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of the Parties thereunder shall be as prescribed by the current edition of Incoterms as specified in the SCC. Incoterms are the international rules for interpreting trade terms published by the International Chamber of Commerce, 38 Cours Albert 1er, 75008 Paris, France.

	Entire Agreement
	2.3 This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the Parties made prior to the date of this Contract. No agent or representative of either Party has the authority to make, and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth in this Contract.

	Amendment
	2.4 The following shall apply with respect to any amendment or other variation of this Contract.
(a) No amendment or other variation of this Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to this Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each Party to this Contract.
(b) The prior written consent of MCC is required in the case of any amendment or other variation of this Contract that (i) increases the original contract value of the Contract by more than ten percent (10%), or by three percent (3%) thereafter, or (ii) extends the original Contract duration by twenty-five percent (25%) or more.

	Waivers, Forbearance, Etc.
	2.5 The following shall apply with respect to any waivers, forbearance, or similar action taken under this Contract. 
(a) Any waiver of a Party’s or MCC’s rights, powers, or remedies under this Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the Party (or MCC) granting such waiver, and must specify the terms under which the waiver is being granted.
(b) No relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either Party or MCC, as the case may be, in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of this Contract or the granting of time by either Party or MCC to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that Party or MCC under this Contract, neither shall any waiver by either Party or MCC of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.

	Severability
	2.6 If any provision or condition of this Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of this Contract.

	Documents Making Up This Contract
	2.7 [bookmark: _3c9z6hx]The following documents are deemed to form an integral part of this Contract and shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
(a) the Agreement consisting of the initial paragraphs, recitals and other clauses set forth immediately prior to the GCC and including the signatures of the Purchaser and the Supplier;
(b) the SCC and Annex A to this Contract;
(c) the GCC;
(d) the Notification of Award;
(e) the Supplier’s Bid;
(f) the Specifications;
(g) the Drawings;
(h) the Schedule of Requirements; and
(i) any other document listed in the SCC as forming part of this Contract.

	3. [bookmark: _Toc63348199]Fraud and Corruption Requirements
	3.1 MCC requires that the Purchaser and any other beneficiaries of MCC Funding, including Bidders, Suppliers, contractors and Subcontractors under any MCC-funded contracts, observe the highest standards of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts.
MCC’s Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations (“MCC’s AFC Policy”) is applicable to all procurements and contracts involving MCC Funding and can be found on the MCC website. MCC’s AFC Policy requires that companies and entities receiving MCC funds acknowledge notice of MCC’s AFC Policy and certify to the MCA Entity that they have acceptable commitments and procedures in place to address the potential for fraudulent and corrupt practices. 
Any entity receiving an award (including, but not limited to, both contracts and grants) of MCC Funding of over $500,000 will be required to certify to the MCA Entity that they will adopt and implement a code of business ethics and conduct within 90 days of contract award. Such entity will also include the substance of this clause in subcontracts that have a value in excess of EUR €500,000. Information regarding the establishment of business ethics and conduct programs can be obtained from numerous sources, including but not limited to: 
http://www.oecd.org/corruption/Anti-CorruptionEthicsComplianceHandbook.pdf; 
https://www.cipe.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/CIPE_Anti-Corruption_Compliance_Guidebook.pdf
(a) [bookmark: _4bewzdj]For purposes of the Contract, the terms set forth below are defined as follows:
(i) “coercion” means impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of any party, to improperly influence the actions of a party in connection with the implementation of any contract supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding, including such actions taken in connection with a procurement process or the execution of a contract.
(ii) “collusion” means a tacit or explicit agreement between two or more parties to engage in coercion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or a prohibited practice, including any such agreement designed to fix, stabilize, or manipulate prices or to otherwise deprive the MCA Entity of the benefits of free and open competition.
(iii) “corruption” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of a public official, MCA Entity staff, MCC staff, consultants, or employees of other entities engaged in work supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding, including such work involving taking or reviewing selection decisions, otherwise advancing the selection process or contract execution, or the making of any payment to any third party in connection with or in furtherance of a contract.
(iv) “fraud” means any act or omission, including any misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads or attempts to mislead a party in order to obtain a financial or other benefit in connection with the implementation of any contract supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding, including any act or omission designed to influence (or attempt to influence) a selection process or the execution of a contract, or to avoid (or attempt to avoid) an obligation.
(v) “obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption” means any act taken in connection with the implementation of any contract supported, in whole or in part, with MCC Funding: (a) that results in the deliberate destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence or making false statement(s) to investigators or any official in order to impede an investigation into allegations of coercion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or a prohibited practice; or (b) that threatens, harasses, or intimidates any party to prevent him or her from either disclosing his or her knowledge of matters relevant to an investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or (c) that is intended to impede the conduct of an inspection and/or the exercise of audit rights of MCC and/or the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) responsible for MCC provided under a Threshold, Threshold Program agreement, or related agreements. “ 
(vi) “prohibited practice” means any action that violates Section E (Compliance with Anti-Corruption Legislation), Section F (Compliance with Anti-Money Laundering Legislation), and Section G (Compliance with Terrorist Financing Legislation and Other Restrictions) of the Annex A (Additional Provisions) attached to this  the Contract. 
(b) MCC may cancel any portion or all of the MCC Funding allocated to this Contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Purchaser, the Supplier or any other beneficiary of the MCC Funding were engaged in  coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or prohibited practice during the selection process or the performance of this Contract, or another MCC-funded contract, without the Purchaser, the Supplier or such other beneficiary having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to MCC to remedy the situation.
(c) MCC and the Purchaser may pursue sanction of the Supplier, including declaring the Supplier ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded any MCC-funded contract if at any time either MCC or the Purchaser determines that the Supplier has, directly or through an agent, engaged in any coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or prohibited practices in competing for, or in performance of, this Contract or another MCC-funded contract.
(d)  If the Purchaser or MCC determines that the Supplier, any subcontractor, any of the Supplier’s personnel or any agent or affiliate of any of them has, directly or indirectly, engaged in coercion, collusion, corruption, fraud, obstruction of investigation into allegations of fraud or corruption, or prohibited practices in competing for, or in the performance of, this Contract or another MCC-funded contract, then the Purchaser or MCC may, by notice, immediately terminate the Supplier’s employment under the Contract and the provisions of GCC 36shall apply.
[bookmark: _2qk79lc]

	4. [bookmark: _Toc63348200]Commissions and Fees
	4.1 The Supplier shall disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents, representatives, or commission agents with respect to the selection process or execution and performance of this Contract. The information disclosed must include at the name and address of the agent, representative, or commission agent, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission or fee.

	5. [bookmark: _Toc63348201]Law and Language Governing the Contract
	5.1 This Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the Applicable Law.
5.2 This Contract has been executed in the language(s) specified in the SCC. If the Contract is executed in both the English and another language, the English language version shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

	6. [bookmark: _Toc63348202]Association
	6.1 [bookmark: _jzpmwk]Where the Supplier is a joint venture or other association of more than one person or entity, all of the members of such joint venture or association shall be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for the fulfillment of the provisions of this Contract and designate the member identified in the SCC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Supplier’s rights and obligations toward the Purchaser under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the Purchaser. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture or other association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Purchaser in writing.

	7. [bookmark: _Toc63348203]Eligibility
	7.1 [bookmark: _1j4nfs6]The Supplier and its Subcontractors shall at all times during the term of this Contract have the nationality of a country or territory eligible, in accordance with the Threshold, the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines and Annex A to this Contract (“Eligible Countries”). The Supplier or a Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.
7.2 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under this Contract and financed from the Threshold shall have their origin in Eligible Countries.
7.3 For the purpose of this GCC Clause 7, “origin” means the place where the Goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics, purposes or utility from its underlying components. With respect to the Related Services, the term “origin” means the place from which the Related Services are supplied.

	8. [bookmark: _Toc63348204]Notices
	8.1 [bookmark: _2i9l8ns]Any notice, request or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SCC, or sent by facsimile or electronic e-mail with confirmation, if sent during normal business hours of the recipient Party, unless the giving of notice is otherwise governed by Applicable Law.
8.2 A Party may change its address for receiving notice under this Contract by giving the other Party notice in writing of such change to the address specified in the SCC.

	9. [bookmark: _Toc63348205]Settlement of Disputes
	9.1 [bookmark: _3hej1je]The Purchaser and the Supplier shall use their best efforts to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with this Contract.
9.2 If the Parties fail to resolve any disagreement or dispute in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 9.1 within thirty (30) days after the receipt by one Party of the other Party’s request for such resolution, either Party may submit the disagreement or dispute in accordance with the provisions specified in the SCC.

	10. [bookmark: _Toc63348206]Scope of Supply
	10.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the Schedule of Requirements.
10.2 Unless otherwise stipulated in this Contract, the Goods shall include all such items not specifically mentioned in this Contract but that can be reasonably inferred from this Contract as being required for attaining Delivery and Completion of the Goods and Related Services as if such items were expressly mentioned in this Contract.

	11. [bookmark: _Toc63348207]Delivery and Documents
	11.1 [bookmark: _2vor4mt]The Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the SCC.

	12. [bookmark: _Toc63348208]Supplier’s Responsibilities
	12.1 The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the scope of supply in accordance with GCC Clause 10, and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 11.

	13. [bookmark: _Toc63348209]Contract Price
	13.1 [bookmark: _29yz7q8]The contract price shall be as specified in the SCC (the “Contract Price”) subject to any additions and adjustments thereto, or deductions therefrom, as may be made pursuant to this Contract.
13.2 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods delivered and the Related Services performed under this Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its Bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the SCC.

	14. [bookmark: _Toc63348210]Terms of Payment
	14.1 [bookmark: _393x0lu]This Contract Price, including any advance payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the SCC.
14.2 The Supplier’s request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 11 and upon fulfillment of all other relevant obligations stipulated in this Contract.
14.3 Payments shall be made promptly by, or on behalf of, the Purchaser, no later than thirty (30) days after receipt by the Purchaser of an invoice or request for payment from the Supplier in form and substance satisfactory to the Purchaser.
14.4 The currency in which payments shall be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be those in which the Bid price is expressed.
14.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its respective due date or within the period set forth in the SCC, the Purchaser shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the SCC, for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award.

	15. [bookmark: _Toc63348211]Taxes and Duties
	(a) [bookmark: _488uthg]Except as may be exempted pursuant to the Threshold or another agreement related to the Threshold, available in English at https://millenniumkosovo.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/Kosovo-Threshold-Program-1.pdf, the Supplier, its Subcontractors and their respective personnel may be subject to certain Taxes on amounts payable by the Purchaser under this Contract in accordance with Applicable Law (now or hereinafter in effect). The Supplier, each Subcontractor and their respective personnel shall pay all Taxes levied under Applicable Law. In no event shall the Purchaser be responsible for the payment or reimbursement of any Taxes. In the event that any Taxes are imposed on the Supplier, any Subcontractor or their respective personnel, the Contract Price shall not be adjusted to account for such Taxes.
(b) The Supplier, any Subcontractor and their respective personnel, and their eligible dependents, shall follow the usual customs procedures of the MCA Country in importing property into the MCA Country.
(c) If the Supplier, any Subcontractor or any of their respective personnel, or their eligible dependents, do not withdraw but dispose of any property in the MCA Country upon which customs duties or other Taxes have been exempted, the Supplier, the Subcontractor or such personnel, as the case may be, (i) shall bear such customs duties and other Taxes in conformity with Applicable Law, or (ii) shall reimburse such customs duties and Taxes to the Purchaser if such customs duties and Taxes were paid by the Purchaser at the time the property in question was brought into the MCA Country.
(d) Without prejudice to the rights of the Supplier under this clause, the Supplier, the Subcontractors and their respective personnel will take reasonable steps as requested by the Purchaser or the Government with respect to the determination of the Tax status described in this GCC Clause 15.
(e) If the Supplier is required to pay Taxes that are exempt under the Threshold or a related agreement, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser (or such agent or representative designated by the Purchaser) of any Taxes paid, and the Supplier shall cooperate with, and take such actions as may be requested by the Purchaser, MCC, or either of their agents or representatives, in seeking the prompt and proper reimbursement of such Taxes.
(f) The Purchaser shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that the Government provides the Supplier, the Subcontractors, and their respective personnel the exemptions from taxation applicable to such persons or entities, in accordance with the terms of the Threshold or related agreements. If the Purchaser fails to comply with its obligations under this paragraph, the Supplier shall have the right to terminate this Contract in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 36.1(d).

	16. [bookmark: _Toc63348212]Performance Security
	16.1 [bookmark: _12jfdx2]The Supplier shall, within fourteen (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the due performance of this Contract in the amount specified in the SCC.
16.2 The proceeds of the performance security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier’s failure to complete its obligations in accordance with the terms of this Contract.
16.3 The performance security shall be denominated in the currency of this Contract, and shall be in the form of an unconditional bank guarantee issued by a reputable bank located in Purchaser’s country or in an Eligible Country and in form and substance satisfactory to the Purchaser, substantially in the appropriate form included in Section VIII. Contract Forms, or another type of security specified in the SCC.
16.4 The performance security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of completion of the Supplier’s performance obligations under this Contract, including any warranty obligations.

	17. [bookmark: _Toc63348213]Copyright
	17.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party.

	18. [bookmark: _Toc63348214]Confidential Information
	18.1 [bookmark: _gtnh0h]The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other Party in connection with this Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of this Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under this Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under this GCC Clause 18.
18.2 The Purchaser shall not use documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to this Contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the design, procurement, or other work and services required for the performance of this Contract.
18.3 The obligation of a Party under GCC Sub-Clauses 18.1 and 18.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
(a) the Purchaser or the Supplier needs to share with MCC or other entities participating in the financing of this Contract or otherwise in accordance with the requirements of the Threshold or related documents; 
(b) now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that Party;
(c) can be proven to have been possessed by that Party at the time of disclosure and which information was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other Party; 
(d) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that Party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality; or
(e) is required to be shared to comply with applicable law
18.4 The provisions of GCC Clause 18 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of this Contract.

	19. [bookmark: _Toc63348215]Engagement of Staff and Labor
	19.1 The Supplier shall adopt and implement human resources policies and procedures appropriate to its size and workforce that set out its approach to managing the Supplier’s Personnel. At a minimum, the Supplier shall provide all Supplier’s personnel with documented information that is clear and understandable regarding their rights under all the Applicable Laws regarding labor and any applicable collective agreements, including their rights related to their employment, health, safety, welfare, immigration and emigration upon beginning the working relationship and when any material changes occur.
19.2 The Supplier shall adopt recruitment, hiring and retention practices that support the employment of women and staff from diverse backgrounds.
19.3 The Supplier shall ensure that the employment terms and conditions of migrant workers are not influenced by their migrant status.
19.4 The Supplier shall provide a grievance mechanism for Supplier’s personnel, including Subcontractor staff, if a separate Subcontractor grievance mechanism does not exist, to raise workplace concerns. The Supplier shall inform its personnel of the grievance mechanism at the time of recruitment and make it easily accessible to them. The mechanism should involve review by an appropriate level of management and address concerns promptly, using an understandable and transparent process that provides timely feedback to those concerned, without any retribution to personnel for initiating or participating in a compliant under such a mechanism. The mechanism should also allow for anonymous complaints to be raised and addressed. The mechanism should not impede access to other judicial or administrative remedies that might be available under the Applicable Law or through existing arbitration procedures, or substitute for grievance mechanisms provided through collective agreements.
19.5 Where accommodation or welfare facilities are provided to Supplier’s personnel, the Supplier shall put in place and implement policies on the quality and management of such accommodation and the provision of such welfare facilities (including as regards minimum space, supply of water, adequate sewage and garbage disposal systems, appropriate protection against heat, cold, damp, noise, fire and disease carrying animals, adequate sanitary and washing facilities, separate breastfeeding/pumping facilities, ventilation, cooking and storage facilities and natural and artificial lighting, and all reasonable precautions to maintain the health and safety of the Supplier’s personnel ). The accommodation and welfare facilities shall be provided in a manner consistent with the principles of non-discrimination and equal opportunity. Accommodation arrangements shall not restrict freedom of movement or of association, save that separate facilities should be provided for men and women. Sanitary and washing facilities should be provided in a manner that allow individuals’ privacy and safety. Additional summary guidance may be found here: https://www.mcc.gov/resources/doc/guidance-accommodation-welfare-staff-and-labor


	20. [bookmark: _Toc63348216]Prohibition of Sexual Harassment
	20.1 The Supplier including all Subcontractors and any Personnel, shall prohibit, and refrain from, sexual harassment behaviors directed at Threshold beneficiaries, partners, stakeholders, MCA Entity employees, MCA Entity consultants, MCC personnel, or MCC consultants. Examples of sexual harassment include, but are not limited to, the following behaviors: unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; verbal or physical harassment of a sexual nature; or offensive remarks about a person’s sex, sexual orientation or non-conformity with gender stereotypes. The Supplier shall put in place an incident referral and reporting plan with respect to the provision of the Services to support a safe and respectful work environment, in form and substance satisfactory to the MCA Entity and MCC. The Supplier shall be responsible for ensuring that all Sub-Contractors and Personnel understand and operate in accordance the requirements of this Clause in order to assure a safe, respectful, and harassment free work environment. The MCA Entity may investigate (either directly or through a third party) allegations of sexual harassment as it determines appropriate. The Supplier shall fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the MCA Entity regarding breach of this provision. The Supplier will ensure that any incident of sexual harassment investigated by the MCA Entity has been resolved to the MCA Entity and MCC’s satisfaction.

	21. [bookmark: _Toc63348217]Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	21.1 The MCA Entity adheres to the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment in its employment practices. The MCA Entity expects that the Supplier shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. Personal characteristics include sex, race, nationality, ethnic, social and indigenous origin, religion or belief, disability, age, sexual orientation, and gender identity. The MCA Entity expects that the Supplier shall base its employment decisions on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on the inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination.

	22. [bookmark: _Toc63348218]Subcontracting
	22.1 The Supplier shall obtain prior approval in writing of the Purchaser before entering into a subcontract for the performance of any of its obligations under this Contract. The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under this Contract if not already specified in the Bid. Subcontracting shall in no event relieve the Supplier from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities under this Contract.
22.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7.
22.3 The Supplier shall be responsible for monitoring compliance of Subcontractors and Primary Suppliers to the labor and working conditions outlined in the IFC Performance Standards in force from time to time.
22.4 The Supplier shall monitor its Primary Suppliers on an ongoing basis and, where there is a high risk of significant life-threatening situations related to the Primary Suppliers’ workers, the Supplier will introduce procedures and mitigation measures to ensure that Primary Suppliers are taking steps to prevent or to correct such life-threatening situations. Where a remedy is not possible, the Supplier shall shift its Primary Suppliers from which it obtains supplies for this contract. Additional summary guidance may be found here: https://www.mcc.gov/resources/doc/guidance-on-supply-chains

	23. [bookmark: _Toc63348219]Specifications and Standards
	23.1 The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards, including environmental, health and safety (“EHS”) requirements, specified in the Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods’ and Related Services’ country(ies) of origin.
23.2 The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser.
23.3 Wherever references are made in this Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 32.

	24. [bookmark: _Toc63348220]Packing and Documents
	24.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their Final Destination. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the Goods’ Final Destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
24.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in this Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the SCC, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser.

	25. [bookmark: _Toc63348221]Insurance
	25.1 [bookmark: _4ddeoix]Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Goods supplied under this Contract shall be fully insured, in a freely convertible currency from an Eligible Country, against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms.

	26. [bookmark: _Toc63348222]Transportation
	26.1 [bookmark: _17nz8yj]Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the Incoterms and as specified in the Schedule of Requirements.

	27. [bookmark: _Toc63348223]Inspections and Tests
	27.1 The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the Schedule of Requirements.
27.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods’ Final Destination, or in another place in Purchaser’s country as specified in the SCC. Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 27.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.
27.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 27.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.
27.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.
27.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by this Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under this Contract, provided that the Supplier’s reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to this Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier’s performance of its other obligations under this Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the delivery dates and completion dates and the other obligations so affected.
27.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
27.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications, including EHS requirements. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 27.4.
27.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 27.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under this Contract.

	28. [bookmark: _Toc63348224]Liquidated Damages
	28.1 [bookmark: _ly7c1y]Except as provided under GCC Clause 30, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods or perform the Related Services within the period specified in this Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to any and all of its other remedies under this Contract, or applicable law, deduct from this Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the SCC of this Contract Price for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in the SCC. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate this Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 36.

	29. [bookmark: _Toc63348225]Warranty
	29.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in this Contract.
29.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 23.2, the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, or workmanship that may develop under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the Purchaser’s country.
29.3 Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the Final Destination, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from or loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier. The warranty period for Goods that were repaired or replaced during the warranty period shall be twelve (12) months from the date on which such Goods were repaired or replaced.
29.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.
29.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the SCC, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.
29.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in SCC 29.5; the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier’s risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under this Contract or applicable law.

	30. [bookmark: _Toc63348226]Patent Indemnity
	30.1 [bookmark: _452snld]The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser’s compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 30.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees, officers and directors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney’s fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or existing by reason of:
(a) the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the Purchaser’s country; and 
(b) the sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.
[bookmark: _2k82xt6]Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from this Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to this Contract.
30.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 30.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser’s name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.
30.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.
30.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier’s request, afford all reasonably available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
30.5 The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney’s fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of this Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser.

	31. [bookmark: _Toc63348227]Limitation of Liability
	31.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,
(a) the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser; and
(b) the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under this Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the Purchaser in accordance with GCC Clause 30.

	32. [bookmark: _Toc63348228]Change in Laws and Regulations
	32.1 [bookmark: _1yib0wl]Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, if after the date of the Bidding Document, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or by-law having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in the particular area of the Purchaser’s country where the Final Destination is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the delivery date and/or this Contract Price, then such delivery date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under this Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 13.
32.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of GCC Sub-Clause 32.1, if, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to Taxes that increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Supplier in performing its obligations under this Contract, payments to the Supplier shall not be adjusted. However, the provisions of GCC Sub-Clause 15 (f) shall be applicable in such a situation.

	33. [bookmark: _Toc63348229]Force Majeure
	33.1 For the purposes of this Contract, “Force Majeure” means an event or condition that (a) is not reasonably foreseeable and is beyond the reasonable control of a Party, and is not the result of any acts, omissions or delays of the Party relying on such event of Force Majeure, (or of any third party over whom such Party has control, including any Subcontractor), (b) is not an act, event or condition the risks or consequence of which such Party has expressly agreed to assume under this Contract, (c) could not have been prevented, remedied or cured by such Party’s reasonable diligence, and (d) makes such Party’s performance of its obligations under this Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.
33.2 The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under this Contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as practicable (and in no event later than five (5) days after the occurrence) about the occurrence of an event giving rise to a claim of Force Majeure.
33.3 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall continue to perform its obligations under this Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall take all reasonable measures to minimize and otherwise mitigate the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.
33.4 A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall provide evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give written notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
33.5 Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.
33.6 The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its performance security, liquidated damages, or termination for default (other than in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 36.1(d) if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under this Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.
33.7 In the case of disagreement between the Parties as to the existence or extent of an event of Force Majeure, the matter shall be settled in accordance with GCC Clause 9.

	34. [bookmark: _Toc63348230]Change Orders and Contract Amendments
	34.1 The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of this Contract in any one or more of the following:
(a) drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under this Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;
(b) the method of shipment or packing;
(c) the place of delivery; and 
(d) the Related Services to be provided by the Supplier.
34.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier’s performance of any provisions under this Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in this Contract Price or in the delivery/completion schedule, or both, and this Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier’s receipt of the Purchaser’s change order. All claims for adjustment submitted by the Supplier pursuant to this clause shall include a reasonably detailed explanation of the increased costs and/or time, including reasons for such increases.
34.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in this Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the Parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services

	35. [bookmark: _Toc63348231]Extensions of Time
	35.1 [bookmark: _3ws6mnt]If at any time during performance of this Contract, the Supplier or its Subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 11, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier’s notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its sole discretion extend the Supplier’s time for performance (with or without liquidated damages as determined by the Purchaser in its sole discretion), in which case the extension shall be ratified by the Parties by amendment of this Contract.
35.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 33, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 28, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 35.1.

	36. [bookmark: _Toc63348232]Termination by Purchaser
	36.1 [bookmark: _r2r73f]Termination for Default:
Without prejudice to any other remedies that may be available to it for breach of this Contract, the Purchaser, upon written notice to the Supplier, may terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in sub-paragraphs (a) through (f) of this GCC Sub-Clause 36.1.
(a) If the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser or MCC, fails to perform its obligations relating to the use of funds set out in Annex A. Termination under this provision shall (i) become effective immediately upon delivery of the notice of termination and (ii) require that the Supplier repay any and all funds so misused within a maximum of thirty (30) days after termination.
(b) If the Supplier fails to deliver or perform any or all of the Goods or Related Services within the period specified in this Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 35.1. Termination under this provision shall become effective immediately upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination or such later date as may be specified by the Purchaser. In the event the Purchaser terminates this Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to this sub-paragraph, the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of this Contract to the extent not terminated.
(c) If the Supplier does not remedy a failure to perform any of its other obligation under this Contract (other than a failure contemplated by sub-paragraphs (a) or (b) immediately preceding this sub-paragraph) within thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination or within any further period of time approved in writing by the Purchaser. Termination under this provision shall become effective immediately upon the expiration of the thirty (30) days or such later date as may be specified by the Purchaser.
(d) [bookmark: _3b2epr8]If, as the result of an event of Force Majeure, the Supplier is unable to perform a material portion of its obligations for a period of not less than sixty (60) days. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination or on such later date as may be specified by the Purchaser.
(e) If the Supplier fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC Clause 9. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after deliver of the notice of termination or on such later date as may be specified by the Purchaser.
(f) [bookmark: _1q7ozz1]If the Supplier (or any Subcontractor or any of their respective personnel), in the judgment of the Purchaser, has, directly or through an agent, engaged in coercive, collusive, corrupt, fraudulent, obstructive, or prohibited practices in competing for or in the performance of this Contract. Termination under this provision shall become effective immediately upon delivery of the notice of termination.
36.2 Termination for Insolvency
The Purchaser may at any time terminate this Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes insolvent or bankrupt, and/or fails to exist or is dissolved. Termination under this provision shall become effective immediately upon delivery of the notice of termination or on such other date as may be specified by the Purchaser in such notice of termination. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser.
36.3 Termination for Convenience
(a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, at any time in its sole discretion for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser’s convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under this Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
(b) In the case of any termination in accordance with this GCC Sub-Clause 36.3, the Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier’s receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at this Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:
(i) to have any portion completed and delivered at the terms and prices set forth in this Contract; and/or
(ii) to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.
36.4 Suspension or Termination Related to the Threshold or Applicable Law
(a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may suspend or terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, if the Threshold expires, is suspended or terminates in whole or in part in accordance with the terms of the Threshold. Suspension or termination under this provision shall become effective immediately upon delivery of the notice of suspension or termination, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the notice. If this Contract is suspended pursuant to this GCC Sub-Clause 36.4(a), the Supplier has an obligation to mitigate all expenses, damages and losses to the Purchaser during the period of the suspension.
(b) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may suspend or terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, if suspension or termination is permitted under Applicable Law. Suspension or termination under this provision shall become effective immediately upon delivery of the notice of suspension or termination, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the notice. If this Contract is suspended pursuant to this GCC Sub-Clause 36.4(b) the Supplier has an obligation to mitigate all expenses, damages and losses to the Purchaser during the period of the suspension.

	37. [bookmark: _Toc63348233]Termination by the Supplier
	37.1 [bookmark: _2pcmsun]The Supplier may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Purchaser, in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (e) of this GCC Sub-Clause 37.1.
(a) If the Purchaser fails to pay any money due to the Supplier pursuant to this Contract that is not otherwise subject to dispute pursuant to GCC Clause 9 within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Supplier that such payment is overdue. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination unless the payment that is the subject of such notice of termination is made by the Purchaser to the Supplier within such thirty (30) days.
(b) If, as the result of an event of Force Majeure, the Supplier is unable to perform a material portion of this Contract for a period of not less than sixty (60) days. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination.
(c) If the Purchaser fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to GCC Clause 9. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after deliver of the notice of termination.
(d) [bookmark: _14hx32g]If the Supplier does not receive a reimbursement of any Taxes that are exempt under the Threshold within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the Supplier gives notice to the Purchaser that such reimbursement is due and owing to the Supplier. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination unless the reimbursement that is the subject of such notice of termination is made to the Supplier within such thirty (30) days.
(e) If this Contract is suspended in accordance with GCC Sub-Clauses 36.4(a) or 36.4(b) for a period of time exceeding three (3) consecutive months; provided that the Supplier has complied with its obligation to mitigate in accordance with GCC Sub-Clauses 36.4(a) or 36.4(b) during the period of the suspension. Termination under this provision shall become effective upon the expiration of thirty (30) days after delivery of the notice of termination.

	38. [bookmark: _Toc63348234]Combating Trafficking in Persons
	38.1 MCC, along with other United States Government entities, has adopted a zero-tolerance policy with regard to trafficking in persons (“TIP”). In pursuance of this policy:
(a) Defined Terms. For purposes of the application and interpretation of this Sub-Clause:
(i) The terms “coercion,” “commercial sex act,” “debt bondage,” “employee,” “forced labor,” “fraud,” “involuntary servitude,” and “sex trafficking” have the meanings given such terms in the MCC Counter-Trafficking in Persons Policy (“MCC C-TIP Policy”) and such definitions are incorporated by reference into this Sub-Clause; and
(a) “Trafficking in Persons” means (a) Sex trafficking in which a commercial sex act is induced by force, fraud, or coercion, or in which the person induced to perform such act has not attained 18 years of age; (b) The recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or obtaining of a person for labor or services, through the use of force, fraud, or coercion for the purpose of subjection to involuntary servitude, peonage, debt bondage, or slavery.
Prohibition.
The Supplier, any subcontractor, and any of their respective Personnel shall not engage in any form of Trafficking in Persons during the period of performance of any contract funded, in whole or in part, with MCC funding and must also comply with those prohibitions described in U.S. laws and Execute Orders regarding TIP, including using misleading recruitment practices; charging employees recruitment fees; or destroying, concealing, confiscating, or otherwise denying access by an employee to the employee’s identity documents
(b) Supplier Requirements.
(i) Each Supplier, Contractor, subcontractor, Consultant or Sub-Consultant shall:
a. notify its employees of the MCC C-TIP Policy and of the actions that will be taken against Personnel for violations of this policy. Such actions may include, but are not limited to, removal from the contract, reduction in benefits, or termination of employment; and
b. take appropriate action, up to and including termination, against Personnel or subcontractors or Sub-Consultants that violate the prohibitions set out in this policy.
(ii) Each Supplier shall:
a. certify that it is not engaged in, facilitating, or allowing any activities constituting Trafficking in Persons, or related activities also prohibited under this policy, for the duration of the Contract;
b. provide assurances that activities constituting Trafficking in Persons, or related activities also prohibited under this policy, will not be tolerated on the part of its Personnel, subcontractors or Sub-Consultants (as the case may be), or their respective employees; and
c. acknowledge that engaging in such activities is cause for suspension or termination of employment or of the Contract. 
(iii) A bidder, supplier, contractor, subcontractor, Consultant or Sub-Consultant shall inform the MCA Entity within 24 hours of:
a. any information it receives from any source (including law enforcement) that alleges its Personnel, subcontractor, Sub-Consultant, or the employee of a subcontractor or Sub-Consultant, has engaged in conduct that violates this policy; 
b. and any actions taken against any Personnel, subcontractor, subcontractor/consultant, or the employee of a subcontractor or Sub-Consultant, pursuant to these requirements.

(c) Remedies.
Once the incident has been confirmed and depending on the severity of each case, the MCA Entity will apply remedies, which could include any, all, or any combination of the following: 
(i) the MCA Entity requiring the Supplier to remove the involved Personnel, Sub-Contractor or Sub-Consultant or any of its involved Personnel, or any involved agent or affiliate; 
(ii) the MCA Entity requiring the termination of a subcontract or sub-award;
(iii) suspension of Contract payments until the breach is remedied to the satisfaction of the MCA Entity;
(iv) loss of incentive payment, consistent with the incentive plan set out in the Contract, if any, for the performance period in which the MCA Entity determined non-compliance;
(v) the MCA Entity pursuing sanctions against the Supplier, including declaring the Supplier ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded any MCC-funded contract; 
(vi) termination of the Contract by the MCA Entity for default or cause in accordance with the termination clause of the Contract; and
(vii) the MCA Entity directing the Supplier to provide reasonable financial support or restitution to the victim(s) of any such incident, in each case in accordance with the Supplier’s applicable TIP risk management plan, and/or based on a final judicial or administrative determination issued pursuant to Applicable Law or the findings of an investigation conducted (directly or through a third party) by the MCA Entity.


	39. [bookmark: _Toc63348235]Prohibition of Harmful Child Labor
	39.1 [bookmark: _is565v]The Supplier shall not employ any child to perform any work that is economically exploitative, or is likely to be hazardous to, or to interfere with the child’s education, or to be harmful to the child’s health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral or social development. The Supplier will identify the presence of all persons under the age of eighteen (18). Where Applicable Law does not specify a minimum age, the Supplier shall ensure that children aged below 15 are not employed to perform work under this contract. Where Applicable Law diverges from this specified age standard, the higher age should apply. Children under the age of eighteen (18) will not be employed in hazardous work. All work of persons under the age of eighteen (18) will be subject to an appropriate risk assessment and regular monitoring of health, working conditions, and hours of work.


	40. [bookmark: _Toc63348236]Reimbursable Amounts
	40.1 If this Contract permits re-imbursement of any costs, the re-imbursement amounts shall be limited by and made only in accordance with applicable MCC Cost Principles, which are posted at www.mcc.gov.

	41. [bookmark: _Toc63348237]Accounting, Inspection and Auditing
	41.1 The Supplier shall keep accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the provision of the Goods and Related Services under this Contract, in accordance with the provisions of Annex A and internationally accepted accounting principles.

	42. [bookmark: _Toc63348238]Use of Funds; Compliance with Environmental Guidelines
	42.1 The Supplier shall ensure that its activities do not violate provisions relating to use of funds and environmental guidelines, as set out in Annex A.

	43. [bookmark: _Toc63348239]MCC Conditionalities
	43.1 For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree and understand that the provisions set forth in Annex A reflect certain requirements of the Government and the Purchaser under the terms of the Threshold and related documents that are required to be transferred onto any supplier, Subcontractor or other associate who partakes in procurement or subsequent contracts in which MCC Funding is involved and that, as with the other clauses of this Contract, the provisions of Annex A are binding obligations under this Contract.

	44. [bookmark: _Toc63348240]Flow through Provisions
	44.1 In any sub-contract or sub-award entered into by the Supplier, as permitted by the terms of this Contract, the Supplier shall ensure the inclusion of all the provisions contained in Annex A in any agreement related to such sub-contract or sub-award.

	45. [bookmark: _Toc63348241]Assignment
	45.1 Neither party shall assign the whole or any part of the Contract, or any benefit or interest in or under the Contract, without the consent of the other party; provided that, the Purchaser may assign the whole or any part of the Contract, or any benefit or interest in or under the Contract, to another person or entity of the Government (or another entity designated by the Government) without the consent of the Supplier. The Purchaser shall use commercially reasonable efforts to notify the Supplier as soon as reasonably practicable of any such assignment. Any attempted assignment that does not comply with the terms of this GCC Sub-Clause 45.1 shall be null and void.
45.2 In the event of any assignment of the Contract by the Purchaser in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 45.1:
(a) the Supplier shall obtain a replacement Performance Security according to the terms of GCC Sub-Clause 6.3 in an amount equal to that of the then currently issued Performance Security naming the Purchaser’s assignee as beneficiary, and shall deliver this replacement Performance Security to the Purchaser on or before the date the assignment becomes effective at which time the Purchaser shall concurrently return the original Performance Security to the Supplier;
(b) in the event any advance payment guarantee is outstanding at the time of assignment, the Supplier shall obtain a replacement advance payment guarantee according to the terms of GCC Sub-Clause 4.1 in an amount equal to that of the then currently issued advance payment guarantee naming the Purchaser’s assignee as beneficiary, and shall deliver this replacement advance payment guarantee to the Purchaser on or before the date the assignment becomes effective at which time the Purchaser shall concurrently return the original advance payment guarantee to the Supplier.

	46. [bookmark: _Toc63348242]Acceptance
	46.1 Acceptance shall occur in respect of the Goods and Related Services, when
(a) the Inspections and Tests, as specified in SR5 of Section V. Schedule of Requirements, and/or PCC have been successfully completed; or
(b) the Inspections and Tests as specified in SR5 of Section V. have not been successfully completed or have not been carried out for reasons that are attributable to the Purchaser within the period from the date of Final Completion or any other agreed-upon period as specified in Section V. Schedule of Requirements; or
(c) the Purchaser has put the Goods into use for sixty (60) consecutive days. If the Goods are put into use in this manner, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser and document such use.
46.2 At any time after any of the events set out in GCC Sub-Clause 46.1 have occurred, the Supplier may give a notice to the Purchaser requesting the issue of an Acceptance Certificate, as provided in Section VIII. Contract Forms.
46.3 After consultation with the Purchaser, and within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the Supplier’s notice, the Purchaser shall:
(a) issue an Acceptance Certificate; or 
(b) notify the Supplier in writing of any defect or deficiencies or other reason for the failure of the Inspections and Tests; or
(c) issue the Acceptance Certificate, if the situation covered by GCC Sub-Clause 46.1 (b) arises.
46.4 The Supplier shall use all reasonable endeavors to promptly remedy any defect and/or deficiencies and/or other reasons for the failure of the Inspections and Tests that the Purchaser has notified the Supplier of. Once such remedies have been made by the Supplier, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser, and the Purchaser, with the full cooperation of the Supplier, shall use all reasonable endeavors to promptly carry out retesting of the Goods. Upon the successful conclusion of the Inspections and Tests, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser of its request for Acceptance Certification, in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 46.3. The Purchaser shall then issue to the Supplier the Acceptance Certification in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 46.3(a), or shall notify the Supplier of further defects, deficiencies, or other reasons for the failure of the Inspections and Tests. The procedure set out in this GCC Sub-Clause 46.4 shall be repeated, as necessary, until an Acceptance Certificate is issued.
46.5 If the Goods fail to pass the Inspections and Tests in accordance with SR5 of Section V. Schedule of Requirements, then either:
(a) the Purchaser may terminate the Contract, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 35.1(b); or
(b) if the failure to achieve Acceptance within the specified time period is a result of the failure of the Purchaser to fulfill its obligations under the Contract, then the Supplier shall be deemed to have fulfilled its obligations with respect to the relevant technical and functional aspects of the Contract.
46.6 If within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the Supplier’s notice the Purchaser fails to issue the Acceptance Certificate or fails to inform the Supplier in writing of the justifiable reasons why the Purchaser has not issued the Acceptance Certificate, the Supplier shall send a notification to the Purchaser informing that the fourteen (14) day period has expired. If the Purchaser fails to take action as set forth above in this GCC Sub-Clause 46.6 within three (3) days from the receipt of such notice, the Goods shall be deemed to have been accepted as of the date of the Supplier’s said notice.

	47. [bookmark: _Toc63348243]Contractor Past Performance Reporting System

	47.1 The Supplier acknowledges that during the performance of the Contract the Employer shall maintain a performance record of the Supplier in accordance with MCC’s Contractor Past Performance Reporting System, as described on MCC’s website. The Supplier shall provide timely information or input to, and otherwise respond to requests for input or information


Section VII. General Conditions of Contract


	[bookmark: _Toc63348244]Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract

	The following Special Conditions of Contract (“SCC”) shall supplement and/or amend the General Conditions of Contract (“GCC”). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

	GCC 1.1
	(b) “Applicable Law” means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in Kosovo, as they may be issued and in force from time to time.
(d) “Bidding Document” means the bidding documents for the procurement of the Goods and Related Services; Bid Ref: 2021/003; issued on March 11, 2021.
(m) “Final Destination” is: Prishtina, Kosovo.
(r) “MCA Country” means the country of Kosovo.
(y) “Purchaser” means “Millennium Foundation Kosovo (MFK)”, as well as any successor entity as appointed by the Government.

	GCC 2.2
	The Incoterms edition is “Incoterms 2020” 

	GCC 2.7(i)
	Other documents forming an integral part of this Contract are:
Not applicable

	GCC 5.2
	This Contract shall be executed in the English language.

	GCC 6.1
	The member in charge is the leader of joint venture or association

	GCC 8.1
	For notices that are served on the Purchaser the address shall be:
Millennium Foundation Kosovo  
Att.: TBD
Millennium Foundation Kosovo
Address: The Governmental Building, Migjeni str 21, floor 9, 10000 Prishtina, Kosovo 
E-mail: TBD
For notices that are served on the Supplier the address shall be:
[insert relevant address]

	GCC 8.2
	For changes of address that are served on the Purchaser the address shall be:
Millennium Foundation Kosovo  
Att.: TBD- Millennium Foundation Kosovo 
Address: The Governmental Building, Migjeni str 21, floor 9, 10000 Prishtina, Kosovo
E-mail: TBD
For changes of address that are served on the Supplier the address shall be:
[insert relevant address]

	GCC 9.2
	Disputes arising under this Contract that are not resolved by the Parties in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 9.1, shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the following provisions:

· The dispute shall be finally settled under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce
· The dispute shall be settled by three arbitrators appointed one by each party and the third one from the two appointed arbitrators
· The arbitration shall be conducted in the language defined in GCC 5.2

MCC Right to Observe
MCC has the right to be an observer to any arbitration proceeding associated with this Contract, at its sole discretion, but does not have the obligation to participate in any arbitration proceeding. Whether or not MCC is an observer to any arbitration associated with this Contract, the Parties shall provide MCC with written English transcripts of any arbitration proceedings or hearings and a copy of the reasoned written award within ten (10) days after (a) each such proceeding or hearing or (b) the date on which any such award is issued. MCC may enforce its rights under this Contract in an arbitration conducted in accordance with this provision or by bringing an action in any court that has jurisdiction. The acceptance by MCC of the right to be an observer to the arbitration shall not constitute consent to the jurisdiction of the courts or any other body of any jurisdiction or to the jurisdiction of any arbitral panel.

	GCC 13.1
	The Contract Price is [insert amount] Euros. 

	GCC 13.2
	The prices charged for the Goods delivered and Related Services performed shall not be adjustable.

	[bookmark: _19mgy3x]GCC 14.1
	The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be as follows:
(A) Advance Payment: Fifteen (15) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within thirty (30) days of signing of the Contract, and upon submission of claim and a bank guarantee for equivalent amount valid until the Goods and Related Services are delivered and, in the form, provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Purchaser. 
The Advance Payment shall be repaid in total by the Contractor before the Purchaser issues the Completion Certificate.
(B) Interim Payments: During Implementation Period, which starts with the commencement date and ends with issuance of the Completion Certificate by the Purchaser. 
Interim payments will be made within thirty (30) days after certification of the invoice by the Purchaser. Certification of the Interim Payment request will be made within thirty (30) days after the submission of such request. 
From each Interim Payment the following sums will be deducted:
a. Repayment amortization of Advance Payment: 25% of Advance Payment amount
b. Percentage of Retention Money: 10% of the certified amount of the respective Interim Payment request
Minimum amount for Interim certificates is 1 Mio. EUR. 
Interim Payment requests must fulfill the following conditions: 
· Payment on building level: only fully completed buildings are applicable. This means that all required goods and related services within the building are completed. 
A completed building means that the following requirements from the Schedule of Requirements - SR3 are met:
1. Issued Completion Certificate as proof of a successful executed test program incl. hydrostatic pressure test, commissioning and trail operation test
(C) As built documentation handed over and accepted by the Purchaser/ Implementation Consultant Acceptance certificate payment: 
50% of the Retention money deducted from previous Interim payments. 
Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after certification of the invoice by the Purchaser. Certification of the Payment request will be made within thirty (30) days after the submission of such request.
(D) During Extended Software Support the following payments shall apply:
· 1st Payment shall be paid after 6 months
· 2nd Payment shall be paid at the end of Extended software period
The sum of approved working hours until the issuance of payment request shall be invoiced. 
(E) Final Payment:
The remaining 50% of the Retention money will be paid after a successfully completed trial operation of the metering and billing system with at least 3 billing periods without any problems of the building system passed. Payment request shall be done at the end of the project, after the Warranty period expires and the Contractor has corrected all defects and/ or deficiencies occurred during the Warranty period. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after certification of the invoice by the Purchaser. Certification of the Payment request will be made within thirty (30) days after the submission of such request.

      Purchaser may, based on the requirements of its duration of the threshold program, bilateral agreements between Kosovo and the USA, business reorganization or other needs, transfer or entrust its rights and obligations hereunder to a third party without Contractor’s consent.


	GCC 14.5
	The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the Supplier shall be 26 days. 
The interest rate to be applied in the case of late payments is the Federal Funds Rate as stated on the website
http://www.federalreserve.gov/releases/h15/current/default.htm

	GCC 15. a
	Replace with:
Except as may be exempted pursuant to the Threshold Program Grant or another agreement related to the Threshold Program Grant, available in English at https://millenniumkosovo.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/Kosovo-Threshold-Program-1.pdf, the Supplier, its Subcontractors and their respective personnel may be subject to certain Taxes on amounts payable by the Purchaser under this Contract in accordance with Applicable Law (now or hereinafter in effect). The Supplier, each Subcontractor and their respective personnel shall pay all Taxes levied under Applicable Law. In no event shall the Purchaser be responsible for the payment or reimbursement of any Taxes. In the event that any Taxes are imposed on the Supplier, any Subcontractor or their respective personnel, the Contract Price shall not be adjusted to account for such Taxes.

	GCC 16.1
	The amount of performance security, as a percentage of the Contract Price, shall be in the amount of 10 percent and shall be denominated in the currencies of payment of this Contract, in accordance with their portions of the Contract Price.

	GCC 16.3
	The Performance Security shall be in the form of “unconditional bank guarantee” 

	GCC 23.1
	Responsibility for transportation of the Goods shall be as specified in the Incoterms.

	GCC 24.2
	The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall be: as specified in Schedule of Requirements - SR3 Technical Specifications

	GCC 25.1
	The insurance coverage shall be as specified in the Incoterms.

	GCC 26.1
	Responsibility for transportation of the Goods shall be as specified in the Incoterms.

	GCC 27.2
	The inspections and tests shall be:
As specified in Schedule of Requirements – SR3 Technical Specifications

	GCC 28.1
	The liquidated damage shall be 0.3 percent per week of the Contract Price.
The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be 10 percent of the Contract Price.

	GCC 29.3
	Replace the paragraph GCC 29.3 with:
The warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods and Related Services has been delivered and accepted. The warranty period for Goods that were required or replaced during the warranty period shall be twelve (12) months from the date on which such Goods were repaired or replaced. 

After delivery and acceptance of the Goods, the performance security shall be reduced to 5 percent of the Contract Price to cover the Supplier’s warranty obligations in accordance with Clause GCC 25.3.

	GCC 29.5
	The Supplier shall repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof within 5 days. 
In the event of a software problem of the metering and billing software during the warranty period, the response time for a programmer to deal with the problem may not exceed 2 hours on working days (08:00-16:00). The reaction time is the time from sending the fault message until the programmer arrives at Termokos premises or until the corresponding remote diagnosis is carried out (if the fault allows remote diagnosis).

	GCC 34.2
	The estimated quantities specified are only indicative quantities and do not compel the MFK to buy any of them. The MFK may at its own discretion purchase fewer or more quantities than those estimated quantities per item.

	GCC 46
	Replace the paragraph GCC 46 with:
46 (A) Completion Certificate
1. As soon as the Goods and Related Services, in the opinion of the Contractor have been completed and put in a tight and clean condition as specified in the Schedule of Requirement and Tests as specified in the Schedule or Requirement, excluding minor items not materially affecting the operation, the Contractor shall notify the Purchaser in writing.
2. The Purchaser shall, within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Contractor’s notice under GCC 46 (A) 1 above, either issue a Completion Certificate in the form specified in Section IX Annexes stating that the Goods and Related Services have reached Completion as at the date of the Contractor’s notice under GCC 46 (A) 1 above, or notify the Contractor in writing of any defects and/or deficiencies.
If the Purchaser notifies the Contractor of any defects and/or deficiencies, the Contractor shall then correct such defects and/or deficiencies and shall repeat the procedure described in GCC 46 (A) 1 above.
If the Purchaser is satisfied that the Goods and Related Services or that part thereof have reached Completion, the Purchaser shall, within seven (7) days of receipt of the Contractor’s repeated notice, issue a Completion Certificate stating that the Goods and Related Services have reached Completion as at the date of the Contractor’s repeated notice.
If the Purchaser is not so satisfied, then it shall notify the Contractor in writing of any defects and/or deficiencies within seven (7) days of receipt of the Contractor’s repeated notice, and the above procedure shall be repeated.
46 (B) Acceptance Certificate
1	Acceptance shall occur in respect of the Goods and Related Services, when
a. the Trial Operations, as specified in SR3 and SR5 of Section V. Schedule of Requirements, have been successfully completed; or
b. the Trial Operations as specified in SR 3 and SR5 of Section V Schedule of Requirement have not been successfully completed or have not been carried out for reasons that are attributable to the Purchaser within the period from the date of Completion Certificate or any other agreed-upon period as specified in Section V. Schedule of Requirements; or

2	At any time after any of the events set out in GCC Sub-Clause 46 (B) 1 have occurred, the Supplier may give a notice to the Purchaser requesting the issue of an Acceptance Certificate, as provided in Section IX Annexes.
3	After consultation with the Purchaser, and within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the Supplier’s notice, the Purchaser shall:
a. issue an Acceptance Certificate; or 
b. notify the Supplier in writing of any defect or deficiencies or other reason for the failure during Trial Operation period; or
c. issue the Acceptance Certificate, if the situation covered by GCC Sub-Clause 46 1 (B) 1 (b) arises.

4	The Supplier shall use all reasonable endeavours to promptly remedy any defect and/or deficiencies and/or other reasons for the failure during Trial Operation period that the Purchaser has notified the Supplier of. Once such remedies have been made by the Supplier, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser, and the Purchaser, with the full cooperation of the Supplier, shall use all reasonable endeavours to promptly carry out retesting of the Goods. Upon the successful conclusion of the Trial Operation period, the Supplier shall notify the Purchaser of its request for Acceptance Certification, in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 46 (B) 3. 
The Purchaser shall then issue to the Supplier the Acceptance Certification in accordance with GCC Sub-Clause 46 (B) 3 (a), or shall notify the Supplier of further defects, deficiencies, or other reasons for the failure during Trial Operation period. The procedure set out in this GCC Sub-Clause 46 (B) 4 shall be repeated, as necessary, until an Acceptance Certificate is issued.
5	If the Goods and Services fail to pass Tests and Inspections during the Trial Operation period in accordance with SR3 and SR5 of Section V. Schedule of Requirements, then either:
a. the Purchaser may terminate the Contract, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 36.1(b); or
b. if the failure to achieve Acceptance within the specified time period is a result of the failure of the Purchaser to fulfill its obligations under the Contract, then the Supplier shall be deemed to have fulfilled its obligations with respect to the relevant technical and functional aspects of the Contract.
6	If within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the Supplier’s notice the Purchaser fails to issue the Acceptance Certificate or fails to inform the Supplier in writing of the justifiable reasons why the Purchaser has not issued the Acceptance Certificate, the Supplier shall send a notification to the Purchaser informing that the fourteen (14) day period has expired. If the Purchaser fails to take action as set forth above in this GCC Sub-Clause 46 (B) 6 within three (3) days from the receipt of such notice, the Goods shall be deemed to have been accepted as of the date of the Supplier’s said notice.

	GCC 48.
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract: 
48. Safety Procedures	
48. 1 Within two months after the date of Contract signing, the Supplier shall submit a detailed, site-specific Health and Safety Management Plan (or “HSMP”) based on all relevant health and safety provisions found in the Technical Specifications and Schedules and Applicable Laws to the Supplier. The HSMP must be approved by the Construction Supervision Consultant (CSC) prior to commencement of the execution of the Works.

48.2 Unless the CSC, within 14 days after receiving the Health and Safety Management Plan, gives notice to the Supplier stating the extent to which it does not comply with the Contract, the Supplier shall proceed in accordance with the HSMP.

48.3 The Supplier shall also implement the health and safety requirements of the approved HSMP and comply with instructions issued as a result of periodic inspections to be undertaken as part of the supervisory role required of the CSC.

48.4 The Supplier shall be responsible for ensuring that all Subcontractor’s and Supplier’s Personnel understand and operate in accordance with the principles and requirements of the HSMP.

48.5 If, at any time, the CSC gives notice to the Supplier that all or any portion of the HSMP fails (to the extent stated) to comply with the Contract, the Supplier shall submit a revised HSMP Plan to the CSC in accordance with this Sub-Clause.

48.6 The Supplier shall notify the CSC, the Purchaser within 24 hours or as soon as reasonably possible after the occurrence of any accident which has resulted in damage or loss of property, disability or loss of human life, or which has or which could reasonably be foreseen to have a material impact on the environment and shall submit to the CSC, the Purchaser no later than 7 days after the occurrence of such an event, a summary report thereof.

48.7 The Supplier shall monitor its Primary Suppliers on an ongoing basis and, where there is a high risk of significant life-threatening situations related to the Primary Suppliers’ workers, the Supplier will introduce procedures and mitigation measures to ensure that Primary Suppliers are taking steps to prevent or to correct such life-threatening situations. Where a remedy is not possible, the Supplier shall shift its Primary Suppliers from which it obtains supplies for the Contract.

	GCC 49
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
49. Protection of the Environment and Social Sustainability
49.1 Within two months after the date of Contract signing, the Supplier shall submit a detailed, site-specific Supplier’s Environmental & Social Management Plan (or “C-ESMP”) in respect of safety, security, and management of   environmental and social impacts in respect of safety, security, and protection of the environment based on all relevant provisions found in the Technical Specifications and Schedules and Applicable Laws to the CSC. The C-ESMP must be approved by the CSC prior to commencement of the execution of the Works.

49.2 Unless the CSC, within 14 days after receiving the CESMP, gives notice to the Supplier stating the extent to which it does not comply with the Contract, the Supplier shall proceed in accordance with the C-ESMP.

49.3 If, at any time, the CSC gives notice to the Supplier that all or any portion of the CESMP fails (to the extent stated) to comply with the Contract, the Supplier shall submit a revised C-ESMP to the CSC in accordance with this Sub-Clause.

49.4 The Supplier shall ensure that its activities under the Contract comply with MCC’s Environmental Guidelines (as such term is defined in the Threshold or related agreement, which are available at http://www.mcc.gov), and are not ‘likely to cause a significant environmental, health, or safety hazard’ as defined in such Environmental Guidelines. 

49.5 The Supplier shall implement environmental and social requirements of the approved C-ESMP and instructions issued as a result of periodic inspections to be undertaken as part of the supervisory role required of the CSC, to ensure compliance with the requirements of the C-ESMP.

49.6 The Supplier shall comply with the IFC Performance Standards and the Supplier shall be responsible for ensuring that all subcontractor’s and Supplier’s Personnel understand and operate in accordance with the principles and requirements of the environmental, social, health and safety impacts provisions of this Sub-Clause and that similar standards apply to the subcontractor’s environmental, social, health and safety impacts management systems and environmental and social impacts performance.

49.7 The Supplier’s program submitted, maintained and implemented shall demonstrate clearly the procedures and methods of working that the Supplier and its Subcontractors shall utilize to comply with the environmental and social impacts requirements of this Clause.

49.8 The Supplier shall ensure the adequate disposal of construction and demolition wastes in accordance with MCC’s Environmental Guidelines and Applicable Kosovo Laws.  This includes identifying the presence of hazardous materials and developing plans, approved by the CSC, for proper handling and disposal of such materials.

	GCC 50.
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
50. Gender and Social Inclusion
50. 1 The Supplier shall ensure that its activities under the Contract comply with the MCC Gender Policy [1] and the MFK’s Social and Gender Integration Plan, as relevant to the activities performed under this Contract. The MCC Gender Policy requires that activities funded by MCC specifically address social and gender inequalities to ensure opportunities for the participation and benefit of women and vulnerable groups, as well as to ensure that its activities do not cause significant negative social and gender impacts. MCC also requires equitable opportunities for women and other disadvantaged groups to participate in and benefit from MCC funded activities, including in project-related employment

50.2 The Supplier shall be responsible for ensuring that all subcontractor’s and Supplier’s Personnel understand and operate in accordance with the principles and requirements of the plan.  The Employer understands that the Supplier is not responsible for the social and gender impacts of the Works, to the extent that such impacts result directly from completion of the Works as designed by the Employer.
[1] Available at: https://assets.mcc.gov/guidance/mcc-policy-gender.pdf

	GCC 51.
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
51. Prohibition of Forced or Compulsory Labor
51. 1 The Supplier shall not employ "forced or compulsory labor" in any form. “Forced or compulsory labor" consists of all work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is extracted from an individual under threat of force or penalty.

52.2 The Supplier shall monitor its Primary Suppliers on an ongoing basis in order to identify any significant changes in these suppliers. If new risks or incidents of forced or compulsory labor are identified, the Supplier shall take appropriate steps to remedy them.

	GCC 52.
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
52. Prohibition of Harmful Child Labor
52.1 The Supplier shall not employ any child to perform any work that is economically exploitative, or is likely to be hazardous to, or to interfere with the child’s education, or to be harmful to the child’s health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral or social development. The CSC will identify the presence of all persons under the age of eighteen (18). Where Applicable Law does not specify a minimum age, the CSC shall ensure that children aged below 15 are not employed to perform work under this contract. Where Applicable Law diverges from this specified age standard, the higher age should apply. Children under the age of eighteen (18) will not be employed in hazardous work. All work of persons under the age of eighteen (18) will be subject to an appropriate risk assessment and regular monitoring of health, working conditions, and hours of work.

52.2 The Supplier shall monitor its Primary Suppliers on an ongoing basis in order to identify any significant changes in these suppliers. If new risks or incidents of child labor are identified, the Supplier shall take appropriate steps to remedy them. Additional summary guidance may be found here:. https://www.mcc.gov/resources/doc/guidance-on-supply-chains

	GCC 53.
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
53. Prohibition of Sexual Harassment
53.1 The Supplier including all Sub-Contractors and any Personnel, shall prohibit, and refrain from, sexual harassment behaviors directed at Threshold beneficiaries, partners, stakeholders, MFK employees, MFK consultants, MCC personnel, or MCC consultants. Examples of sexual harassment include, but are not limited to, the following behaviors: unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; verbal or physical harassment of a sexual nature; or offensive remarks about a person’s sex, sexual orientation or non-conformity with gender stereotypes. The Supplier shall put in place an incident referral and reporting plan with respect to the provision of the Works to support a safe and respectful work environment, in form and substance satisfactory to the MFK and MCC. The Consultant shall be responsible for ensuring that all Consultant and Sub-Consultant Personnel understand and operate in accordance the requirements of this Clause in order to assure a safe, respectful, and harassment free work environment. The MFK may investigate (either directly or through a third party) allegations of sexual harassment as it determines appropriate. The Supplier shall fully cooperate with any investigation conducted by the MFK regarding breach of this provision. The Supplier will ensure that any incident of sexual harassment investigated by the MFK has been resolved to the MFK and MCC’s satisfaction.

	GCC 54.
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
54. Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
54.1 The Supplier shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. Personal characteristics include sex, race, nationality, ethnic, social and indigenous origin, religion or belief, disability, age, sexual orientation, and gender identity. The Supplier shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where the relevant labor laws provide further requirements regarding non-discrimination in employment, the Supplier shall comply with such laws in addition to the foregoing. When the relevant labor laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Supplier shall ensure compliance with this Sub-Clause’s requirements by implementing a policy in form and substance satisfactory to the Employer and MCC. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on the inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination.

54.2 The Supplier shall adopt recruitment, hiring and retention practices that support the employment of women and staff from diverse backgrounds.

	GCC 55. 
	Addition to General Conditions of Contract:
55. Grievance Mechanism for Supplier and Subcontractor Personnel
55.1 The Supplier shall provide a grievance mechanism for Supplier Personnel, including Subcontractor staff, if a separate Subcontractor grievance mechanism does not exist, to raise workplace concerns. The Supplier shall inform its Personnel of the grievance mechanism at the time of recruitment and make it easily accessible to them. The mechanism should involve an appropriate level of management and address concerns promptly, using an understandable and transparent process that provides timely feedback to those concerned, without any retribution to Personnel for initiating or participating in a complaint under such mechanism. The mechanism should also allow for anonymous complaints to be raised and addressed. The mechanism should not impede access to other judicial or administrative remedies that might be available under applicable law or through existing arbitration procedures, or substitute for grievance mechanisms provided through collective agreements.


Section VIII. Special Conditions of Contract
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	[bookmark: _Toc63348246]Annex A: Annex of Additional Provisions

	

The additional provisions of Contract can be found on the MCC website: https://www.mcc.gov/resources/doc/annex-of-general-provisions and MUST be printed out and attached to the Contract prior to signature.
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	[bookmark: _Toc63348247]Annex B: Compliance with Sanctions Certification Form 



In satisfaction of clause G of the Additional Provisions at Annex A of the Contract, this form is to be completed by the Bidder upon submission of the Bid and, if selected, by the Supplier initially, within 28 days of receipt of Letter of Acceptance and Contract Agreement, and subsequently thereafter on the last business day prior to the last day of each quarter (March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31) after the signature of an MCC-Funded Contract[footnoteRef:4], for the duration of the Contract.  [4:  “MCC-Funded Contract” is defined as a contract signed by an MCA Entity or Core Team, as opposed to a contract signed by MCC, under the provisions of MCC’s Program Procurement Guidelines, and using funding provided by MCC, through a Compact Program, a Threshold Program, or 609(g) funding.] 


The form is to be submitted to the MCA Entity Procurement Agent at the time of Bid submission, and to the MCA Entity Fiscal Agent thereafter procurement@millenniumkosovo.org and info@bakertillyks.com  with a copy to MCC at sanctionscompliance@mcc.gov. 

For the avoidance of doubt, pursuant to the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines, reporting the provision of material support or resources (as defined below) to an individual or entity on the enumerated lists will not necessarily result in the disqualification of a Bidder or cancellation of the Contract. However, failure to report such provision, or any similar material misrepresentation, whether intentional or without due diligence, would be grounds for disqualifying the Bidder or canceling the Contract, and such Bidder or Supplier may also be subject to potential criminal, civil, or administrative remedies as appropriate under U.S. law.



Instructions for completing this form are provided below.


Full Legal Name of Supplier: _________________________________________________
Full Name and Number of Contract: _____________________________________________
MCA Entity with which Contract Signed: ________________________________________
	· All eligibility verifications have been completed in accordance with Annex A “Additional Provisions,” Paragraph G “Compliance with Terrorist Financing Legislation and Other Restrictions”, including (without limiting the scope of paragraph G): 
· The Bidder or Supplier, to the best of its current knowledge, has not provided, at any time within the previous ten years or currently, any material support or resources (including without limitation, any MCC Funding[footnoteRef:5]), directly or indirectly to, or knowingly permitted any funding (including without limitation any MCC Funding) to be transferred to, any individual, corporation or other entity that the Bidder or Supplier knew, or had reason to know, commits, attempts to commit, advocates, facilitates, or participates in any terrorist activity, or has committed, attempted to commit, advocated, facilitated or participated in any terrorist activity, including, but not limited to, the individuals and entities on the enumerated lists described below (including the Bidder or Supplier itself).  [5:  “MCC Funding” is defined as funding provided by MCC, through a Compact Program, a Threshold Program, or 609(g) funding] 


OR

· All eligibility verifications have been completed in accordance with  Annex A “Additional Provisions,” Paragraph G “Compliance with Terrorist Financing Legislation and Other Restrictions,” and the following results were obtained (information to be provided for each result):

· Name of individual, corporation or other entity:
· Eligibility verification source(s) where listed ineligible:
· Position (if individual), or goods or services provided (if corporation or other entity):
· Estimated value of work performed as of certification date:




I hereby certify that the information provided above is true and correct in all material respects and understand that any material misstatement, misrepresentation or failure to provide the information requested in this certification may be deemed to be “fraud” for purposes of the ITB or Contract, the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines, and other applicable MCC policy or guidance, including MCC’s Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations.
Authorized Signature: __________________________________ Date: _________________
Printed Name of Signatory: ____________________________________________________

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FORM:

The Bidder/Supplier shall perform the following procedures to verify the eligibility of firms, key personnel, subcontractors, vendors, suppliers, and grantees, in accordance with Annex A “Additional Provisions,” Paragraph G “Compliance with Terrorist Financing Legislation and Other Restrictions,” provided below.

The Bidder/Supplier shall verify that any individual, corporation, or other entity that has access to or is (or would be) a recipient of MCC Funding, including Bidder/Supplier staff, consultants, sub-contractors, vendors, suppliers, and grantees, is not listed on any of the following (or, in the case of #4 below, is not a national of, or associated in, any country appearing on such list):

1. System for Award Management (SAM) - https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1
2. World Bank Debarred List -  https://www.worldbank.org/en/projects-operations/procurement/debarred-firms
3. US Government Consolidated Screening List - https://2016.export.gov/ecr/eg_main_023148.asp 
4. US State Sponsors of Terrorism List - https://www.state.gov/j/ct/list/c14151.htm

In addition to these lists, before providing any material support or resources to an individual or entity, the Bidder/Supplier will also consider all information about that individual or entity of which it is aware and all public information that is reasonably available to it or of which it should be aware.  

Documentation of the process takes two forms. The Bidder/Supplier should prepare a table listing each staff member, consultant, sub-contractor, vendor, supplier, and grantee working on the contract, such as the form provided below.

	Name

	Date Checked
	Eligible (Y/N)

	
	SAM
	World Bank Debarred List
	US Government Consolidated Screening List
	US State Sponsors of Terrorism List
	

	Supplier (the firm itself)
	
	
	
	
	

	Staff Member #1
	
	
	
	
	

	Staff Member #2
	
	
	
	
	

	Consultant #1
	
	
	
	
	

	Consultant #2
	
	
	
	
	

	Sub-Contractor #1
	
	
	
	
	

	Sub-Contractor #2
	
	
	
	
	

	Vendor #1
	
	
	
	
	

	Supplier #1
	
	
	
	
	

	Grantee #1
	
	
	
	
	



The Bidder/Supplier should list the date on which the search was conducted using each eligibility verification source, and whether the staff member, consultant, sub-contractor, vendor, supplier, or grantee was determined to be eligible – that is, did not show up on any of the eligibility verification sources.

In addition, as all three lists are searchable databases that return a positive or negative search results page upon submission of a name to be searched, in order to document the eligibility, the Bidder/Supplier should print out and retain for each staff member, consultant, sub-contractor, vendor, supplier, or grantee the search results page for each eligibility verification source, which should read, “Has Active Exclusion? No” (in the case of SAM), “No Matching Records found!” (in the case of World Bank Debarred List), or “No result” (in the case of the US Government Consolidated Screening List).

If an adverse record(s) has/have been found for one or more individuals or entities, including for the Bidder/Supplier itself, the Bidder/Supplier must conduct additional research to determine whether the finding is a “false positive.” If it is a false positive, the Bidder/Supplier will mark the staff member, consultant, sub-contractor, vendor, supplier, or grantee as eligible, and retain the research confirming that eligibility. 

If, on the other hand, any of the Bidder’s/Supplier’s personnel, consultants, sub-contractors, vendors, suppliers, or grantees are found to be ineligible at this stage, the MCA Entity will determine whether it is possible under the circumstances to allow the Bidder/Supplier to make a substitution. This determination will be made on a case by case basis and will require approval by MCC regardless of the estimated value of the proposed contract.

In addition, in accordance with MCC Program Procurement Guidelines P1.A.1.9(d), the Bidder/Supplier must ensure that MCC Funding is not used for goods or services from a country, or from a firm that is organized in or has its principal place of business or a significant portion of its operations in a country, that is subject to sanction or restriction by law or policy of the United States, including U.S. designated State Sponsors of Terrorism (https://www.state.gov/j/ct/list/c14151.htm). 

All of these documents must be retained by the Bidder/Supplier as part of the overall record of the Contract for the duration of the Contract, and for the further period after the contract expiration that is required for document retention under the Contract (typically five years after the expiration date of the Threshold Program or Threshold Program). Access to these documents must be provided to the MCA Entity, MCC, or their designees in accordance with the access provisions of the Contract.

 Annex A “Additional Provisions,” Paragraph G “Compliance with Terrorist Financing Legislation and Other Restrictions”
1. [bookmark: _471acqr]The Contract Party, to the best of its current knowledge, did not provide, within the previous ten years, and will take all reasonable steps to ensure that it does not and will not knowingly provide, material support or resources (as defined below) directly or indirectly to, or knowingly permit any funding (including without limitation MCC Funding) to be transferred to, any individual, corporation or other entity that such Party knows, or has reason to know, commits, attempts to commit, advocates, facilitates, or participates in any terrorist activity, or has committed, attempted to commit, advocated, facilitated or participated in any terrorist activity, including, but not limited to, the individuals and entities (i) on the master list of Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons maintained by the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control, which list is available at www.treas.gov/offices/enforcement/ofac, (ii) on the consolidated list of individuals and entities maintained by the “1267 Committee” of the United Nations Security Council, (iii) on the list maintained on www.sam.gov, or (iv) on such other list as the MCA Entity may request from time to time.  

[bookmark: _2m6kmyk]For purposes of this provision:
a. [bookmark: _11bux6d]“material support and resources” includes currency, monetary instruments or other financial securities, financial services, lodging, training, expert advice or assistance, safe houses, false documentation or identification, communications equipment, facilities, weapons, lethal substances, explosives, personnel, transportation, and other physical assets, except medicine or religious materials. 
b. [bookmark: _3lbifu6]“Training" means instruction or teaching designed to impart a specific skill, as opposed to general knowledge.
c. “Expert advice or assistance" means advice or assistance derived from scientific, technical, or other specialized knowledge.

2. [bookmark: _20gsq1z]The Contract Party shall ensure that its activities under this Agreement comply with all applicable U.S. laws, regulations and executive orders regarding money laundering, terrorist financing, U.S. sanctions laws, restrictive trade practices, boycotts, and all other economic sanctions promulgated from time to time by means of statute, executive order, regulation or as administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the United States Treasury Department or any successor governmental authority, including, 18 U.S.C. Section 1956, 18 U.S.C. Section 1957, 18 U.S.C. Section 2339A, 18 U.S.C. Section 2339B, 18 U.S.C. Section 2339C, 18 U.S.C. Section 981, 18 U.S.C. Section 982, Executive Order 13224, 15 C.F.R. Part 760, and those economic sanctions programs enumerated at 31 C.F.R. Parts 500 through 598 and shall ensure that its activities under the Contract comply with any policies and procedures for monitoring operations to ensure compliance, as may be established from time to time by MCC, the MCA Entity, the Fiscal Agent, or the Bank, as may be applicable. The Contract Party shall verify, or cause to be verified, appropriately any individual, corporation or other entity with access to or recipient of funds, which verification shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures set out in Part 10 of the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines (Eligibility Verification Procedures) that can be found on MCC’s website at www.mcc.gov. The Contract Party shall (A) conduct the monitoring referred to in this paragraph on at least a quarterly basis, or such other reasonable period as the MCA Entity or MCC may request from time to time and (B) deliver a report of such periodic monitoring to the MCA Entity with a copy to MCC.
3. [bookmark: _4kgg8ps]Other restrictions on the Contract Party shall apply as set forth in Section 5.4(b) of the Threshold with respect to drug trafficking, terrorism, sex trafficking, prostitution, fraud, felony, any misconduct injurious to MCC or the MCA Entity, any activity contrary to the national security interests of the United States or any other activity that materially and adversely affects the ability of the Government or any other party to effectively implement, or ensure the effective implementation of, the Program or any Project or to otherwise carry out its responsibilities or obligations under or in furtherance of the Threshold or any Supplemental Agreement or that materially and adversely affects the Program Assets or any Permitted Account.
Section IX. - Contract Annexes

[bookmark: _2zlqixl]
	[bookmark: _Toc63348248]Annex C: Self-Certification Form 



The below self-certification form should be signed by the Supplier as part of the Contract. This self-certification declares that the Supplier will only procure goods and materials essential for the Contract, from suppliers that are free of forced and child labor and provide their direct workers with a safe and hygienic workplace.
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
As stipulated in the Contract in Sections 19.3 and 22.3, the Supplier must comply with the International Finance Corporation’s Performance Standards on Environmental and Social Sustainability regarding labor standards and protections. In turn, the Supplier must ensure that their Primary Suppliers, i.e., any person or legal entity who provides goods or materials essential for the Contract, do not use forced and child labor in the production of such goods and materials, and provide the Supplier’s direct workers with a safe and hygienic workplace. 

In acknowledgement of my understanding, I certify that with respect to this contract:
· I understand the requirements in the contract with the MCA-[Name of Country].
· [Name of Supplier] will ensure that all operations undertaken are done in accordance with the IFC Performance Standards, as described in Sections 19.3 and 22.3 of the Contract.
· [Name of Supplier] does not and will not use forced or child labor, and provides workers with a safe and hygienic workplace. 
· [Name of Supplier] does not and will not procure material or goods from suppliers that employ forced or child labor. 
· [Name of Supplier] will only procure material or goods from suppliers that provide a safe and hygienic working place for all laborers. 
· [Name of Supplier] has a system in place to monitor our suppliers, identify any new and emerging risks. This system also allows [Name of Supplier] to effectively remedy any risks.
· Where remedy is not possible for any new risks or incidents, [Name of Supplier] commits to severing ties with these suppliers. 
Record any exceptions to the above here:
	




 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND CORRECT IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECTS AND UNDERSTAND THAT ANY MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT, MISREPRESENTATION OR FAILURE TO PROVIDE THE INFORMATION REQUESTED IN THIS CERTIFICATION MAY BE DEEMED A “FRAUD” FOR PURPOSES OF THE CONTRACT. I CONFIRM THAT I DULY REPRESENT [NAME OF SUPPLIER] AND HAVE THE LEGAL AUTHORITY TO SIGN. 
Authorized Signature: __________________________________ Date: _________________
Printed Name of Signatory: 
______________________________________________________________________



	[bookmark: _Toc63348249]Annex D: Code of Business Ethics and Conduct Certification Form 



In satisfaction of clause 3.1 of the General Conditions of Contract, this form is to be completed by the Supplier and submitted for any MCC-Funded Contract with a value in excess of $500,000. This form is to be completed by the Supplier and submitted together with the signed Contract Agreement. 

If the original certification, submitted along with the signed Contract Agreement, is that the Supplier “has adopted and implemented,” then further submissions will not be required, except as applicable for subcontracts. If the original certification is that the Supplier “will adopt and implement,” then a subsequent submission will be required when the Supplier “has adopted and implemented.”

The form is to be submitted to the MCA Entity Procurement Agent [email address for MCA Entity Procurement Agent to be inserted here], together with a copy of the Supplier’s code of business ethics and conduct.

If the Supplier is a joint venture or association, each Member of the joint venture or association must complete and submit this form, together with their respective code of business ethics and conduct. 

Code of Business Ethics and Conduct Certification Form

Full Legal Name of Supplier: _________________________________________________
Full Name and Number of Contract: _____________________________________________
MCA Entity with which Contract Signed: ________________________________________

As stipulated in GCC 3.1 of the Contract, the Supplier must certify to the MCA Account Entity that they will adopt and implement a code of business ethics and conduct within ninety (90) days of Contract award. The Supplier must also include the substance of this clause in subcontracts that have a value in excess of  €500,000. 

In satisfaction of this requirement, pursuant to GCC 3.1 of the Contract, I certify that with respect to this contract:
· [Name of Supplier] has adopted and implemented a code of business ethics and conduct, a copy of which is hereby submitted together with this certification form.

OR

· [Name of Supplier] will adopt and implement a code of business ethics and conduct within ninety (90) days after the date of Contract signature. [Name of Supplier] will resubmit this certification, together with a copy of the Consultant’s code of business ethics and conduct, when such code has been adopted and implemented.

· [Name of Supplier] will include the substance of this requirement in all subcontracts having a value in excess of $500,000 and will forward all resulting certifications to [Name of MCA Entity]. 

I hereby certify that the information provided above is true and correct in all material respects and understand that any material misstatement, misrepresentation or failure to provide the information requested in this certification may be deemed “fraud” for purposes of the Contract between the Supplier and the MCA Entity, the MCC Program Procurement Guidelines, and other applicable MCC policy or guidance, including MCC’s Policy on Preventing, Detecting and Remediating Fraud and Corruption in MCC Operations.
Authorized Signature: __________________________________ Date: _________________
Printed Name of Signatory: ____________________________________________________ 




	[bookmark: _Toc63348250]Annex E: Securities 








	[bookmark: _Toc63348251]Annex E1: Bank Guarantee for Performance Security

	
[The bank, as requested by the Supplier, shall fill in the form in accordance
with the instructions indicated]

Bank’s Branch or Office: [insert complete name and address of Guarantor]

Beneficiary: [insert complete name and address of the Purchaser]

Date: [insert date of issue]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [insert Performance Guarantee number]

We have been informed that [insert complete name of Supplier] (hereinafter called the “Supplier”) has entered into Contract No. [insert number] dated [insert day and month], [insert year] with [name of MCA Entity] (hereinafter called “the Beneficiary”), for the supply of [description of Goods and Related Services provided] (hereinafter called the “Contract”).

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a Performance Guarantee is required.

At the request of the Supplier, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum(s) not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount(s) in words and figures] upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary’s first demand in writing declaring the Supplier to be in default under the Contract, without cavil or argument, or need to prove or to show grounds or reasons for the Beneficiary’s demand of the sum specified therein.

This Guarantee shall expire no later than the [insert number] day of [insert month] [insert year] [note- expiration date to be calculated based on the provisions of GCC Sub-Clause 15.4], and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

[Issuing Bank to delete whichever is not applicable] We confirm that [we are a financial institution legally authorized to provide this guarantee in the Beneficiary’s country] [OR] [we are a financial institution located outside the Beneficiary’s country but have a correspondent financial institution located in the Beneficiary’s country that will ensure the enforceability of this guarantee. The name of our correspondent bank and contact information is as follows: [provide name, address, phone number, and email address]].


	For the Bank
	For the Supplier

	

Signature
	

Signature

	In the capacity of:
	In the capacity of:

	Date:
	Date:







	[bookmark: _Toc63348252]Annex E2: Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment Security



[The bank, as requested by the Supplier, shall fill in the form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

Bank’s Branch or Office: [insert complete name and address of Guarantor]

Beneficiary: [insert complete name and address of Purchaser]

Date: [insert date of issue]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [insert Advance Payment Guarantee number]

We have been informed that [insert complete name of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier") has entered into Contract No. [insert number] dated [insert day and month], [insert year] with [name of MCA Entity] (hereinafter called “the Beneficiary”), for the supply of [description of Goods and Related Services provided] (hereinafter called "the Contract").
Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum [insert amount(s) in words and figures] is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.
At the request of the Supplier, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum(s) not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount(s) in words and figures] upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary’s first demand supported by the Beneficiary’s statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating:
(a) that the Supplier has failed to repay the advance payment, in full or in part, in accordance with the terms of the Contract, and
(b) the amount of the advance payment the Supplier has failed to repay.
It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Supplier on its account number [insert number] at [insert name and address of Bank].
The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Supplier as indicated in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that [insert percentage] percent of the Contract Price has been certified for payment, or on the [insert day] day of [insert month], [insert year], whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.
[Issuing Bank to delete whichever is not applicable] We confirm that [we are a financial institution legally authorized to provide this guarantee in the Purchaser’s country] [OR] [we are a financial institution located outside the Purchaser’s country but have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser’s country that will ensure the enforceability of this guarantee. The name of our correspondent bank and contact information is as follows: [provide name, address, phone number, and email address]].
This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded and as may otherwise be stated above.


	For the Bank
	For the Supplier

	

Signature
	

Signature

	In the capacity of:
	In the capacity of:

	Date:
	Date:
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Date: [insert date]

CB No: [insert CB number]

Contract:	 [insert name of and number of Contract]

To: [insert name and address of Supplier]

Dear Sir or Madam:


Pursuant to GCC Clause 42. B (Acceptance) of the Contract entered into between yourselves and the [insert name of Purchaser] (hereinafter the “Purchaser”) dated [insert date of Contract], relating to the [insert brief description of the Goods and Related Services], we hereby notify you the Goods and Related Services (identified below) successfully completed the trial operation. In accordance with the terms of the Contract, the Purchaser hereby takes over the Goods (identified below), together with the responsibility for care and custody and the risk of loss thereof on the date mentioned below.

1. Description of the Goods and Related Services: [insert description]
2. Date of Acceptance: [insert date]

This letter shall not relieve you of your remaining performance obligations under the Contract nor of your obligations during the Warranty Period.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser


Signed:		
Date:	
in the capacity of: [state “Project Manager” or higher level authority in the Purchaser’s organization]
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Date: [insert date]

CB No: [insert CB number]

Contract:	 [insert name of and number of Contract]

To: [insert name and address of Supplier]

Dear Sir or Madam:


Pursuant to GCC Clause 42. A (Completion) of the Contract entered into between yourselves and the [insert name of Purchaser] (hereinafter the “Purchaser”) dated [insert date of Contract], relating to the [insert brief description of the Goods and Related Services], we hereby notify you the Goods and Related Services (identified below) successfully completed the implementation period. In accordance with the terms of the Contract, the Purchaser hereby takes over the Goods (identified below), together with the responsibility for care and custody and the risk of loss thereof on the date mentioned below.

1. Description of the Goods and Related Services: [insert description]
2. Date of Acceptance: [insert date]

This letter shall not relieve you of your remaining performance obligations under the Contract nor of your obligations during the Trial Operation Period and Warranty Period.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser


Signed:		
Date:	
in the capacity of: [state “Project Manager” or higher level authority in the Purchaser’s organization]
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Preamble

		Preamble

		1.		The Price Schedule for Goods and Services shall be read in conjunction with the Instructions to Bidders, General and Special Conditions of Contract, Technical Specifications, and Drawings.

		2.		The quantities given in the Price Schedule for Goods and Services are estimated and provisional, and are given to provide a common basis for bidding.  The basis of payment will be the actual quantities of work ordered and carried out, as measured by the Supplier and verified by the Implementation Consultant and valued at the rates and prices bid in the Price Schedule for Goods and Services, where applicable, and otherwise at such rates and prices as the Implementation Consultant may fix within the terms of the Contract.

		3.		The rates and prices bid in the priced Price Schedule for Goods and Services shall, except insofar as it is otherwise provided under the Contract, include all works stated in Section V. Schedule of Requirements together with all general risks, liabilities, and obligations set out or implied in the Contract.

		4.		A rate or price shall be entered against each item in the Price Schedule for Goods and Services, whether quantities are stated or not.  The cost of Items against which the Supplier has failed to enter a rate or price shall be deemed to be covered by other rates and prices entered in the Price Schedule for Goods and Services.

		5.		The whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the Items provided in the priced Price Schedule for Goods and Services, and where no Items are provided, the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among the rates and prices entered for the related Items of Work.

		6.		General directions and descriptions of work and materials are not necessarily repeated nor summarised in the Price Schedule for Goods and Services.  References to the relevant sections of the Contract documentation shall be made before entering prices against each item in the priced Price Schedule for Goods and Services.

		7.		Any arithmetic errors in computation or summation will be corrected by the Purchaser as follows:
(a) where there is a discrepancy between amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
(b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the total amount derived from the multiplication of the unit price and the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser, there is an obviously gross misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which event the total amount as quoted will govern and the unit rate will be corrected.

		8.		Delivered Goods and installation materials shall be supplied in accordance with Incoterms DPU (Delivered at place unloaded): Includes unloading by the supplier on the site, “Place of Destination” is construction site in Prishtina, the Purchaser shall be responsible for import customs clearance, import duties and applicable local taxes.





Goods and Services

				Price schedule for Goods and Related Services

				Green fields to be filled by Bidder														Rate skilled worker  [€/hour]

																		Rate skilled helper  [€/hour]

				 Item
No		Description of Goods + Description of Related Services
(see chapter 4.7.3 in Section V. Schedule of Requirements)		Reference		Country of origin		Quantity MFK		Unit price								Price

														Goods		Installation materials		Works		Subtotal

														see chapter
4.7.3.1		see chapter
4.7.3.2		see chapter
4.7.3.3

														EUR/pcs		EUR/pcs		EUR/pcs		EUR/pcs

				1		2						3		4		5		6		7=4+5+6		8=3*7

				1		Heat distribution equipment (DH substation room, riser pipes)																0 €

		5		1.5		Heat circulation pump - DN40		6.2.1				25 pcs								0 €		0 €

		6		1.6		Heat circulation pump - DN50						50 pcs								0 €		0 €

		7		1.7		Heat circulation pump - DN65						40 pcs								0 €		0 €

		8		1.8		Heat circulation pump - DN80						20 pcs								0 €		0 €

		12		1.12		Balancing valve - DN25		6.2.2				10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		13		1.13		Balancing valve - DN32						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		14		1.14		Balancing valve - DN40						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		15		1.15		Balancing valve - DN50						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		16		1.16		Balancing valve - DN65						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		17		1.17		Balancing valve - DN80						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		18		1.18		Balancing valve - DN100						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		21		1.21		Differential pressure control valve - DN25		6.2.3				10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		22		1.22		Differential pressure control valve - DN32						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		23		1.23		Differential pressure control valve - DN40						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		24		1.24		Differential pressure control valve - DN50						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		25		1.25		Differential pressure control valve - DN65						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		26		1.26		Differential pressure control valve - DN80						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		27		1.27		Differential pressure control valve - DN100						10 pcs								0 €		0 €

		30		1.30		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN25*		6.3.2				5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		31		1.31		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN32*						5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		32		1.32		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN40*						5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		33		1.33		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN50*						5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		34		1.34		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN65*						5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		35		1.35		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN80*						5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		36		1.36		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN100*						5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		37

				2		Heat control equipment (apartment distribution pipe)								`								0 €

		1		2.1		Thermostatic radiator valve (2-way) with Thermostatic header (based on the technical offer of the bidder)		6.3.1.3 and 6.3.1.5 or 6.3.1.6				72,500 pcs								0 €		0 €

		2		2.2		Thermostatic radiator valve (3-way)*		 6.3.1.4				50 pcs								0 €		0 €

		4

				3		Heat metering/ meter reading collection equipment																0 €

		1		3.1		Heat meter (additional cost ultrasonic version)		6.4.2				4,300 pcs								0 €		0 €

		2		3.2		Heat cost allocators		6.4.3				51,000 pcs								0 €		0 €

		3		3.3		Parametriziation equipment		6.4.4				5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		4		3.4		Data collection/ transmission gateway		7.1.1				800 pcs								0 €		0 €

		5		3.5		Handheld unit (walk-by read-out unit)		7.1.2				5 pcs								0 €		0 €

		6

				4		Heat metering and billing system																0 €

		1		4.1		Central metering and billing server station		7.1.3				1 pcs								0 €		0 €

		2		4.2		Printing and enveloping machine 		7.1.4				1 pcs								0 €		0 €

		3		4.3		Client PC workstation		7.1.5				4 pcs								0 €		0 €

		4		4.4		Metering and billing software		7.2				1 pcs								0 €		0 €

				5		Support services																0 €

		1		5.1		Extended software support		10				500 hr								0 €		0 €



						Total Bid price excl. VAT																0 €

						VAT				18%												0 €

						Total Bid Price incl. VAT																0 €

				NOTE:
*   this equipment is only needed in 1-pipe heating system configurations (if no 1-pipe system is identified in any of the buildings, then these positions are going to be cancelled)
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SR1 - Goods

				SR1 - List of Goods and Delivery Schedule (Annex 3)



				1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8

				 Item
No		Description of Goods + Description of Related Services
(see chapter 4.7.3 in Section V. Schedule of Requirements)		Quantity		Physical unit		Final Destination as specified in BDS ITB 15.6 		Purchaser’s Required Delivery Date (as per Incoterms)				Bidder’s offered Delivery date

														Earliest Delivery Date		Latest Delivery Date 



				1		Heat distribution equipment (DH substation room, riser pipes)

		5		1.5		Heat circulation pump - DN40		25 pcs

		6		1.6		Heat circulation pump - DN50		50 pcs

		7		1.7		Heat circulation pump - DN65		40 pcs

		8		1.8		Heat circulation pump - DN80		20 pcs

		12		1.12		Balancing valve - DN25		10 pcs

		13		1.13		Balancing valve - DN32		10 pcs

		14		1.14		Balancing valve - DN40		10 pcs

		15		1.15		Balancing valve - DN50		10 pcs

		16		1.16		Balancing valve - DN65		10 pcs

		17		1.17		Balancing valve - DN80		10 pcs

		18		1.18		Balancing valve - DN100		10 pcs

		21		1.21		Differential pressure control valve - DN25		10 pcs

		22		1.22		Differential pressure control valve - DN32		10 pcs

		23		1.23		Differential pressure control valve - DN40		10 pcs

		24		1.24		Differential pressure control valve - DN50		10 pcs

		25		1.25		Differential pressure control valve - DN65		10 pcs

		26		1.26		Differential pressure control valve - DN80		10 pcs

		27		1.27		Differential pressure control valve - DN100		10 pcs

		30		1.30		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN25*		5 pcs

		31		1.31		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN32*		5 pcs

		32		1.32		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN40*		5 pcs

		33		1.33		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN50*		5 pcs

		34		1.34		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN65*		5 pcs

		35		1.35		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN80*		5 pcs

		36		1.36		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN100*		5 pcs

		37		1.37

				2		Heat control equipment (apartment distribution pipe)

		1		2.1		Thermostatic radiator valve (2-way) with Thermostatic header (based on the technical offer of the bidder)		72,500 pcs

		2		2.2		Thermostatic radiator valve (3-way)*		50 pcs

		4		2.4

				3		Heat metering/ meter reading collection equipment

		1		3.1		Heat meter (additional cost ultrasonic version)		4,300 pcs

		2		3.2		Heat cost allocators		51,000 pcs

		3		3.3		Parametriziation equipment		5 pcs

		4		3.4		Data collection/ transmission gateway		800 pcs

		5		3.5		Handheld unit (walk-by read-out unit)		5 pcs

		6		3.6

				4		Heat metering and billing system

		1		4.1		Central metering and billing server station		1 pc

		2		4.2		Printing and enveloping machine 		1 pc

		3		4.3		Client PC workstation		4 pc

		4		4.4		Metering and billing software		1 pc

		5		4.5

						The supplier is expected to execute the contract in its entirety in 12 months from the contract signing date. 
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SR2 - Services

				SR2 - List of Related Services and Completion Schedule (Annex 3)



				1		2		3		4		5		6

				 Item
No		Description of Goods + Description of Related Services
(see chapter 4.7.3 in Section V. Schedule of Requirements)		Quantity		Physical unit		Place where Services shall be performed		Final Completion Date(s) of Services





				1		Heat distribution equipment (DH substation room, riser pipes)

		5		1.5		Heat circulation pump - DN40		25 pcs

		6		1.6		Heat circulation pump - DN50		50 pcs

		7		1.7		Heat circulation pump - DN65		40 pcs

		8		1.8		Heat circulation pump - DN80		20 pcs

		12		1.12		Balancing valve - DN25		10 pcs

		13		1.13		Balancing valve - DN32		10 pcs

		14		1.14		Balancing valve - DN40		10 pcs

		15		1.15		Balancing valve - DN50		10 pcs

		16		1.16		Balancing valve - DN65		10 pcs

		17		1.17		Balancing valve - DN80		10 pcs

		18		1.18		Balancing valve - DN100		10 pcs

		21		1.21		Differential pressure control valve - DN25		10 pcs

		22		1.22		Differential pressure control valve - DN32		10 pcs

		23		1.23		Differential pressure control valve - DN40		10 pcs

		24		1.24		Differential pressure control valve - DN50		10 pcs

		25		1.25		Differential pressure control valve - DN65		10 pcs

		26		1.26		Differential pressure control valve - DN80		10 pcs

		27		1.27		Differential pressure control valve - DN100		10 pcs

		30		1.30		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN25*		5 pcs

		31		1.31		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN32*		5 pcs

		32		1.32		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN40*		5 pcs

		33		1.33		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN50*		5 pcs

		34		1.34		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN65*		5 pcs

		35		1.35		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN80*		5 pcs

		36		1.36		Differential pressure independent control valve - DN100*		5 pcs

		37		1.37

				2		Heat control equipment (apartment distribution pipe)

		1		2.1		Thermostatic radiator valve (2-way) with Thermostatic header (based on the technical offer of the bidder)		72,500 pcs

		2		2.2		Thermostatic radiator valve (3-way)*		50 pcs

		4		2.4

				3		Heat metering/ meter reading collection equipment

		1		3.1		Heat meter (additional cost ultrasonic version)		4,300 pcs

		2		3.2		Heat cost allocators		51,000 pcs

		3		3.3		Parametriziation equipment		5 pcs

		4		3.4		Data collection/ transmission gateway		800 pcs

		5		3.5		Handheld unit (walk-by read-out unit)		5 pcs

		6		3.6

				4		Heat metering and billing system

		1		4.1		Central metering and billing server station		1 pc

		2		4.2		Printing and enveloping machine 		1 pc

		3		4.3		Client PC workstation		4 pc

		4		4.4		Metering and billing software		1 pc

				5		Support services

		1		5.1		Extended software support		2,000 hr

						The supplier is expected to execute the contract in its entirety in 12 months from the contract signing date. 
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ABBREVIATIONS

		BC&O

		Behaviour Change and Outreach



		CAPEX

		Capital Expenditures



		DH

		District Heating



		DHC

		District Heating Company



		DHM

		District Heating Metering



		ERO

		Energy Regulatory Office



		ESMP

		Environmental and Social Management plan



		GoK

		Government of Kosovo



		GSI

		Gender and Social Inclusion



		HCA

		Heat Cost Allocator



		HOA

		House Owner Association



		HSE

		Health Safety Environment



		Decon/iC

		Implementation Consultant/ Supervisor



		HIS

		Individual heating substation



		KEDS

		Kosovo Electricity Distribution Company



		KEEA

		Kosovo Energy Efficiency Agency



		KEK

		Kosovo Electricity Corporation



		MAB

		Multi-family Apartment Building



		MCC

		Millennium Challenge Corporation



		MFK

		Millennium Foundation Kosovo (MCC-entity)



		MID

		Measurement Instruments Directive



		MW

		Megawatt 



		MWel, MW_el

		Megawatt electric capacity



		MWh

		Megawatt-hours



		MWth, MW_th

		Megawatt thermal (heating) capacity



		NO

		No Objection



		OEM

		Original equipment manufacturer



		OHS

		Occupational Health and Safety



		PEA

		Project Executing Agency



		pel

		Electrical Power Output



		PHE

		Public Housing Enterprises



		PIU

		Project Implementation Unit



		PLC

		Programmable logic controller



		QA/ QC

		Quality Assurance/ Control



		SCADA

		Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (control system)



		SGIP

		Social and Gender Integration Plan



		TA

		Technical Assistance



		THVs

		Thermostatic Heating Valves
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District heating service in Prishtina is provided by Termokos, which is an enterprise owned by the Municipality of Prishtina. Termokos provides service for approximately 14.500 apartments in Prishtina through distribution of piped hot water heat from a central plant. This district heating system has recently been revitalized and could be a cost-effective alternative for many households, utilizing cogeneration from the Kosovo B power plant. However, heating energy from district heating in Prishtina could be consumed more efficiently, which is not currently the case. One reason why district heating is presently not as cost-effective, is that individual households cannot control the hot water flow in their own system and its use is billed based on surface area (m²) rather than on actual consumption. As a result, households will often use the “open-window” technique to regulate temperature.

Therefore, the program aims to help test the cost-effectiveness of charging households for the actual energy they use and allow for energy savings to allow for expansion of the district heating network and service in Prishtina. Additionally, it will test the responsiveness of households to direct price signals and aims to save households money by making them more aware of how much energy they’re using and giving them more control over that energy use.
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Prishtina (N 42°40′, E 21°10′) is located in the south-eastern part of Kosovo at an elevation of 652 meters above sea level. Prishtina has a humid continental climate experiencing warm and dry summers with up to 27°C on average, and cold and snowy winters with an average low temperature down to -5°C.
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Usage of provided DH network heat energy in efficient way

The actual heat consumption shall be adjustable and individually controllable for each heat consumer

Consumption based billing of all individual residential heating consumers: payment according to the measured consumed heat together with the new possibility of controlling required heat shall change the consumer behavior and raise the awareness of reasonable utilization of valuable heating energy.

Adaption of the existing internal building heating system by installing the required heat control and metering equipment as necessary to fulfill the required duties

The reading and billing service shall remain in the responsibility of Termokos enabling them directly maintaining customer relations.

The foreseen technology for metering shall allow an automatic reading of meter values on a regular base. The used metering equipment shall allow automatic monthly reading.

The monthly based meter readings are transferred via a suitable communication way and transmitted to /collected in a central data collection/processing system. The data shall be processed within this system in line to Termokos’ existing accounting and billing system including an appropriate data interface.

The Termokos staff shall be trained by the Consultant and Supplier in the usage of the new installed metering and billing system within this project.

Generation of transparent heat cost bills with a monthly presentation of the heat consumption and a comparison to last year’s heat consumption

[bookmark: _Toc63425655]Definitions

Riser pipes

Vertical branch pipe (=riser pair) connected to central heating manifold in the building basement and providing heat to multiple (all) apartments in a building or building staircase. Horizontal pipe sections in the building basement leading to each staircase (e.g. riser duct) are part of the riser pipe.

Floor distribution pipe

Horizontal distribution pipe in each floor connected to riser pipe and providing heat to multiple apartments in each floor.

Apartment distribution pipe

Horizontal distribution pipe connected to floor distribution pipe and providing heat to one apartment.
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The scope of supply comprises the rehabilitation/ replacement of heat, control- and metering equipment in all the buildings connected either directly or via a secondary/tertiary network to the DH-system within the city of Prishtina. The Contract contains different modification and adaption works on the internal building heating system.

Depending on the internal heating system configuration (dual pipe system and vertical/ horizontal system) of each building the following parts of the system could be affected and need an update and/ or must be refitted with new equipment.

Heat distribution equipment (located in common areas of the building)

Replacement of existing unregulated pumps with new frequency controlled circulating pumps in all risers pairs of the buildings and also in main distribution pipes if necessary

Differential pressure control valve and balancing valves in riser pipes for adjusting and limiting the flow rate in each riser pair if an independent adjustment of the differential pressure is not possible (only if hydraulically required)

Adjustment of piping insofar necessary to install the foreseen new equipment

Heat control equipment (mainly located in each apartment)

Prefabricated valve set for each radiator suitable for different radiator connection types and configurations

Dynamic thermostatic valves with built in balancing, limiting flow and differential pressure control function at each radiator containing of hydraulic valve and thermostatic header

Differential pressure control valve and balancing valves in horizontal distribution pipes (only if hydraulically required)

Adoption of piping to accommodate the new equipment, if required

Heat metering and billing system (either located in each apartment or the corridor in front of the apartment, based on baseline studies)

Heat meters/ Heat cost allocators, battery operated, suitable for data storage and wireless data transmission

Heat meter in apartment distribution pipe with manual shut-off valves before and after each heat meter. Heat meter installed in wall cabinets in front of the apartment (could be either additional new installed wall cabinets or enlarged existing wall cabinets/ wall niches to fit the heat meters if necessary);

or

Heat cost allocators with integrated radio module at each radiator for the individual recording of the heat consumption (mandatory in all buildings where the installation of individual heat meters for each apartment is not possible for various reasons)

Data collection gateway collecting the meter readings from all heat meters/ heat cost allocators in one building floor (e.g. mounted in each staircase or one for the whole building) and for transmitting the data to the central billing station.

Data transmission module for central data collection gateway to transmit data via communication network (GSM, radio or satellite or other proposed solution)

Handheld unit for reading out the heat meters by Walk-by in case some meter readings are not automatically transmitted to the central meter collection/ processing system and interface to metering and billing software for subsequent synchronization of the collected data

Parametrization equipment for configuration of heat meters and heat cost allocators via wireless communication interface

Central metering and billing server station incl. suitable interface to the DH substation SCADA system (transmission of meter readings of DH substation heat meters)

Client PC workstations

Metering and billing software installed on main station with interface to existing book-keeping and accounting software tool

Trainings of Termokos staff in use of new equipment and software incl. support of live operation and optimization for the first heating season shall be conducted and will be organized and supervised by the IC.
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The following basic principles are applicable to planning, execution, checking and monitoring of all the work performed by the Supplier:

All the laws, ordinances, regulations and guidelines applicable in Kosovo and associated with the work to be performed. If certain aspects are not wholly or partly included in the Kosovo’s legislation, the provisions of the European Union legislation concerned shall apply on a subsidiary basis.

All official notifications pertaining to equipment for tender.

All pertinent technical standards insofar as these are cited in the European rules and standards. This pertains to all harmonised EN standards stipulated in the European Community harmonisation legislation.

The work is performed in accordance with the European requirements and harmonisation legislation governing marking of products (components, apparatus, units, plant and its components) with the CE mark by applying the following EU directives as far as applicable

Measuring Instruments Directive 2014/32/EU

Machinery directive 2006/42/EG

Pressure Equipment Directive (PED) 2014/68/EU

Low Voltage Directive (LVD) 2006/95/EC

Electromagnetic compatibility directive (EMC) 2014/30/EU

The pipework shall comply with all relevant standards in the latest edition, especially but not limited to:

EN 13480, EN 10216, EN 10217, EN 10220…

Welding shall be done in accordance with EN 1011 (ISO/TR 17671-1), EN 1708, ISO 3834, ISO 15614-1, ISO 15610, ISO 15613, ISO 9712 and carried out by welders qualified according to ISO 9606-1 and ISO 14732 under welding coordination as to ISO 14731. Relevant certifications shall be submitted.

Structures and other load-bearing parts shall comply with the Eurocodes (EN 1990, EN 1991, EN 1992, EN 1993, EN 1994, EN 1995, EN 1996, EN 1997, EN 1998, EN 1999 and EN 1090)

Labour and social security laws and accident prevention regulations shall be heeded.

Relevant COVID-19 mitigation plans shall be drafted and heeded, as per MFK guidelines (2020).

The Supplier is responsible for informing himself about the cited and required procedures and standards.

If a date of issue or revision of a procedure or standard is not cited, the latest version applicable at the time of acceptance of the tender shall apply. Laws shall be applied in the version applicable at the time of acceptance of the bid.

The Purchaser shall be informed of adaptations/revisions/amendments of standards, procedures, laws and ordinances applied in the course of the project as soon as they are published by the Supplier. Effects on the project must be discussed and actions scheduled where necessary.

The following order of precedence shall apply in the event of contradictions: Laws – Ordinances – National Standards – EN and ISO Standards – Company Standards. In the event of a contradiction between two specifications/standards, the stricter regulation shall in principle apply.

The Supplier shall in any event inform the Purchaser of deviations in the specifications from national or local laws and regulations if conformity is affected.

All deviations from instructions and specifications shall require written approval of the Purchaser. The variation shall become an integral component of the order following approval by the Purchaser.

Execution by the Supplier and possibly by his Subcontractor shall be according to the state of the art. The Supplier shall immediately report significant changes to the state of the art in the period between placement of the order and its execution.
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“Systeme International” units – (SI: kg – m – s) shall be used in handling and processing of the order following ISO 80000. SI units shall exclusively be used for marking of all nameplates and plant labels.
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The project language is English, the national language Albanian. To the degree necessary for permitting purposes, the Supplier shall prepare the relevant documents in Albanian.

The operating and maintenance documentation shall be in Albanian (main language) and English (at least an “unauthorised” translation). Relevant trainings will be conducted and/or translated in Albanian.
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Documents shall be compiled in one of the formats of the “A” series of EN ISO 216 (“ISO A4” to “ISO A0“).

All formats shall be handed over folded to A4 size in accordance with DIN 824, with visible header. Drawing preprints shall be designed according to EN ISO 5457. A standard header shall be used if specified by the Purchaser. Document templates shall be used if specified by the Purchaser.

All letters, facsimiles (fax) and other documentation shall be typed in easily understandable English to avoid any misunderstanding/unnecessary queries. Letters and documents shall be of such a quality and size as to be fit for filing purpose.

All documents shall be submitted electronically (editable files in original file format from generation software [e.g. DOCX, DWG] as well as in portable document format (PDF), not scans [e.g. letters as editable characters, not as graphics]) and in hard copy.

The scope of documentation shall allow for later use (such as servicing, operation, maintenance, conversion, warranty processes, etc.). There is in principle no differentiation between planning documentation and manufacturer’s documentation.

All the compiled planning and documentation documents shall be clearly marked: The file name and the printed document must show the document number, title, and date and number of the revision. Different versions of a document must be clearly distinguishable by number and date of the revision. Amendments must be traceably documented.

If the Purchaser specifies a list of documents, all documents and their revisions shall be listed here. Document numbers shall be issued according to the stipulated system.
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In general, all documents must be submitted in their final version and in an editable file format. The following programs shall be used:

Microsoft Office Programs (Word™, Excel™, Outlook™, Access™, Project™, …), version 2010-2018 or Office 365, file format according ISO/IEC 29500

Reports, descriptions: *.docx, *.docm

Calculations, lists: *.xlsx, *.xlsm

Emails: *.msg

Data bases: *.mdbx

Time schedules: *.mppx

Drawings (process, civil, …): AutoDesk AutoCAD™, version 2017: *.dwg or *.dxf

Electrical drawings: AutoDesk AutoCAD™, version 2017: *.dwg / *.dxf or EPLAN P8 2.4 or ELCAD Version 7.10

Pictures: JPEG – Joint Photographic Experts Group: *.jpg, *.jpeg

3D data: IFC – Industry Foundation Classes according ISO 16739: *.ifc or NWD ‑ Navis Works Data compatible with Navisworks Freedom, version 2017: *.nwd

Scan: PDF – Portable Document Format: *.pdf

Every document must in addition be submitted in PDF – Portable Document Format (*.pdf), preferably PDF/A according ISO 19005-1

Other document formats may only be used by arrangement with the Purchaser.
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All documents issued shall comply with international standards and shall be easy to be identified including their revisions and amendments.

As a minimum, documents shall carry with Project title, Project number, date and other details to be discussed during the kick-off meeting. In preparation of and during the kick-off meeting the Supplier shall introduce its documentation/document management system (structure, document tree etc.).

The Contractor shall send drawings and documents for approval (hard copies only) to the Project Consultant's Office(s) by the fastest means - airmail or courier service. In case the Contractor requires a very urgent transmittal, he shall arrange for collection or shall request mailing by courier service, the cost of which shall be borne by the Contractor. After each drawing has been approved by the Consultant’s Engineer the Contractor shall make available to the Consultant a soft copy of the drawing in the format specified in the RFP Documents (studies, specifications, reports, drawings etc.) shall be submitted in accordance with the Document Schedule.

All documentation (if not defined differently) shall be at least in English language. To the degree necessary for permitting purposes, the Supplier shall prepare all necessary documentation in Albanian

[bookmark: _1y810tw][bookmark: _Ref5203817][bookmark: _Ref5205378][bookmark: _Toc63425665]“As-built” documentation 

The final “As built” documentation shall be submitted as uniform project-related documentation with the application for issuance of Completion Certificate. This comprises all the documentation associated with the project and shall meet the legal requirements and pertinent standards. It constitutes a part of the scope of delivery and shall be verifiably submitted in duplicate, both electronically and in hard copy.

The documentation shall be compiled within the engineering framework and submitted to the Supervisor and Purchaser, reflecting the progress of work to date. The Purchaser shall receive a copy for comment upon completion of planning/construction.

All the documentation required for operation, service and maintenance shall in addition be fully compiled again in the final documentation.

The Consultant and Purchaser shall have all documentation required for installation, operation, service, training and troubleshooting at his disposal for commissioning (at least in draft form). This set of documents shall not be deemed part of the final documentation.

During the preparation of the as built versions the Supplier shall keep one original of “red-lines” available on site.

The scope of the As-built documentation shall comprise the following documents:

[bookmark: _4i7ojhp][bookmark: _Toc63258280]As-built documentation (Language: EN – English; ALB – Albanian)

		Documents

		EN

		ALB



		Table of contents

		

		



		General introduction, Description of project

		

		



		General data, Design parameters, Technical specifications

		

		



		Purchasing and procurement documents, customs declarations

		

		



		Detail design: Heat distribution and control equipment (on building level)

		‑

		‑



		Cabinet installation plan: Installation plan with heat meters and adjusted pipe routing (in case new and bigger wall cabinets are required to fit the heat meters)

		

		



		Assembly and workshop drawings

		

		



		List of apparatus and mechanical components with technical datasheets, bill of materials

		

		



		Protocols: Pressure test, Test reports e.g. corrosion protection

		

		



		Installation instructions and records of proof

		

		



		Lists: Pipes and fittings, equipment, valve, instrumentation, bill of materials

		

		



		Datasheets of mechanical equipment (e.g. circulation pump, valves, thermostatic valves, …)

		

		



		Detail design: Heat metering and billing system

		‑

		‑



		List of hardware of central metering and billing station

		

		



		Data point list incl. all connected sub-meters per building

		

		



		Datasheet of metering and data transmission equipment (e.g. heat meters, heat cost allocators, gateway, handheld unit)

		

		



		Specification of M-Bus radio interface, telegram specification (OMS, Walk-by read out) and file format

		

		



		Metering software specification, definition of data exchange interfaces with billing and accounting software

		

		



		Maintenance plan/schedule for recommended (preventive) maintenance activities

		

		



		Service and maintenance manuals incl. disassembly and exploded drawings, lubricants and other auxiliary materials

		

		



		Metering software manual

		

		



		Qualification certificates of Suppliers and specialist staff

		

		



		Protocol: Visual inspection, leak and pressure test, commissioning

		

		



		Wear and spare part list

		

		



		Certificates, declarations of conformity (material, CE mark)

		

		



		Detailed equipment schedules

		

		





[bookmark: _2xcytpi]The As-Built Documentation shall be independently provided for each building with all required design documents/ manuals regarding the equipment installed in those buildings.

[bookmark: _Ref63254651][bookmark: _Toc63425666]Project Organization

[bookmark: _1ci93xb][bookmark: _Toc63425667]General

Close cooperation shall be established between the Purchaser and the Supplier throughout the Project.

Document submission, meetings and other administrative aspects shall be handled as outlined below.

[bookmark: _Toc14769487][bookmark: _Toc14956840][bookmark: _Toc14958732][bookmark: _Toc14956841][bookmark: _Toc14958733][bookmark: _Toc14956842][bookmark: _Toc14958734][bookmark: _3whwml4][bookmark: _Toc63425668]Correspondence and Document Submission

The Supplier shall address all formal correspondence (letters etc.) to MFK. Each correspondence shall carry the Project title, Project number, date, correspondence number etc. The Supplier shall track all correspondence in a Correspondence Log.

All letters & correspondences related to the project shall bear the order number, the correspondence (letter) number and the date of issuance. Contractors-Supplier’s Project Manager/Project Coordinator shall take the correspondence serial numbers from this system.

Documents such as drawings or other project relevant documents shall be submitted with a Document Transmittal Sheet DTS as per template. Drawings and Calculations must be submitted in soft form. Documents should be submitted in standard formats as .doc, .xls, .pdf and .dwg! The templates and numbering system for correspondence, document transmittals, minutes of meeting etc. have to follow the mandatory templates which will be provided by the Purchaser at project start. Further details will be discussed during the kick-off meeting.

[bookmark: _2bn6wsx][bookmark: _Toc63425669]Meetings

Kick-off meeting

A kick-off meeting will be held at the Purchaser’s offices in Kosovo and/or online to discuss the Contract framework, Time Schedule, administrative aspects, organization and other Project specifics.

The meeting shall be organized as soon as practical following the Commencement Date.

Progress meetings

During design, construction, installation and commissioning, progress meetings shall be held on a monthly basis.

The meetings shall take place at the Suppliers/Consultants offices in Kosovo if not advised differently by the Purchaser.

The main topics of these meetings shall be:

Progress review and forecast

Design related issues

Construction schedule review

Equipment and material purchase and delivery status

Other required topics

[bookmark: _Toc14769492][bookmark: _Toc14956846][bookmark: _Toc14958738][bookmark: _Toc14769493][bookmark: _Toc14956847][bookmark: _Toc14958739][bookmark: _Toc14769494][bookmark: _Toc14956848][bookmark: _Toc14958740][bookmark: _Toc14769495][bookmark: _Toc14956849][bookmark: _Toc14958741][bookmark: _Toc14769496][bookmark: _Toc14956850][bookmark: _Toc14958742][bookmark: _Toc14769497][bookmark: _Toc14956851][bookmark: _Toc14958743][bookmark: _Toc14769498][bookmark: _Toc14956852][bookmark: _Toc14958744][bookmark: _Toc14769499][bookmark: _Toc14956853][bookmark: _Toc14958745][bookmark: _Toc14769500][bookmark: _Toc14956854][bookmark: _Toc14958746][bookmark: _Toc14769501][bookmark: _Toc14956855][bookmark: _Toc14958747][bookmark: _qsh70q]Site meetings

During construction, installation and commissioning, site meetings shall be held on a regular basis (at least weekly) and/or as needed in accordance with the progress and situation at site.

The meetings shall take place at the sites.

The main topics of these meetings shall be:

Progress review and forecast

Construction schedule review

Equipment and material delivery status

Review of Quality assurance (QA)/ Quality control (QC) topics

Review of Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) related topics

Administrational matters

Open topics, unresolved issues etc.

Review of Project finances

Design-related topics will be discussed but such discussions shall not be deemed to comprise any design approval action.

The relevant Minutes of Meetings shall be signed by all parties.

Other meetings

Each party may request a meeting at any time required.

Such request shall be in writing (accompanied by an agenda) and be submitted at least 5 working days prior to the meeting.

[bookmark: _Toc14769504][bookmark: _Toc14956858][bookmark: _Toc14958750][bookmark: _Toc14769505][bookmark: _Toc14956859][bookmark: _Toc14958751][bookmark: _Toc14769506][bookmark: _Toc14956860][bookmark: _Toc14958752][bookmark: _Toc14769507][bookmark: _Toc14956861][bookmark: _Toc14958753][bookmark: _3as4poj][bookmark: _Toc63425670]Reporting

[bookmark: _1pxezwc][bookmark: _Toc12348868]General

The reporting activities shall cover at least the following:

Weekly site reports (progress of performed works)

Monthly progress reporting

Reporting on inspections and tests

Minutes of Meetings (MoM)

Details and requirements regarding the layout and contents of above reports will be determined by the Consultant during inception phase.

[bookmark: _49x2ik5][bookmark: _Toc12348869]Monthly progress report

The Supplier shall submit monthly progress reports summarizing all ongoing works, tests and occurrences during implementation. Details of the progress including the completed apartments, buildings, substations, control systems, data transmission loops etc. shall be also delivered directly into the detailed equipment schedule for further processing in a database provided by the Consultant in the required format and content or in another process able electronic format as agreed.

Minutes of Meetings (MoM)

At the end of each meeting day, the Contractor shall prepare Minutes of Meeting (MoM /Notes of Conference /Meeting Report) as per the template prepared by the Consultant. It must be precise and clear and shall follow the agreed items of the agenda. In case of regular meetings (monthly/quarterly), any modification to the previous notes of conference will be discussed and introduced during the subsequent meeting.

[bookmark: _Toc53058528][bookmark: _Toc14769509][bookmark: _Toc14956865][bookmark: _Toc14958757][bookmark: _Toc14769510][bookmark: _Toc14956866][bookmark: _Toc14958758][bookmark: _Toc14769511][bookmark: _Toc14956867][bookmark: _Toc14958759][bookmark: _2p2csry]The responsible party for any agreed action will be noted on the right-hand side of each page in the "Responsible" column. For any meeting, the MoM shall be read out and mutually agreed upon by all parties participating in the meeting. The MoM shall be signed by the authorised/designated representatives of each participating party. Each page of the minutes of meeting shall be initialled.

[bookmark: _Toc63425671]Quality Assurance

General

The Supplier shall comply with and meet the quality standards of ISO 9001.

The Supplier shall prepare and submit a Project specific Quality Assurance Manual based on ISO 9001 describing the quality related activities, procedures, steps and measures (including Project organization, qualifications and expertise, documents control, quality audits, testing procedures etc.) implemented throughout the Project.

The same shall apply for any Subcontractor, supplier or manufacturer.

Quality Monitoring and Inspection

The Purchaser/Beneficiary reserves the right to inspect the installation sites and prefabrication facilities of the Supplier at any time throughout the Project.

[bookmark: _Toc51141685][bookmark: _Toc14769515][bookmark: _Toc14956871][bookmark: _Toc14958763][bookmark: _Toc14769516][bookmark: _Toc14956872][bookmark: _Toc14958764][bookmark: _Toc14956873][bookmark: _Toc14958765][bookmark: _Toc14956874][bookmark: _Toc14958766][bookmark: _Toc14956875][bookmark: _Toc14958767][bookmark: _Toc14956876][bookmark: _Toc14958768][bookmark: _Toc14956877][bookmark: _Toc14958769][bookmark: _Toc14956878][bookmark: _Toc14958770][bookmark: _Toc14956879][bookmark: _Toc14958771][bookmark: _Toc14956880][bookmark: _Toc14958772][bookmark: _Toc14956881][bookmark: _Toc14958773][bookmark: _Toc14956882][bookmark: _Toc14958774][bookmark: _Toc14956883][bookmark: _Toc14958775][bookmark: _Toc14956884][bookmark: _Toc14958776][bookmark: _Toc14956885][bookmark: _Toc14958777][bookmark: _Toc14956886][bookmark: _Toc14958778][bookmark: _Toc14956887][bookmark: _Toc14958779][bookmark: _Toc14956888][bookmark: _Toc14958780][bookmark: _Toc14956890][bookmark: _Toc14958782][bookmark: _Toc14956891][bookmark: _Toc14958783][bookmark: _Toc14956892][bookmark: _Toc14958784][bookmark: _Toc14956893][bookmark: _Toc14958785][bookmark: _Toc14956894][bookmark: _Toc14958786][bookmark: _Toc14956895][bookmark: _Toc14958787][bookmark: _Toc493600371][bookmark: _Toc493601068][bookmark: _Toc495056319][bookmark: _Toc495654803][bookmark: _147n2zr][bookmark: _Ref63254751][bookmark: _Toc63425672][bookmark: _Ref491338183]Preparation of construction site

[bookmark: _3o7alnk][bookmark: _Toc63425673]Site establishment

General

The Supplier shall provide complete management of this Project, be self-sufficient in all aspects of the Works, and shall have enough equipment, man-power and technical expertise not to require assistance from the Purchaser /Beneficiary. Any sub-Supplier shall report through the Supplier, not directly to the Purchaser /Beneficiary.

The Supplier is required to have a Site Safety Officer on site for the entire duration of the site work (from site establishment, or material delivery, which-ever is the earlier, through to the issue of the Acceptance). This safety officer must have direct reporting access to the Supplier’s Company Safety Officer independently of the Site Manager.

Any person having duties which are, or may be, affected by the details set out in this specification will be made aware of the requirements and have convenient access to a copy of this document.

The Supplier shall do arrangements for receiving deliveries at site. The Purchaser / Beneficiary will not accept responsibility for the safe keeping of stores for this project and may turn away deliveries if there is no one to accept them.

Where the Supplier intends to interconnect with facilities such as electricity, water, the quantities of the respective consumption will be determined / limited, as it will be mutually agreed between the Supplier, IC, and/or the house owner association (HOA) of those buildings where installation activities take place.

Termokos will facilitate the nomination of responsible persons in each building who will be the main contact person for the Consultant and the Supplier.

This contact person will be responsible for:

support the communication with the individual heating consumers (households), together with Termokos,

provide access to all affected rooms in all common areas of the building,

organise and coordinate appointments with the heating consumer (households) to allow access to the individual apartments,

define interconnection points with building utility system (e.g. electricity, water, sewage system) required for the functioning of the new installed equipment and also for the Suppliers working tools.

[bookmark: _23ckvvd][bookmark: _Ref480896463]Office container/ Temporary buildings

The Supplier shall provide, maintain and remove on completion (or at any other requested time) office space for the engaged personnel including the personnel of all Subcontractor. The site office shall be a purpose-built containerized temporary site facility or similar approved building erected, furnished, equipped and serviced ready for occupation and use within 14 days of the Date of Commencement of the Works.

Due to limited space the Beneficiary (Termokos) is not able to provide sufficient space for temporary office buildings/ containers on the Termokos premises.

Therefore, the Contractor have to arrange satisfactory office working conditions for an QC Supervisor’s site inspection staff, own workforce and storage facilities elsewhere

Weather resistance and thermal insulation shall be according to the specification appropriate to the local conditions with heating and cooling system that will keep the ambient temperature within the office space between min. 19° C and max 25° C. The offices shall be connected to an electrical supply grid.

The Supplier is responsible for laying of all temporary cables and wiring and to pay all charges in connection with the same and the current consumed and clear away and make good on completion. Where an electrical supply grid is not available, the Supplier shall supply a “demand” type generator capable of running 24 hours per day, if required, without causing any undue noise, air pollution, other interference or disturbance to surrounding residents.

The Office and toilet shall be connected to a sewage (drainage) and water supply system. If it is not possible to connect to an existing sewage system, then all foul sewage must be collected and contained without leakage or spillage and disposed of by the Supplier as agreed by the Supervisor and Purchaser. If no water supply system is available, the Supplier shall make suitable provision for the supply of potable water at the site offices in form of storage tanks.

[bookmark: _Toc14957065][bookmark: _Toc14958957][bookmark: _Toc14957066][bookmark: _Toc14958958][bookmark: _Toc14957067][bookmark: _Toc14958959][bookmark: _Toc14957068][bookmark: _Toc14958960][bookmark: _Toc14957069][bookmark: _Toc14958961][bookmark: _Toc14957070][bookmark: _Toc14958962][bookmark: _Toc492639189][bookmark: _Toc492890346][bookmark: _Toc493600398][bookmark: _Toc493601095][bookmark: _Toc495056346][bookmark: _Toc495654830][bookmark: _Toc492639190][bookmark: _Toc492890347][bookmark: _Toc493600399][bookmark: _Toc493601096][bookmark: _Toc495056347][bookmark: _Toc495654831][bookmark: _Toc492639191][bookmark: _Toc492890348][bookmark: _Toc493600400][bookmark: _Toc493601097][bookmark: _Toc495056348][bookmark: _Toc495654832][bookmark: _Toc492639192][bookmark: _Toc492890349][bookmark: _Toc493600401][bookmark: _Toc493601098][bookmark: _Toc495056349][bookmark: _Toc495654833][bookmark: _Toc492639193][bookmark: _Toc492890350][bookmark: _Toc493600402][bookmark: _Toc493601099][bookmark: _Toc495056350][bookmark: _Toc495654834][bookmark: _Toc492639194][bookmark: _Toc492890351][bookmark: _Toc493600403][bookmark: _Toc493601100][bookmark: _Toc495056351][bookmark: _Toc495654835][bookmark: _Toc492639195][bookmark: _Toc492890352][bookmark: _Toc493600404][bookmark: _Toc493601101][bookmark: _Toc495056352][bookmark: _Toc495654836][bookmark: _Toc492639196][bookmark: _Toc492890353][bookmark: _Toc493600405][bookmark: _Toc493601102][bookmark: _Toc495056353][bookmark: _Toc495654837][bookmark: _Toc492639197][bookmark: _Toc492890354][bookmark: _Toc493600406][bookmark: _Toc493601103][bookmark: _Toc495056354][bookmark: _Toc495654838][bookmark: _Toc492639198][bookmark: _Toc492890355][bookmark: _Toc493600407][bookmark: _Toc493601104][bookmark: _Toc495056355][bookmark: _Toc495654839][bookmark: _Toc492639199][bookmark: _Toc492890356][bookmark: _Toc493600408][bookmark: _Toc493601105][bookmark: _Toc495056356][bookmark: _Toc495654840][bookmark: _Toc492639200][bookmark: _Toc492890357][bookmark: _Toc493600409][bookmark: _Toc493601106][bookmark: _Toc495056357][bookmark: _Toc495654841][bookmark: _Toc492639201][bookmark: _Toc492890358][bookmark: _Toc493600410][bookmark: _Toc493601107][bookmark: _Toc495056358][bookmark: _Toc495654842][bookmark: _Toc492639202][bookmark: _Toc492890359][bookmark: _Toc493600411][bookmark: _Toc493601108][bookmark: _Toc495056359][bookmark: _Toc495654843][bookmark: _Toc492639203][bookmark: _Toc492890360][bookmark: _Toc493600412][bookmark: _Toc493601109][bookmark: _Toc495056360][bookmark: _Toc495654844][bookmark: _Toc492639204][bookmark: _Toc492890361][bookmark: _Toc493600413][bookmark: _Toc493601110][bookmark: _Toc495056361][bookmark: _Toc495654845][bookmark: _Toc492639205][bookmark: _Toc492890362][bookmark: _Toc493600414][bookmark: _Toc493601111][bookmark: _Toc495056362][bookmark: _Toc495654846][bookmark: _Toc492639206][bookmark: _Toc492890363][bookmark: _Toc493600415][bookmark: _Toc493601112][bookmark: _Toc495056363][bookmark: _Toc495654847][bookmark: _Toc492639207][bookmark: _Toc492890364][bookmark: _Toc493600416][bookmark: _Toc493601113][bookmark: _Toc495056364][bookmark: _Toc495654848][bookmark: _Toc492639208][bookmark: _Toc492890365][bookmark: _Toc493600417][bookmark: _Toc493601114][bookmark: _Toc495056365][bookmark: _Toc495654849][bookmark: _Toc492639209][bookmark: _Toc492890366][bookmark: _Toc493600418][bookmark: _Toc493601115][bookmark: _Toc495056366][bookmark: _Toc495654850][bookmark: _Toc492639210][bookmark: _Toc492890367][bookmark: _Toc493600419][bookmark: _Toc493601116][bookmark: _Toc495056367][bookmark: _Toc495654851][bookmark: _Toc492639211][bookmark: _Toc492890368][bookmark: _Toc493600420][bookmark: _Toc493601117][bookmark: _Toc495056368][bookmark: _Toc495654852][bookmark: _Toc492639212][bookmark: _Toc492890369][bookmark: _Toc493600421][bookmark: _Toc493601118][bookmark: _Toc495056369][bookmark: _Toc495654853][bookmark: _Toc492639213][bookmark: _Toc492890370][bookmark: _Toc493600422][bookmark: _Toc493601119][bookmark: _Toc495056370][bookmark: _Toc495654854][bookmark: _Toc492639214][bookmark: _Toc492890371][bookmark: _Toc493600423][bookmark: _Toc493601120][bookmark: _Toc495056371][bookmark: _Toc495654855][bookmark: _Toc492639215][bookmark: _Toc492890372][bookmark: _Toc493600424][bookmark: _Toc493601121][bookmark: _Toc495056372][bookmark: _Toc495654856][bookmark: _Toc492639216][bookmark: _Toc492890373][bookmark: _Toc493600425][bookmark: _Toc493601122][bookmark: _Toc495056373][bookmark: _Toc495654857][bookmark: _Toc8746204][bookmark: _Toc8746205][bookmark: _Toc8746206][bookmark: _Toc8746207][bookmark: _Toc8746208][bookmark: _Toc8746209][bookmark: _Toc8746210][bookmark: _Toc8746211][bookmark: _Toc8746212][bookmark: _Toc8746213][bookmark: _Toc8746214][bookmark: _Toc8746215][bookmark: _Toc8746216][bookmark: _Toc8746217][bookmark: _Toc8746218][bookmark: _Toc8746219][bookmark: _Toc8746220][bookmark: _Toc8746221][bookmark: _ihv636][bookmark: _Toc63425674]Site management

The Supplier is responsible for creating a project team, nomination of responsible person for Contract implementation. Within this team there must be a Project Manager, Site manager and team members responsible for project management, Project programming to keep the outage dates, quality control, and correct observance of the Purchaser’s / Beneficiary’s safety rules.

The Supplier shall nominate a Site Manager who will act as the contact between the Supplier, Subcontractors, the Purchaser and the Beneficiaries. The Site Manager shall be responsible for the day to day running of the Works in all buildings throughout the city where parallel activities are planned.

This manager, or in his temporary absence, a deputy previously agreed with the Purchaser, must always be available.

[bookmark: _32hioqz][bookmark: _Ref62553659][bookmark: _Toc63425675]Design and execution planning

[bookmark: _1hmsyys][bookmark: _Toc63425676]General

The Supplier shall, based on the baseline studies received from the IC, carry out the detailed design, supply, execution, assembly and workshop planning for the entire scope of supply.

This includes all new installed heat distribution, control and metering equipment incl. the required components for the data collection and transmission to a central metering and billing station.

Any additional investigations deemed necessary by the Supplier must be included in the scope of work.

[bookmark: _Toc30586237][bookmark: _Toc30660661][bookmark: _Toc30662561][bookmark: _Toc30668714][bookmark: _Toc30670275][bookmark: _41mghml][bookmark: _Toc63425677]Tender design

The Supplier is responsible for critical reviewing the tender design and the associated data sources before starting with the detail design.

[bookmark: _2grqrue][bookmark: _Toc63425678][bookmark: _Hlk51080092]Building surveys – detailed equipment schedule

[bookmark: _Toc51141694][bookmark: _vx1227][bookmark: _Toc63425679]Based on baseline studies performed by the Consultant in the contractually agreed number of buildings, the Contractor is obliged to carry out detailed surveys in all buildings included in the Program. The Consultant will provide a suitable template which has to be used and filled out during the detailed building surveys, detailed design phase, progress reporting till as built design.

The identified quantities and types of equipment identified by the Consultant and Termokos, foreseen to be installed in each building shall be the basis of the detail design and further be used for the internal cost monitoring and approval of payments.

Detail Design

Based on the existing data sources the Supplier shall elaborate a detailed equipment schedule for all buildings which are within the scope of supply. The approved detailed equipment schedule shall be used as an implementation control tool and be directly linked with the elaborated building surveys and the detail technical design with the foreseen adaption works in all buildings (for more details see 4.7.2).

For elaboration of the detail technical design the Supplier shall analysis the outcome of the buildings surveys of the building heating system and the available space for installing the foreseen equipment.

The required mechanical equipment within the building heating systems shall be dimensioned based on the following criteria:

[bookmark: _Toc63258281]Design criteria (for mechanical equipment)

		Technical data

		Value

		Unit



		Pressure stage

		PN 10

		-



		Temperature range

		0-95

		°C



		Design operation regime

		90/ 651)

		°C



		Maximum allowed differential pressure over DH substation unit (at 120% of the design flow rate)

		252)

		kPa



		Maximum allowed differential pressure at thermostatic valves (to avoid flow noises at radiators)

		60

		kPa



		Water quality

		Softened water3)
AGFW FW 510

		-





1) The design relevant temperature difference between the supply and return flow temperature within the building heating system (design load case for all new installed equipment)

2) Maximum differential pressure to be expected at the DH substation (especially relevant for dimensioning of new riser pumps in case no main DH substation pump is installed)

3) Softened water from the DH network side is used as supplement make-up water for the building heating system (the makeup water line incl. water meter is installed at each DH substation)

The optimal location of data collection gateways and repeaters for data transmission within each building shall be identified with a suitable planning tool capable of considering the maximum transmission distance and obstacles e.g. like concrete walls which might decrease the transmission range.

[bookmark: _Toc51141696][bookmark: _3fwokq0][bookmark: _Toc63425680][bookmark: _Hlk57922893]Metering software specification

The Supplier shall elaborate the detailed software specifications based on the software requirements and allowing all functions stated in chapter 7.2 (especially development of methodology and algorithms). This software specifications shall be elaborated by the Supplier with involvement of Termokos and under consideration of the existing billing software at Termokos’ premise. During elaboration of the software specifications, the Supplier shall work closely with Termokos and Consultant for collecting additional specific information of the existing bookkeeping and accounting software and substation SCADA system as required for defining the software interfaces (e.g. data exchange, export/ import functions).

The following requirements are identified, (but are not final) as specific requirements:

· Recording and collection of data set from various SCADA system and Energy Consumption

· All billing data for each day should appear in the accounting system

· The amount of energy billed in euro should go to General Ledger on daily bases 

· The total amount for a billing period should go to General Ledger

· Yearly amount of billings should go to General Ledger

· The new software will interface with all requested dataset for existing accounting software

· Financial data-interfaces with Accounting

· Account receivables

· All datasets during the period of billing should have data exchange and export/import functions

The coordinated elaboration of the detailed software specifications will be followed by an approval procedure involving the Purchaser and Termokos. The completion of the initial software specifications must be soon enough to allow sufficient review and comments loops prior to the approval for implementation/ software design.

[bookmark: _Toc51141698][bookmark: _Toc51141699][bookmark: _Toc51141700][bookmark: _Toc30586239][bookmark: _Toc30660663][bookmark: _Toc30662563][bookmark: _Toc30668716][bookmark: _Toc30670277][bookmark: _Toc30586240][bookmark: _Toc30660664][bookmark: _Toc30662564][bookmark: _Toc30668717][bookmark: _Toc30670278][bookmark: _Toc491955495][bookmark: _Toc491956155][bookmark: _Toc491956463][bookmark: _Toc492294460][bookmark: _Toc492305857][bookmark: _Toc492307803][bookmark: _Toc492370474][bookmark: _Toc492538431][bookmark: _Toc492639169][bookmark: _Toc492890326][bookmark: _Toc493600375][bookmark: _Toc493601072][bookmark: _Toc495056323][bookmark: _Toc495654807][bookmark: _Toc30586242][bookmark: _Toc30660666][bookmark: _Toc30662566][bookmark: _Toc30668719][bookmark: _Toc30670280][bookmark: _1v1yuxt][bookmark: _Ref7078292][bookmark: _Toc63425681]Design

[bookmark: _4f1mdlm][bookmark: _Toc63425682]Design Principles

In general, the Supplier shall configure his scope of supply to withstand all the stresses and conditions which may arise in normal operation as well as in modes of operation or malfunction, which cannot be fully excluded even under proper management.

[bookmark: _2u6wntf][bookmark: _Toc63425683]Materials

The Supplier is solely responsible for the choice of materials, taking into consideration all the parameters (pressure, temperature, media, environmental impacts, etc.). Only perfectly weld-able materials which comply with the specified standards may, however, be used to connect piping or other mounted parts.

[bookmark: _Toc30586246][bookmark: _19c6y18][bookmark: _Ref21515608][bookmark: _Toc63425684]Planning activities

All documents worked out in the course of planning must be submitted to the Supervisor and Purchaser in a timely manner in digital form in changeable and unchangeable format for approval. Changes from the Supplier's sphere shall be brought to the Purchaser's attention in a timely manner.

As soon as the design documents have been approved by the Consultant/Supervisor and Purchaser, the Supplier can commence with the assembly and workshop planning. The Supplier is obliged to consider all agreed adjustments and wishes of the Purchaser during the detail design planning phase.

In the course of the design phase, at least the following planning activities shall be carried out or planning documents prepared for each building included in the scope of supply:

Building surveys of all remaining buildings based on the ongoing baseline studies and hydraulic calculations performed by the Consultant.

Detail technical design of heating system in all DH-connected buildings.

Supply and installation, for all DH-connected buildings, of following equipment:

heat distribution equipment (e.g. circulation pumps, balancing valves, differential pressure control valve)

heat control equipment (e.g. thermostatic valve, balancing valve, differential pressure control valve, shut-off valve)

heat metering and billing system

Cabinet installation plan: Installation plan with heat meters and adjusted pipe routing (in case new and bigger wall cabinets are required to fit the heat meters)

Lists: Pipes and fittings, equipment (e.g. circulation pump), valve, instrumentation, bill of materials

Data point list incl. all connected sub-meters per building

Building scheme with location of gateways and repeaters for data transmission based on optimal transmission range (evaluated with a suitable planning tool)

Metering software specification

The required planning documents, which will be part of the “As-Built Documentation”, are listed in chapter 3.3.5.
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[bookmark: _28h4qwu][bookmark: _Toc63425686]General

The Supplier is inter alia responsible for:

Implementation time scheduling, approved by the IC;

Selection of materials/ equipment based on the minimum quality requirements and approved by the Implementation consultant

Determination of personnel requirements

Site management (e.g. nomination of project team with assignment of responsibilities)

Planning for preparation of construction site (storage area, office containers, electric power supply, water supply, …);

Installation planning in accordance to construction time scheduling

Recording of construction progress and costs

Coordination of all Subcontractors;

Quality supervision;

Implement Occupational health and safety (OHS) measures, including COVID-19 related mitigation measures.

[bookmark: _nmf14n][bookmark: _Ref5264871][bookmark: _Toc63425687]Time scheduling

The Supplier is responsible for preparation of an overall Implementation time scheduling based on the working programme with the aim of securing the planned completion date of the implementation project under consideration of sufficient buffer time by using the standard scheduling tool/software of Microsoft Project. This shall be done by coordinating and controlling activities in all affected buildings in order to achieve an orderly and largely smooth work by identifying the critical time path.

The time scheduling shall be constantly updated according to the implementation progress and submitted to the Consultant for control. The Consultant will then submit the schedule to the Purchaser/Beneficiary. Where appropriate separate subordinated time schedules considering the requirements of different construction sections shall be used.

The Project Schedule shall be divided into the following Project specific main tasks and milestones:

Contract milestones

Scheduled payment milestones

Different project phases in various different buildings:

Design & engineering

Implementation (civil, mechanical and electric works)

Delivery time of components

Checks after erection

Tests and inspections

Testing of new equipment and software, including invoicing applications, Commissioning

Issuance of Completion Certificate

Trial operation

Acceptance/ Start of warranty period

Submission of documents as outlined in the Document Schedule shall be in accordance with the Time Schedule.

The Supplier shall take note and shall be prepared to coordinate his Time Schedule with other Suppliers as far as necessary.

It is the entire responsibility of the Supplier to plan and coordinate the necessary commissioning activities and requirements as early as possible in order to avoid any delays and influences on its own Time Schedule and the schedules of other Suppliers, within the time framework set by MFK.

[bookmark: _Toc63425688]Price schedule

Price column for Goods (see column No. 4)

The price column No. 4 for Goods in Annex 1, Sheet “Price schedule for Goods and Services” includes the following subservices in [EUR]:

Price for Goods incl. delivery, freight, packaging, unloading, transporting of the equipment to the Suppliers warehouse situated inside Kosovo and inland transportation to the installation destination

Price column for Installation materials (see column No. 5)

The price column No. 5 for Installation materials in Annex 1, Sheet “Price schedule for Goods and Services” includes the following subservices in [EUR]:

Price for Installation materials (e.g. heat meter cabinets, piping material, pipe fittings, shut-off valves, support materials, wall mounted pipe clamps, gaskets, pipe insulation, various consumables…)

incl. delivery, freight, packaging, unloading, transporting of the equipment to the Suppliers warehouse situated inside Kosovo and inland transportation to the installation destination

Price column for Related Services (see column No. 6)

The price column No. 6 for Works/ Related services in Annex 1, Sheet “Price schedule for Goods and Services” includes the following related subservices in [EUR]:

Overall project management and reporting duties (see chapter 3.4)

Detail design and execution planning (see chapter 4)

Storage of goods, warehouse management, good receipt and incoming goods inspection

Accompanying works like preparation of construction site, site management, site clearance and the required measures to be taken to fulfil the duties described in the Tender documents (see chapter 3.5)

Installation of mechanical equipment incl. new piping and/ or adjustment of existing piping insofar necessary to allow installing the described equipment and the following other materials (see chapter 6)

Mechanical works incl. installation of heat meter cabinets, piping material, pipe fittings, support materials, wall mounted pipe clamps, gaskets, pipe insulation, applying of corrosion protection…

Civil Works as far as requested (see chapter 5)

Connection to utility lines (e.g. connection of circulation pumps to electrical grid)

Installation of data collection and metering system (see chapter 7)

Mechanical/electrical completion of works, commissioning works, water filling of corresponding building heating system (see chapter 8.1)

Hydrostatic pressure test, commissioning tests (see chapter 8)

Trial operation (see chapter 8.8)

As-Built-Documentation (see chapter 3.3.4)
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This position shall include all civil works which are necessary for installation of surface or in-wall mounted cabinets and subsequent adjustments of existing pipes to accommodate a group of approximately up to five (5) heat meters in average.

This might contain the following works:

Prying open of building walls for enlarging existing openings or creation of new openings for in-wall mounted cabinets

Disposal of demolished material

Cleaning of DHS premises, electrical supply outlet

Insertion and mounting of in-wall mounted cabinet frames/ wall boxes in new wall openings

Alternatively: Installation of wall mounted cabinets

Plastering, filling and painting of walls after installation of wall cabinet

[bookmark: _1mrcu09][bookmark: _Ref63254786][bookmark: _Toc63425691]Mechanical works

[bookmark: _Toc62562188][bookmark: _Toc63258335][bookmark: _Toc63425692][bookmark: _46r0co2][bookmark: _Ref49266502][bookmark: _Toc63425693]Piping

[bookmark: _2lwamvv][bookmark: _Toc63425694]Pipes

The selected material for piping shall be at least the same quality as the existing piping material in the building with minimum material quality St 37.0. The pipes to be used shall be of standardized type based on nominal diameter (DIN EN ISO 6708), nominal pressure and operating pressure (DIN EN 1333).

The quality of the pipes must be documented and certified according to DIN 50049/3.1 B or EN 10204/3.1 B. Only perfectly weldable materials shall be used for the connection of pipes, bends, reducers and fittings. Therefore, the requirements for welding procedures according to EN 1011, EN 1708, ISO 3834, ISO 15614-1, ISO 15610, ISO 15613 and ISO 9712 must be met.

The required wall thickness shall be not less than specified in the table below.

[bookmark: _111kx3o][bookmark: _Toc63258282]Minimum wall thickness pipes

		Pipe Dimension DN [mm]

		Outside Diameter [mm]

		Wall Thickness [mm]



		15

		21.3

		2



		20

		26.9

		2.3



		25

		33.7

		2.6



		32

		42.4

		2.6



		40

		48.3

		2.6



		50

		60.3

		2.9



		65

		76.1

		2.9



		80

		88.9

		4



		100

		114.3

		4





[bookmark: _Toc62562191][bookmark: _Toc63258338][bookmark: _Toc63425695][bookmark: _3l18frh][bookmark: _Ref37759298][bookmark: _Toc63425696]Insulation

All new piping and piping elements shall be thermally insulated and have an insulation thickness adjusted to the existing installations but not be less than stated in the table below. All installed new components shall be equipped with prefabricated insulating half shells which includes the following components:

heat meters

circulating pump

Balancing, differential pressure control valves and manual shut-off valves.

[bookmark: _206ipza][bookmark: _Toc63258283]Insulation thickness of pipes

		Pipe size

		mm



		DN 15-20

		40



		DN 25-32

		50



		DN 40-65

		60



		DN 80-125

		80



		DN 150-200

		100



		> DN 200

		120





[bookmark: _Toc51141712][bookmark: _4k668n3]

[bookmark: _Toc63425697]Corrosion protection

Prior to mounting the insulation, the non-insulated steel pipes, flanges and weld necks shall be cleaned, and painted with a layer 40µm zinc dust corrosion protective paint and one-layer 80µm of surface finish vinyl- or acryl colour (only applicable in case no other corrosion protection layer is applied). The corrosion protective paints shall be applied in accordance with the paint manufacturer’s instructions and in accordance with good practice for paintwork.

The paintwork includes all steel installations, non-insulated pipes and equipment, supports, fixtures, hangers and accessories etc. which are not surface finished from factory/assembling plant. The colours shall be coordinated and approved by the Purchaser/ Beneficiary.
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The heat distribution equipment is defined as that main equipment essential and therefore necessary for the functioning of the heat distribution system within the building. For this reason, a replacement or rehabilitation of the existing main equipment becomes necessary, if due to the installation of new meters or heat control equipment, a proper functioning of the overall system cannot be guaranteed anymore.

The following equipment is deemed to be included by this definition and need to be replaced or rehabilitated if already existing respectively need to be retrofitted if currently not existing.

Replacement of existing unregulated circulation pumps in riser pairs (pumps with manually adjustable different pump speeds also need to be replaced)

Differential pressure control valve and balancing valve “twin valve combination” in all riser pipes when the required differential pressure cannot be adjusted independently from other riser cycles

OR: in horizontal distribution pipes if requested for hydraulic reasons

Other shut-off valves if required

An adaptation of the piping is only necessary as far as the installation of new components makes it necessary.

[bookmark: _Toc55311558][bookmark: _1egqt2p][bookmark: _Toc63425699]Circulation pump

Installation criteria

New frequency controlled circulating pumps shall be used for replacing existing unregulated circulation pumps in 

1. riser pipes if no main DH substation pump is existing

2. riser pipes if the existing main substation pump is not sufficiently dimensioned to provide the necessary differential pressure for the entire building heating system

3. distribution pipes between the DH substation and the distribution manifold with multiple connected riser pipes

In cases where sufficiently dimensioned new frequency controlled main DH substation pumps are already installed, unregulated pumps in riser pipes can be dismantled and replaced by differential pressure valves.

General

High-efficiency wet rotor pump electronically controlled, for pipe-supported installation. Suitable for all heating applications. With integrated electronic capacity control for constant/variable differential pressure. Thermal insulation shells as standard.

Pump housing made of grey cast iron with cataphoretic coating, impeller made of glass fibre reinforced plastic, stainless steel shaft with metal impregnated carbon plain bearings.

The pump shall be equipped with a synchronous motor according to ECM technology with highest efficiency and high starting torque, automatic deblocking function and integrated full motor protection.

Standard equipment shall include:

Single button manual control of:

Pump On/Off

Optionally feasible control modes:

dp-c (constant head control),

dp-v (variable head control),

dp-T (temperature related head control) in conjunction with IR-Monitor or LON,

n-constant (rotational speed),

Automatic setback operation (self-learning due to FUZZI technology),

Head or speed set-point levels,

Pump display screening,

Operating condition,

Control mode,

Fault and alarm signals,

Graphic pump display for displaying:

operating status

Control type

Differential pressure or speed setpoint

Error and warning messages

[bookmark: _3ygebqi][bookmark: _Toc63258284]Technical data Circulation pump

		Technical data

		Description



		Connection

		Threated or flanged



		PN

		PN 10



		Temperature range

		0°C to 110°C



		Energy efficiency classification (EEI)

		EEI: ≤ 0,23



		Frequency regulation

		Integrated frequency converter



		Protection class

		IPX4D



		Isolation class

		F



		Power supply

		1~230V (50/60Hz)



		Motor protection

		integrated





The pumps shall be connected to the electrical grid of the building by using the existing power outlet of the replaced pump. As newer pumps have a lower electric rated power the existing power outlet is expected to be sufficiently dimensioned.

The power control mode and other operating parameters of the pump shall be adjustable over the pump graphical display.

[bookmark: _Toc58511390][bookmark: _2dlolyb][bookmark: _Toc63425700]Balancing valve (if required)

Balancing valves must be a maintenance free valve suitable for usage in heating applications with valve position indication and possibility for digital read out, sealable valve position by wire and lead seal, hand wheel for accurate straightforward balancing and measuring nipples at high and low pressure (protected against leakage).

The valve shall allow the following functions:

Balancing

Pre-adjusting

Measuring point

Easy setting with locking function

Shut-off

[bookmark: Tab_BalancingValve][bookmark: sqyw64][bookmark: _3cqmetx][bookmark: _Toc63258285]Technical data Balancing valve

		Technical data

		Description



		Temperature range

		0°C to 110°C



		PN

		PN 16



		Material

		valve body made of grey cast iron or DZR brass, spheroidal cast iron or higher rated materials, valve body according to EN 558-1/1 (F1), EPDM sealing



		Connection

		Internal or external thread below DN 50

with external thread or flange above DN 50





Manual balancing valves shall be foreseen as “twin” valve wherever a differential pressure control valve is foreseen.

If necessary, balancing valves might also be foreseen for maintenance and service reasons (only optional).

[bookmark: _1rvwp1q][bookmark: _Toc63425701]Differential pressure control valve

Differential pressure control valve suitable for usage in heating applications with adjustable set-point which keeps the differential pressure over the load constant, shut-off function and measuring points for balancing.

The valve shall allow the following functions:

Differential pressure control

Adjustable Delta-P

Measuring point

Shut-off

Differential pressure control valves shall be foreseen in raiser pairs to allow an independent adjustment of the flow rate and the differential pressure.

This is relevant when

one circulating pump is feeding/ pressurizing multiple riser pairs (e.g. usage of only one single DH main circulation pump for the whole building)

the differential pressure differs significantly between the riser cycles

Unregulated riser pumps remain in operation in certain riser pipes

Anyhow is the main target of differential pressure valves to limit the maximum differential pressure head of the circulating pumps to ensure proper functioning and low flow noise at the thermostatic radiator valves.

Regarding the design data (p, T) and the material see Table 6.

[bookmark: _Toc63425702]Valves

Shut-off valve

Shut-off valves shall be realised as ball valves according to EN 331 with full-bore type. For the full-bore type valves, the boring shall be equal to the pipe dimension.

Shut off valves for heat meters shall be equipped with a thread connection M10×1 for installation of the temperature sensor (e.g. supply flow temperature sensor).

Non-return valves

Non-return valves shall be wafer design with extremely short overall length in accordance to EN 558-1, table 11, series 49 and suitable for fitting between DIN flanges. Metal-to-metal seat or soft seat (EPDM or FPM).

Non-return valves are necessary in case two redundant circulation pumps need to be installed in certain riser pipes.

[bookmark: _Toc63425703]Heat control equipment

The new heat control equipment shall allow each individual heat consumer to adjust and control the actual demand. The new equipment will most probably be situated in each apartment or in some cases in the corridor in front of each apartment.
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The following components are deemed to be included in the position “Thermostatic radiator valve” as defined in the Price Schedule:

Prefabricated valve set for each radiator suitable for different radiator connection types and configurations incl. screw fittings

Adaption of radiator piping as requested for installing the valve set incl. connection pipes

Dynamic thermostatic valves with built in balancing, limiting flow and differential pressure control function at each radiator

2-way thermostatic valve (for 2-pipe systems)

3-way thermostatic valve or 2-way thermostatic valve with bypass (for 1-pipe systems)

Thermostatic header for temperature regulation

Thermostatic header (manually adjustable - standard) or Electronic thermostatic header



Adaption of radiator piping

An adaption of the radiator piping might be required in some cases (e.g. for 1-pipe systems if no bypass pipe at each radiator is foreseen). In this case the minimum requirements stated in chapter 6.1 are applicable.

Prefabricated valve set

An adaption of the radiator connection is required in case the new thermostatic valve cannot directly be mounted at the existing radiator connection points (outlets). In this case prefabricated connection valve sets suitable for different radiator connection points shall be foreseen. This valve set might include the radiator valve, screw fittings, the distributor pipe, connection pipes and the connection form for the thermostatic header.

Radiator valve sets for the following radiator connection point might be necessary but shall not be limited to it:

Double point connection

Sidewise on one side of the radiator

Diagonally opposed on both sides of the radiator

Below the radiator

Single point connection

Sidewise on one side of the radiator

Below the radiator

Especially for 1-pipe systems the valve set shall guarantee a bypass flow at each radiator ensuring a constant water flow and constant differential pressure. This could be realised with an adjustable regulation cone or with a 3-way thermostatic radiator valve. The same valve set could also be used for classic 2-pipe systems in case the regulation cone can completely be closed for the bypass flow.

Thermostatic radiator valve (2-way)

The “dynamic” thermostatic radiator valve shall allow to automatically control the flow ("automatic flow control valve") and be KEYMARK-certified, tested according to DIN EN 215 or equivalent. The flow rate shall be stepless adjustable independently of the differential pressure. Pre-setting shall be possible with adjusting manually without any tool.

The thermostatic valve shall allow the following functions:

Automatic flow/ differential pressure control

Flow limitation

Shut-off

[bookmark: _Toc63258286]Technical data thermostatic radiator valve (2-way)

		Technical data

		Description



		Temperature range

		0°C to 95°C



		PN

		PN 10



		DN

		DN 10-20



		Connection

		Threaded or compression fitting



		Material

		brass, nickel-plated, stainless steel spindle and single or double O-ring seal (EPDM)



		Form

		corner form, straight form or other1)





1) as required depending on type of radiator connection



Thermostatic valve (3-way) (applicable only in 1-pipe systems)

Thermostatic three-way valves shall be used especially in 1-pipe system configurations to allow a bypass flow ensuring a minimum water circulation and keep the differential pressure almost constant.

The thermostatic 3-way valve shall allow the following functions:

Flow control (manual adjustable)

Limitation of too high differential pressure build up in the system

Ensuring minimum water circulation in bypass

Shut-off

Regarding the design data (p, T) and the material see Table 7.

A 2-way thermostatic valve can also be used if the 3-way function is realised with a separate bypass valve e.g. integrated in the prefabricated valve set.

[bookmark: _Ref62743956]Thermostatic header

The thermostatic header shall be suitable for usage together with the thermostatic valve.

Liquid-filled or gas filled thermostatic header with integrated temperature sensor, stable control behaviour even with small design control differences (<1 K) and KEYMARK-certified in accordance with DIN EN 215 or equivalent. Upper and lower limit or marking of the temperature range or blocking of a setting by two energy saving clips.

The thermostatic header shall allow the following functions:

Room temperature regulation

Frost protection

Limiting of temperature range

Locking the temperature set-point



[bookmark: _Toc63258287]Technical data thermostatic header

		Technical data

		Description



		Temperature range

		0°C to 95°C



		Set point range

		7 to 28 °C



		Hysteresis

		0,5 K



		Water temperature influence

		0,6 K



		Differential pressure influence

		0,35 K



		Response time with remote sensor

		Max. 10-12min







[bookmark: _Ref62741935]Thermostatic header (electronic version)

Bidding option of an electronic thermostatic header instead of the manually adjustable thermostatic header as described in 6.3.1.5.

The electronic thermostatic header shall allow the following additional functions compared to the manually adjustable header:

Time controlled adjustment of heat flow with integrated actuator

Programmable room temperature control with free configurable daily/ weekly heating profiles on an hourly base

Night setback function and economy mode to save heating energy during times when the user is not at home

Different operating modes (Automatic mode: according to a heating profile; Manual mode: by manually selecting a certain temperature; Economy mode: with temperature setting at a certain day/ night-time)

Digital backlit display showing all settings and operating buttons allowing to make all adjustments as required

Equipped with batteries with a battery lifetime of at least 2 years



[bookmark: _Toc63258361][bookmark: _Toc63425718][bookmark: _1jlao46][bookmark: _Toc55311646][bookmark: _Toc55311647][bookmark: _Toc55311648][bookmark: _Toc55311649][bookmark: _Toc55311650][bookmark: _Toc55311651][bookmark: _Toc55311652][bookmark: _Toc55311653][bookmark: _Toc63425719]Control valve (only applicable in 1-pipe systems)

Differential pressure independent control valve suitable for usage in heating applications with adjustable flow control and measuring function.

The valve shall allow the following functions:

Differential pressure independent flow control

Balancing/ Pre-setting of max. flow

Measuring point

Temperature actuator for limiting/ controlling the return flow temperature

Regarding the design data (p, T) and the material see Table 6.

The control valve is necessary to control and automatically adjust the flow rate and control the return flow temperature independently in each apartment distribution pipe. This control valve is only required for 1-pipe systems where the return flow temperature would increase under part load conditions due to the bypass flow.

[bookmark: _43ky6rz][bookmark: _2iq8gzs][bookmark: _Toc63425720]Heat metering/meter reading equipment

The new heat metering equipment shall allow the individual metering of the heat demand of every heat consumer connected to the DH network. The new equipment (HM) will be situated in front of each apartment or (HCA) inside of each apartment depending on the hydraulic situation.

The following equipment is deemed to be included by this definition:

Heat meter in apartment distribution pipe with manual shut-off valves before and after each heat meter

Heat cost allocators with integrated radio module at each radiator for the individual recording of the heat consumption (mandatory in all buildings where the installation of individual heat meters for each apartment is not possible for various reasons)

Wall cabinets in front of the apartments for installing new heat meters (could be either additional new installed wall cabinets or enlarged existing wall cabinets to fit the heat meters if necessary)

Parametrization equipment for heat meters and heat cost allocators.

[bookmark: _Toc55311682][bookmark: _xvir7l][bookmark: _Toc63425721]Cabinet

Lockable meter cabinet for installation of a group of in average approximately 5 compact heat meters (assumed average heat meter size with Qp =1,5m³/h) consisting of 1 mm hot dip galvanized steel sheet, white powder coated in RAL 9010. Depending on the available space, the cabinet shall either be surface, or in-wall mounted. In-wall mounted cabinets shall be adjustable in depth to take account of limited space conditions and different connection positions to the existing apartment distribution pipes.

[bookmark: _3hv69ve][bookmark: _Toc63425722]Heat meter

Installation pre-conditions

Heat meters shall be installed when the following pre-conditions are fulfilled:

1. All apartments in a multi-storey building are connected to the building heating system with a separate apartment distribution pipes which unambiguously is only providing heat to one apartment (=heating consumer).

2. No pipe interconnections after the heat meter between two different apartments which makes it impossible to clearly allocate the heat demand to the corresponding household (=heating consumer).

3. Enough space available for installing heat meters in a wall cabinet / cupboard (niche) in front of each apartment.

4. The above mentioned pre-conditions are fulfilled for all individual heating consumers in a multi-storey building.

If one of the above pre-conditions are not fulfilled, then heat cost allocators shall be installed for all heating consumers in the entire building.

General

Compact small heat meters with flow sensor, flow direction detection and electronically linearized flow characteristic curve.

Heat meters are defined as the combination of:

· A temperature sensor pair

· Flow sensor (mechanical impeller not allowed)

· An energy calculator

· Manual shut-off valves in supply and return pipe



The heat meter must have an EU Qualification approval and fulfil the requirements of EN 1434 part 1-6. It must be possible to seal the calculator unit, wiring terminals, temperature sensors, the flow sensors and other relevant parts of the heat meter which might be subject to manipulation. The calculator case must be suitable for fixed installation at the flow sensor or separate wall installation (split unit).

Enclosures shall provide protection to IEC 529, classification IP 65 minimum for field installed instruments.

Flow sensors shall fulfil the following requirements:

· Flow sensors shall conform to accuracy class 2 or 3 (MID – Measurement Instruments Directive) according to EN 1434.

· Flow sensors shall not require runs of straight pipe upstream and downstream. Meters shall be mounted either horizontally or vertically.

· Any pipe extension parts connected to flow sensors must not affect the measurement accuracy.

Heat calculator

The energy calculator shall display the following values: 

Total elapsed time of operation (h)

Momentary energy flow (kW)

Total accumulated energy (MWh)

Momentary value of flow (m3/h)

Total accumulated flow (m3)

The energy calculator shall have some of the following communication interfaces according to EN 1434-3:

· Wireless M-Bus (OMS) – standard with plug-in module

· M-Bus - only if alternative technical solution is necessary

· 1 pulse output - only if alternative technical solution is necessary



The calculator shall display tariff register and shall serve as data logger for system monitoring on year-to-year basis.



The standard communication way of transmitting meter readings shall be wireless M-Bus.

Alternative communication ways are not foreseen and may only be required if due to the expected bad radio connection in the building a wireless transmission is not possible, or bus cable can easily be installed. For this reason, the calculator unit must have the possibility to be upgraded with modules which allow alternative communication ways according to EN 1434-3.





[bookmark: _1x0gk37][bookmark: _Toc63258288]Technical data heat calculation unit

		Technical data

		Description



		Temperature range

		5°C to 95°C



		Ambient temperature

		5-55°C (93% relative humidity)



		Storage temperature

		(at the minimum) -5°C to 50°C



		Temp. difference range

		3-90°C



		Resolution

		0,01 K



		Measuring cycle

		2/ 60s



		Display min

		LCD – 7 digits



		Protection class (flow sensor)

		IP 65



		Protection class (housing)

		IP 54



		Decimal places

		up to 2 after comma



		Power supply

		Lithium battery



		Battery lifetime

		10 years



		Data storage

		Non-volatile memory (NVM)



		Reading dates

		Selectable yearly or monthly reading date minimum 24 months values via display or wireless M-Bus







The heat calculator shall also be suitable for walk-by read-out.

Temperature sensors

Temperature sensors in 2-wire technique shall be used.

[bookmark: _4h042r0][bookmark: _Toc63258289]Technical data temperature sensor

		Type:

		PT1000 acc. to EN 60751

2 wire twined sensors acc. EN1434



		Accuracy:

		Class B or higher acc. to EN 60751



		Cable length:

		Minimum 1,5 m



		Sensor Installation:

		Sensor directly in the flow by using a muffle or a sensor ball-valve combination (e.g. AGFW 27,5, 38)





Probes, muffles and fittings, which are necessary for the sensor installation, are part of the scope of delivery.

Each signal cable between temperature sensors and calculator shall be one continuous length without joints.

It should not be possible to disconnect, unintentionally or without authorization, signal cables between different parts of a heat meter. All connections shall be sealed.

[bookmark: _2w5ecyt][bookmark: _Toc63425723]Heat cost allocators

All heat cost allocators (HCA) shall be equipped with an integrated radio module and IrDA module.

Installation location

If the radiators in one apartment are connected to more than one apartment distribution pipe of the building heating system (e.g. apartment is connected to different riser pipes) heat cost allocators (HCA) shall be installed at each radiator in the whole building.

The same applies if two different apartments are connected to the same apartment distribution pipe or if the installation of individual heat meters for each apartment is not possible for technical reasons.

General

Each HCA typically consists of

· A heat conductor directly mounted on each radiator

· Heat cost allocator installed on the heat conductor

The HCA shall be approved according to EN 834. It shall be possible to define measuring free summer months (e.g. May till September: freely selectable) and detect a manipulation (e.g. break contact).

The HCA shall display the following values:

Current consumption

Due date

Due date value

Checksum

kC value

kQ value

Display test

[bookmark: _Toc63258290][bookmark: _1baon6m][bookmark: _Toc63258291]Technical data heat cost allocator

		Technical data

		Description



		Temperature range

		35°C to 95°C



		Ambient temperature

		5°C to 70°C



		Minimum temperature difference

		5K



		Device type

		2-sensor device (measuring mode shall be able to be changed between 2-sensor or 1-sensor mode)



		Clip on remote sensor

		Selectable 1.5m, 2.5m or 5m (cable length)



		Display(min)

		LCD – 7 digits



		Power supply

		3V lithium battery



		Battery lifetime

		10 years



		Reading dates (storage)

		13 - 15 monthly values



		Interface

		IrDA interface and Wireless M-Bus telegram data transmission per EN 13757-4, transmission of AMR and/or WALK BY, communication in S-mode, T or C-mode to read all OMS compliant



		Kc values

		Kc values data base (software)







[bookmark: _Toc63425724][bookmark: _Toc63425725][bookmark: _Toc63258367][bookmark: _Toc63425726][bookmark: _Toc53058566][bookmark: _3vac5uf][bookmark: _Toc63425727]Parametrization equipment

The parametrization equipment shall allow a pre-setting of all new heat meter and HCA equipment according to the correct installation conditions (e.g. exact type of radiator for HCA). The equipment shall be equipped with a wireless communication interface for connecting with a PC or tablet (e.g. wireless M-Bus USB stick) with a corresponding PC configuration software.

The required parametrization equipment must be handed over to the Beneficiary as part of the As-Built documentation.



[bookmark: _2afmg28][bookmark: _Ref63254868][bookmark: _Toc63425728][bookmark: _Toc495655213][bookmark: _Ref8735712][bookmark: _Toc482092464]Data collection/ metering system 

[bookmark: _Toc63425729]Hardware

[bookmark: _Toc55311808][bookmark: _Toc63425730]Data collection/ transmission gateway

Installation location

The data collection gateway shall be installed in freely accessible areas in the building with best possible wireless reception. Preferably in the basement of each building staircase. The location to be agreed with Consultant.

If the wireless reception in the building is bad the installation of a second gateway (or more, depending on the size of the building and the number of building floors) should be foreseen.

Data collection network node

The network node receives and processes from heat cost allocators, heat and water meter within a wireless M-bus system and shall fulfil the following requirements:

adaptable to local conditions with energy supply over battery

Processing of 1000 devices

Up to 12 network nodes can communicate with each other on a network and exchange the respective consumption data

Synchronising of the received meter readings in between different data collection gateways (if more than one gateway is installed in one building)

At least monthly data collection and transfer (via M-bus / SCADA system or via gateway / GSM / Cloud) within battery supply

The transmission range shall be extendable with network nodes installed at various spots inside the building up to 12 pieces

[bookmark: _pkwqa1][bookmark: _Toc63258292]Technical data network node

		Technical data

		Description



		Ambient temperature

		0°C to 55°C



		Protection class

		IP 20



		Number of devices

		500 (battery mode)



		Power supply

		Exchangeable lithium battery



		Battery lifetime

		5 years (monthly data read-out) and 10 years backup battery, exchangeable



		Antenna

		Internal



		Display

		4-digit LCD



		AMR software

		Automated data preparation

Merges multiple input files

Filter of double datasets



		Telegrams

		Wireless M-bus per EN 13757-4 and wired M-bus EN 13757-2/-3, EN 1434-3



		Encryption

		AES 128 bit 



		Interface 

		M-Bus, USB adapter interface and irDA interface





Data collector network node and SCADA system

In addition, in order to enable greater transparency and daily monitoring and reading of the heat cost allocator data, for both Termokos and end-consumers, the following technical data are provided for the GSM/GPRS M-Bus Master, as a component of the network solution:

The network nodes are equipped with an M-bus interface that can be integrated in a wired M-bus system or connect to SCADA system. The interface can also be used simultaneously to read out data locally or configure the network on site.

Table 13 Technical data GSM/GPRS M-Bus Master

		Technical data

		Description



		M-Bus standard

		M-Bus decoder (EN-13757)



		Maximal No M-Bus devices

		up to 200 connected devices



		Storage temperature

		-15°C to 85°C



		Working temperature

		-15°C to 55°C



		Protection class

		IP 40



		Number of connected devices and data storage

		32 devices – data storage for 25 days for 1 data collecting/hour

128 devices – data storage for 6 days for 1 data collecting/hour



		Mobile network connectivity 

		wireless



		Real time backup

		12 hours



		Real time clock accuracy

		<2s/day



		Software upgrade

		HTTP



		GPRS

		Up to class 12



		Frequency

		850/900/1800/1900 MHz



		M-Bus

		TCP server



		Reading reports 

		HTTP, FTP, SMTP ( e-mail)









[bookmark: _Toc63425731][bookmark: _39kk8xu][bookmark: _Toc63425732]Handheld unit (walk by readout device)

The handheld unit shall be used for the walk-by read-out in case some meter readings have not been transmitted automatically.

The handheld unit can be realised as:

· completely configured unit ready to be used or

· consist of a tablet/ terminal unit with wireless M-Bus radio module providing a plug & play PC communication via USB and suitable read-out software

The handheld unit shall fulfil the following requirements:

communicate via wireless M-Bus according to EN 13757-4 for walk-by read-out

support OMS (Open Metering System)

have a range of up to 800m (with suitable external antenna)

in compliance with EU R&TTE directive

equipped with pre-installed read-out software with the following functions

automated meter reading import

identifying missing meter readings based on a stored heat consumer list

processing of imported meter reading datasets (e.g. merging multiple datasets, filter of double datasets)

export function or interface to central metering software;



[bookmark: _1opuj5n][bookmark: _Toc55311811][bookmark: _48pi1tg][bookmark: _Toc63425733][bookmark: _Hlk55293391]Central metering and billing server station

A new central metering and billing server station shall be established in the Termokos premises suitable for running the new metering & billing software. The hardware shall allow operating the system 24/day throughout the whole year (365 days) and therefore all datasets shall be redundantly filed on a server platform (e.g. mirrored database for security and backup reasons).

The system configuration shall be capable for multi-user operation and support simultaneous access by multiple users at the same time.

The system shall be integrated into the internal Termokos network and allow a data exchange with the following existing systems:

SCADA system Cogeneration unit (WinCC 7.5)

SCADA system for heating substations (not defined yet but should at least be capable for communication via OPC-protocol)

Central billing and accounting system (System Expert).

All required hardware equipment necessary for fulfilling the duties described in chapter 7.2 are considered of being included in this position.

[bookmark: _Toc63425734]Enveloping and printing machine

Multifunctional enveloping and printing machine shall be delivered and installed in the premises provided by Termokos in accordance with the appropriate size of the machine and the recommendations for installation provided by the producer. The enveloping and printing machine shall fulfil at least the following minimum technical requirements:

•             Printing machine type: Colour Laser Multifunctional.

•             Smart and power efficiency less than 70 seconds power timer

•             Full colour and black and white printing

•             Available Core functions: Printing, Folding, Enveloping, Assembling of Envelopes 

•             Print speed: min. 30 ppm (A4)

•             Paper capacity 4 tray first try 500 sheets of 80 gsm

•             Printing method: BW laser beam printing

•             Print resolution: 1200dpi x 1200dpi, 600dpi x 600dpi

•             Double sided printing: Automatic (Standard)

•             Able to print different types of papers size such A4, A1/2 or small optional size of printing bills format such as height capacity, feeder A3, SRA and multi purpose tray.

•             Printing from memory media - Supported memory media:

-              The printer should be capable of being integrated in the Termokos LAN Network 

-              Supported file types for direct printing including printing from Remote UI, Advanced Space and Web Access: JPEG, TIFF, PDF*, XPS*

•             Supported media weights: Cassette/s : 52 to 220gsm; Multi-purpose tray: 52 to 256gsm; Duplex: 52 to 220gsm

•             Envelope printer – technical data according above specification for the printing machine



[bookmark: _2nusc19][bookmark: _Toc63425735]Client PC workstation

In addition, four (4x) Client PC workstations shall be equipped for the Termokos staff who will be responsible for customer relations and for billing/ accounting issues.

Client workstation

· Processor 3.0 Ghz, 8 MB Cache, 16GB DDR4

· Microsoft Windows 10

· SSD drive (500 GByte SATA)

· Interfaces: Ethernet 10/100/1000 Mbit/s; USB 3.0, serial, 2 × PS/2, display port, multi-monitor interface (for at least 2 monitors)

Workstation monitor (one for each client workstation)

· 24" TFT (resolution 1920 × 1200)

· Viewing angle stable PVA or IPS, min. 160°

· Anti-reflective surface

[bookmark: haapch][bookmark: _1302m92][bookmark: _Ref50545201][bookmark: _Ref50977317][bookmark: _Ref51139950][bookmark: _Ref51139955][bookmark: _Toc63425736][bookmark: _Hlk57923222]Software

The metering and billing software shall be installed on the new metering and billing station server.

The metering software shall allow the following functions:

Collection and postprocessing of up to 25,000 received datasets

Merging of multiple datasets

Harmonisation and removal of double datasets and incorrect datasets

synchronizing of automatically transmitted datasets already stored in central metering and billing station with manually imported datasets (e.g. collected data from walk-by read-out)

synchronizing of data with backup file system

Verification and plausibility check routines and reporting

verification of completeness of dataset

identification of missing data

plausibility check of dataset by comparing the meter readings of different billing periods

generation of error logs/ summaries

Interface to handheld unit read-out software for importing data sets received via walk-by read-out

Processing of heat meter readings of the external building substations via the SCADA system interface and allocation to the customer groups

Allocation of heat losses within the building and measurement errors by the DH substation heat meter to all heating consumers in these building (in addition to the direct assignable individual heat consumption recorded by the heat sub-meters or HCA in each heat consumer household)

Allocation of heat consumption results to the Beneficiary’s internal existing invoicing system and ID-Number translation for unambiguous allocation.

Operator tool palette with different access levels (without programming) i.a. for

integration of additional or exclusion or updating of consumers, heat meters, HCA, gateways, buildings, substations

adjusting input/ outputs masks, define search filter for datasets etc.

grouping and mapping functions for analysing consumer patterns, behaviour changes in heat consumption

updating of required data such as conversion factors, customer data, etc.

Other required operations

Energy monitoring and processing of historical data and consumption development with customised output tables, different diagrams, export to Excel, csv and other commonly used electronic formats on monthly/ yearly bases

Bidirectional data transfer with existing external bookkeeping system

Generation of invoices based on templates provided by the Beneficiary, adopted to accommodate the new required data as well as the customers historical consumption data comparison suitable as additional information for customers to rise energy efficiency awareness.

The current heat billing and accounting based on the heating area shall still be possible for heating consumers not included in this project (e.g. commercial and public consumers)

The invoiced amount shall be calculated by applying a suitable algorithm function considering the heat meter readings of the individual heat customers, values of HCA at each radiator and the heat and make-up water meters of the DH substations for allocation of heat/ water losses to each customer

High performance printing, folding and franking machine for printing and enveloping of at least 25 000 invoices every month within 3 days!

Module for conversion from printed invoices to digital invoices for individual clients which deliberately agreed on digital invoices.

Module for online payments and direct download in installed software in real time with the possibility of advancing and adjusting payments according to market demand.

Preparation of invoices based on previous readings in case of data failure and rollup procedure in the following invoicing period (e.g. crediting of amounts already invoiced/ paid in previous invoicing periods, etc.)

In case of failure of data processing for any reason (such as damage to the HCA, power meter or any other problem that affects the transfer of data) billing method will be able to refer exactly on the consumption data as the same month of the same period of the previous year or any reference month how will the customer be billed.

Etc. as may be necessary by the experience of the Supplier

Appropriate application with easy-to-read interface and transparent data display must be developed for the end consumers (in both iOS and Android versions), to enable at minimum:

i. Receiving bills on monthly basis

ii. Ability to do invoice payments through web or smart phone 

iii. Additional suitable features for such applications.



[bookmark: _1gf8i83][bookmark: _Ref63254910][bookmark: _Toc63425737]Tests and inspections

[bookmark: _40ew0vw][bookmark: _Toc20388673][bookmark: _Ref63254889][bookmark: _Toc63425738]Mechanical/electrical completion of works

After the installation and final inspection, the acceptance of the installed equipment, piping systems and their components in one building (with unique Heat ID) shall be carried out in the course of an inspection walkabout in the presence of Supervisor, Purchaser, Beneficiary and Supplier, to verify operational readiness and safety.

The works are checked, in particular for:

Completeness of new installed and replaced equipment

Acceptance of the installation complying with all applicable standards (e.g. Installation instructions/ guidelines of new installed equipment are fulfilled) and Purchaser´s Requirements

Assurance of the system’s perfect condition in terms of operation and safety

Cleanliness of installation site after finishing of works

Availability of (Preliminary) plant documentation/ test reports

Installation acceptance shall be recorded and any remaining issues and defects shall be listed, specifying the latest possible date for remediation.

[bookmark: _Toc51141991][bookmark: _Toc51141992][bookmark: _Toc51141993][bookmark: _Toc51141994][bookmark: _Toc51141995][bookmark: _Toc51141996][bookmark: _Toc51141997][bookmark: _Toc51141998][bookmark: _Toc51141999][bookmark: _Toc51142000][bookmark: _Toc51142001][bookmark: _Toc30587405][bookmark: _Toc30661816][bookmark: _Toc30663715][bookmark: _Toc30669869][bookmark: _Toc30671430][bookmark: _2fk6b3p][bookmark: _Toc495655214][bookmark: _Toc63425739]Water-filling of building heating system

The whole building piping system shall be filled with softened water from the primary side of the DH network via the make-up water line of the DH substation.

During filling, the pipes shall be vented as complete as possible in a safe way.

[bookmark: _Toc51142013][bookmark: _Toc30587412][bookmark: _Toc30661823][bookmark: _Toc30663722][bookmark: _Toc30669876][bookmark: _Toc30671437][bookmark: _Toc30587413][bookmark: _Toc30661824][bookmark: _Toc30663723][bookmark: _Toc30669877][bookmark: _Toc30671438][bookmark: _upglbi][bookmark: _Toc495655215][bookmark: _Ref37749034][bookmark: _Toc63425740]Hydrostatic pressure test

After water filling of the whole piping system the Supplier shall carry out and document a hydrostatic pressure test for all new installed pipes within the building heating system.

Preferably the pressure test should be done for the entire heating system of the building as one test, but it’s within the Suppliers decision to consider smaller sections for the pressure test if required in certain cases. Before starting with activities related to the pressure test, the Supplier shall submit a testing procedure describing all intended steps to the Implementation Consultant for approval.

The test pressure shall be equivalent to 1.3 × PN of the nominal pressure of the pressure stage and applied for 3 hours in accordance to EN 14336.

For the pressure test an appropriate and calibrated safety valve shall be used.

Valves may be used as shut-off valves (that means they may be in closed position) during the pressure test, if their design pressure rating is higher than the test pressure. If the design pressure of a valve is below the test pressure, the valve shall be in open position during the pressure test.

All the requisite measures and facilities are contained in the Supplier’s scope of supply and services.

A test protocol shall be issued about the conduct of the pressure test.

[bookmark: _3ep43zb][bookmark: _Toc63425741][bookmark: _Ref50708947]Commissioning

Commissioning shall be carried out under management and supervision of the of IC, Supplier’s specialist staff, and the Beneficiary. The Beneficiary shall be familiarised with the new installed equipment and trained in its correct use. All listed activities need to be done individually for each building within the scope of supply.

Prior start of the commissioning the Supplier shall submit a commissioning and testing procedure to Implementation Consultant for approval.

Commissioning, including preparatory work, includes, among others, the following works:

Configuration and parameterisation of all new installed heat meters and HCA with a suitable configuration software

Cable test, signal tests for wireless M-Bus connection, signal transmission test

Adjustment of circulation pump operation mode and parameters

Water-filling and flushing of building heating system (via make-up water from the DH primary side)

Leakage and hydrostatic pressure test of all new installed equipment (for more details see chapter 8.3)

Hydraulic balancing of the system (e.g. adjustment of setting for thermostatic valves, balancing valves, differential pressure valves)

Test operation of new installed equipment (e.g. heat circulation pumps, data transmission gateways)

Test operation of metering & billing software with dummy consumption data (see also chapter 8.5)

The commissioning phase for each building is finished as soon as the proper function of all new installed components is successfully proven and confirmed by the Beneficiary/ Implementation Consultant.

The Supplier shall give evidence that the implementation works are completed in all parts of the building (common areas + individuals apartments), the whole heating system is tight, and the new installed equipment works as intended. Therefore, a completion/ commissioning test protocol shall be issued incl. the name of all heating consumers and their signature confirming that the works are finished in each apartment and in the whole building.

[bookmark: _1tuee74][bookmark: _Ref51140093][bookmark: _Toc63425742]Test operation metering & billing software

Before issuing of the completion certificate, the metering and billing software shall be tested in a simulation environment with automatically generated sample datasets of dummy consumers. During this testing phase it shall be demonstrated that the metering & billing software, including the related testing phase public interface and application, is capable fulfilling the requirements stated in chapter 7.22

[bookmark: _4du1wux][bookmark: _Toc63425743]Test reporting

The Supplier shall submit a complete test program and schedule including the following tests:

Inspection and routine tests (on building level)

Hydrostatic pressure tests (on building level)

Commissioning tests (on building level)

Trial operation protocol (for metering and billing software)

The Supplier shall also include other tests, inspections and quality arrangements the Supplier deems necessary based on its scope, design and other Project specifics to demonstrate compliance with the Contract requirements.

The tests etc. shall be based and conducted on international standards, best practices etc. and subject to review and approval by the Purchaser/Beneficiary.

It’s the responsibility of the Consultant to initiate and supervise testing procedures on site and Supplier to prepare protocols from all relevant tests.

[bookmark: _Toc51142018][bookmark: _2szc72q][bookmark: _Toc63425744]Completion Certificate

If all works, tests, documents are completed for all buildings within the scope of supply, the Supplier may ask for issuance of a Completion Certificate. The following Trial Operation may start only after issue of a Completion Certificate by the Purchaser. This certificate may not be withheld for defects or faults which do not jeopardize the usage of the whole system.

[bookmark: _Toc51142020][bookmark: _184mhaj][bookmark: _Ref63257497][bookmark: _Toc63425745]Trial operation

After a successful initial offline test during the commissioning phase in which the existing consumer database from the existing system is fully imported, the trial operation shall be started during which the software shall take over all future tasks from collecting the meter readings to generating the invoices.

The trial operation phase shall cover the period of one full heating season with monthly billing intervals (Oct-April). The trial operation shall also be utilized for training the responsible Termokos staff in the usage of the new software and optimise the workflow. During this trial operation phase, the following exemplary listed procedures shall be constantly adapted and optimised together with the Termokos staff based on Termokos internal requirements.

Testing of meter reading workflow and processing of datasets of relevant billing interval

Integration of imported metering data via the DH substation SCADA system interface into the overall metering workflow (e.g. allocation to certain consumer groups based on Heat-ID number and ID of heating customer)

Verification of completeness of datasets and setting-up of procedures to collect missing datasets and identify double datasets (e.g. merging of automatically received datasets with the manually collected datasets via handheld unit with procedure of data inspection and verification)

Establishing post-processing procedures and plausibility checks of datasets (e.g. comparison of heat demand over various billing intervals, identification of obvious wrong meter readings)

Generation of invoices based on existing invoice templates incl. comparison of customers historical consumption data

Testing of bidirectional data transfer to external bookkeeping system

Creation of new customer datasets

[bookmark: _Toc51142022][bookmark: _Toc51142023][bookmark: _3s49zyc][bookmark: _Toc63425746]Acceptance

Preconditions for an Acceptance are:

· Issued Completion Certificate

· As built documentation handed over and accepted by the Purchaser

· Successfully completed trial operation with at least 3 billing periods without any problems of the billing system passed
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For ongoing optimisation works on the metering and billing software after acceptance, an extended software support by a programmer/ software engineer via remote access or on site shall be offered. These services will be called off by the Beneficiary on demand up to an amount as specified in the schedule SR2).
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This Bidding Document includes the following drawing:



		Drawing Name

		Purpose



		An example of a Metering and Billing Software

		Explanation of metering and billing software
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See Chapter 8 of SR 3 – Technical Specifications






[bookmark: _45jfvxd][bookmark: _Toc63258279]Environmental, Health and Safety Procedures

The Supplier shall abide by the following environmental, health and safety requirements:



Occupational Health & Safety and Labor Conditions should be compliant with MCC Environmental Guidelines, IFC Performance Standards and national regulations.

Ongoing worker input, training and education is essential for identifying and solving health and safety issues in the workplace. These elements should be addressed in a management system that ensures (a) compliance with applicable laws, regulations and customer requirements related to the supplier’s operations and products, (b) identification and mitigation of project risks, and (c) continual improvement. 

The Supplier shall abide by the following environmental, health and safety requirements:

· Health and safety measures comply with Kosovo labor laws governing occupational health and safety and/or 

· follows international best practices of occupational health and safety as established by OSHA (US) or International Organization for Standardization (ISO) 

· ISO 45001:2018 on Occupational Health and Safety System, and

· ISO 14001:2015 on Environmental Management System; 

· The supplier shall be certified with ISO 45001:2018 and ISO 14001:2015 and ISO 9001

· International Labor Organization ILO Guidelines on Occupational Safety and Health, and 

· WBG EHS Guidelines.

The supplier should be committed to uphold the human rights of workers, to eliminate all forms of modern slavery and human trafficking, and to treat workers with dignity and respect. 

MFK expects the contractor to be responsible for (1) complying with all applicable laws and regulatory requirements, (2) participating in self-assessments and/or on-site audits as requested, (3) providing clear and accurate responses to requests from Construction Supervising Consultant (CSC), Termokos, or MFK regarding EHS or labor expectations and regulatory requirements, (4) addressing potential EHS or labor issues in a timely manner, and (5) ensuring that these expectations are met by their subcontractors as well.



Product Expectations

Suppliers of products for DHM Project shall:

· Provide products that ideally do not contain restricted materials and that are not manufactured using restricted materials. If restricted substances are present in any product supplied to this contract, they must be below an appropriate threshold limit and the amount and location of such substances must be declared. 

· Provide a compliant Safety Data Sheet in all obligated languages for any products supplied.

· Supplier Expectations for performance of EHS & Labor in line with MCC requirements

· Have a process for identifying, controlling and notifying MFK of any non-conforming goods or services.

· Suppliers will cooperate with MFK on any product recalls, notifications, alerts or any other measures that MFK takes to mitigate EH&S risks.



Operations

Implementer of works shall conduct operations such that:

· Facilities are in compliance with all legal requirements applicable to the manufacture of products sold to or services provided for MFK.

· The supplied goods are protected against damage.

· The workforce is provided with compliant health and safety conditions at their place of work.

· The ESMP for DHM annexed to this contract is implemented

· Site specific Contractors ESMP (C-ESMP) is prepared by a qualified expert

· Worker exposure to potential safety hazards, physical agents and physically demanding tasks is controlled through proper hazard identification, design, Engineering and administrative controls, preventative maintenance, safe work procedures, and personal protective equipment. Examples of safety hazards include confined spaces, elevated work surfaces, and unguarded machinery with exposed moving parts and/or live electrical components. Examples of physical hazards include radiation, burning, and chemicals.

· Hazardous chemicals such as asbestos and lead paint are identified and managed according to WBG EHS Guidelines and Kosovo legal requirements to ensure safe and compliant handling, movement, transportation, storage, use, recycling or reuse and disposal.

· Potential emergency situations and events are identified and assessed, and their impact minimized by implementing emergency plans and response procedures according to Kosovo legal requirements and WBG EHS Guidelines.

· Procedures and systems are in place to prevent, manage, track, report occupational injuries and illnesses.

· All required environmental permits, approvals and registrations are current and followed.

· Waste of all types is minimized as far as reasonably practicable at the source. Wastes generated from operations and sanitation facilities are characterized, monitored, controlled and treated as required prior to discharge or disposal.

· Air emissions of volatile organic compounds, aerosols, corrosives, particulates, ozone depleting substances and combustion by-products generated from works are characterized, monitored, controlled and treated as required prior to discharge.



LABOR EXPECTATIONS

Supplier and it’s subcontractors shall ensure the following standards are upheld:

· Child labor shall not be used in any stage of supply chain of products and works implementation, and working conditions shall be conducted in accordance with Kosovo law and shall not accommodate any other forms of slavery, servitude, forced and compulsory labor or human trafficking.

· Wages and Benefits Compensation paid to workers shall comply with all applicable wage laws, including those relating to minimum wages, overtime hours and legally mandated benefits.

· The workforce shall be free of harassment and unlawful discrimination.

· The rights of workers to associate freely, join or not join labor unions, seek representation, and join workers’ councils in accordance with Kosovo laws shall be respected.

· Establish and implement incentives, requirements and targets for the inclusion of female professional staff in DHM-related recruitment, hiring and on-the-job training phases of the activities (e.g. requirement that at least one female be part of any work team interacting with households).

· Team composition for all those interfacing with household heads (HHs), customers and vendors will require at least one female staff/or and one female intern/apprentice, and ensuring that each team is able to communicate in the relevant languages of the target HHs. 

[bookmark: _2koq656][bookmark: _Toc494369294][bookmark: _Toc529548809]Preparation of C-ESMP instruction

The Construction Environmental & Social Management Plans (C-ESMPs) shall be prepared by Supplier in accordance with each subproject in line with WBG ESHS Guidelines, and Kosovo legal requirements. The C-ESMP should cover all phases of lifetime of the project, namely preconstruction, construction, operation, and decommissioning. The C-ESMP will not be limited, but must cover the following sub plans

a. Environmentally Responsible Procurement (ERP). 

b. Waste Management Plans (waste management policy and plan, safe disposal options)

c. Planning Hazardous Waste handling and Disposal (e.g. disposal of Asbestos, lead paint, etc.)

d. Air Quality and Noise Control plan

e. Materials Management Plan

f. Planning installation sites and returning the site to original state after the works are completed

g. Traffic Management Planning

h. Health and Safety Plan (The IFC Performance Standards on Environmental and Social Sustainability - Effective January 1, 2012 shall apply), including annex for COVID-19 HS Plan (attached to this Biding Documents)

i. Drainage Management Plan

j. Environmental Awareness and Information Disclosure

k. Grievance mechanism and communication plan with local people and local authorities

l. Gender issues and sexual harassment prevention plan

m. Contractors Arrangements for ESMP Implementation (Hiring of environmental staff)

n. Environmental Training

o. Agreed Schedule of Completion

p. Reporting




The Employer should attach or refer to the Contractor’s environmental, social, health and safety policies that will apply to the project. If these are not available, the Employer should use the following guidance in drafting an appropriate policy for the Works.



SUGGESTED CONTENT FOR AN ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICY

The Works’ policy goal, as a minimum, should be stated to integrate environmental protection, occupational and community health and safety, gender, equality, child protection, vulnerable people (including those with disabilities), gender-based violence (GBV), Sexual Harassment awareness and prevention and wide stakeholder engagement in the planning processes, programs, and activities of the parties involved in the execution of the Works. The Employer is advised to consult with the MFK to agree the issues to be included which may also address: climate adaptation, waste management plan, etc. The policy should set the frame for monitoring, continuously improving processes and activities and for reporting on the compliance with the policy. 

The policy should, as far as possible, be brief but specific and explicit, and measurable, to enable reporting of compliance with the policy in accordance with the Particular Conditions of the Contract, and General Conditions of Contract.  

As a minimum, the policy is set out to the commitments to:

1. apply good international industry practice to protect and conserve the natural environment and to minimize unavoidable impacts;

2. provide and maintain a healthy and safe work environment and safe systems of work;

3. protect the health and safety of local communities and users, with particular concern for those who are disabled, elderly, or otherwise vulnerable;

4. ensure that terms of employment and working conditions of all workers engaged in the Works meet the requirements of the ILO labor conventions to which the Kosovo Legislation is based on; 

5. be intolerant of, and enforce disciplinary measures for illegal activities. To be intolerant of, and enforce disciplinary measures for GBV, child sacrifice, child defilement, and sexual harassment; 

6. incorporate a gender perspective and provide an enabling environment where women and men have equal opportunity to participate in, and benefit from, planning and development of the Works;

7. work co-operatively, including with end users of the Works, relevant authorities, contractors and local communities;

8. engage with and listen to affected persons and organizations and be responsive to their concerns, with special regard for vulnerable, disabled, and elderly people;

9. provide an environment that fosters the exchange of information, views, and ideas that is free of any fear of retaliation;

The policy should be signed by the senior manager of the Contractor. This is to signal the intent that it will be applied rigorously.



MINIMUM CONTENT OF ESHS REQUIREMENTS

In preparing detailed specifications for ESHS requirements, the specialists should refer to:

· project reports e.g. ESMP

· consent/permit conditions

· required standards including World Bank Group EHS Guidelines 

· grievance redress mechanisms as described in the ESMP.

The ESHS requirements should be prepared in manner that does not conflict with the relevant General Conditions of Contract and Particular Conditions of Contract, 



MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR THE CODE OF CONDUCT

A minimum requirement for the Code of Conduct should be set out, taking into consideration the issues, impacts, and mitigation measures identified in :

· project reports e.g. ESMP

· consent/permit conditions

· required standards including World Bank Group EHS Guidelines 

· Kosovo legal and/or regulatory requirements and standards 

· grievance redress mechanisms.

The types of issues identified could include. risks associated with: labor influx, spread of communicable diseases, sexual harassment, gender based violence, illicit behavior and crime, and maintaining a safe environment etc.

 The minimum Code of Conduct requirement may be based on the following:



CODE OF CONDUCT REQUIREMENTS



A satisfactory code of conduct will contain obligations on all project staff (including sub-contractors and day workers) that are suitable to address the following issues, as a minimum.  Additional obligations may be added to respond to particular concerns of the region, the location and the project sector or to specific project requirements.  The issues to be addressed include:

1. Compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations of The Republic of Kosovo 

2. Compliance with applicable health and safety requirements (including wearing prescribed personal protective equipment, preventing avoidable accidents and a duty to report conditions or practices that pose a safety hazard or threaten the environment)  

3. The use of illegal substances 

4. Non-Discrimination (for example on the basis of family status, ethnicity, race, gender, religion, language, marital status, birth, age, disability, or political conviction) 

5. Interactions with community members (for example to convey an attitude of respect and non-discrimination)

6. Sexual harassment (for example to prohibit use of language or behavior, in particular towards women or children, that is inappropriate, harassing, abusive, sexually provocative, demeaning or culturally inappropriate)

7. Violence or exploitation (for example the prohibition of the exchange of money, employment, goods, or services for sex, including sexual favors or other forms of humiliating, degrading or exploitative behavior)  

8. Protection of children (including prohibitions against abuse, defilement, or otherwise unacceptable behavior with children, limiting interactions with children, and ensuring their safety in project sites) 

9. Sanitation requirements (for example, to ensure workers use specified sanitary facilities provided by their employer and not open areas)

10. Avoidance of conflicts of interest (such that benefits, contracts, or employment, or any sort of preferential treatment or favors, are not provided to any person with whom there is a financial, family, or personal connection)

11. Respecting reasonable work instructions (including regarding environmental and social norms)

12. Protection and proper use of property (for example, to prohibit theft, carelessness or waste)  

13. Duty to report violations of this Code

14. Non retaliation against workers who report violations of the Code, if that report is made in good faith. 

The Code of Conduct should be written in plain language and translated in the native Language of workers and signed by each worker to indicate that they have: 

· received a copy of the code;

· had the code explained to them;

· acknowledged that adherence to this Code of Conduct is a condition of employment; and 

· understood that violations of the Code can result in serious consequences, up to and including dismissal, or referral to legal authorities.  
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[bookmark: _Ref58019350][bookmark: _Toc62651556]Introduction

District heating services in Prishtina are provided by Termokos, which is an enterprise owned by the Municipality of Prishtina. Termokos provides service for approximately 12,140 apartments in Prishtina through distribution of piped hot water heat from Kosova B powerplant.

However, energy from district heating in Prishtina could be consumed more efficiently, which is currently not the case. Reasons why district heating presently is not cost-effective are that: i) individual households cannot control the hot water flow in their own heating system and ii) its use is billed based on surface area (m²) rather than on actual consumption. 

As a result, households will often use the “open-window” technique to regulate temperature. Therefore, the program aims to change this mindset and help testing the cost-effectiveness by charging households for the actual energy they use. At the same time, it facilitates energy savings to allow for expansion of the district heating network and service in Prishtina. 

Additionally, it will test the responsiveness of households to direct price signals, and aims to decrease household’s expenses for heating by making them more aware of how much energy they’re using and giving them more control over the energy use.

Heat metering and consumption-based billing combined with installation of thermostatic radiator valves, as demonstrated by the success of neighboring countries, is critical step on the path to Termokos future reform measures.

Implementing heat metering at the building level is also an attractive first step as it has the possibility of garnering widespread support from multiple stakeholders. Only initial and very limited discussions with Termokos and some of randomly selected consumers showed that residential DH customers favor heat metering and consumption-based billing. 

Recent regional studies have showed that building level heat metering, coupled with technical solutions to improve efficiency of heat delivery to households, has demonstrated mutual benefits for customers, DH companies and Government´s through installing equipment which allows heat supply to be matched with demand and reduces final heat consumption. Consumption-based billing allows households to benefit from this decrease, as average household expenditure on heating goes down, making DH, as service, more affordable.

Heat metering and more efficient heat distribution helps DH companies to optimize the design of the supply system, thus improving quality of service and reducing cost of supply. Improved quality of service leads to better collections rates, which improves the financial performance of DH companies. 

Yet, introduction of heat metering, consumption-based billing and thermostatic valves will not alone solve the problems in the heating sector. Other important reforms such as energy efficiency improvements in buildings, efficiency improvements in the DH networks, and regulatory reforms will be needed to improve the affordability and the quality of service in the sector.

As further outlined in the ToR the IC consultant has also recognized that the exclusion of women and other social groups from participation in livelihood activities remains a major socio-economic issue in Kosovo. Given the enduring role of women in household’s affairs within Kosovo and existing, albeit underutilized, potential of skilled women and other socially excluded groups to contribute to energy efficiency interventions, the project must be inclusive for these groups. 

[bookmark: _heading_h_2s8eyo1]The overall project objectives are outlined and specified in Technical Proposal, mainly defined to identify barriers and implement solutions for i) switching to Consumption Based Billing (CBB) as Energy Efficiency (EE) model for Kosovo´s economy, ii) the main stakeholders to move from their present situation, iii) reaching a model where consumer bills more accurately reflect individual consumption, and iv) develop strategies and policies that promote inclusion of women and socially excluded group by promoting employment, increasing their involvement in decision making, develop policies to address needs of individual consumers from a gender perspective by also targeting socially excluded group members, and a BC&O campaign that enables disadvantaged households to understand usage, control, and savings practices.





1.1. [bookmark: _Toc50713517][bookmark: _Toc14769449][bookmark: _Toc14769450][bookmark: _Toc14956660][bookmark: _Toc14958552][bookmark: _Toc14769451][bookmark: _Toc14956661][bookmark: _Toc14958553][bookmark: _Toc14769452][bookmark: _Toc14956662][bookmark: _Toc14958554]Project Description

District heating service in Pristina is provided by Termokos, which is an enterprise owned by the Municipality of Pristina. Termokos provides service for approximately 12,140 apartments in Pristina through distribution of piped hot water heat from a central plant. This district heating system has recently been revitalized and could be a cost-effective alternative for many households, utilizing cogeneration from the Kosovo B power plant. However, heating energy from district heating in Pristina could be consumed more efficiently, which is not currently the case. One reason why district heating is presently not as cost-effective, is that individual households cannot control the hot water flow in their own system and its use is billed based on surface area (m²) rather than on actual consumption. As a result, households will often use the “open-window” technique to regulate temperature.

Therefore, the program aims to help test the cost-effectiveness of charging households for the actual energy they use and allow for energy savings to allow for expansion of the district heating network and service in Pristina. Additionally, it will test the responsiveness of households to direct price signals and aims to save households money by making them more aware of how much energy they’re using and giving them more control over that energy use.



[bookmark: _Toc50713518][bookmark: _Toc62651557][bookmark: _Toc14769454][bookmark: _Toc14769455][bookmark: _Toc14956665][bookmark: _Toc14958557][bookmark: _Toc14769456][bookmark: _Toc14956666][bookmark: _Toc14958558][bookmark: _Toc14769457][bookmark: _Toc14956667][bookmark: _Toc14958559][bookmark: _Toc14769458][bookmark: _Toc14956668][bookmark: _Toc14958560][bookmark: _Toc14769459][bookmark: _Toc14956669][bookmark: _Toc14958561][bookmark: _Toc14769460][bookmark: _Toc14956670][bookmark: _Toc14958562][bookmark: _Toc14769461][bookmark: _Toc14956671][bookmark: _Toc14958563]Project Location

Pristina (N 42°40′, E 21°10′) is located in the south-eastern part of Kosovo at an elevation of 652 meters above sea level. Pristina has a humid continental climate experiencing warm and dry summers with up to 27°C on average, and cold and snowy winters with an average low temperature down to -5°C.

[image: A close up of a mapDescription automatically generated]

[bookmark: _Toc62609579]Figure 1:	Existing DH Network Prishtina in red color (incl. EU project in black color)



[bookmark: _Toc62651558]DHM Project objective

The objective of DHM is to put in place metering in the Prishtina DH network as a prerequisite for the DH Company (Termokos) to operate in a sustainable manner and provide heating to consumers in the most efficient way, i.e. to the lowest possible heat charge. In order to benefit fully from DHM, consumers should be able to control their own usage. This consumption control is an essential part of DHM measures. Therefore, when discussing CBB we refer to the entire system which starts with a building-level, Individual building Heat Substation (IHS) and ends with thermostatic valves, including a heat meter orheat cost allocators at a household level. This type of CBB provides the highest degree of consumer empowerment and delivers the best results in terms of demand-side energy efficiency. The DHM measures in Prishtina will significantly support scaling up DH networks in Kosovo.  Moreover, through this project Termokos staff responsible for billing and regulatory matters will be trained and informed with basic principles and ERO’s policy objectives including requiring of collecting gender disaggregated data. 

Major objectives of DHM project are the following:

Usage of provided DH network heat energy in efficient way

The actual heat consumption shall be adjustable and individually controllable for each heat consumer

Consumption based billing of all individual residential heating consumers: payment according to the measured consumed heat together with the new possibility of controlling required heat shall change the consumer behavior and raise the awareness of reasonable utilization of valuable heating energy.

Adaption of the existing internal building heating system by installing the required heat control and metering equipment as necessary to fulfill the required duties

The reading and billing service shall remain in the responsibility of Termokos enabling them to directly maintaining customer relations.

The foreseen technology for metering shall allow an automatic reading of meter values on a regular base. The used metering equipment shall allow automatic monthly reading.

The monthly based meter readings are transferred via a suitable communication way and transmitted to /collected in a central data collection/processing system. The data shall be processed within this system in line to Termokos’ existing accounting and billing system including an appropriate data interface.

The Termokos staff shall be trained by the Supplier in the usage of the new installed metering and billing system within this project.

Generation of transparent heat cost bills with a monthly presentation of the heat consumption and a comparison to last year’s heat consumption

Promote the inclusion of women and socially excluded groups in its implementation and as beneficiaries throughout the project through technical assistance, trainings, and a behavior change and outreach campaign. 

Assist Termokos in developing a marketing campaign to attract new customers and a responsive customer relationship unit including support for appropriate procedures to register and address track complaints and comments.

Support ERO in the design of tariffs for consumption-based billing with active participation of Termokos; address the needs of Termokos to adopt a new billing system, regulations, and pricing; and work with Termokos  and ERO to include socio-economic criteria and new, sex-disaggregated data points.



[bookmark: _Toc14956674][bookmark: _Toc14958566][bookmark: _Toc50713520][bookmark: _Toc62651559]Scope and limits of Supply

The scope of supply is comprising in total 444 heating substations and about 500 buildings connected either directly or via a secondary/tertiary network to the DH-system within the city of Pristina. The Contract contains different modification and adaption works on the internal building heating system.

Depending on the internal heating system configuration (dual pipe system and vertical/ horizontal system) of each building the parts of the systems described in the bidding documents could be affected and need an update and/ or must be refitted with new equipment.
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[bookmark: _Toc62651561]MCC Requirements

Projects financed by MCC are categorized in categories A, B, C or D depending on their adverse environmental and social impacts and risks. This categorization takes place at an early stage before the assignment of the implementation Consultant.

In the context of MCC the result of project environmental screening process will be an environmental classification following the recommendations contained in the OECD Common Approaches and the practices of the IFC, classifying in accordance with the potential environmental and social impact, and the extent of the environmental and social review required:

Category A: A project is classified as Category A if it has the potential to have significant adverse environmental and social impacts that are sensitive, diverse, or unprecedented. These impacts may affect an area broader than the sites or facilities subject to physical works. Category A, in principle, includes projects in sensitive sectors or located in or near sensitive areas.

Category B: A project is classified as Category B if its potential environmental and social impacts are less adverse than those of Category A projects. Typically, these impacts are site-specific, few if any of them are irreversible, and mitigation measures are more readily available.

Category C: A project is classified as Category C if it is unlikely to have adverse environmental and social impacts.

Category D: A proposed project is classified as Category D, if it will involve an intermediate facility (such as a municipal public grant fund) that will use MCC funding to finance subprojects that may potentially result in adverse environmental and social impacts.

The District Heating Metering (DHM) project is classified as Category C project. 

While MCC generally will not require environmental and social impact analysis for a Category C project, MCC reserves the right to require specific environmental and social impact studies, reporting, or training where relevant or where positive environmental and social impacts may be enhanced. The consultant proposes to include this ESMP and EHS training for stakeholders of this project. In addition, a careful monitoring of EHS issues will be performed during the implementation phase.



[bookmark: _Toc62651562]Kosovo Requirements and Procedures for Obtaining an Environmental Permit



The local procedures for obtaining an environmental Permit are defined by Chapter III of the Law No.03/L-214 “On Environmental Impact Assessment” and by the following former Ministry of Environmental and Spatial Planning (MESP)[footnoteRef:2] Administrative Instructions:  [2: Now together with former Ministry of Economic Development are joined together into Ministry of Economy and Environment (MEE)] 


· No. 10 /2017 on licensing compilers of environmental impact assessment reports 

· No. 16/2015 on information, public participation and interested parties in the proceedings of environmental impact assessment 

· No. 08/2015 on determining the tariff value of services related to the process of environmental impact assessment 

· No. 08/2012 on determining of documentation for application for environmental 

· consent according to nature of the project 

· Administrative Instruction No.09/2004 “On Environmental Impact Assessment” (this Administrative Instruction issued by UNMIK has been largely replaced by the Law No.03/L-214). According to this Kosovo Law, the EIA procedure includes generally the following sequence of procedural steps:

· Investor (or his Consultants) delivers the Application with all supporting information and documents to MEE

· MEE checks the application within 10-day completion and conformity with the legal requirements of application 

· (3.1) 	Provided that the application is complete and correct and MEE decides no EIA shall be required then the municipality is the competent body (otherwise application will be rejected and needs to be relaunched) to issue the environmental permit.  

· (3.2) 	Provided that the application is complete and correct and MEE decides EIA shall be required then the next step shall be the preparation the EIA Scoping with subsequent all EIA procedures are required. 

[bookmark: _heading_h_46r0co2]

[bookmark: _Toc62651563]Next Steps



During the prior MFK correspondence with MESP (now part of MEE) during Threshold Program ESMS development, it was decided that there is no need for a full ESIA for this project, and hence it was put in Category C based on MCC Environmental Guidelines. However, the Environmental Consent will be issued by the Municipality and the entire procedure will be significantly shorter.
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[bookmark: _Toc62609580]Figure 2: Envisaged next steps for environmental permit



Furthermore, the Consultant will include relevant obligations of the Contractors in the Tender documents. 

[bookmark: _heading_h_2lwamvv]
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[bookmark: _heading_h_111kx3o][bookmark: _Toc62651565]Applicable IFC Policies to the Project



In 2012, The IFC has updated their Environmental and Social Safeguards into eight Environmental and Social Performance Standards establish the standards that the Borrower and the project will meet through the project life cycle, as follows:

1. Performance Standard 1: Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts;

2. Performance Standard 2: Labor and Working Conditions;

3. Performance Standard 3: Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention and Management;

4. Performance Standard 4: Community Health and Safety;

5. Performance Standard 5: Land Acquisition, Restrictions on Land Use and Involuntary Resettlement;

6. Performance Standard 6: Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Management;

7. Performance Standard 7: Indigenous Peoples/Sub-Saharan African Historically Underserved Traditional Local Communities;

8. Performance Standard 8: Cultural Heritage;

The applicable IFC policies for the development of the District Heating Metering (DHM) Project are given inTable 1. 



[bookmark: _Ref51462550][bookmark: _Toc62609565]Table 1: Triggering the IFC Policies for the Project

		Directive

Policy

		Description

		Applicability for the Project

		Explanation for Client



		PS-1: Assessment and Management of Environmental and Social Risks and Impacts



		The IFC requires environmental assessment (EA) of projects proposed for IFC support to ensure that they are environmentally sound and sustainable, and thus to improve decision making. The IFC Policy PS-1 considers that EA is a process whose breadth, depth, and type of analysis depend on the nature, scale, and potential environmental impact of the proposed project.

		Triggered. 

		The project is to be screened and assessed for the potential risks and an ESMP is to be prepared.



		PS-2: Labor and Working Conditions

		PS-2 recognizes the importance of employment creation and income generation in the pursuit of poverty reduction and inclusive economic growth.

		Triggered

		Termokos and Engineering, procurement, and construction (EPC) contractors will promote sound worker-management relationships and enhance the development benefits of a project by treating workers in the project fairly and providing training, safe and healthy working conditions. Contractors will also implement employment targets for women defined under the special conditions of contracts. 



		PS-3: Resource Efficiency and Pollution Prevention and Management;



		PS-3 recognizes that economic activity and urbanization often generate pollution to air, water, and land, and consume finite resources that may threaten people, ecosystem services and the environment at the local, regional, and global levels.

		Triggered

		Termokos will take all preventive measures to use efficient technologies and to mitigate pollution to air, water, and soil. Installation of DHM will have a considerable effect on improving energy efficiency and reducing carbon dioxide emissions in space heating system in Prishtina.



		PS-4: Community Health and Safety 

		PS-4 recognizes that project activities, equipment, and infrastructure can increase community exposure to risks and impacts.

		Triggered 

		Termokos and its contractors and suppliers will evaluate the risks and impacts of the project on the health and safety of the affected communities during the project life cycle, including those who, because of their particular circumstances, may be vulnerable. We will identify risks and impacts and propose mitigation measures in accordance with the mitigation hierarchy and in line with IFC EHS guidelines, and draft project specific ESMP guidelines and conduct trainings.



		PS-5: Land Acquisition, Restrictions on Land Use and Involuntary Resettlement 

		PS-5 establishes requirements of the IFC for managing involuntary resettlement. Involuntary resettlement should be avoided where possible. Where the acquisition of land or other assets is necessary, the policy sets out requirements for participation in resettlement planning, mandates compensation for assets at replacement cost, and expects to see that incomes and standards of living of affected persons are improved or at least restored to what they were prior to displacement.



		Not Triggered

		The project will be performed in existing apartments and buildings and buildings and no resettlement or land acquisition will be needed. However, appropriate measures will be taken to minimize disturbance to people while DHM units are installed



		PS-6: Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Management

		PS-6 outlines the IFC policy on biodiversity conservation taking into account ecosystem services and natural resource management and use by project affected people. Projects must assess potential impacts on biodiversity. The policy strictly limits circumstances under which conversion or degradation of natural habitats can occur and prohibits projects, which are likely to result in significant loss of critical natural habitats.



		Not Triggered. 

		The project will not affect natural or critical habitat. As a result of improved energy efficiency, the project will have positive effects on biodiversity and resource conservation.



		PS-7: Indigenous Peoples 

		PS-7 requires that any development project must fully respect the dignity, human rights, economies, and cultures of Indigenous Peoples.



		Not triggered

		There are no indigenous people in the proposed project.



		PS-8: Cultural Heritage

		PS-8 recognizes that cultural heritage provides continuity in tangible and intangible forms between the past, present and future.



		Triggered.

		 Because project activities will take place at the existing buildings, there will be no significant impacts on Physical Cultural Resources. Impacts on Cultural Resources can be avoided or minimized.  The ESMP provides a process for screening out project for significant impacts or incorporating a cultural resources management plan into the ESMP for minor impacts. The ESMP contains a chance find procedure.  





[bookmark: _heading_h_4k668n3]

[bookmark: _Toc62651566]Applicable National Legislative Framework

The Republic of Kosovo is strategically oriented to become member of the EU, hence it is perusing implementation of the EU environmental standards and considerable progress has been made in legislation development concerning the Environmental Protection as a whole, including Water Protection, EIA, SEA, IPPC and Nature Protection. The consistency of Kosovo environmental legislation with the EU acquis is ensured through Progress Monitoring on transposing and implementing the legislation. A significant number of environmental laws have been revised and adopted in recent years by the Assembly of Kosovo (AoK) (http://www.assembly-kosova.org) and Ministry of Environment and Spatial Planning (MESP) (https://mmph.rks-gov.net/en-us/Legislation) have made significant progress in preparing the relevant secondary legislation (administrative instructions, administrative orders and ministerial regulations).

The environmental provisions are enrooted in The Constitution of the Republic of Kosovo: 

· Article 7, §1, defines the protection of the environment as one of the basic principles of the constitutional order for Kosovo[footnoteRef:3]. [3: Article 7, §1: the constitutional order of Kosovo is based on the principles of freedom, peace, democracy, equality, respect for human rights and freedoms and the rule of law, non-discrimination, the right to property, the protection of environment, social justice, pluralism, separation of state powers, and a market economy] 


· Article 52 states the rights of access to environmental information, public participation in processes of environmental decision-making and access to justice; these provisions are a substantial part of the EU environmental legislation.



[bookmark: _heading_h_2zbgiuw]Some additional applicable Kosovo legislation for the development of the District Heating Metering (DHM) Project are given in Table 2.
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		Legislation / Guideline 

		Brief Description

		Explanation for the Client



		Law on

 Environmental Protection 

No. 03/L-025 -

		The Law on Environmental Protection represents the legislative basis for Environmental Protection. It provides the legal framework that aims to promote a healthy environment in Kosovo through the gradual introduction of environmental standards affirmed by the EU aquis. To fulfil these objectives, the Law has designated a number of legal instruments to ensure duly implementation of the Law and enable effective promotion of a healthy environment in Kosovo.

		The Law on Environmental Protection enroots fundamental principles for environmental protection and describes the roles and responsibilities of the competent institutions.



		Law Nr.  03/L-214 On Environnemental Impact Assessment

		The aim of this law basically is the identification and assessment of the possible impacts of the project in environment, consultation of the environmental authorities and the public, taking into account the environmental report and the results of consultations in decision-making, determination of the method to prevent, avoid, mitigate or rehabilitate the adverse impacts on environment and human health, and provision of information on the decision.

		As explained in text above, there is no need for an Environmental and Social Impact Assessment Report for this project. However, an appropriate ESMP will be provided and MCC, IFC, and Kosovo regulations will be implemented with utmost care in this project



		Law no.04/l-110 on Construction



		The construction law is basic law that regulates all construction issue in the territory of the Republic of Kosovo. The importance of this law for the permitting procedures is stated in first two articles:

Article 1 - Purpose - The present law sets forth the provisions governing the issuance of a construction permit, the compliance with the construction permit requirements and the issuance of an occupancy certificate within the territory of the Republic of Kosovo.

 Article 2 - Field of Application - This law governs construction of all construction objects in Kosovo, design, construction, reconstruction, demolition, if not otherwise contemplated by a special law. 

		The precise procedures for construction permit procedure deriving from this law are specified in: Administrative Instruction MESP - No. 02/18 On Construction Permit, Construction Permit and Administrative Fees and Infrastructure Regulatory Charges





		Law no. 02/l-88 on Cultural Heritage 



		Low on cultural heritage is applicable and relevant to this project as it is dealing with digging underground and passing close by monuments of cultural heritage in all three cities. Law on Cultural Heritage of Kosovo clearly specifies the obligations of constructers in case they encounter cultural heritage movable or immovable cultural monuments in Kosovo. 





		They are specified in articles:

7.6. If during construction works an archaeological discovery is made, the discoverer or investor shall inform the Competent Institution immediately, but not later than the following day from the time of discovery. The Competent Institution has the right to immediately stop the initiated development works and will undertake an evaluated study and rescue archaeology on site for a limited period of time to be determined by a sub-legal act based on this Law. Development works can only recommence following the express permission in writing by the Competent Institution. 

4.11. Any legal or physical person who damages Cultural Heritage regardless of their ownership 
relationship to it, shall be fined or sanctioned based on the Provisional Penal Code of Kosovo, the Law on Minor Offences and according to Article 11 of this Law. 



		Law No. 04/L-111 On Amending and Supplementing the Law no. 03/l-087 on Publicly Owned Enterprises



		The Law No. 03/L-087 on Public Enterprises, which is in force since June 2008, was amended in April 2012 through the Law no. 04/l-111, for amending and supplementing the Law no. 03/L-087 on Public Enterprises. The amended Law has taken into consideration the greater representation of the Municipalities of Public Enterprises; as well. This Law has left the possibility for establishment of Public Local Enterprises. In accordance with these changes, amendments to the Law on Public Enterprises. Termocos is a local strategic public company and reports for it’sworks to Municipality of Prishtina.

		Public Entities: Law on Publicly Owned Enterprises (POEs) entered into force on 15 June 2008. The law establishes a regulatory framework for central and local POEs, placing them under the overall authority of the Kosovo government or respective municipalities. 

Regulation on Criteria for establishment of the local public enterprises No. 02/2013





		Law No. 04/L-161 – on Safety and Health at Work

		In addition to the law the following Administrative instructions and Regulations are issued:

1. Regulation (MLSW) no. 06/2017 on minimum safety and health requirements at temporary or mobile constructions sites

2. Regulation (MLSW) no. 02/2016 on minimum safety and health requirements for the use of personal protective equipment at the workplace

3. Regulation (MLSW) no. 04/2016 on minimum requirements for the provision of safety and health signs at work 

5. Regulation (MLSW) no. 04/2014 on minimum safety health requirements for the workplace

6. Regulation (MLSW) no. 03/2014 on preparation of risk assessment document, it’s contents, data on which the risk assessment is based and record keeping for safety and health at work

		Kosova Legislation on Safety and Health at work is in line with best international practice of ILO and IFC.

Noise exposer limit values and action values at work are specified in Article 4 of the Regulation (MLSW) no. 02/2017 on the protection of employees from risks related to noise at the workplace.



		Administrative instruction MESP - no. 22/2015 for management of wastes containing asbestos

		Regulation (MLSW) No.07/2017 On the Protection of Employees From Risks Related to Exposure to Asbestos at Work. This AI transposes the EU Directive 2009/148/EC - exposure to asbestos at work.

Regulation (MLSW) no. 04/2017 on the protection of employees from risks related to exposure to carcinogens and mutagens at work



		Article 4 of this AI sets ‘limit values pertaining to in-air concentrates are. For chrysotile: 0.60 fibers per cm3 for an eight-hour reference period; for all other forms of asbestos: 0.10 fibers per cm3 for an eight-hour reference period’.



		Law No.04/L-060 On Waste - Annex

		1. Administrative instruction MESP-no.14/2017 on wastes containing material persistent organic pollutants (POP) 

2. Administrative instruction MESP - no.02/2017 for a list of hazardous waste according to the origin

3. Administrative instruction MESP – no 29/2014 on sludge management by treatment of polluted waters 

4. Administrative instruction MESP-no-25/2014 on waste management of electrical and electronic equipment’s and restrictions on use of hazardous in electrical and electronic equipment

5. Administrative instruction MESP no. 05/2013 on management of used oils and waste oils.

6. Administrative Instruction MESP-no. 04 /2018 of for preventing major accidents involving hazardous substances

7. Administrative instruction MESP no. 16/2013 on the limit values for concentrations of hazardous components in waste

8. Administrative Instruction no. 06/2008 on administration of hazardous wastes.

		Annex, Article 7.3. states: 'Hazardous wastes are classified according to their origin, characteristics and content from which they becomes dangerous'.

Law no. 04/060 on Waste-Annex, Article 35 describes Hazardous waste management

Law No.04/L-060 On Waste - Annex, Article 10.6.4. states that: 'aimed to achieve the goals to reduce, reuse, treating or recycling the wastes in the territory included according to the plan’; Article 31 of this law Describes Waste recycling.

Article 19 describes Responsibilities and obligations of shipment of waste in Kosovo.





		

		

		



		Law Nr. 02/L-102 On Noise Protection

		Article 1 -Purpose 

1.1. The purpose of this law is to avoid, prevent or reduce on prioritized bases, the harmful effects, including annoyance, due to exposure on noise, in environmental. 

1.2. This law shall provide a basis for developing measures to reduce noise emitted by the major sources, in particular road and rail traffic aircraft, outdoor and industrial equipment, mobile machinery and for other sources of environmental noise pollution and annoyance. 





		Article 2 -Scope 

2.1. The harmful noise for human health by this law is each noise which exceeds the limit values, which will be determined by certain normative legal act, by the time aspect and by the place from where comes the noise, where people are working and living. 

2.2. This law shall apply to environmental noise to which humans are exposed in build-up areas, “spatial plan special areas” in public parks or other quiet areas in an agglomeration and in quiet areas in open country and near schools, hospitals and other noise-sensitive buildings and areas. 

2.4. Sub legal act from the paragraph 1 of this Article, issues minister of Ministry of Infrastructure and  Environment with previous consent of the minister of Department of Labour and social welfare and minister from Ministry of Health.



		Law No.02/L-102 On Noise Protection

		The purpose of this law is to avoid, prevent or reduce on prioritized bases, the harmful effects, including annoyance, due to exposure on noise, in 

environmental. It provides a basis for developing measures to reduce noise emitted by the major sources, in particular road and rail traffic aircraft, outdoor and industrial equipment, mobile machinery and for other sources of environmental noise pollution and annoyance. Among other, this Law prescribes in Article 10 that the Environment Impact Assessment Report should elaborate also the assessment of noise level and measurements for noise protection.

		In line with the Law on noise protection, the MESP issuedAdministrative instruction – No. 08/2009 on allowed values of noise emissions from pollution sources. This instruction determines allowed values noise emission from sources of pollution and measures for reduce and prevent noise. Sources of noise pollution covered with this Instruction are: traffic, road, rail, air and equipment for use in open-air environment.



		Law No.03/L-212 On Labour

		Article 1

The Aim

This Law aims at regulating the rights and obligations deriving from employment relationship, as definedby this Law.


Article 2

The Scope

1. Provisions of this Law shall be applicable for employees and employers in the private and public sectorin Republic of Kosovo.

2. Provisions of this Law shall be applicable for employees and employers, whose employment is regulated through a special Law, if the special Law does not provide for a solution for certain issues deriving from employment relationship.
3. Provisions of this Law shall be applicable for foreign citizenship employees and persons without citizenship, who are employed to employers within territory of Republic of Kosovo, unless otherwise provided by Law.
4. Provisions of this Law shall not be applicable to employment relationships within international missions, diplomatic and consular missions of foreign states, International Military Presence established in the Republic of Kosovo under the Comprehensive Proposal for the Status Settlement and international governmental organizations.



		



		Law on Gender Equality No. 05/L -020

		The Law on Gender Equality of Kosovo adopted in 2015, determines the general and specific measures to ensure and protect the equal rights of men and women, by also guaranteeing equal opportunity and treatment in public and private areas of social life, including political and public life, employment, education, health, economy, social benefits, etc. It also provides for the definition of equal treatment – as lack of direct or indirect discrimination based on gender and promotion of gender equality. The law is also in line with the EC Directive rules and Regulation defined in  directive 2006/54/EC) on the implementation of the principle of equal opportunities and equal treatment of men and women in matters of employment and occupation. 

		Specifically under Chapter III of the Law, (Articles 15, 16, 17,18,19) there are specific provisions defining equal protection and treatment, on the basis of gender affiliation, in employment relationships. Specifically the articles address protection from gender discrimination in employment relations requiring protection for women and men on the basis of gender equality in the private and public sector; requires conditions for access to employment, to self-employment or to occupation, including selection criteria and recruitment conditions; access to all types and levels of vocational guidance, vocational training; membership of, and involvement in, an organization of workers or employers; prohibition of gender discrimination in social security schemes at work. Also, obligations for employers include to refrain from including elements of gender discrimination in vacancy announcements; in labor relations to promote gender equality before and during employment relationship as well as ensure equal opportunities for women and men to apply for vacant positions. The law also calls for affirmative measures to address gender inequalities and low participation of women and men in under-represented areas of employment. Unequal representation is defined to be below 50% and should be aimed to be achieved (see Article 3, paragrap1.14). It also calls for prohibition of gender discrimination in access to and supply of goods and services. (Chapter III, Law on Gender Equality). 







1.1.1 Core Labour Standards of the International Labour Organization

The International LabourOrganisation (ILO) is a tripartite organisation consisting of trade unions, governments and companies, and is part of the United Nations system. In 1998, the ILO produced the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work. In the Declaration, ILO member states agreed that they should all respect, promote, and realise Core Labour Standards (whether or not they have ratified them).

The core labour standards consist of four standards, laid out in eight conventions:

· Freedom of association and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining (Convention No. 87 & No. 98).

· The elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labour (Convention No. 29 & No. 105).

· The effective abolition of child labour (Convention No. 138 & No. 182).

· The elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation (Convention No. 100 & No. 111).

Today all International Financing Institutions have fully adopted CLS in their activities.

Kosovo labour legislation is organized by basic Law No.03/L –212 on Labour and it was adopted by Assembly of Kosovo in 2010. This law takes into account conventions of the International Labour Organization, European Union Legislation and the fundamental principles of free labour market and economy, with the aim of establishing a comprehensive, functional and sustainable legal basis on employment relationship. Kosovo legislation has adopted all the above-mentioned ILO CLS through basic law and secondary legislation, in the form of Administrative Instructions. The responsibility of implementing this legislation is trusted to Kosovo Work Inspectorate, which inspects as well for Health and Safety at work and has fully adopted the OHS (Occupational Health and Safety) management system in line with good international practice such as ILO OSH 2001 Guidelines.

Today, from the legislative point of view the ILO Convention is fully implemented in Kosovo. However, the practical implementation with only 25 Work Inspectorates is still associated with difficulties.

Accordingly, the Law on Gender Equality also adopted in 2015, foresees under Chapter III specific measures and duties for employers including to refrain from including elements of gender discrimination in vacancy announcements; in labor relations to promote gender equality before and during employment relationship as well as ensure equal opportunities for women and men to apply for vacant positions. Further, the Law also foresees employers include to refrain from including elements of gender discrimination in vacancy announcements; in labor relations to promote gender equality before and during employment relationship as well as ensure equal opportunities for women and men to apply for vacant positions. Unequal representation is considered also within the public and the private sector and is considered as such to be below 50%. Employers including the private sector should aim to progressively achieve equal representation by aiming to overcome unequal representation of women and men in employment (see Article 3, paragrap1.14). 



[bookmark: _heading_h_1egqt2p][bookmark: _Ref51798440][bookmark: _Toc62651567]Environmental and social impacts, and mitigation measures

[bookmark: _Toc29225733][bookmark: _Toc29228224][bookmark: _Toc50428643][bookmark: _Toc62651568]Introduction

Installation o fDHMis associated with impacts mainly occurring during the DHM works. Typical negative impacts are related to:

· Health and safety problems and nuisance including possible dust, odor and noise emissions from any installation works  and the transportation of waste and other materials affecting the public and the employees of the works contractor.

· Environmental pollution from all forms of DHM works, clean-up operations, and waste generated when performing the works.

· Temporary disruption and/or loss of business activities in commercial areas.

· Effects on local people’s wellbeing due to the presence of (foreign) workers.

· This type of potential negative impacts can be effectively controlled, reduced and/or mitigated. Corresponding environmental and social requirements will have to be integrated in the works contractor’s obligations for daily consideration and monitoring. Considering the benefits for the concerned population and the relatively short duration of the works the overall conflict potential is suggested as low.

Given the fact that the scope of the proposed project (DHM sites) involve handling substantial amount of debris and potential small amount of hazardous substances, the associated impacts, if not properly mitigated, are considered of great significance. Hence, strict preventive measures and remediation actions are to be taken in order to prevent environmental pollution from occurring in the first place and when they occur an appropriate action plan will be in place to mitigate the effects on both local population and workers in this project alike.

This chapter assesses the project for key environmental and social aspects, identifies significant potential impacts that may be caused by the project activities and proposes appropriate mitigation measures to address these impacts.
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The significance of potential impacts was assessed using the risk assessment methodology that considers impact magnitude and sensitivity of receptors, described below.
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The potential implications of the project have been categorized as major, moderate, minor or nominal based on consideration of the parameters such as i) duration of the effect; ii) spatial extent of the impact; iii) reversibility; iv) likelihood; and v) legal standards and established professional criteria. The magnitude of each potential impact of the Project has been identified according to the categories outlined in Table 3.
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		Parameter

		Major

		Moderate

		Minor

		Minimal



		Duration of potential impact

		Long term 

(beyond the project life)

		Medium Term

Lifespan of the project



		Limited to DHM works period

		Temporary with no detectable potential impact 



		Spatial extent of the potential impact

		Widespread far beyond project boundaries 

		Beyond next project components, site boundaries or local area

		Within project boundary

		Specific location within site boundaries with no detectable potential impact



		Reversibility of potential impacts

		Potential impact is effectively permanent, requiring considerable intervention to return to baseline

		Environmental or social parameter needs a year or so with some responses to come back to baseline

		Baseline returns naturally or with limited response within a few months

		Baseline remains constant 



		Legal standards and established professional criteria



		Breaches national standards and or international guidelines

		Complies with limits given in national standards but violates international lender guidelines in one or more parameters

		Meets minimum national standard limits or international guidelines

		Not applicable



		Likelihood of potential impacts occurring

		Occurs under typical dismantling or site restoration conditions

(Certain)

		Happens under worst case (negative consequences) or best case (positive impact) working conditions (Likely)

		Occurs under abnormal, exceptional or emergency conditions (occasional)

		Unlikely to happen
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The sensitivity of a receptor has been determined based on a review of the population (including proximity/numbers/vulnerability) and the presence of features on the site or the surrounding area. For each potential impact of the project, sensitivity of the related receptor was determined using the criteria outlined in Table 4.
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		Sensitivity Determination

		Definition



		Very Severe

		Vulnerable receptor with no ability to absorb proposed changes or minimal opportunities for mitigation. 



		Severe

		Vulnerable receptor with little or no ability to absorb proposed changes or limited opportunities for mitigation. 



		Mild

		Vulnerable receptor with some ability to absorb proposed changes or moderate opportunities for mitigation



		Low

		Vulnerable receptor with good ability to absorb proposed changes or/and excellent opportunities for mitigation







[bookmark: _Toc50428647][bookmark: _Toc62651572]Mitigation Hierarchy

The following Mitigation hierarchy will be followed in this EI: (i) Avoidance, (ii) Minimization (iii) Rehabilitation/restoration, (iv) Compensation
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		Mitigation Hierarchy

		Definition



		Avoidance

		Measures taken to avoid creating impacts from the outset (including direct, indirect and cumulative impacts), such as careful spatial or temporal placement of elements of infrastructure, in order to completely avoid impacts on certain components of biodiversity.



		Minimization

		Measures taken to reduce the duration, intensity and/or extent of impacts (including direct, indirect and cumulative impacts) that cannot be completely avoided, as far as is practically feasible.



		Rehabilitation/restoration

		Measures taken to rehabilitate degraded ecosystems or restore cleared ecosystems following exposure to impacts that cannot be completely avoided and/or minimized.



		Offset

		Measures taken to compensate for any significant residual, adverse impacts that cannot be avoided, minimized and/or rehabilitated or restored, in order to achieve no net loss or preferably a net gain of biodiversity.  Offsets can take the form of positive management interventions such as restoration of degraded habitat, arrested degradation or averted risk, protecting areas where there is imminent or projected loss of biodiversity.



		Compensation

		Measures to recompense, make good or pay damages for loss of biodiversity caused by a project that can fall short of achieving no net loss or a net gain. For instance, this may occur if: conservation actions have been planned to achieve no net loss; losses and gains of biodiversity have been quantified; no mechanism is in place for long term implementation; it may be impossible to offset the impacts; or compensation payments are used for training, capacity building, research or other outcomes that will not result in measurable conservation outcomes on the ground.







[bookmark: _Toc481332911][bookmark: _Toc29226209][bookmark: _Toc29228228][bookmark: _Toc50428648][bookmark: _Toc62651573]Assigning Significance

Following the assessment of impact magnitude and determining the quality and sensitivity of the receiving environment or potential receptor, the significance of each potential impact was established using the impact significance matrix shown in Table 6.
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		Magnitude of Impact

		Sensitivity of Receptors



		

		Very Severe

		Severe

		Mild

		Low



		Major

		Critical

		

High



		Medium

		Negligible



		Moderate 

		High

		

High



		Medium

		

Negligible



		Minor

		

Medium

		

Medium



		Minor

		

Negligible



		Minimal

		

Negligible

		

Negligible



		

Negligible

		

Negligible
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[bookmark: _Toc481332925][bookmark: _Toc29226215][bookmark: _Toc29228236][bookmark: _Toc50428658][bookmark: _Toc62651575]Dust and Air Pollution from Installation of DHM Activities

Air quality will be affected and dust will be generated during DHM activities. Major sources of air quality pollution are drilling, cutting,welding activities, emissions from DHM related traffic and equipment. The DHM activities will also generate airborne dust and particulate matter. Dust raised from the above activities will have impacts on public health. The significance of the impact has been assessed as Medium, as shown in Table 8.



Mitigation

To mitigate deterioration of air quality and generation of dust, following measures will be taken:

· The equipment and vehicles used during the DHM process will comply with the Kosovo and EU EQS as well as IFC EHS Guidelines on emission exhausts.

· Contractor will implement dust prevention measures such as watering of roads near the residential areas and spraying of water on loose material where required and appropriate.

· Continuous air monitoring will be carried out near the sensitive receptors to ensure ambient air quality remains within the limits defined by Kosovo and EU EQS and IFC EHS Guidelines.

· Measures will be taken to protect the workers from excessive dust (i.e., usage of personal protective equipment and will also include equipment available to appropriate sizes).).

A GRM (discussed later in the document) will be put in place for all implementing partners to receive complaints from public on various aspects of environmental issues, including air pollution. These grievances will be addressed by the contractor by adopting necessary pollution control measures. Continued consultations with the affected communities will be carried out during DHM installation phase.

In addition, the measures in ESCP on air quality management will be implemented (Annex I: Environmental and Social Code of Practices for DHM Project).



Residual impacts

With the help of the above mitigation measures, the potential impacts associated with air quality deterioration are likely to be adequately addressed and hence the residual impact is likely to be Negligible in significance.
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The DHM Project has the potential to generate significant noise and vibrations from drilling and piling activities. Off-site movement of DHM related traffic also has the potential for significant noise generation. In general, the noise levels have to be maintained withing standards allowed for the DHM activities in both apartments and substations. The impacts of noise and vibration from DHM activities has been estimated as Medium, as shown in Table 8



Mitigation

To mitigate impacts associated with noise generation, following measures will be taken:

The equipment and vehicles used during the DHM installation process will comply with the Kosovo and EU EQS as well as IFC EHS Guidelines on noise.

Contractors will adopt appropriate noise attenuation measures to reduce the noise generation from DHM activities. The noise attenuation measures will include, (i) fitting of high efficiency mufflers to the noise generating equipment; and (ii) keeping acoustic enclosures around drilling equipment.

The DHM activities in apartments and near the settlements will not be carried out during nighttime.

A GRM will be put in place to receive complaints from public on various aspects of environmental issues, including noise pollution. These grievances will be addressed by the contractor by adopting necessary pollution control measures. Continued consultations with the affected communities will be carried out by all the implementing parties of this project during DHM installation phase.

In addition, the measures in ESCP on noise quality management (Annex I: Environmental and Social Code of Practices for DHM Project).) will be implemented



Residual impacts

With the help of the above mitigation measures, the potential impacts associated with noise generation are likely to be adequately addressed and hence the residual impact is likely to be Medium in significance.
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Demolition and repair works in buildings during DHM installation will generate spoils and waste streams. The spoils ought to be stored appropriately to avoid potential spread and pollution of surrounding environment. Improper disposal of spoils may eventually public health issues. The spoils will also act as a source of dust. The significance of the impact has been assessed as High.





Mitigation

The first step towards addressing the impacts of spoils is to minimize the generation of spoils by recycling the dismantled and demolished materials to the maximum extent possible. The excess spoils should be collected and stored behind the retaining walls or placed in the the areas approved by the project management.



Residual impacts

With the help of the above mitigation measures, the potential impacts associated with spoil generation are likely to be adequately addressed and hence the residual impact is likely to be Negligible in significance.
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During DHM installation works will generate excess materials from DHM sites (concrete, metal cuttings, discarded material, contaminated soil, and other mentioned waste in Table 8), including garbage, recyclable waste, food waste, and other debris. In addition, small quantities of hazardous waste will be generated from installation activities, lead paint, asbestos material, and other waste products. In addition, small quantities of hazardous waste will also be generated mainly from the vehicle maintenance activities (liquid fuels; lubricants, hydraulic oils; chemicals, such as anti-freeze; contaminated soil; spillage control materials used to absorb oil and chemical spillages; machine/engine filter cartridges; oily rags, spent filters, contaminated soil, etc.). It is imperative that such waste is responsibly disposed to avoid adverse environmental, human health and aesthetic impacts.



Mitigation

The following mitigation measures will be implemented: 

· Contractor will prepare and implement pollution prevention plan in line with IFC EHS General Guidelines 

· The contractor will identify suitable sites for disposal of hazardous and non- hazardous waste, or it will be sold to the certified registered vendors. The selection will be done in consultation with Termokos, MFK, Government, and the local government authorities.

· Protocols and measures will be prescribed in the ESCPs to be included in the contracts with the contractors.

· Other mitigation measures for specific hazardous waste specific for DHMare presented in Table 8.



Residual impacts

With the help of the above mitigation measures, the potential impacts associated with waste generation are likely to be adequately addressed and hence the residual impact is likely to be Negligible in significance.
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Construction Demolition Waste (CDW) piles will be required which will have significant impacts on the local air quality and noise levels due to drilling and crushing activities. The transport of material from the sites to the final disposal area will have impact on the local roads. 

The significance of the impact has been assessed as Medium.

Asbestos and other isolating materials: In older buildings, the removal of asbestos-containing material (ACM) in some areas might be a major effort, involving significant expense and requiring completion before workers can safely begin activities. The ACM abatement began with a survey of ACM at the buildings site to estimate the scope of the task. Asbestos regulations require proper notification before removal, good recordkeeping, and proper disposal techniques. ACM is one of the wastes that must be evaluated offsite disposal. ACM is difficult to identify in a survey, and some locations where ACM was used often are not discovered until the drilling process has begun. Therefore, contracts for second party ACM abatement should be carefully written and reviewed. However, although most of the buildings were renovated and if there was Asbestos it was removed, cousin has to be taken in evaluation of potential buildings where asbestos might have been used in construction in the old buildings. 

Regarding hazardous waste management it is required the generation and submittal of manifests. Based on IFC PS 3 best practice requires that the Contractor must document the type and quantity of hazardous waste generated during construction/installation (in this case lead based paint, mercury containing equipment or asbestos containing material) as well as the contact information for the transporter and the location and date of disposal at an MEE-approved facility. This information has to be submitted to Termokos and MFK. 



Lead Paint: Lead paint is an issue for many older buildings in Kosovo. Identification and removal of lead contamination may be required before workers can safely begin installation of DHM. Flakes of lead paint, which are produced during salvage and dismantlement of old equipment, must be removed. Disposal or recycling facilities should be notified before shipping materials and equipment coated with lead paint.

If materials and chemicals are stored on site in order to accumulate quantities for shipment, to await sampling results, or for some other reason, caution should be taken to maintain compliance with regulations for temporary storage of hazardous or special wastes. These requirements can include such things as time limits, container sizes, labeling/markings, inspections, or storage facility specifications.



Mitigation

Existing and government approved inert waste sites will be used by the Project. To extent it is appropriate, the Construction Demolition Waste will be used for construction of roadbeds or backfilling of sites. They will be identified in consultation with local communities and local government. Potential asbestos or lead paint found during preparation for installation works for `DHM will be handled in line with best practice, Kosovo and EU regulations, and IFC EHS Guidelines. No new waste areas will be developed in agricultural areas or ecologically sensitive areas. Additional mitigation measures to address the impacts from CDW removal activities are given in ESCPs (Annex I).

Regarding hazardous waste management it is required the generation and submittal of manifests. Based on IFC PS 3 best practice requires that the Contractor must document the type and quantity of hazardous waste generated during construction/installation (in this case lead based paint, mercury containing equipment or asbestos containing material) as well as the contact information for the transporter and the location and date of disposal at an MEE-approved facility. This information has to be submitted to Termokos and MFK. 





Residual impacts

With the help of the above mitigation measures, the potential impacts associated with CDW activities are likely to be adequately addressed and hence the residual impact is likely to be Negligible in significance.



[bookmark: _Toc50428653][bookmark: _Toc519685452][bookmark: _Toc519841211][bookmark: _Toc62651580]Climate Change Risk Assessment

The process of managing climate risks, involves identifying which climate hazards the project is vulnerable to, assessing the level of risk and integrate adaptation measures to reduce that risk to an acceptable level. The assessment considers the current climate variability and future climate change. The process should be based on sound data and forecasts. There are general tools to be used for screening and determining the climate risks, and the respective adaptation measures. Most of the cases simple tables that include

· activity/action; 

· potential risk assessment; and 

· adaptation measure, 

are used.  

If an area experiences extreme amounts of intense or high precipitation, flooding or other failure modes such as system overloading can occur if not considered during the design. When precipitation is low, additional demand on water resources is normal. If an area is prone to drought this must be figured out into the design of industrial infrastructure in order to prevent a failure in supply or construction.

The current DHM Installation project,once it is completed will be used for many decades and, hence, climate change will have significant effect on this project. The temperature range in which design elements operate is important. Extremes in cold and heat are integral design considerations. 

The main risks resulting from the climate change that may affect the project area are:

· Temperature

· Severe heat;

· Severe snow, cold, ice;

· Altered capacity or efficiency;

· Subsidence and/or desiccation

· Biological processes;

· Demand for service;

It may be concluded that all the above potential effects resulting from climate change, may lead to a damage of the potential future project site development. This should be considered in the design process, in the implementation (construction) process, selection of materials, as well as in establishing the maintenance measures. A summary of the measures to be considered is provided in Table 7.



[bookmark: _Ref52260916][bookmark: _Toc62609571]Table 7: Climate Change Effects, Risks, and Measures to be Considered

		Climate change effect

		Description of Risk

		Risk magnitude

		Risk occurrence

		Adaptation measure



		Temperature

		Severe heat

		L

		The heating system is used in winter season and hence there are no chance of heat wave during the winter.

		Attention will be paid to engineering works and selection of temperature resistant materials 



		

		Severe snow, cold, ice

		M

		The risk for damage is low. It can be high in case of inappropriate engineering works and inappropriate materials selected.However, Equipment installed in apartments has to take into account potential extreme heat waves in the summer

		Attention will be paid to engineering works and selection of resistant materials



		

		Subsidence / desiccation

		M

		In case of long-lasting extreme temperatures

		The design and engineering works have to consider maximizing stability structures and equipment considering potential increased temperatures.







[bookmark: _Toc50428654][bookmark: _Toc62651581]Carbon footprint of the project

The carbon footprint of this project will be very positive. The installation of DHM will increase energy efficiency of DH system and control valves will make possible better control of heat flow and it will incentives for users to save on energy bills, avoiding use current ‘open window’ practice to keep temperature under control. Additionally, by increasing efficiency for current users of DHS, it will release spare capacity for Termokos and KEK to supply additional potential for spreading the district heating system to other areas of Prishtina. This will have a ripple effect on carbon footprint reduction as such space heating will replace mostly electricity as heating source. As we know, 97 % of electricity produced in Kosovo uses lignite, which has energy conversion efficiency of around 20 %. By replacing it with CHP system that is the source for DHS in Prishtina it will at least triple the energy efficiency. The above-mentioned aspects, combined with other parts of MCC Threshold projects of Energy Efficiency on building, can have a significant effect on increasing energy efficiency and thus reducing carbon footprint of district heating system in Prishtina.



1.2 [bookmark: _Toc481332932][bookmark: _Toc29225737][bookmark: _Toc29228243][bookmark: _Toc50428665]Social Impacts during DHM Installation Works

1.2.1 [bookmark: _Toc481332933][bookmark: _Toc29226222][bookmark: _Toc29228244][bookmark: _Toc50428666]Employment Opportunities for Local Communities

The DHM installation project will have a work force of about 50 personnel. A large proportion of this workforce will be skilled and semi-skilled laborers including drivers, DHM installers, support staff, warehouse staff, and manual laborers. The local communities during the stakeholder consultations have shown great desire to be included in the project’s workforce (stakeholder consultations have been discussed later in the document). In line with the aspirations of local communities, the contractors will be contractually bound to maximize employing the locals as appropriate. In addition to maintaining good relations with the local communities, maximizing local employment may also be cost effective since engaging workforce from other parts of the country could be costlier. The project will also provide consultations to include both women and men to increase employability of women and also will report on the gender disaggregated data. Further, targeted increase of employment of women through action plans offered by contractors will also provide for additional evaluation points for selection of contractors under the contract special conditions. 



Mitigation

This is a beneficial impact of the project and hence does not need any mitigation as such. The contractors will be required to formulate an employment policy to ensure equitable availability of employment opportunities to all communities within the project area particularly the project affected persons (PAPs) and in particular active promotion of employment of women where suitable.



[bookmark: _Toc481332935][bookmark: _Toc29225738][bookmark: _Toc29228246][bookmark: _Toc50428668][bookmark: _Toc62651582]Community Health and Safety from DHM Activities

Community health and safety impacts during the DHMis a major issue in this project. These impacts include, among others, dust, noise, and vibration from drilling, cutting and DHM vehicle transit, and communicable diseases associated with the influx of temporary DHM labor. The later one is specially problematic with the COVID-19 pandemic that is currently underway in Kosovo. 

As project of DHM installation has a substantial component of work inside private apartments of people of Prishtina, the issue of intrusion on privacy of people is a major problem in this project.  There is also a concern about children tripping on or trying to play with equipment inside their homes. To mitigate this impacts contractor and all stakeholders in this project have to take extreme measures of caution to prevent any problems from occurring.



Mitigation

The mitigation measures to address the project impacts on communities’ health and safety will be addressed through the following measures:

· DHM workers will be trained by gender specialists of the project properly on respecting the privacy of people who’s apartments they must enter. Special measures should be taken when households are led by women and appropriate gender sensitive team has to take all preclusions to respect the privacy of women by having in team of workers at least a woman. Also trainings will include gender and social behavior orientation to ensure sensitivity to and appropriate, professional behavior (e.g. on sexual harassment) with females and vulnerable groups on teams and in consumer households.

· The contractor will prepare and implement an Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Plan that will also cover communities’ health and safety aspects, as defined in the operation manual.

· Ensure that the contractor has capacity and that the plans and their implementation adhere to all relevant Gender and Social Inclusion requirements foreseen by the MCC and MFK guidelines and policies through training and oversight!

· The community will be informed about the nature of DHM activities and the associated health and safety risks; awareness raising of the communities will be carried out for this purpose with the help of training sessions, posters, signage, and other similar means organized by the Consultant’s team.

· Consultant’s team will organize awareness raising of communities, in a culturally sensitive manner, about the communicable diseases including sexually transmitted infections.

· Liaison with the community will be maintained by all the project implementing parties.

· All the project implementing parties will establish GRM to address community grievances related to health and safety aspects.

· Workers will be trained on sexual harassment avoidance, by also providing information on the contact persons to report any incidents either incidents either by HH members or workers .

· In addition, workers should be made aware of respectful interactions with HHs and be provided additional tips on how to handle vulnerable groups, e.g. elderly, persons with disabilities in light of the installation related activities and should be part of an awareness raising and training materials.



Residual Impacts

Even after implementing the above-listed mitigation measures, the health and safety impacts on local communities cannot be fully mitigated. Hence the significance of residual impacts will be Medium, as shown in Table 8. Strict monitoring will be required to ensure that mitigation measures are effectively and strictly enforced.



[bookmark: _Toc481332936][bookmark: _Toc29225739][bookmark: _Toc29228247][bookmark: _Toc50428669][bookmark: _Toc62651583]Workers Health and Safety

Site preparation, DHM activities and the use of temporary workers’ office accommodation pose potential risks to the health, safety, security, sexual harassment and therefore wellbeing of DHM workers if not managed appropriately. Health and safety issues associated with the use of temporary office sites include those relating to sanitation, disease, fire, cultural alienation, resting space, quality and quantity of food, personal safety and security, and temperature control, amongst others.

Some of the Occupational Health and Safety risks which are likely to arise during the DHM installation phase of the Project, and are typical to many DHM sites, include: exposure to physical hazards from working on polluted confined spaces,; trip and fall hazards; exposure to dust, noise and vibrations; falling objects; exposure to hazardous materials; and exposure to electrical hazards from the use of tools and machinery. Another likely OHS risk to Project workers includes exposure to extreme heat during summer especially if critical needs such as access to safe drinking water and places for rest are not available.

Workers on the Project, particularly sub-contracted DHM workers, are vulnerable to risks to their wellbeing, health and safety on a daily basis. The Kosovo’s regulatory standards provide some protection through Administrative Instructions and Regulations. Appropriate health and safety management planning and execution in line with good international industry practice will be undertaken by the Project team to reduce the risks as far as possible.



Mitigation

The mitigation measures to address the project impacts on workers’ health and safety will comprise of the following measures:

· The contractor will prepare and implement an Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Plan in line with Kosovo regulations and IFC EHS guidelines, including MFK policy on sexual harassment and C-TIP policies.

· Contractors will have dedicated and qualified staff for ensuring compliance with the OHS Plan

· Regular trainings will be provided to the workers on OHS aspects, including regular periodic drills.

· Awareness raising material will be used including posters, signage, booklets, and others, including sexual harassment awareness raising information, with contact info for appropriate person to whom it should be reported!

· All site personnel will be screened for communicable diseases including sexually transmitted infections.

· Use of appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE) will be mandatory. No worker (or even visitor) will be allowed on the site without the required PPE (such as hard hat, safety shoes).

· Firefighting equipment will be made available as required at DHM installation sites, camp sites, and particularly near the fuel storage.

· Required safety and security protocols will be enforced for transporting, handling, storing, and using explosives.

· Complete record of accidents and near misses will be maintained.

· First aid facilities will be made available at the work sites and in the site offices. The contractors will engage qualified first aider(s).

· Location and telephone numbers of the nearest hospital will be displayed at appropriate places at work sites and in DHM workers camps. 



Residual Impacts

Even after implementing the above-listed mitigation measures, the health and safety impacts on site personnel cannot be fully mitigated. Hence the significance of residual impacts will be Medium, as shown in Table 8. Strict monitoring will be required to ensure that mitigation measures are effectively and strictly enforced.



[bookmark: _Toc62651584]Gender and Social Requirements for DHM

The objective of this task is to assess and review the status quo at the projects stakeholders in relation to the inclusion of women and socially excluded groups. It is evident that presently there is a low level of understanding of the whole gender-district heating nexus similar to other sectors where work on gender mainstreaming leaves much to be desired. Gender mainstreaming in district heating projects has recognized the roles and responsibilities of women both as beneficiaries of district heating in their communities and as users of district heating for domestic, production and community use.

Further, the Gender Analysis of Kosovo states that the public space heating company such as Termokos or the Kosovo Energy Distribution Services (KEDS) do not maintain gender-disaggregated data on the bills paid or complaints received. Women tend to be underrepresented within this sector. 

The objective of the intervention will be to develop strategies and policies that promote inclusion of women and socially excluded group by promoting employment, increasing their involvement in decision making, develop policies to address needs of individual consumers from a gender perspective by also targeting socially excluded group members by enabling disadvantaged households to understand usage, control and savings practices. Tools utilized will be through drafting of the Gender and Social Inclusion Action plan in the operational manual; setting of employment targets, gender-sensitive procurement language, including selection criteria; implementing agreements, contracts and terms of reference; household participation goals and targets reached to increase participation of women and of socially excluded groups as well as provide for required training for participating entities and personnel through a gender-sensitive approach.

Challenges for the recruitment of women in the heating sector including Termokos will be addressed as continuing obstacles of under-representation in senior executive positions and on the company’s board. Promoting employment and educating women for employment in Termokos will also be the project's objective. A gender policy will be prepared if requested by Termokos to address the gender-based discrimination, including awareness training on anti-discrimination policies. Further, increasing the percentage of women among the teams to be deployed for this specific project. Contractors will be evaluated against employment plans to increase employability of women within their teams and provided with additional evaluation points as foreseen under the contract’s special conditions.  

The contractor shall ensure that the activities will be in line with MCC's Gender Policy and will implement socially inclusive and gender aware policies. Throughout the project’s cycle, there will be a Gender and Social Integration Plan developed, whereas women and vulnerable groups will be treated as an under-represented group. Increasing equal access to Termokos services, regardless of socio-economic status, will be an acceleration of the use of goods by even the most vulnerable communities in Kosovo.

The gender component will help promote the equality of access to the benefits of these projects (such as heating services and employment) and will contribute to achieving the long term and sustainable development goals, ensuring that gender equality and equal opportunities are fully taken into account in the design and implementation of this project. In addition, the gender experts will help raise basic gender awareness among implementation teams and beneficiaries of the project on the ground. Specific focus will also be placed on recruitment and training policies and legal requirements of Kosovo laws related to Anti-Discrimination, Sexual Harassment in the Workplace, Gender-Sensitive delivery of Services, etc.



[bookmark: _Toc481332912][bookmark: _Toc29226210][bookmark: _Toc29228229][bookmark: _Toc50428649][bookmark: _Toc62651585]Summary of Assessed Impacts

The project’s potential impacts and their significance have been assessed using the methodology described in the above section. A summary of these impacts and their significance along with the mitigation measures are presented in Table 8; these impacts were discussed in the previous sections.
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[bookmark: _Toc481332913]

[bookmark: _Ref52212701][bookmark: _Toc62609572]Table 8: Summary of Potential Impacts, their Significance and Mitigation Measures

		Impact of various activities

		Sensitivity

		Magnitude

		Significance before Mitigation

		Mitigation and Enhancement Measure

		Significance of Residual Impact 



		Impacts from DHM Installation – Environmental

		



		Impact of the hazardous substances on people (staff employed in the DHM installation works, citizens of Prishtina municipality).



		Severe

		Major

		High

		Pollution prevention plan and implementation of Environmental and Social Code of Practices (ESCPs)

		Medium



		Dust and air pollution from DHM installation activities

		Sevier

		Significant

		High

		Maintenance of DHM equipment and vehicles; dust control measures as specified in ESCPs

		Mild



		Noise and vibration from DHMactivities

		High

		Moderate

		High

		Maintenance of DHM equipment and vehicles; noise control measures as specified in ESCPs , proper information of population when drilling and cutting works have to be performed.

Avoiding works outside working hours and nighttime

		Medium



		Damage of used existing energy infrastructure (e.g. cables).





		Mild 

		Negligible 

		Mild 

		Implementation of ESCPs

		Negligible



		Generation of spoils

		Severe

		Significant

		High

		Implementation of 3R principle (namely Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) when dealing with debris generated from DHM installation process

		Negligible



		Detected asbestos, lead paint and other pollutants during DHM installation process.

		Severe

		Significant

		High

		Implementation of ESCPs and IFC EHS Guidelines on Hazardous waste

		Mild 



		Generation of solid waste and hazardous waste and unexpected spread of dangerous substances during the disassembly.

		Severe

		Significant

		High

		Minimize generation of waste. Proper collection and disposal of wastes in approved sites or to vendors; ESCPs.

		Mild



		Climate Change Effect on DHM operation

		Mild

		Significant

		Medium

		Care will be taken in taking into account climate change outlook for Kosovo for the duration of DHM system

		Mild 



		Carbon footprint of the DHM 

		Major

		Major (positive)

		High

		DHM will have significant effect on lowering the DH Carbon footprint

		Severe (positive)



		Site clearance and Restoration

		Severe (positive)

		Major

		Medium

		Cleaning of the DHMsites and restoring the sites free of pollution and ready for use.

		Severe (positive)



		Impacts from DHM Installation–
Social Aspects

		

		



		Employment opportunities for local communities including targeted employment plans to increase the percentage of women within teams including of contractors to be evaluated that would target that 30% of employed staff are women

		Major (positive)

		Moderate

		Medium (positive) 

		Preference to the local communities in the non-expert workers employed in the DHM works 

		High (positive)



		Impacts from roads and damages to local infrastructure

		Mild

		Major

		Medium

		Reconstruction of eventually damaged roads and other infrastructure during DHM and transport of materials and waste generated during this project.

		Negligible



		Community health and safety from DHM works, traffic, and other related activities

		Severe 

		Major

		High

		Traffic, noise and dust control measures in accordance with ESCPs;

OHS management plan to be implemented. 

		Medium 



		Workers health and safety

		Severe 

		Major

		High

		Occupational health and safety measures in accordance with ESCPs and IFC EHS Guidelines

		Medium



		Blocked access due to transport of equipment and debris

		Mild

		Moderate 

		Medium 

		Traffic management plan to be implemented;

Alternate routes to be identified in consultation with communities;

GRM to be established.

		Negligible



		Social conflict and privacy of women

		Major

		Major

		High

		Workers to be trained on social and gender sensitivity and privacy of people in their homes including one woman on each works implementing contractor’s teams making the household visits;

 contractor to enforce code of conduct to respect local norms and culture and avoid sexual harassment; 

liaison with local communities to be maintained; 

GRM to be established.

		Medium



		Workers health and safety during maintenance of DHM

		Severe 

		Major

		High

		Implementation of Standard operating procedures (SOPs) of Termokos.

		Negligible











[bookmark: _Toc50428679][bookmark: _Toc62651586]Cumulative impacts from Extension of district heating system in Prishtina from cogeneration of Kosova B

Installation of cogeneration from Kosova B to cover connected buildings in district heating system of Prishtina had a significant impact in improvement of district heating supply to customers, improving energy efficiency, and reduction of electricity consumption in the city of Prishtina. The old system was based on heavy oil heating system installed in the downtown Prishtina and was characterized by limited heating capacity that lead to genuine dissatisfaction by customers, who had to pay for district heating although they needed to use other heating sources (mostly expensive electricity) in order to satisfy their needs for worming their residential or public space (see Figure 3).





[bookmark: _Ref52280796][bookmark: _Toc62609581]Figure 3: Extensions, heating source total and selected areas



Even with cogeneration in function, the DH network in Prishtina covers a small portion of space heating and majority of people use electricity for space heating purposes, which overloads the electricity system of Kosova in the winter period. Having seen the initial success with cogeneration, the network rehabilitation and extension is being implemented by one EU project and a KfW2 project, which will be described below.



[bookmark: _Toc50428680][bookmark: _Toc62651587]EU project

Within the EU project existing pipes and IHS will be rehabilitated and new buildings connected to the existing DH network. 

According to the EU project Tender specifications the following rehabilitation and extension measures are foreseen in various districts spread over the city. 

1. Rehabilitation of existing IHS 

2. Installation of new IHS 

3. Rehabilitation of existing pipe sections 

4. Installation of new pipe sections to new installed IHS 

5. Installations of pressure difference control valves (PDCVs) in existing IHS 

6. Other rehabilitation measures (e.g. Heat meter in Sunny Hill, Water quality analyzer) 

All new substations and pipe sections of the EU project (densification and extension areas) will be included into the GIS database (the update of the GIS database is still ongoing on the KfW2 project). 



[bookmark: _Toc62609573]Table 9: Substations for rehabilitation incl. PDCVs

		

		Heat capacity

		Number substation



		Rehabilitation measure

		 EU

		EU+KFW2 DPCV

		EU

		 EU+KfW2 

DPCV



		Automatization

		2.836 kW

		2.836 kW

		5

		5



		Automatization + DPCV

		1.096 kW

		1.319 kW

		3

		4



		Complete

		43.192 kW

		43.192 kW

		69

		69



		Complete + DPCV

		14.210 kW

		19.830 kW

		25

		40



		Total

		61.334 kW

		67.177 kW

		102

		118







[bookmark: BM14]At certain substations (independent of whether the whole substation shall be replaced or only an automatization is foreseen) with high differential pressure between supply and return flow line (e.g. especially at substations close to the HRS) additional self-actuating differential pressure control valves (DPCV) are foreseen for supporting the temperature control valve of the substation. Those substations which are considered to be equipped with a PDCV in the course of the EU project but are supposed to be rehabilitated within the KfW2 project (in total 16 PDCVs) will be excluded from the scope of the KfW2 project.

Table 10 illustrates the number of installed substations and the connected capacity of the DH network consumers to be expected after implementation of the EU project. 



[bookmark: _Ref52281549][bookmark: _Toc62609574]Table 10: Expected Masterplan Baseline incl. EU project measures

		Installed capacity 

		Number substation

		Installed capacity



		Existing DH network 

		4501)

		169 MW1)



		EU project (new substations) 

		492) 

		18,5 MW2)



		Masterplan Baseline (incl. EU project) 

		499 

		187,5 MW 





1) In accordance to the current status of the GIS database (sum of the heat capacity kW of all installed substations without considering any simultaneity) 

2) In accordance to the EU design documents (the EU project extension measures are currently inserted into the GIS database



[bookmark: _Toc50428681][bookmark: _Toc62651588]KfW2 project

Based on the updated attributes of the pipe age and type in the GIS the following pipes are identified for rehabilitation. Mainly this includes all still existing “classic old pipes” (see Figure 4). The length of pipes with different diameter will be more than 7000 m.



[image: A close up of a mapDescription automatically generated]

[bookmark: _Ref52281667][bookmark: _Toc62609582]Figure 4: DH pipes for rehabilitation (classic old pipes)

Pre-insulated pipes (green color) 

Classic old pipes (red color) 



Similar to EU project, in the KfW2 project district heating substations (HIS) need mechanical/hydraulic rehabilitated but still have no up to date automation. To save investment costs Termokos decided that these substations will have only automation system with new control valves and measurements, but the rest of the equipment can remain as it is. 

The identification of these substations was done by the Termokos staff and incorporated into GIS by the Consultant in KfW2 project. 



[image: A close up of a mapDescription automatically generated]

[bookmark: _Toc62609583]Figure 5: DH substations for rehabilitation

Complete replacement (green color) 

Automatization (red color) 



The quantities which shall be rehabilitated are: 

· 248 Complete rehabilitation 

· 36 Only automation 

Also, all passive substations where no future operation is expected will be excluded. The quantities mentioned above already consider the reduced scope within the KfW2 project (see Table 10). 

Rehabilitation and expansion of DH network in Prishtina from cogeneration will be continuing in the future from existing spare capacity in Kosova B and new powerplant is foreseen to be cogeneration ready plant. This will have a significant positive effected on all aspects with environmental improvement in Prishtina and surrounding areas, including Obiliq, will reduce electricity demand in wintertime, will reduce carbon dioxide emissions and improve quality of life for inhabitants of Prishtina.






[bookmark: _Toc481332974][bookmark: _Toc29225748][bookmark: _Toc29228263][bookmark: _Toc50428694][bookmark: _Toc62651589]Environmental and Social Management



[bookmark: _Toc481332965][bookmark: _Toc29225746][bookmark: _Toc29228254][bookmark: _Toc50428685][bookmark: _Toc62651590]Inclusion of Relevant Components of ESMP in Contract Documents

The ESMP of the Project along with the ESCPs will be included in the contractors’ bid documents. The technical specifications of the bid documents will clearly state that contractor will need to comply with the mitigation measures provided in ESMP and ESCPs; European Union, IFC EHS General Guidelines; and National Environmental and Health and Safety Standards (NEHSS), MCC Gender Policy and C-TIP and MFK sexual harassment requirements with technical specifications including specific clause on female employment.



[bookmark: _Toc481332966][bookmark: _Toc29226226][bookmark: _Toc29228255][bookmark: _Toc50428686][bookmark: _Toc62651591]BOQs in Bid Documents

After award of the contract and before mobilization, the Contractor will need to prepare ‘Contractor’s Environmental Action Plan’ (CEAP) with site specific mitigation measures for approval by Termokos, Implementation Consultants (IC) and MFK.

IC will ensure the contractors and their subcontractors carry out their responsibility of implementing the mitigation measures, monitoring plan as well as other environmental and safety measures.



[bookmark: _Toc481332968][bookmark: _Toc29225747][bookmark: _Toc29228257][bookmark: _Toc50428688][bookmark: _Toc62651592]Institutional Arrangements

[bookmark: _Toc481332969][bookmark: _Toc29226228][bookmark: _Toc29228258][bookmark: _Toc50428689][bookmark: _Toc62651593]Project Management Unit (PMU)

[bookmark: _Toc26753898]The Project implementation will be led by the Project Management Unit (PMU) that will be established within Termokos for DHM Project. The PMU is headed by the Project Director (PD) and includes an Environment and Social Impact Expert (ESIE) drawn from Termokos Environmental Department Staff. The ESIE will assist the PD on issues related to environmental and social management and oversee Implementation Consultants (IC) and contractors and will compile quarterly monitoring reports on ESMP compliance, to be sent to the Project Director and also shared with the MFK and MCC, throughout the contract period. Within PMU will also be established a Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) to handle potential Environmental and Social grievances of external stakeholders of this project, and grievances from works working in the project.

Project Director (PMU)

Construction Implementation Consultant  (IC) (Environmental, OHS and Social Specialist, including :GSI specialist, for ESMP implementation) 

Environmental and Social Impact Expert (ESIE)

Millenium Foundation Kosovo (MFK)

Other Environmental and Social Consultants

Contractors

(Environmental Health and Safety Officers)

MFK Environmentv and Social Expert

GRC



Project Implementation Units (at field level) to facilitate implementation of ESMP





[bookmark: _Ref51542851][bookmark: _Toc62609584]Figure 6: Organogram for Environmental and Social Management of the Project



The IC will also provide trainings to the ESIC and other Termokos field personnel responsible for monitoring of environmental compliance during construction phases of the project. The organogram PMU is shown in Figure 6.

The overall responsibility of environmental performance including ESMP implementation of the Project will rest with the PMU. Aside from their in-house environmental and social specialists, the PMU will engage Implementation Consultants (IC) to supervise the contractors on their execution of construction-related environmental and social management requirements and measures. The IC will ensure adherence to the design parameters including quality requirements, as well as all ESMP measures related to construction.

The ESIC have environmental and social specialists (one Deputy Manager and two Assistant Managers; one for environment and one for social) and maintain coordination and liaison with IC for effective ESMP implementation. Similarly, the IC will also have environmental and social specialist who will supervise and monitor the contractors for effective ESMP. The contractors in turn will also have Environmental and OHS officers who will ensure ESMP implementation during construction activities and will be tasked to develop necessary detailed HSE plans as per this ESMP, and oversee their implementation.

The PMU will set up a field level Project Implementation Unit (PIU) for facilitating and supervising the construction of DHM project. The roles and responsibilities of PMU and its consultants are presented in Table 11.









[bookmark: _Ref51577956][bookmark: _Toc62609575]Table 11: Roles and Responsibilities for ESMP Implementation

		Organizations

		Responsibilities



		PMU

		Ensure that all project activities are well-managed and coordinated.

Procurement of works and goods.

In collaboration with the donor, the MFK, recruitment and supervision of Construction Contractor.

Insuring that GRC is established and functions in line with requirements foreseen in this report

Obtaining all the necessary permits for construction. Preparation of documentation for these permits will be obligation of Construction Contractor



		ESIE within MFK

		Assisting Termokos on Obtaining Fire protection Consent from the MIA

Assisting Termokos on Obtaining environmental Consents from the MESP or Municipality of Prishtina

Responsible for assisting PD in reviewing bid documents for inclusion of ESMP measures, supervising construction activities, producing periodic monitoring reports, 

Ensuring inclusion of ESMP and ESCPs in bidding documents

Supervising IC for the implementation of ESMP 

Closely coordinate with other concerned agencies, local government and communities to support implementation of ESMP 

Preparation of progress reports on implementation of ESMP.

Conduct environmental trainings.



		Project Implementation Unit

		Maintain liaison and interaction with the PAPs and local communities to address their concerns.

Help the PAPs to forward their complaints, if any, to the GRC.

Help the PAPs in any other related activities.

Maintain close liaison with PMU, ESIE, contractor, and relevant government departments for ESMP implementation.



		IC (Docon JV)

		Responsible for implementation of ESMP 

Updating the ESMP based on the final alignment

Supervise works, ensuring compliance with all design parameters including quality requirements 

Supervising contractors for ESMP implementation and issue of noncompliance notices

Provide input, advice and approval on activity specific work plans relating to ESMP

Prepare quarterly reports and submit to PMU and MFK



		Contractor

		Preparation of C-ESMP with site specific mitigation plans for approval of IC before mobilization

Assist PMU on preparing documentation for obtaining necessary permits from Kosovo Authorities

Responsible for implementation of mitigation and monitoring measures proposed in the ESMP 

Prepare monthly reports



		MFK

		External Monitoring and evaluation on implementation of ESMP 

Ensure that all project activities are well-managed and coordinated.

In collaboration with Termokos, procurement of works and goods.







[bookmark: _Toc481332970][bookmark: _Toc29226229][bookmark: _Toc29228259][bookmark: _Toc50428690][bookmark: _Toc62651594]Environmental and Social Impact Cell (ESIC)

The ESIC will be setup within PMU and will be mandated to ensure compliance with the national regulatory as well as EU Acquis and policy requirements pertaining to environment and social, aspects. The ESIC needs to have the following specialists: 

· Deputy Manager, Social and Environment: focal person for environmental, social aspects

· Assistant Manager (Social): member;

· Assistant Manager (Environment): member.



[bookmark: _Toc481332972][bookmark: _Toc29226231][bookmark: _Toc29228261][bookmark: _Toc50428692][bookmark: _Toc62651595]Contractor

The contractor will also be responsible for communicating with and training of its staff in the environmental/social aspects. The contractor will develop the various plans directed towards health, safety, the environment and social issues (discussed later in the Chapter), and get them approved by the IC before the commencement of the physical works on site, in accordance with the operation manual for the project. The following personnel are required in the contractor’s environmental team:

· Environmental Officer

· Occupational Health and Safety Officer

· Community Liaison Officer



[bookmark: _Toc29226232][bookmark: _Toc29228262][bookmark: _Toc50428693][bookmark: _Toc62651596]Millennium Foundation Kosovo

The MFK will execute the external monitoring on implementation of the ESMP by seconding these tasks to supervisor stage consultant, whose team will consist of among others also the Environmental and Social Development Specialist



[bookmark: _Toc481332975][bookmark: _Toc29226233][bookmark: _Toc29228264][bookmark: _Toc50428695][bookmark: _Toc62651597]Environmental Code of Practices for Construction

The environmental codes of practice (ESCPs) are generic, non-site-specific guidelines for the construction phase. The ESCPs consist of environmental and social management guidelines and practices to be followed by the contractors for sustainable management of all environmental issues. The contractor will be required to follow them and also use them to prepare site-specific management plans (discussed later in the Section). The ESCPs are listed below.

· ESCP 1:	Waste Management

· ESCP 2:	Fuels and Hazardous Substances Management

· ESCP 3:	Construction Areas Management

· ESCP 4:	Air Quality Management

· ESCP 5:	Noise and Vibration Management

· ESCP 6:	Road Transport and Road Traffic Management

· ESCP 7:	Construction Camp Management

· ESCP 8:	Cultural and Religious Issues

· ESCP 9:	Workers Health and Safety

· ESCP 10: 	Gender Issues Management



[bookmark: _Toc481332976][bookmark: _Toc29226234][bookmark: _Toc29228265][bookmark: _Toc50428696][bookmark: _Toc62651598]Construction Stage Site Specific Management Plans

Contractor will be required to prepare site specific management plans, before contractor mobilization and commencement of construction works, for approval of PMU, MFK, and IC.

· Pollution Prevention Plan will be prepared and implemented by the contractor on the basis of the ESCPs and IFC EHS Guidelines (2007).

· Waste Disposal and Effluent Management Plan will be prepared and implemented by the Contractor on the basis of the EMP, ESCP, and IFC EHS Guidelines (2007).

· Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Plan will be prepared and implemented by the contractor on the basis of the Kosovo Legislation, IFC EHS Guidelines (2007), ESCPs, ESMP, and other relevant standards specifically including MCC Gender Policy, C-TIP Policy and sexual harassment policies.

· Traffic Management Plan will be prepared by the contractor after discussion with Termokos and authorities responsible for roads and traffic. The Plan will be submitted to the IC for their review and approval before contractor mobilization. The Plan will identify the routes to be used by the contractors, procedures for the safety of the local community particularly pedestrians, and monitoring mechanism to avoid traffic congestion.

· Construction Site Management Plan will be prepared by the contractor. The Plan will include the camp layout, details of various facilities including supplies, storage, and disposal. A dedicated social and gender action plan, is also part of the proposed Construction Site Specific Management Plan, see page 104. 

· Fuel and Hazardous Substances Management Plan will be prepared by the contractor in accordance with the standard operating procedures, Kosovo and EU legislation, IFC EHS Guidelines (2007) and other relevant guidelines, and where applicable, material safety data sheets (MSDS). The Plan will include the procedures for handling the oils and chemical spills, asbestos and mineral wool handling, potential lead paint handling, and other present hazardous substances handling and management plans in order to avoid accidents from occurring during the implementation of DHM project.

· Fire Protection Plan will be prepared by the contractor to prevent, and, in case they occur, control impacts associating with fire, setting up fire prevention and fighting management, and emergency response system.

· Spoil and Debris Management Plans will be prepared by the contractor on the management of excess spoils from various drilling and demolition activities.

· Emergency Preparedness Plan will be prepared by the contractor after assessing potential risks and hazards that could be encountered during installation of DHM.

· Communication Plan to deal with the interaction of the community, complaints management, workers recruitment, notice of works and workers conduct with locals including gender-sensitive and inclusive process to be included during the development of the plan.

[bookmark: _Toc481332979][bookmark: _Toc29226235][bookmark: _Toc29228266][bookmark: _Toc50428697][bookmark: _Toc62651599]Mitigations and Compliance Monitoring Plan

The mitigation and compliance monitoring plans are the key element of ESMP to be prepared on the basis of impact assessment described in Chapter0. The Plan describes the potentially negative impacts of each subproject activity, lists mitigation and control measures to address the negative impacts, and assigns responsibilities for implementation and monitoring of these measures. 

The Plan is given in Table 12 below
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Table 12: Mitigation and Compliance Monitoring Plan

		Environmental impacts/ issue

		Actions

		Responsibility

		Key Performance
Indicator

		Timing

		Cost Allocation



		

		

		Execution

		Monitoring

		

		

		



		1. Activity: Transportation of Equipment and Construction Material

		



		1.1 Traffic management 

		The approved TMP will be followed.

Traffic facilities, such as speed limits and signal lights, are to be strengthened 

Support to be provided to the local traffic authorities to engage traffic police at the busy junctions

Implement the mitigation measures proposed in ESCP 6.

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

Number of complaints / grievances.

Number of traffic accidents/incidents involving project vehicles and lorries transporting decommissioned materials and supply to project

		Throughout the construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		1.2 Air Quality

		Pollution prevention plan will be implemented.

Construction machinery and vehicles will be kept in good working condition and properly tuned, in order to minimize the exhaust emissions, and in compliance with the Kosovo EQS.

Fugitive dust emissions will be minimized by appropriate methods, such as spraying water on surfaces, where required and appropriate.

Project vehicles will avoid passing through the communities as far as possible. If unavoidable, speed will be reduced to 15 km/h to avoid excessive dust emissions.

Air quality will be properly monitored, especially near the population centers and Termokosclients

ESCP 4 for air quality management will be implemented. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

Air quality monitoring data

Number of related grievances 

		Before and during construction 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		1.3 Noise

		Pollution prevention plan will be implemented.

Nighttime traffic will be avoided near the communities. Local population will be taken in confidence if such work is unavoidable.

Installation works will be performed with minimum possible noise level

Liaison with the communities will be maintained.

Noise monitoring will be carried out 

Compliance with Kosovo EQS, and IFC EHS Guidelines will be ensured.

ESCP-5 will be enforced. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

Number of related public complaints

Noise monitoring data

		Before and during construction 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		1.4 Public Safety

		OHS plan will be implemented

Implement fuels and hazardous substances management plan

Road signage will be fixed at appropriate locations to reduce safety hazard associated with project-related vehicular traffic.

Liaison with traffic police and communities will be maintained

Project drivers will be trained on defensive driving.

Vehicle speeds near / within the communities will be kept low, to avoid safety hazards.

ESCP-6 and ESCP-9 will be implemented. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

Number of accidents, incidents and near misses

Number of related public complaints

Number of trainings provided

		Before and during construction 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		1.5 Damage to Infrastructure

		All damaged infrastructure will be restored to original or better condition.

		Contractors

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

		Before and during construction 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		1.6 Blocked routes

		On-going community consultations to be carried out 

Proper scheduling of works to minimize blockage of access to places such as boat jetties

Road signage

Community awareness

		Contractors

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

		Before and during construction 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2. Activity: Site Preparation and Installation of DHM equipment in apartments, buildings, and substations

		



		2.1 Soil erosion

		Works will be carried out in a manner not to cause soil erosion

Vehicular traffic near the bank line will be minimized

Protective measures such as mulching will be undertaken to stop erosion

Vehicular traffic on unpaved roads will be minimized

ESCP-6 will be implemented. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of non-compliances observed.

		Throughout the construction phase 







		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.2 Soil and water contamination

		The contractor will prepare and implement a Pollution Prevention Plan prior to the start of the work. Proper baseline data will be collected.

Construction materials will be handled, transported, and stored appropriately.

Reduce risk of a pollution event through adoption of measures set out in Solid Waste Management Plan 

Hazardous and toxic materials to be stored separately

The contractor will identify suitable sites for disposal of hazardous and non- hazardous waste. The selection will be done in consultation with the PMU and the local municipal authorities.

Fuels and hazardous substances management plan will be implemented

Any discharges to the river or streams should comply with EU and NEQS

ESCP-1, ESCP-2, ESCP-4, ESCP-5, and ESCP-7 will be implemented.

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of non-compliances observed or reported

Monthly auditing of management of hazardous materials against Material Safety Data Sheet 

Number of any non-compliance

Number of related complaints

		Throughout the construction phase





















		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.3Drillingand cutting works

		Drillingcutting management plan will be implemented

Inform the drilling schedule to the local affected people

Adaptation of wet drilling and drilling techniques to minimize dust emissions

Adaptation of appropriate methods for stopping of flying debris (e.g. placement of sandbags on the drill holes or placement of safety nets around drill holes)

Training to the construction workers involved in the drilling operations

Drilling material will be stored in secured places away from habitations

Accurate maintenance of data on the waste from drilling and cutting works, and in case they are of hazardous nature to  manage them as per hazardous waste management plan

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of non-compliances observed or reported

Number of dust-related complaints.

Number of vibration/damages -related complaints,

Dust and vibration monitoring data



		Throughout construction phase 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.4 Air Quality

		Pollution prevention plan will be implemented.

waste materials will be stored in designated areas away from sensitive receptors and covered to minimize dust on site from site construction works

Water spraying will be carried out to suppress dust emissions where needed

Crushers will have appropriate dust and emission abatement systems (e.g., wet scrubber) as appropriate.

Target zero dust related complaints

Target zero air quality related complaints.

NEQS and EU compliance will be ensured.

Monitoring of ambient air quality near settlements and in apartment buildings. 

Appropriate actions to be undertaken in case ambient air quality deteriorates beyond NEQS limits.

ESCP-6 will be implemented. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of non-compliances observed or reported

Number of dust-related complaints.

Number of air quality-related complaints,

Air quality monitoring data



		Throughout construction phase 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.5 Health and Safety

		Compliance with Occupational Health and Safety standards and OHS Plan

Compliance with IFC EHS Guidelines, MFK-MCC Gender Policy, MFK Sexual Harassment Policy and C-TIP policies. 

Implement fuels and hazardous substances management plan

Use of personal protective equipment (PPE) in line with the risks involved at particular object where DHM equipment is being installed.

Develop controls and standard operating procedures for the use of fuels and other hazardous substances to prevent spills, accidents, and pilferage 

Train and designate personnel for various OHS aspects such as spill control procedures, fire fighting

Establish firefighting system and fire safety (fire extinguishers) at the construction sites where fire is a hazard 

Spill kits and trained personnel are to be made available at the workshops.

Contain all tanks in a fully bunded area with a storage capacity of at least 110 percent of the potential storage volume.

Transport of hazardous waste generated during construction, demolition shall be done in closed containers and ISO certified tanks

Provision of respiratory protective devices for workers where needed

Designate agreed routes for traffic (set out in the Traffic Management Plan)

Provision of insurance-backed compensation scheme for major injury or loss of life reflecting settlement sums that are consistent with national/international benchmarks.

Construction sites to have first aid boxes

EHS signs present at site in languages spoken by contractor employed at site

No person will be allowed at site without prior EHS induction trainings (training materials should be in mother tongue of trainees)

Kosovo and IFC EHS GuidelinesCommunity Health and Safety to be implemented 

Regular OHS trainings to be provided to workers

Implement IFC PS 3 and PS 4

ESCP 2 and ESCP-9 will be implemented. 

ESCP 10 will be implemented. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of non-compliances observed or reported

Number of respiratory protective devices and other PPEs issues to workers.

Monitoring of compliance with Health and Safety standards (including monthly reporting of accidents and near misses).

Number of accidents, incidents and near misses.

Number of EHS induction trainings given to project related people and potential external visitors at site (training materials should be in mother tongue of trainees)

Number of trainings provided.

		Throughout construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.6 Noise and Vibration

		Pollution prevention plan will be implemented.

Noise barriers will be installed where needed particularly near sensitive receptors such as schools

Construction plant producing sound in excess of 85dB will be fitted with mufflers; 

Noise monitoring will be conducted 

Kosovo and IFC EHS Guidelines on Noise Management will be implement

NEQS and EU compliance will be ensured.

Implement IFC PS 2 and PS 3

ESCP-7 will be implemented.

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of non-compliances observed or reported

Record of equipment used on site capable of producing over 85dB and whether equipment has been fitted with mufflers 

Number of related community complaints

Noise monitoring data

Number of noise related grievances 

		Throughout construction phase 

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.7 Damage to property

		Any damaged property such as walls, radiators or other structures will be repaired

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

Number of related complaints

		Throughout construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.8 Chance finds

		In case any artifact or site of archeological, cultural, historical, or religious significance are discovered during construction activities, the works will be stopped, and the Archeological Institute of Kosovo will be informed. 

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of any non-compliance reports

Number of reports of any new artefacts discovered/reported

		Throughout construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.9 Social conflict due to the Influx of Workers 

		Liaison will be maintained with the communities

Contractors and workforce to follow code of conduct

Respect of local norms and values

Implementation of awareness campaign 

Complaints from the local community will be addressed by the Grievance Mechanism that will be developed.

		Contractors

		IC

		Number of public grievances relating to in-migrants

		Construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		3. Activity: Waste management

		



		3.1 Soil and water contamination

		Contractors will implement the Waste Management Plan.

Appropriate hazardous, industrial and domestic waste disposal facilities must be established

For the domestic sewage, appropriate treatment and disposal system (e.g., septic tanks and soaking pits) will be constructed having adequate capacity

Waste oils will be collected in drums and sold to the recycling contractors.

The inert recyclable waste from the site (such as cardboard, drums, and broken/used parts) will be sold to recycling contractors.

The hazardous waste will be kept separate and handled according to the nature of the waste.

Domestic solid waste will be disposed off in a manner that does not cause soil contamination.

Awareness raising for minimizing use of non-biodegradable substances

Regular maintenance of waste management facilities will be undertaken

No waste dumping/release will be carried out in environmental sensitive areas and rivers.Implement ESCP 1

		Contractor

		IC

		Monthly auditing of management of hazardous materials against Material Safety Data Sheet 

Reports if any non-compliance

Number of related complaints

		Construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		2.2 Odor 

		Waste disposal sites will be located away from the communities

Regular maintenance of waste management facilities will be undertaken

		Contractor

		IC

		Number of related complaints

		Construction phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 



		4. Activity: Site Restoration

		



		4.1 Site restoration

		Construction of temporary structures 

Removal of all debris, excess construction material, scraps, spoils, other wastes

Cleaning up of spoils and dust produced during DHM installation works

Restoration of sites to initial state

		Contractor

		IC

		Photographic record

Clearance from IC

		Construction closure phase

		Included in contractors’ costs 





[bookmark: _Toc481332980][bookmark: _Toc29225749][bookmark: _Toc29228267][bookmark: _Toc50428698]



Table 12a: GSI Proposed Plan for Mitigation and Compliance Monitoring Plan 



		Activity

		Stakeholder

		

Responsibility



		Contractors will not discriminate and will take "affirmative action" measures to ensure against discrimination in employment, recruitment, advertisements for employment, compensation, termination, upgrading, promotions, and other conditions of employment against any employee or job applicant on the bases of gender, race, or ethnicity.

		Termokos

		

 



Consultant, Contractor 



		Ensuring Trafficking in People is prevented in line with MCC/MFK zero tolerance standards (focus on child labor and forced labor dimensions). 

		Termokos, 

		Consultant, Contractor 



		A capacity building/training proposal developed to integrate a gender perspective in the hiring, recruiting practices of the public enterprise and career development steps will be developed and delivered. Training on Anti-Discrimination Policies and Policies against Sexual Harassment in the Workplace developed, conducted and delivered in a format of Manuals, provided to the IC and entire staff who will be engaged in the DHM activity.

		Termokos

		



Consultant, Contractor



		Contractor will work closely with the consultant to ensure the complying with the MCC of gender policy through explaining the recruitment process from a gender perspective and synthesize them on how to conduct interviews that are not gender biased. Also contractor will be offered a draft proposed Guidelines and Checklist on Equal Employment Opportunity by the consultant to be used by the the contractor.                                                                

		Termokos

		

Consultant, Contractor



		Trainings should educate employees on HH’s sexual harassment laws and the contractor’s response, including punitive measures for employees who engage in such behavior.

		Termokos

		

Consultant



		[bookmark: _Toc62651600]Training and Gender Equality Employment mainstreaming aiming to indirectly increase professional opportunities for women by demonstrating women’s abilities as capable technicians.

		Termokos

		

Consultant, Contractor



		Designing a brochure against sexual harassment in workplace to offer simple, user friendly information on the concept and forms of sexual harassment, mechanisms and procedures for reporting sexual harassment in the workplace.

		Termokos

		

Consultant



		Persons making home visits will require customer sensitization training. 

Contractor will develop a plan for this training, reviewed by the GSI consultants.

		Termokos

		Consultant, Contractor



		Ensure women, minority, and disadvantaged/vulnerable households are represented if newly created homeowner associations are set up, and have adequate access to HOA meetings and information.

		Termokos

		

Consultant, Contractor



		Behavior change campaigns directed at all HHs will include targeting of women in particular, as often they are the main managers of household heating practices. 

		Termokos

		

Consultant



		In order to secure appropriate meter reading and handling with the control technologies for less educate, persons with disabilities (PWD) groups, women as HH’s and target households requiring special assistance, the Behavior Change and Outreach Campaign shall integrate the gender dimensions in all activities as a cross-cut activities of the project. The behavior change campaign will provide for gender-sensitive information and education campaigns by analyzing the role of gender in space heating practices to fully take advantage of the DH metering improvement, and targeting other socially excluded groups.

		Termokos

		





Consultant 



		All materials will be carefully analyzed in order to be free from gender stereotypes and to promote gender equality.

		Termokos, MFK

		



Consultant 



		Design and develop a gender check-list by the contractor to ensure that gender-sensitive targets are met targeting crews utilized by the contractors or in-house, deployed for the contractor or Termokos personnel teams working with households to explain DHM, targeting increased employment of women in all activities aiming to 30% 

		Termokos

		

Consultant, Contractor 



		Outreach to and communications with minority groups could be done by minority groups themselves as a means of fostering trust and buy-in and using culturally appropriate messaging. 

		Termokos

		Consultant







[bookmark: _Toc62651601]Monitoring Program

[bookmark: _Toc462041932]As one of the key elements of the ESMP, a two-tier monitoring program has been proposed comprising compliance monitoring and effects monitoring. The main purpose of this monitoring program is to ensure that the various tasks detailed in the ESMP particularly the mitigation measures are implemented in an effective manner, and also to evaluate program impacts on the key environment and social parameters. Both these types of ESMP monitoring are discussed below.



[bookmark: _Toc481332981][bookmark: _Toc29226236][bookmark: _Toc29228268][bookmark: _Toc50428699][bookmark: _Toc62651602]Compliance Monitoring

The purpose of the compliance monitoring is to ensure that the contractor implements the mitigation measures given in the ESMP are effectively and timely implemented. This monitoring will generally be carried out by the IC with the help of checklists prepared on the basis of the mitigation measures given in Table 12



[bookmark: _Toc481332982][bookmark: _Toc29226237][bookmark: _Toc29228269][bookmark: _Toc50428700][bookmark: _Toc62651603]Effects Monitoring

Effects monitoring is a very important aspect of environmental management to safeguard the protection of environment. The effects monitoring plan proposed for the project is presented in in Table 13. The monitoring will comprise surveillance to check whether the contractor is meeting the provisions of the contract during construction and operation of the project including the responsible agencies for implementation and supervision. Compliance indicators or threshold limits for the monitoring are also given in Table 13. Actual monitoring time and will be decided by IC, MFK, and PMU.



[bookmark: _Ref51468280][bookmark: _Toc62609577]Table 13: Effects Monitoring Plan

		Parameter/ Activity

		Location

		Means of Monitoring

		Compliance indicator/ threshold limits

		Frequency

		Responsible Agency



		

		

		

		

		

		Implemen-tation

		Super-vision



		During Construction

		

		

		

		



		Spoils

		DHM site locations

		Visual inspections

		Disposal in approved locations 

		Monthly

		Contractor

		IC



		Traffic Safety

		Access Roads

		Visual inspection to see whether proper traffic signs are placed and flag-persons for traffic management are engaged

		Smooth flowing of traffic; and placement of traffic signs and flag-person

		Monthly

		Contractor

		IC



		Dust

		Construction sites

		Visual inspection to ensure good standard equipment is in use and dust suppression measures (e.g., spraying of waters) are in place.

		No dust generation from the construction activities

		Weekly

		Contractor

		IC



		

		Construction Sites

		Spot measurements with potable meters 

		Compliance with NEQS.

		Monthly

		Contractor

		IC



		Noise 

		Construction sites

		Noise measurement using potable noise meter; 

		Compliance with NEQS 

		Monthly

		Contractor

		IC



		Vibration

		Drilling sites

		Vibration measurement using potable noise meters

		Compliance with NEQS 

		Monthly 

		Contractor

		IC



		Waste Management

		Construction camps and DHM installation sites

		Visual inspection that solid waste collection facilities are in place and waste is disposed at designated site

		Facilities are clean and waste collection and disposal facilities are in place 

		Weekly

		Contractor

		IC



		Drinking water quality

		Work sites, offices

		Testing of water quality of workers camp water supply for drinking water standards 

		NEQS drinking water standards

		Annually

		Contractor

		IC



		Cultural and archaeological Sites

		At all work sties 



		Visual observation for chance finds



		Indication of chance finds

		Daily 



		Contractor 



		IC, Termokos



		Restoration of Work Sites



		All Work Sites 



		Visual Inspection 

		The facilities are clean with no waste at the works sites 

		After completion of  works on each site

		Contractor 



		IC, Termokos



		Safety of workers Monitoring and reporting accidents

		At work sites

		Usage of Personal Protective equipment and implementation of contractor OHS plan

		All workers should be provided with, and use necessary PPEs

		Monthly 

		Contractor

		IC, Termokos



		Grievances

		In the project area

		Number of grievances registered and addressed

		Minutes of grievance redress meetings

		Monthly

		PMU

		IC, Termokos



		No access to substations or apartments will be granted, or reluctance of women headed households to provide for access;

		At work Sites

		Regular quarterly reports provided by the mixed teams collecting data on quarterly basis

		MFK Gender Action Plan requirements

		Quarterly

		Contractor, Termokos

		IC, Termokos







[bookmark: _Toc481332983][bookmark: _Toc29226238][bookmark: _Toc29228270][bookmark: _Toc50428701][bookmark: _Toc62651604]Performance Indicators

For evaluating the performance of the environmental management and monitoring plan, performance indicators are identified for efficient and timely implementation of measures/actions proposed in ESMP. The indicators are defined both for implementation phase and for operation phase. ICIC will be responsible for compiling the information on these indicators and report to Termokos and MFK.

To measure the overall environmental performance of the project, a list of performance indicators is given below:

· Number of inspections carried out by IC per month.

· Number of non-compliances observed by IC or ESIC.

· Availability of environmental specialists in Contractor team.

· Availability of EHS specialists with contractors.

· Timely reporting of documents (as defined in ESMP and monitoring plan).

· Number of trainings imparted to stakeholders/other capacity building initiatives 

· Timely disbursement of compensation of project affected

· Number of grievances received.

· Number of grievances resolved.

· Number of constructions related accidents.

· % females employed among the contractor workforce



[bookmark: _Toc45816068][bookmark: _Toc50428702][bookmark: _Toc62651605]Disposal of waste

Following the principle of waste minimization, disposal should always be the last option. Nevertheless, as waste cannot be avoided to 100 % a solution for the final destination of the produced waste must be determined.

According to Kosovo’s Law on Waste (Law no. 04/L-060) it is the competency of the individual municipality to determine the location for the disposal and treatment of waste.



[bookmark: _Toc45816069][bookmark: _Toc50428703][bookmark: _Toc62651606]Disposal of non-hazardous waste

The Consultant collected information regarding the proper disposal of non-hazardous waste originating from construction activities (EWC Codes 17 xx xx[footnoteRef:4]) from the various stakeholders, namely Termokos (waste holder), MEE (Ministry of Economy and Environment) and the municipality of Prishtina. [4:  This refers to the category 17 of the EWC. Example: 17 01 01, 17 01 02 etc.] 


With regard to the Administrative Instruction AI 08/2017 of waste landfills management, the pollutant limit values for waste for disposal at Kosovar landfills are regulated. Therefore, the Contractor has to provide the respective certificates showing the pollutant contents of the various waste fractions in order to be permitted to dispose the material at the selected landfills.

Furthermore, AI 08/2017 defines the following fundamental requirements for basic characterization of the waste:

· Landfill Directive, or a statement of reasons why such treatment is not considered necessary 

· Data on the composition of the waste and the leaching behaviour, where Source and origin of the waste 

· Information on the process producing the waste (description and characteristics of raw materials and products) 

· Description of the waste treatment applied in compliance with Article 6(a) of the relevant 

· Appearance of the waste (smell, color, physical form) 

· Code according to the European waste list (Commission Decision 2001/118/EC) (1) 

· For hazardous waste in case of mirror entries: the relevant hazard properties according to Annex III to Council Directive 91/689/EEC of 12 December 1991 on hazardous waste (2) 

· Information to prove that the waste does not fall under the exclusions of Article 5(3) of the Landfill Directive 

· The landfill class at which the waste maybe accepted 

· If necessary, additional precautions to be taken at the landfill 

· Check if the waste can be recycled or recovered.

It is the Dismantling Contractor’s obligation to prepare the corresponding documentation and acquire the license or permit for any kind of transfer of waste from the construction site to another location.



[bookmark: _Toc29225753][bookmark: _Toc29228279][bookmark: _Toc50428728][bookmark: _Toc526603867][bookmark: _Toc62651607]Stakeholder Involvement and Grievance Redress Mechanism

A Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP) has been prepared as part of the ESMP process, providing information on the different stakeholders involved in the project. The central purpose of the SEP is allowing the public to participate in and follow up all activities under this project.

Meaningful stakeholder engagement during the construction phase of the project ensures that the construction of DHM in substations and apartments that are served by Termokos can be performed with the least disruption to local stakeholders and that all realistic expectations regarding a project’s commitments and conditions are met. In turn, minimizing disruption and meeting expectations are likely to ensure stakeholder factors do not affect the construction, demolition and soil remediation of the Termokos site through delay and/or interference.

The engagement processes to be followed during construction, demolition and soil remediation should be planned and documented during the design stage, leading to a more certain, less resource-intensive process for all involved stakeholders.

On the other hand, concerned residents in the Project areas are aware that the project implementation is providing significant benefits and that corresponding negative impacts are short term and mitigatable.
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This section describes the process and outcomes of the consultations carried out with various groups of stakeholders as part of the ESMP. Also provided in this chapter is a framework for the consultations to be carried out during project implementation. Finally, disclosure requirements for the present ESMP are described at the end of the chapter.
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Stakeholder consultations (or public consultation) during the environmental and social assessment process of development projects is increasingly considered an important notion and requirements which increase the authenticity and acceptability of assessment itself but more importantly can possibly enhance the quality of decision making as well. According to MCC Gender Policy, consultation will also include developing outreachmeans to reach out to both women and men as part of consultation, by taking into account the time availability for women in consultation processes, proximity of consultation areas, or organizing outreach meetings with women separately if not participating at regular meetings. 

Stakeholder consultation/participation during various stages of developmental projects helps improve the decision making and ultimately leads towards sustainable development.

Stakeholder consultation is a two-way process. For stakeholders, the consultation process is an opportunity to obtain project information, to raise issues and concerns, and ask questions. For the project proponents, the consultation process offers opportunity to understand the stakeholders and their concerns about the project, their needs and aspirations, and also their suggestions that can potentially help shape the project. Listening to stakeholder concerns and feedback can be a valuable source of information that can improve project design and outcomes and help the project proponent to identify and control external risks. It can also form the basis for future collaboration and partnerships.

The national and EU legislation and safeguard policies require consultations to be carried out particularly with the affected communities as part of the environmental and social assessment process. The consultation carried out during the present ESMP and reported in this chapter meet these requirements.

Specific objectives of the consultation process carried out as part of the current ESMP are listed below.

· developing and maintaining communication links between the project proponents (Termokos) and stakeholders,sharing of information with stakeholders on the proposed project activities and provide key project information to the stakeholders, to solicit their views on the project and its potential or perceived impacts, andunderstanding the stakeholders’ concerns regarding various aspects of the project;

· receiving feedback on environmental and social impacts and verifying their significance;

· ensuring that views and concerns of the stakeholders are incorporated into the project design and implementation as much as possible with the objectives of reducing or offsetting negative impacts and enhancing benefits of the proposed project, and managing expectations and misconceptions related to the project;

· obtaining local knowledge about the environment and people living in the project areas;

· interaction with the project affected population and other stakeholders for the collection of primary and secondary data on environment and people by including data disaggregated by sex;

· engaging stakeholders for maximization of the project benefits.



[bookmark: _Toc451301986][bookmark: _Toc462041928][bookmark: _Toc481332990][bookmark: _Toc29226246][bookmark: _Toc29228282][bookmark: _Toc50428731][bookmark: _Toc62651610]Stakeholder Identification

Stakeholders are considered to be individuals or organizations which have an interest in the proposed project or knowledge that would provide insight into issues or affect decision making related to the proposed project.

On the basis of interest and role criteria there are two types of stakeholders for the proposed project as described below.

[bookmark: _Toc462041929][bookmark: _Toc451301987][bookmark: _Toc481332991]Primary Stakeholders: The primary stakeholders (also called direct stakeholders) are the grass-root stakeholders, such as project affected persons and general public including women residing in the project area for the DHM project: people living in the project area particularly in Prishtina). These are the people who are directly exposed to the project’s impacts though in some cases they may not be receiving any direct benefit from the project.

[bookmark: _Toc462041930][bookmark: _Toc451301988][bookmark: _Toc481332992]Secondary Stakeholders: The secondary stakeholders (also called institutional stakeholders) are the people, department, institutions, and/or organizations that may not be directly affected by the project however they may influence the project and its design. They include project proponent (Termokos in case of the present project), other concerned departments such as those of Ministry of Economic Development and Environment (MESP) that may have a role during various phases of the project, regulatory agencies such as KEPA, Municipality of Prishtina, non-governmental organizations (NGOs), the broader interested communities including academia and journalists, and general public.



[bookmark: _Toc29226247][bookmark: _Toc29228283][bookmark: _Toc50428732][bookmark: _Toc62651611]Stakeholder Identification for the DHM Project

A stakeholder is defined as any individual or group who is potentially affected by a project or who has an interest in the project and its impacts. The objective of stakeholder identification is therefore to establish which organizations and individuals may be directly or indirectly affected (positively and negatively). Stakeholder identification is a permanent process, requiring regular review and updating as the project proceeds. The main groups of potential stakeholders are listed in Table 14.



[bookmark: _Ref51465900][bookmark: _Toc62609578]Table 14: Potential stakeholder groups related to the project

		Group of stakeholders

		Stakeholders



		Owner of the project 

		· Termokos management and workers

· 



		Local residents

		· Residents located in or around the site to be fit with DHM equipment

· Residents in Project areas located near roads used for transporting materials 

· Owners of apartments to be fit with DHM



		Public facilities

		· Education (schools, kindergartens)

· Religious (mosques, churches)

· Medical (hospitals, clinics, medical centers)

· Utilities (electricity, water supply, telecommunication)



		Business and service
provider

		· Shops, markets, supermarkets

· Petrol stations, car wash & service, others

· Taxi stations/offices

· Restaurants

· Financial services (banks, insurance companies)



		Administrative Bodies and Authorities

		· Regional Water Company (RWC)

· KEDS

· Telecommunication companies

· National authorities

· Ministry of Economy and Environment (MEE)

· Ministry of Kosovo Security Forces

· Ministry of Infrastructure

· Ministry of Internal Affairs and Administration

· Regional authorities

· Local authorities

· The Mayor’s office



		International Bodies in
Kosovo

		· US Embassy in Kosovo 

· MFK

· USAID

· European Union Office in Kosovo (EUOK)

· KFOR

· World Bank

UNDP

· KfW

· Embassies of EU countries in Kosovo



		Bodies involved in Project implementation

		· contractor(s) (management, staff)

· Sub-contractor(s)

· Supervision contractor (the Engineer)

· Suppliers, 

· Buyers of recycled materials, 

· Landfills for non-hazardous waste

· Temporary storage facility for hazardous waste materials



		Non-Governmental Organizations (NGOs) and independent experts

		· Specialized environmental, social and research organizations, NGOs, potential groups to be added: Kosovar Civil Society Foundation (KCSF), Kosovo Women Network (KWN), Ri-invest Institute, D4D, the Network of Roma, Ashkali and Egyptian Women’s Organizations, etc. 

· Experts on a national and international level



		Media

		· Print media

· Radio, TV

· Internet sources

· Social media
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[bookmark: _Toc50428733][bookmark: _Toc62651612]Consultation Process

As part of the present ESMP, detailed consultations were carried out through meetings with focus group discussions (FGDs) with the communities including women (i.e. primary or direct stakeholders) in the project area. Separate meetings were held with the institutional stakeholders in the form of one-to-one meetings. Details of this consultation process are described below.

Right after commencing the Consultancy services, the Consultant has undertaken site visits and introduce himself and his services to relevant parties as indicated in the ToR. With the main stakeholders MCC and MFK, the Consultant had already several technical meetings clarifying important issues relevant to the project and preparing daily working strategies to achieve smooth implementation of works.

The main subject will be the key beneficiary Termokos with whom the Consultant is working closely in order to consider and analyse all available documents, e.g. copies of the works contracts and other documents related to this project. 

Besides receiving the necessary documents, it is very important for the Consultant to organize meetings periodically with the stakeholders as: MEE, ERO, KEEA, HOA, Termokos, EUD in Kosovo, KEK, KESCO, PHE and DH customers.

It has proved positive in the past to undertake such interviews and introduction meetings with all relevant persons who have been involved in the project. By ensuring participation of the stakeholders, the Consultant shall receive the relevant information and identify possible problems and obstacles at a very early stage, which is crucial for successful implementation of the project. 

Further possibilities of cooperation with Public Housing Enterprises Pristine (PHE Pristine) shall be considered as per suggestion by MFK in consultation with Termokos. 



[bookmark: _Toc481332994][bookmark: _Toc29226248][bookmark: _Toc29228285][bookmark: _Toc50428734][bookmark: _Toc62651613]Community Consultations

The ESMP team conducted the community consultations individually covering environmental and social, including gender issues, aspects of the project. The environmental assessment team conducted more than 10 consultations with stakeholders of the project area; the local and central authorities, as well as with Termokos responsible people. The consultations included both Environmental and Social issues related to the impact of TermokosDHM project on improving energy efficiency and reducing DH costs for households.

During the consultations, participants were briefed on the proposed DHM installation on apartments and moving from space based billing into energy use billingfor DH by theTermokosproject and its various elements as well as activities, its needs and objectives, and its potential/likely impacts on the local environment and people. Subsequently, their concerns and comments regarding the proposed project were recorded in order to identify appropriate alternatives and mitigation measures.

A common denominator of all the consultations was that they strongly support the installation of DHM in their apartments and businesses.

Major concerns raised during these consultations were processionary measures to prevent pollution of environment during installation of DHM, noise pollution and vibration, privacy issues as works have to be done inside their apartments,  and transport of various hazardous and non-hazardous waste materials. This is especially important for the women, and therefore measures should be undertaken to address these issues such as Advanced notice will be given when works or installations are performed to ensure proper participation of the affected residents. The information on when works will take place will be easily accessible and in a format that is both culturally appropriate and in the local language(s) of different groups residing in the area. Also, for vulnerable categories with limited mobility who may not be able to leave the house to escape the noise, etc. during installations, if desired specific care measures as above will be foreseen. Advanced notice will be given when works or installations are performed to ensure proper participation of the affected residents. The information on when works will take place will be easily accessible and in a format that is both culturally appropriate and in the local language(s) of different groups residing in the area.

Concerning the social issues: the stakeholders are interested to get temporary employment during implementation of works contract and suggest that the non-expert staff to be recruited maximally from the local population. 



[bookmark: _Toc451301992][bookmark: _Toc462041934][bookmark: _Toc481332997][bookmark: _Toc29226249][bookmark: _Toc29228286][bookmark: _Toc50428735][bookmark: _Toc62651614]Consultation during Project Implementation

The stakeholder consultation and engagement are an ongoing process and will continue throughout the project’s construction phases. The ongoing consultation process could be scheduled on quarterly basis with the stakeholders including but not limited to the concerned government departments, local administration and the community representatives from the project area.

The overarching goal of consultations and community engagement is to support and facilitate the project’s design and implementation, to reduce conflicts and project opposition, and to increase project’s acceptability. Stakeholder consultations and participation will take place during implementation through the following means:

· Grievance Redress Mechanism (GRM) at the community level 

· Awareness campaign for all stakeholders, and

· Formal interactions through periodic workshops, consultation sessions with wider stakeholders especially institutional ones such as other Local and Central Government Departments, and relevant NGOs.

Overall communications framework will be a key pathway for consultations. The Project will use a three-pronged communications platform aimed at internal and external communications as shown in the Figure 7below.
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[bookmark: _Ref51539090][bookmark: _Toc62609585]Figure 7: Communications Framework and Levels of Engagement



Advanced notice will be given when works or installations are performed to ensure proper participation of the affected residents. The information on when works will take place will be easily accessible and in a format that is both culturally appropriate and in the local language(s) of different groups residing in the area.

Periodically, the Project will also hold formal workshops to consult a wide range of stakeholders/members of the Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) on project activities. These workshops will involve members from the GRC from the communities, MEE, Termokos, Municipality of Prishtina, and the MFK representatives to share the progress and elicit the views of all the stakeholders for the improvement.

Major role on supervision and reporting on proper implementation of GRC mechanism will be with IC.
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In general, the concerned public is mainly positive to the investment as it will lead to elimination of a significant source of pollution considered as an environmental hotspot, which will have a direct effect on improving the quality environment for all existing and potential residents, the municipal administration and almost all relevant stakeholders. Nevertheless, in case of complaints or concerns a clear mechanism should be in place in order to address these grievances properly.

The stakeholder grievance structure is mainly an administrative matter, providing a frame for handling of grievances. The mechanism to be implemented is important for the construction, demolition and soil remediation contractor’s public face, hence it is essential that company staff sees the grievance mechanism as a service they provide to the concerned public.

It is also the project owner’ site, here Termokos has to establish its own grievance redress mechanism as defined in the operation manual. For this purpose, Termokos will setup a grievance redress mechanism in order to respond on any complains raised by impacted people. The contact information will be put on a project webpage and templates for grievance submission will be accessible for download in local languages.

Considering that most grievances are raised on short term basis it is therefore essential that clear communication lines to the grievance mechanism exist and that these are communicated to the general public.

In this context a grievance procedure specific to the project will be developed with the following aims:

· To build and maintain trust with all stakeholders,

· To prevent adverse consequences of failure to adequately address grievances; and

· To identify and manage stakeholder concerns and thus support effective risk management.



[bookmark: _Toc29226250][bookmark: _Toc29228288][bookmark: _Toc50428737][bookmark: _Toc62651616]Grievance Procedure:

The Grievance Procedure will be free, open and accessible to all and comments and grievances will be addressed in a fair and transparent manner. Information about the procedures, who to contact and how, will be made available.

In particular all workers will be informed of the grievance process and new workers will be informed when they join the project. The grievance procedure comprises the following steps:

1. Identification of grievance: Stakeholders shall be able to use the following methods to submit a grievance:

1.1. Oral by directly contacting the Contractor’s Liaison Officer, by phone or SMS;

1.2. By filling the grievance form (Contractor / Termokos); and

1.3. In writing via the grievance box located at the Contractor’s and/or the IC’s site office.

It is essential that the complaint structure is designed for the customer’s convenience, thus should not require difficult administrative procedures. In general, the grievance registration should entail:

1. How the complaint was raised (phone, in person, via the grievance form, in writing etc.)?

2. Who issues the complaint?

3. What the complaint is about?

4. Date and location?

5. Who received the complaint at the company?

2. Grievance is formally acknowledged through a personal meeting, phone call, or letter as appropriate, within 2 working days of submission. If the grievance is not well understood or if additional information is required, clarification should be sought from the complainant during this step.

3. Handling of the complaint: The Contractor’s Liaison Manager delegates the complaint internally in writing to the relevant staff/personnel for development of an appropriate response. If required, the grievance may be sent for consideration of the senior management. In case a complaint has been addressed to the Termokos, the responsible manager will coordinate directly with the Contractor’s Liaison Manager and discuss/agree the next required actions to be undertaken.

The Contractor’s Liaison Manager will address the following issues:

1. How the complaint should be prioritized?

2. Who in the company and external (e.g. public, IC, Employer) must be informed?

3. Who in the company is responsible for dealing with the complaint?

4. Minimum requirements in communication with the complainer (call, visit, follow- up) of the responsible officer at the company.

5. Timeframes and quick response procedures.

6. Forms (computerised) to be filled in by company staff.

Beyond the information channels described before, the Contractor shall provide information on designated contact points and staff/site information boards along with corresponding information on further progress on works.

4. A response is developed by the delegated team and Contractor’s Liaison Manager with input from the Senior Management (if required) and others, as necessary.

The response to a grievance will be provided within a week after receipt of the grievance.

Should the need arise; the Contractor will consider the establishment of a conflict resolution committee (involvement of contractor, Engineer, Employer, local authorities, complainant etc.) for the management of complex grievance issues.

5. Required actions are implemented to deal with the issue, and completion of these is recorded on the grievance documentation.

The response of the complainant is recorded to help assess whether the grievance is closed or whether further action is needed. The Contractor’s Liaison Manager should use appropriate communication channels, most likely telephone or face to face meeting, to confirm whether the complainant has understood and is satisfied with the response. The complainants’ response should be recorded in the grievance documentation.

If actions taken on a grievance are not successful, a stakeholder may turn to court in accordance with the existing legislation of Kosovo.

6. Further actions require the documentation of all individual complaints in the regular monthly reporting to the IC and Employer. Corresponding information records shall be also provided by the Employer to the international financing agency (here MFK) at quarterly basis.

An exemplary grievance mechanism procedure is illustrated in Figure 8.
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[bookmark: _Ref51470396][bookmark: _Toc62609586]Figure 8: Proposed grievance mechanism procedure



[bookmark: _Toc29226251][bookmark: _Toc29228289][bookmark: _Toc50428738][bookmark: _Toc62651617]Grievance Mechanism for Workers:

It is important that workers are treated fairly, and they receive prompt response to problems and concerns. Otherwise, grievances may take the form of collective disputes when they are not resolved. They will then lower the morale and efficiency of the employees. Unattended grievances result in frustration, dissatisfaction, low productivity, and lack of interest in work.

Grievance may result from the following factors:

1. Improper working conditions such as strict work standards, unsafe workplace, bad relationship with managers, sexual harassment handling and anti-discrimination in line with the MCC Gender Policy, C-TIP policies, sexual harassment policies, etc.,

2. Irrational management policies such as overtime, transfers, demotions, inappropriate salary structure, etc., and/or

3. Violation of organizational rules and practices.

Grievance procedures provide a clear and transparent framework to deal with difficulties that may arise as part of their working relationship from a worker's perspective. It is important that workers have a course of action available, should they have a complaint. Procedures are necessary to ensure that everybody is treated in the same way in similar circumstances and to ensure issues are dealt with fairly, reasonably and in a timely manner.

There is no prescribed form for grievance mechanisms but there are guiding principles that should underpin them as introduced hereafter:

1. Quick action: As soon as the grievance arises, it should be identified and resolved. Training must be given to responsible staff to effectively and timely manage a grievance. This will lower the detrimental effects of grievance on the employees and their performance.

2. Acknowledging grievance: The managing staff must acknowledge the grievance put forward by the worker as manifestation of true and real feelings of the employees. Acknowledgement by the manager implies that the manager is eager to look into the complaint impartially and without any bias. This will create conducive work environment with instances of grievance reduced.

3. Gathering facts: The managing staff should gather appropriate and sufficient facts explaining the grievance’s nature. A record of such facts must be maintained so that these can be used in a later stage of grievance redressal.

4. Examining the causes of grievance: The actual cause of grievance should be identified. Accordingly, remedial actions should be taken to prevent repetition of the grievance.

5. Decision Making: After identifying the causes of grievance, alternative course of actions should be thought of to manage the grievance. The effect of each course of action on the existing and future management policies and procedure should be analysed and accordingly decision should be taken by the managing staff.

6. Execution and review: The managing staff should execute the decision quickly, ignoring the fact, that it may or may not hurt the employees concerned. After implementing the decision, a follow-up must be there to ensure that the grievance has been resolved completely and adequately.

In order to guarantee a quick and effective way of providing a grievance the construction, demolition and soil remediation contractors should install secret post boxes at selected places allowing workers the anonymous provision of their cases.
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The draft ESMP document will be disclosed through Termokos’s website and public presentation of ESMP findings will be done as part of Environmental Consent Procedure with the MEE or Municipality of Prishtina. Subsequently, the draft ESMP will be also be sent to MFK.




[bookmark: _Ref58019289][bookmark: _Ref58019363][bookmark: _Toc62651619]Annex I: Environmental and Social Code of Practices for DHM Project

The environmental and Social codes of practice (ESCPs) are generic, non-site-specific guidelines for the Construction phase. The ESCPs consist of environmental and social management guidelines and practices to be followed by the contractors for sustainable management of all environmental and social issues. The contractor will be required to follow them and also use them to prepare site-specific management plans (discussed later in the main text of ESMP). The ESCPs are listed below.

· ESCP 1: Waste Management	

· ESCP 2: Fuels and Hazardous Substances Management	

· ESCP 3: Construction Areas Management 	

· ESCP 4: Air Quality Management	

· ESCP 5:  Noise and Vibration Management	

· ESCP 6: Road Transport and Road Traffic Management	

· ESCP 7: DHM Project Camp Management	

· ESCP 8: Cultural and Religious Issues

· ESCP 9: Workers Health and Safety

· ESCP 10: Gender Issues Management





ESCP 1: Waste Management

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		General Waste



		Soil and water pollution from the improper management of wastes and excess materials from the construction sites.



		The Contractor shall

· Develop site specific waste management plan for various specific waste streams (e.g., reusable waste, flammable waste, construction debris, food waste etc.) prior to commencing of construction and submit to supervision consultant for approval.  

· Organize disposal of all wastes generated during construction in the designated disposal sites approved by the Project. 

· Minimize the production of waste materials by 3R (Reduce, Recycle and Reuse) approach. 

· Segregate and reuse or recycle all the wastes, wherever practical.

· Vehicles transporting solid waste shall be covered with tarps or nets to prevent spilling waste along the route.

· Train and instruct all personnel in waste management practices and procedures as a component of the environmental induction process.

· Provide refuse containers at each worksite.

· Place a high emphasis on good housekeeping practices. 

· Maintain all construction sites in a cleaner, tidy and safe condition and provide and maintain appropriate facilities as temporary storage of all wastes before transportation and final disposal. 



		Hazardous Waste

		Health hazards and environmental impacts due to improper waste management practices

		The Contractor shall

· Collect chemical wastes in 200 liter drums (or similar sealed container), appropriately labeled for safe transport to an approved chemical waste depot. 

· Store, transport and handle all chemicals avoiding potential environmental pollution.

· Store all hazardous wastes appropriately in bunded areas away from water courses. 

· Make available Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for hazardous materials on-site during construction.

· Collect hydrocarbon wastes, including lube oils, for safe transport off-site for reuse, recycling, treatment or disposal at approved locations.

· Construct concrete or other impermeable flooring to prevent seepage in case of spills. 





[bookmark: _Toc246385784][bookmark: _Toc247618036][bookmark: _Toc248027618]

ESCP 2: Fuels and Hazardous Waste Management

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		Fuels and hazardous waste.

		Materials extracted during the construction phase have a potential to be a source of contamination. Improper storage and handling of fuels, lubricants, chemicals and hazardous waste/materials on-site, and potential spills from these waste sources may harm the environment or health of construction workers. 



		The Contractor shall

· Prepare spill control procedures and submit them for supervision consultant approval. 

· Train the relevant construction personnel in handling of fuels and spill control procedures.

· Store dangerous materials in bunded areas on top of a sealed plastic sheet away from watercourses.

· Refueling shall occur only within destinated areas.

· Store and use fuels in accordance with material safety data sheets (MSDS). Make available MSDS for chemicals and dangerous waste on-site.

· Transport waste generated from dismantled of dangerous materials, which cannot be recycled, to a designated temporary disposal site.

· Provide absorbent and containment material (e.g., absorbent matting) where hazardous materials are generated and stored; and ensure personnel is trained in their correct handling. 

· Provide protective clothing, safety boots, helmets, masks, gloves, goggles, to the construction personnel, appropriate to materials in being handled. 

· Make sure all containers, drums, and tanks that were used for storage are in good condition and are labeled.  Any container, drum, or tank that is dented, cracked, or rusted might eventually leak. Check for leakage regularly to identify potential problems before they occur. 

· Store and use fuels in accordance with material safety data sheets (MSDSs).

· Store all liquid fuels in fully bunded storage containers, with appropriate volumes, a roof, a collection point and appropriate filling/decanting point. 

· Store hazardous materials above flood level considered for construction phase purposes

· Put containers and drums in temporary storages in clearly marked areas, where they will not be run over by vehicles or heavy machinery.  The area shall preferably slope or drain to a safe collection area in the event of a spill.

· Take all precautionary measures when handling and storing fuels and lubricants, avoiding environmental pollution. 

· Avoid the use of material with greater potential for contamination by substituting them with more environmentally friendly materials. 





[bookmark: _Toc246385796][bookmark: _Toc247618042][bookmark: _Toc248027619]
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		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		Construction sites management 

		Dismantled sites will be finally demolished, and debris created from this process will need careful management



		The Contractor shall

· Prepare construction area management plan and submit the plan for supervision consultant approval.

· Identify construction waste that can be used as backfilling material for excavated sites or as suitable material for construction of road tarmac.

· Reuse debris or disposed material available in the project to the maximum extent possible. 

· Control dust  and air quality deterioration by application of watering and implementing mitigation measures proposed in ESCP 4: Air Quality Management

· Noise and vibration control by ESCP 5: Noise and Vibration Management. 









[bookmark: _Toc246385806][bookmark: _Toc247618051][bookmark: _Toc248027626]ESCP 4: Air Quality Management

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		Project vehicular traffic

		Air quality can be adversely affected by vehicle exhaust emissions and combustion of fuels. 



		The Contractor shall

· Prepare air quality management plan (under the Pollution Prevention Plan) and submit the plan for supervision consultant approval.

· Fit vehicles with appropriate exhaust systems and emission control devices. Maintain these devices in good working condition. 

· Operate the vehicles in a fuel-efficient manner.

· Cover hauls vehicles carrying dusty materials moving outside the construction site. 

· Impose speed limits on all vehicle movement at the worksite to reduce dust and noise emissions.

· Control the movement of construction traffic.

· Service all vehicles regularly to minimize emissions.

· Limit the idling time of vehicles not more than 2 minutes.



		Project machinery

		Air quality can be adversely affected by emissions from machinery and combustion of fuels. 



		The Contractor shall

· Fit machinery with appropriate exhaust systems and emission control devices. Maintain these devices in good working condition in accordance with the specifications defined by their manufacturers to maximize combustion efficiency and minimize the contaminant emissions. Proof or maintenance register shall be required by the equipment suppliers and contractors/subcontractors.

· Focus special attention on containing the emissions from generators.

· Machinery causing excess pollution (e.g. visible smoke) will be banned.

· Service all equipment regularly to minimize emissions.

· Provide filtering systems, duct collectors or humidification or other techniques (as applicable) to the concrete construction debris to control the particle emissions in all its stages, including loading and unloading, collection, debrie handling, circulation of trucks and machinery inside the construction site and at the disposal site.



		Installation activities

		Dust generation from construction sites, material stockpiles and access roads is a nuisance in the environment and can be a health hazard, and also can affect the local crops;

		The Contractor shall

· Water the construction construction waste stockpiles, access roads and bare soils on an as required basis to minimize the potential for environmental nuisance due to dust. Increase the watering frequency during periods of high risk (e.g. high winds).

· Minimize the extent and period of exposure of the bare surfaces. 

· Restore disturbed areas as soon as practicable. 

· Establish adequate locations for storage, loading and unloading of construction materials, in a way that dust dispersion is prevented because of such operations.

· Do not permit the burning of solid waste. 
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[bookmark: _Toc248027627]ESCP 5: Noise and Vibration Management

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		DHM Project vehicular traffic

		Noise quality will be deteriorated due to vehicular traffic

		The Contractor shall

· Prepare a noise and vibration management plan (under the Pollution Prevention Plan) and submit the plan for supervision consultant approval.

· Maintain all vehicles in order to keep it in good working order in accordance with manufactures maintenance procedures.

· Make sure all drivers will comply with the traffic codes concerning maximum speed limit, driving hours, etc. 

· Organize the loading and unloading of trucks, and handling operations for the purpose of minimizing construction noise on the work site.



		DHM Project machinery

		Noise and vibration may have an impact on people, property, fauna, domestic pets,  and the natural environment.



		The Contractor shall:

· Appropriately site all noise generating activities to avoid noise pollution to local residents.

· Use the quietest available plant and equipment.

· Maintain all equipment in order to keep it in good working order in accordance with manufactures maintenance procedures. Equipment suppliers and contractors shall present proof of maintenance register of their equipment.

· Install acoustic enclosures around generators to reduce noise levels. 

· Fit high efficiency mufflers to appropriate construction equipment.

· Avoid the unnecessary use of alarms, horns and sirens.



		DHM Project activity

		Noise and vibration may have an impact on people, property, fauna, domestic pets, and the natural environment.



		The Contractor shall

· Notify adjacent affected people prior to any typical noise events outside of daylight hours.

· Educate the operators of DHM Installation equipment on potential noise problems and the techniques to minimize noise emissions. 

· Employ best available work practices on-site to minimize occupational noise levels.

· Install temporary noise control barriers where appropriate.

· Notify affected people if major noisy activities will be undertaken.

· Plan activities on site and deliveries to and from site to minimize impact.

· Monitor and analyze noise and vibration results and adjust construction practices as required.

· Avoid undertaking the noisiest activities, where possible, when working in the residential areas.







[bookmark: _Toc247618054][bookmark: _Toc248027631]ESCP 6:  Road Transport and Road Traffic Management

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		DHM Project vehicular traffic

		Increased traffic use of road by construction vehicles will affect the movement of normal road traffics and the safety of the road-users.



		The Contractor shall

· Prepare a traffic management plan and submit the plan for supervision consultant approval.

· Strictly follow the Project’s ‘Traffic Management Plan’ and work with close coordination with the Traffic Management Unit. 

· Prepare and submit additional traffic plan, if any of this traffic routes are not covered in the Project’s Traffic Management Plan, and requires traffic diversion and management.  

· Include in the traffic plan to ensure uninterrupted traffic movement during construction: detailed drawings of traffic arrangements showing all  detours,  temporary  road,  temporary  bridges temporary diversions,  necessary  barricades,  warning  signs / lights,  road  signs  etc.  

· Provide signs at strategic locations of the roads complying with the schedules of signs contained in the Kosovo Traffic Regulations.  



		

		Accidents and spillage of fuels and chemicals

		The Contractor shall

· Restrict truck deliveries, where practicable, to day time working hours.

· Restrict the transport of oversize loads.

· Operate vehicles, if possible, to non-peak periods to minimize traffic disruptions. 

· Enforce on-site speed limit. 
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[bookmark: _Toc246385823]ESCP 7: DHM Project Camp Management

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		Siting and Location of construction camps



		Campsites for construction workers are the important locations that have significant impacts such as health and safety hazards on local resources and infrastructure of nearby communities. 

		The Contractor shall

· Prepare a construction camp management plan and submit the plan for supervision consultant's approval.

· Locate the construction camps within the designed sites or at areas which are acceptable from environmental, cultural or social point of view; and approved by the supervision consultant.  

· Submit to the supervision consultant for approval a detailed layout plan for the development of the construction camp showing the relative  locations of all temporary buildings and facilities that are to be used together  with  the  location  of  site  roads,  fuel storage  areas (for use in power supply generators), solid waste management and dumping locations, and  drainage  facilities, prior to the development of the construction camps.  

· Local authorities responsible for health, religious and security shall be duly informed on the set up of camp facilities so as to maintain effective surveillance over public health, social and security matters.



		Disposal of waste

		Management of wastes is crucial to minimize impacts on the environment

		The Contractor shall

· Ensure proper collection and disposal of solid wastes within the construction camps.

· Insist waste separation by source; organic wastes in one container and inorganic wastes in another container at household level. 

· Store inorganic wastes in a safe place within the household and clear organic wastes on daily basis to waste collector. Establish waste collection, transportation and disposal systems with the manpower and equipment/vehicles needed. 

· All solid waste will be collected and removed from the work camps and disposed in approval waste disposal sites. 





		Health and Hygiene



		There will be a potential for diseases to be transmitted, exacerbated by inadequate health and safety practices. 



		The Contractor shall

· Provide adequate health care facilities within construction sites. 

· Provide first aid facility round the clock. Maintain stock of medicines in the facility and appoint fulltime designated first aider or nurse.

· Provide ambulance service for the laborers during emergency to be transported to nearest hospitals. 

· Initial health screening of the laborers coming from outside areas.

· Train all construction workers in basic sanitation and health care issues and safety matters, and on the specific hazards of their work.

· Provide adequate drainage facilities throughout the camps to ensure that disease vectors such as stagnant water bodies and puddles do not form. Regular mosquito repellant sprays during summer season in offices and construction installation sites. 

· Not dispose food waste openly as that will attract rats and stray dogs. 

· Carryout short training sessions on best hygiene practices to be mandatorily participated by all workers. Place display boards at strategic locations within the camps containing messages on best hygienic practices.



		Safety

		In adequate safety facilities to the construction sites may create security problems and fire hazards

		The Contractor shall

· Provide appropriate security personnel (private security guards) and enclosures to prevent unauthorized entry into the camp area.

· Maintain register to keep a track on a head count of persons present in the site at any given time.

· Encourage use of flameproof material for the construction of labor site office. Also, ensure that these temporary offices are of sound construction and capable of withstanding windstorms, and cold winter weather.

· Provide appropriate type of firefighting equipment suitable for the construction camps 

· Display emergency contact numbers clearly and prominently at strategic places in camps.

· Communicate the roles and responsibilities of laborers in case of emergency in the monthly meetings with contractors.

· Mark emergency meeting area for construction workers in case of accidents



		Site Restoration 

		Restoration of the construction camps to original condition requires construction of construction camps.  

		The Contractor shall

· Dismantle and remove from the site all facilities established within the construction camp.

· Give prior notice to the laborers before demolishing their camps/units.

· Maintain the noise levels within the national standards during installation activities.

· Reuse the construction debris to a maximum extent. Dispose remaining debris at the designated waste disposal site. 

· Handover the construction camps with all built facilities as it is if agreement between both parties (contactor and Termokos) has been made so. 

· Restore the site   to   its   condition   prior   to finishing of the works.
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ESCP 8: Cultural and Religious Issues

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		DHM Project activities near religious and cultural sites

		Disturbance from construction works to the cultural and religious sites, and contractors lack of knowledge on cultural issues cause social disturbances.



		The Contractor shall

· Communicate to the public through community consultation regarding the scope and schedule of installation, as well as certain construction activities causing disruptions or access restriction. 

· Not block access to cultural and religious sites, wherever possible.

· Restrict all construction activities within the footprints of the construction sites. 

· Stop construction works that produce noise (particularly during prayer time) should there be any mosque/religious/educational institutions close to the construction sites and users make objections. 

· Take special care and use appropriate equipment when working next to a cultural/religious institution.

· Stop work immediately and notify the site manager if, during construction, an archaeological site is discovered. 

· Show appropriate behavior with all construction workers especially women.

· Resolve cultural issues in consultation with local leaders and supervision consultants.

· Establish a mechanism that allows local people to raise grievances arising from the construction process. 

· Inform the local authorities responsible for health, religious and security duly informed before commencement of construction works so as to maintain effective surveillance over public health, social and security matters.
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ESCP 9: Worker Health and Safety

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		Best practices

		DHM Project works may pose health and safety risks to the construction workers and site visitors leading to severe injuries and deaths. The population in the proximity of the construction site and the construction workers will be exposed to a number of (i) biophysical health risk factors, (e.g. noise, dust, chemicals, construction material, solid waste, wastewater, vector transmitted diseases etc.), and (ii) road accidents from construction traffic.



		The Contractor shall

· Prepare an Occupational Health and Safety plan and submit the plan for supervision consultant's approval.

· Implement suitable safety standards for all workers and site visitors which should not be less than those laid down on the international standards (e.g. International Labor Office guideline on ‘Safety and Health in Construction; World Bank Group’s ‘Environmental Health and Safety Guidelines’) and contractor’s own national standards or statutory regulations, in addition to complying with Kosovo and EU standards.

· Provide the workers with a safe and healthy work environment, taking into account inherent risks in its particular construction activity and specific classes of hazards in the work areas. 

· Provide personal protection equipment (PPE) for workers, such as safety boots, helmets, masks, gloves, protective clothing, goggles, full-face eye shields, and ear protection. Maintain the PPE properly by cleaning dirty ones and replacing the damaged ones.  

· Safety procedures include provision of information, training and protective clothing to workers involved in hazardous operations and proper performance of their job. The training and safety materials should be done in local languages for workers to understand risks involved in performing their job.

· Appoint an environment, health and safety manager to look after the health and safety of the workers. 

· Inform the local authorities responsible for health, cultural and security duly informed before commencement of construction works and establishment of construction camps so as to maintain effective surveillance over public health, social and security matters.



		

		Child and pregnant labor

		The Contractor shall

· not hire children of less than 16 years of age and pregnant women or women who delivered a child within 8 preceding weeks.



		Accidents

		Lack of first aid facilities and health care facilities in the immediate vicinity will aggravate the health conditions of the potential victims

		The Contractor shall

· Ensure health care facilities and first aid facilities are readily available. Appropriately equipped first-aid stations should be easily accessible throughout the place of work.

· Document and report occupational accidents, diseases, and incidents.

· Prevent accidents, injury, and disease arising from, associated with, or occurring in the course of work by minimizing, so far as reasonably practicable, the causes of hazards, in a manner consistent with good international industry practice.

·  Identify potential hazards to workers, particularly those that may be life-threatening and provide necessary preventive and protective measures.

· Provide awareness to the drivers to strictly follow the driving rules.

· Provide adequate lighting in the construction area, inside the buildings, inside the industrial facilities to be dismantled and along the roads.



		DHM Project Camps

		Lack of proper infrastructure facilities, such as office housing, water supply and sanitation facilities will increase pressure on the local services and generate substandard working standards and health hazards. 

		The Contractor shall provide the following facilities in the campsites to improve health and hygienic conditions as mentioned in ESCP 7 DHM Project Camp Management

· Adequate ventilation facilities

· Safe and reliable water supply. 

· Hygienic sanitary facilities and sewerage system. 

· Treatment facilities for sewerage of toilet and domestic wastes

· Storm water drainage facilities. 

· Recreational and social facilities

· Safe storage facilities for petroleum and other chemicals in accordance with ESCP 2

· Solid waste collection and disposal system in accordance with ESCP1. 

· Arrangement for trainings

· Use existing paved internal roads. 

· Sick bay and first aid facilities



		Water and sanitation facilities at the construction sites

		Lack of Water sanitation facilities at construction sites cause inconvenience to the construction workers and affect their personal hygiene. 

		The contractor shall

·  Provide portable toilets at the construction sites, if about 25 people are working the whole day for a month. Location of portable facilities should be at least 6 m away from storm drain system and surface waters. These portable toilets should be cleaned once a day and all the sewerage should be pumped from the collection tank once a day and should be brought to the common septic tank for further treatment. 

· Provide safe drinking water facilities to the construction workers at all the construction sites. 



		Other ESCPs

		Potential risks on health and hygiene of construction workers and general public

		The Contractor shall follow the following ESCPs to reduce health risks to the construction workers and nearby community

· ESCP 2: Fuels and Hazardous Materials Management	

· ESCP 4: Air Quality Management	

· ESCP 5: Noise and Vibration Management	

· ESCP 6: Road Transport and Road Traffic Management	



		Trainings

		Lack of awareness and basic knowledge in health care among the construction workforce, make them susceptible to potential diseases.  

		The Contractor shall

· Train all construction workers in basic sanitation and health care issues.

· Train all construction workers in general health and safety matters, and on the specific hazards of their work. Training should consist of basic hazard awareness, site specific hazards, safe work practices, and emergency procedures for fire, evacuation, and natural disaster, as appropriate. 










ESCP 10: Gender and Social Inclusion Management Plan

		Project Activity/ Impact Source

		

		Environmental/Social Impacts

		Mitigation Measures/ Management Guidelines



		Non Discrimination and Equal Opportunity



		

		The Contractor adheres to the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment in its employment practices. The Contractor Entity expects that the Supplier shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. Personal characteristics include sex, race, nationality, ethnic, social and indigenous origin, religion or belief, disability, age, sexual orientation, and gender identity. 



		The Contractor shall provide the following requirements implemented to meet these principles through:

Compliance with Law

Guaranteeing Access and Equity to

Marginalized and Vulnerable Groups

Respecting Gender Equality and Women’s Empowerment

Respecting of Core Labor Rights guaranteed by Labor Laws. 

Ensure Public Health/Health of Women



· The principle of equal treatment requires that all people, and in the context of the workplace all workers, have the right to receive the same treatment, and will not be discriminated against on the basis of gender.

· The Labor policy includes antidiscrimination and protection clauses. The Labor policy prohibits concluding a labor contract with a pregnant or breastfeeding woman for performing hard, hazardous and dangerous work.  Same prohibitions apply to the work during night and overtime work.  The Labor policy also considers it unlawful to dismiss on the grounds of pregnancy, maternity leave or marital status

· In order to guarantee the increase of number of women in energy sector projects, the threshold in line with the Gender Equality Law requirements, encourages affirmative measures to increase employment of women in traditionally led male jobs. Therefore, incentives provided by the Contractor in increasing targeted employment of women in the projects aiming to reach 30% according to a proposed Employment Action Plan developed, will be provided extra points during evaluations and monitoring of projects.



		

		

		The Contractor will adheres to the principles banning child labor and pregnant labor

		The Contractor shall

· Not hire children of less than 18 years of age (exceptionally children above 16 years of age if formal court proceedings of emancipation to employment have been fulfilled, proof of certificate is required) and pregnant women or women who delivered a child within 8 preceding weeks.



		Prohibition of Sexual Harassment

		

		Contractor, shall prohibit, and refrain from, sexual harassment behaviors directed at threshold beneficiaries, partners, stakeholders, employees, consultants, personnel.



		Examples of sexual harassment include, but are not limited to, the following behaviors: 

· Unwelcome sexual advances; requests for sexual favors; verbal or physical harassment of a sexual nature; or offensive remarks about a person’s sex, sexual orientation or non- conformity with gender stereotypes.

· Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy and Procedures: A transparent anti-sexual harassment policy and grievance procedure process is established and put into place by contractor. The policy will be in line with MFK anti-sexual harassment policy. Trainings should include awareness of policy in terms of workplace behavior. Anti-sexual harassment policy and grievance processes are published and staff trained. Contractor compliance is established.

· Workplace policies and a complaints mechanism shall be put in place to deal with sexual harassment;





		Prohibition of Trafficking in Persons (“TIP”)

























		

		The Contractor is committed to ensuring appropriate steps are taken to prevent, mitigate, and monitor TIP risks in its projects or funded projects.

		The Contractor has a zero-tolerance policy with regard to Trafficking in Persons. 

Trafficking in Persons (“TIP”) is the crime of using force, fraud, and/or coercion to exploit another person. 

Trafficking in Persons can take the form of domestic servitude, peonage, forced labor, sexual servitude, bonded labor, and the use of child soldiers. This practice deprives people of their human rights and freedoms, increases global health risks, fuels growing networks of organized crime, and can sustain levels of poverty and impede development. 



		Other ESCPs

		

		Gender Stereotypes

		The Contractor shall follow the following to:

· Any outreach activity must be tailored to involve and reach women and to promote messages that positively portray their very important role   in   district heating resource   management.   Messages   should not   reinforce   limiting   stereotypes and should create an enabling environment for women as well as men to access and benefit from household level savings that accrue as a result of improved  district heating.	

· Contractor teams interacting with HHs will have to participate in gender and social behavior orientation training to ensure sensitivity to and appropriate, professional behavior (e.g. prohibition of sexual harassment) with females and vulnerable groups on teams and in consumer households.



		Trainings

		

		Lack of awareness and basic knowledge enhanced on gender issues.  

		The Contractor shall:

· Organize and carry out gender and social behavior orientation training, with oversight, to ensure sensitivity to and appropriate behavior with females, minorities, and vulnerable groups on teams and in consumer households.

· All staff have undergone basic gender and customer sensitivity orientation, and have passed an assessment demonstrating knowledge.

· Contractors conducting HH outreach to adopt inclusive and gender-sensitive practices and educational/ informational/ outreach campaigns for women, and poor, minority and/or disadvantaged households and enhance their participation in the DHM program and to enable them to understand usage, control, and savings these practices.

· Behavior change campaign in particular targeting women as primary household energy managers and users in households.












[bookmark: _Toc62651620]Annex II: COVID-19 Contractor Risk Mitigation Plan Template

Addendum to the Health and Safety Plan





Guidance: This template is intended to suggest a standardized, streamlined approach to help Contractors prepare and implement an acceptable COVID-19 Risk Mitigation Plan (COVID-19 Plan).  Contractors should review the entire COVID-19 Plan template, adding their content to all cells shaded light blue. When complete, this Plan and its commitments would become an addendum to their health and safety management plan (or equivalent).  In cases where works have been suspended or have not yet started, the COVID-19 Plan must be approved by the Supervising Engineer, MCA and MCC before activities at the work site(s) may proceed.  Ongoing work requires a COVID-19 Plan to be developed and approved within a defined timeframe in order to continue without interruption.

No MCC guidance, including this document, purports to offer medical advice with respect to COVID-19; for medical or scientific advice or information, individuals and MCAs should seek guidance from qualified medical and scientific experts. The information on COVID-19 included in this guidance is based on the best-available information as of the date of publication of this document.  Contractors should regularly incorporate updated guidance from international health organizations and government. 
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		Project

		Implementer for District Heating Metering
RFP / MFK /2018/ QCBS / No. 021



		Company Name

		



		H&S Plan Name

		



		COVID-19 Plan Date

		



		COVID-19 Plan Revision No.

		



		Acknowledgement/commitment
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Purpose and Scope

The COVID-19 pandemic creates unprecedented risks. This COVID-19 Plan template describes protection measures to avoid (where possible) and reduce risks associated with COVID-19. It applies to all Contractor employees, subcontractors, and authorized individuals (including the Supervising Engineer) on construction sites under the control of the Contractor.  This Plan template meets or exceeds the minimum requirements of MCC[footnoteRef:5] and national and local governments (whichever is stricter)[footnoteRef:6].  It forms an addendum to the Contractor’s health and safety and emergency response plans.   [5:  IFC Performance Standards 2 and 4 include health and safety requirements to protect the work force and public.]  [6:  This document identifies minimum risk mitigation plan requirements for contractors to address. Based upon other national guidance, home office guidance, and local conditions, plan elements may need to go beyond these minimum requirements. ] 




The best way to protect the workforce and the public is to prevent the potential for exposure to the virus wherever possible. In the absence of being able to totally prevent exposure, the hierarchy of controls should be followed.  This are listed in below, from the most to least effective measures:


· Elimination or substitution.Elimination physically removes a hazard. An example would be to not perform an action, such as cancelling a non-essential meeting. Substitution replaces a hazard. An example would be using online tools to hold a meeting virtually. 


· Engineering controls isolate workers from a hazard. They are built into the design of infrastructure, equipment, or a process.  Examples include physical barriers to separate the public from the work site (fences, access security) and the use of portable chemical toilets for mobile sites (so workers do not have to use public or private bathrooms). 


· Administrative controls change the way people work. They include policies, procedures, shift designs, and training to lessen the threat of a hazard to an individual. They are typically less effective than the engineering controls above as they rely on individual action and are most effective when used in conjunction with PPE. 


· Safe work practices are a type of administrative control. They are procedures individual workers can take to reduce their duration, frequency, or intensity of exposure to COVID-19. Examples include social distancing and good hygiene.


· Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) provides protection through equipment that a worker wears. The engineering controls, administrative controls and safe work practices mentioned above are the most effective risk mitigation measures. When social distancing cannot be consistently achieved, PPE should be deployed to break the exposure pathway. 

[bookmark: _Toc39663587]Risks

1. COVID-19 is a highly infectious virus transmitted through the air and off surfaces on which it has settled.  The principle exposure pathways are inhaling the airborne virus or touching a virus contaminated surface and then touching one’s eyes, nose, or mouth. To prevent exposure to the virus it is essential that pathways into the respiratory system and mucus membranes are blocked. There is some concern that exposure could potentially be through contact with the eyes. 



2. The virus can be transmitted before symptoms appear. These unsuspecting carriers may drive infection rates. It is important to implement measures that reduce the risk of transmission, even among people who have no symptoms of the disease. 



3. People with underlying medical conditions (such as immunodeficiencies, asthma, diabetes, and heart disease) and those who are older are at greatest risk of serious complications from the infection. 
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Guidance for the table below: Articulate roles, responsibilities and procedures to implement and oversee the COVID-19 Plan (including by subcontractors). In large part, these should be established under their existing contracts (e.g., under existing health and safety responsibilities) but should be articulated given the scope of the responsibilities. 

		Contractor staff / Phone #

		Responsibility for Implementation of Plan 



		

		Overall responsibility for implementation of the Plan, including by subcontractors 



		

		Screening of workers and visitors



		

		Adequate PPE, medical supplies, disinfectant, and other required supplies are acquired and maintained



		

		Training and toolbox talks



		

		Workplace sanitation



		

		Stakeholder coordination on COVID-19 issues. Notification and coordination with families and communities as appropriate



		

		Coordination of response to people exhibiting COVID-19 symptoms



		

		Reporting to the Supervising Engineer, MCA, and as appropriate, local authorities





[bookmark: _Toc39663589]Resources

		Staffing and Stocking of First Aid Station and Infirmary



		Guidance: The Contractor should describe location, staffing and stocking for first aid and infirmary.

		















		Medical Facilities



		Guidance: Provide information on (1) the medical facility where people will be taken if needed and (2) how people would be transported. The protocol and contact information of the facility should be described. 
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		Guidance: The MCA will insert a section that describes national requirements, and this will be included as standard in all Contractor COVID-19 Plans. Note that requirements listed here can be referenced below but not repeated.



		



		Work Schedule



		Guidance: Contractor will describe, as appropriate, high level strategies to reduce the density of the work force.  This may include: (a) opportunities for remote or teleworking so as to reduce the number of staff on the premises at any given time; and (b) increased physical separation between staff when on the premises. Changes to the strategy and associated operational details should be communicated in monthly reports. 



		





		Transportation



		Guidance: Describe measures to get workers safely to and from site.





		



		Personnel Management



		Guidance: Describe measures to: (a) Maintain complete contact information of all people on the site – name, identification number, address, emergency contact; (b) Ensure that no ‘punitive’ measures are taken when a sick worker is sent home for an extended period of time; (c)- Guide when workers are permitted to return to work (see Annex 1 for additional guidance). 





		



		Work Force Screening and Site Management



		Workforce screening is an essential strategy for managing COVID-19 risks. 

		The Contractor will identify and (as appropriate) isolate sick workers before they come onto the job site through the following steps: 

1. Implement a consistent health screening protocol upon entry (daily temperature and checks of key symptoms – see Annex 1). 

2. The system should ensure that the Contractor has up to date emergency contact information of all workers, should follow up support or contact tracing be required. This can be confirmed during the screening process. 

3. Deny access to site for people suspected of COVID-19 (based on protocol and health screening results). The Contractor will take a person to a predetermined place of isolation and follow the protocol mandated by the national and local public health and other governmental organizations for suspected COVID-19 cases. 

4. Strongly encourage workers to stay home if they are sick or are living with someone who is confirmed or symptomatic of COVID-19. 



If anyone on site demonstrates symptoms consistent with COVID-19, see the Emergency Response section below. 



		

		Pre-determined location for isolation:



Protocol for contacting government organizations regarding suspected COVID-19 cases:





		Social Distancing

		



		Social distancing has proven to be an effective means to control the Coronavirus.

		Minimum requirements include:

1. Avoid crowding and gathering in groups.

2. Keeping people at least 2m apart.

3. Staging and staggering crews where possible, assigning workers to dedicated shifts (which could include night-time and weekend work, where permitted).

4. Avoiding handshaking and using other forms of greeting that involve being in close proximity.

5. Conducting meetings and other work virtually whenever possible (including through technology such as onsite closed-circuit television cameras to monitor work progress, drones to assess construction coordination, and telecommunications platforms (e.g. skype, zoom). 



Where work tasks must be done near other workers, additional measures to break the potential exposure pathways are required (e.g., see PPE below). 





		Good personal hygiene

		



		These safe work practices are among the most effective in reducing the risk of transmission of the virus. 

		The following practices will be implemented on site: 

1. Frequent hand washing (for at least 20 seconds). If soap and running water are not available, Contractors will provide hand rubs containing at least 60% alcohol or 70% isopropanol. The Contractor will provide an adequate number of hand washing stations (with soap and paper towels and/or sanitizer).  

a. For mobile field operations, there will be at least one hand washing station per crew.  

b. For fixed sites, the minimum standard for handwash stations is: one at entrance to the office, one at the entrance to the job site, at each toilet, at each break area, and at the infirmary. 

2. Prohibition of sharing cups, silverware, and utensils unless adequately cleaned with soap and water between uses. 

3. Encouraging workers to cough or sneeze into a tissue or bent arm. Tissues are assumed to be contaminated and should be disposed of carefully so as not to become a source of transmission.



		Workplace sanitation

		



		Current evidence suggests that a novel Coronavirus may remain viable for hours or days on surfaces made from a variety of materials. The objective of workplace sanitation is to clean surfaces that people are likely to come into contact with their hands. Cleaning of visibly dirty surfaces followed by disinfection is a best practice measure for prevention of COVID-19 and other viral respiratory illnesses. Additional disinfection should take place of areas and equipment used by workers who present symptoms of COVID-19.



		Minimum requirements include:

· Disinfecting a minimum of two times daily: once mid-morning / mid-day and once at the end of the shift. 

· Wearing the required PPE (including disposable gloves and face masks) when cleaning and disinfecting surfaces. Use eye protection and coveralls or apron where appropriate. Preference is for gloves to be discarded after each cleaning. However, if reusable gloves are used, those gloves should be dedicated for cleaning and disinfection and should not be used for other purposes.

· Cleaning hands with soap and water immediately after gloves are removed.



Disinfecting non-porous surfaces:

· If a surface is visibly dirty, clean it first with soap and water. 

· Use either a diluted solution of unexpired bleach (1 part bleach to 60 parts water), an alcohol solution with at least 70% alcohol, and/or a government recommended solution for use against COVID- 19. 

· After application, allow 2 minutes of contact time before wiping, or allow to air dry (without wiping).

· NOTE: NEVER mix household bleach with ammonia or other cleaner.



Workplace sanitation focusses on high touch surfaces in: 

· Structures, including offices, gates, toilets, change rooms, canteens, meal preparation areas, break areas, grievance boxes, suggestion boxes, stairs, scaffolding, handrails, tools, buckets, wheel barrels, and other equipment shall be cleaned regularly. 

· Vehicles & Construction Equipment. This includes inside of work vehicles and heavy equipment. Handles, knobs, levers, seatbelts and commonly touched surfaces should be cleaned. 

· Hand and Power Tools. Please note electric tools must be disconnected prior to disinfection. No person may use tools or equipment that have been used by another person without being disinfected first. 



		Training/Toolbox Talks and Safety Awareness



		

		All workers must be provided an initial training that includes, at a minimum: signs and symptoms of COVID-19

· How it is transmitted;

· What “social distancing” is;

· What preventative measures have been found to be effective;

· Site protocols (transportation, screening, where the infirmary is, what to do if you have symptoms, safe work practices);

· How to properly wear and dispose or reuse PPE. 



Toolbox talks will be used subsequent to the initial training to reinforce messages and communicate any changes. 





		Personal Protective Equipment

		



		PPE provides protection through equipment that a person wears. When social distancing cannot be consistently achieved, PPE should be deployed to break the exposure pathway. PPE must be chosen based on risks to a person. 

		As appropriate, the Contractor will provide adequate supplies and training in the inspection, use, maintenance, on site storage, and proper disposal of:

1. Masks: Masks reduce inhalation of the virus and can minimize the virus being exhaled by contaminated individuals. Masks are particularly important where work must be done in close quarters. 



2. Gloves: There are four categories of PPE gloves: leather, canvas/metal mesh; fabric/coated; chemical- /liquid-resistant and insulating rubber. Glove selection should be task specific to afford needed protection from injury. Gloves can help reduce the tendency to touch the face. If known or suspected contaminated surfaces are touched, the gloves should be disposed of carefully so as not to become a source of transmission and replaced with new gloves. 





[bookmark: _Toc39663591]Exposure Response

		Isolation 



		Guidance:Contractor should:

1. Specify a location to isolate any individual exhibiting signs and symptoms of COVID-19 identified on-site.

2. Specify quarantine hygiene requirements (mask, hand washing, cough/sneeze control, etc.).

3. Identify all individuals to be notified of the action to quarantine (Contractor team, designated medical facility, National COVID-19 organization.



		During screening, observation and interview of personnel for symptoms of COVID-19 infection (temperature checks, history of travel, coughs, chest pains, places visited, etc.) by trained staff, a person suspected of COVID-19 symptoms will immediately be sent to the site infirmary or designated isolation quarters for quarantine.



[contractor to add additional information]



		Response to suspected COVID-19 cases



		



		Follow national and Contractor protocol for how to manage individuals suspected of having COVID-19 symptoms. In the event national and Contractor protocol are not consistent or complimentary, the stricter protocol will apply. 



Contractor will evaluate additional measures to be taken such as pausing the task the individual was involved with so as to screen co-workers, initiating sanitization procedures noted above and initiating contact tracing of persons who may have come into contact with the individual.





		Personnel management

		



		Guidance: Individuals confirmed to have been in contact with an individual suspected to have COVID-19 shall be released for a minimum 14-day self-quarantine period. Contractor is to describe what their policy is for pay and benefits to individuals during this quarantine period.
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		Stakeholder Engagement



		

		Stakeholder engagement and grievance management will continue under the Contractor’s existing mechanisms and responsibilities. Contractors may expand these efforts to address COVID-19 risks. Contractors should avoid in-person meetings where possible while maintaining open lines of communication. 





		Reporting 



		

		In the regular monthly report, the Contractor will include, as a minimum, the following information on: 

1. The implementation of the COVID-19 Plan and any updates to the Plan;

2. Incidences of suspected and confirmed COVID-19 cases; 

3. Incidences of non-compliance with the Plan and remedial actions; 

4. Impacts of COVID-19 on project implementation and completion; 

5. Additional steps taken to reduce COVID-19 risks through lessons learned.





		Review of this Plan

		



		Adaptive management is a key element. 

		Plans will be reviewed and updated as needed. Given the rapidly changing nature of the situation, it may be necessary to review and update the plans frequently.










[bookmark: _Toc38527623][bookmark: _Toc39663593]Health Screening Protocol for Coronavirus D-19 Symptoms

Implementing a consistent protocol for screening workers will not prevent workers from getting sick, as 25 – 50% of infected people may not show symptoms. But it is important to limit the spread, as people appear to be most infectious when showing symptoms. A Contractor’s screening protocol should be based on the best available medical advice[footnoteRef:7] and a country’s guidance (whichever is stricter) and updated as new information becomes available. The protocol below should be considered a starting point. [7:  Material here is drawn from the World Health Organization and the U.S. Center for Disease Control. Companies should consult their own medical practitioners and follow national regulations and norms. ] 


		Key symptoms[footnoteRef:8] [8:  Emergency warning signs that merit immediate attention include: difficulty breathing or shortness of breath; persistent pain or pressure in the chest; mental confusion or inability to arouse/respond; and bluish lips or face. ] 


		YES

		NO

		Action



		Fever (>/= 38oC [100.4°F]) 

		

		

		If yes, isolate the employee, call the relevant Health Authority and/or seek private medical advice, and follow that guidance. If no medical advice is available through either source, quarantine for 14 days. Difficulty breathing always requires immediate medical attention, regardless of COVID-19.



		Cough (usually dry)

		

		

		



		Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing

		

		

		



		Any exposure to someone who has a confirmed case of COVID-19

		

		

		



		Symptoms sometimes associated with COVID-19 



		Recent loss of taste or smell

		

		

		If the employee has no fever but exhibits two of these symptoms, consult medical personnel and follow the country’s protocols. At the discretion of the medical personnel, the employees may be placed on a 72-hr quarantine. 



		Chills / repeated shaking with chills

		

		

		



		Fatigue

		

		

		



		Sore throat

		

		

		



		Headache

		

		

		



		Muscle pains

		

		

		



		Diarrhea

		

		

		



		Sneezing

		

		

		



		Additional Quarantine Consideration



		Have you been in contact with anyone who has symptoms of COVID-19 in the last 14 days?

		

		

		If yes, consult medical personnel. 







Employees can return to work providing:

· The quarantine/self-isolation period has been completed.

· Temperature has been< 38oC for at least 72-hours prior to returning to work site (that is three full days of no fever without the use medicine that reduces fevers). Temperature will continue to be monitored along with rest of work force.

· AND

· other symptoms have improved (ex. when their cough or shortness of breath have improved).

· AND

· The answer to the Additional Quarantine Consideration is No.
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